
AMENDED 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

MONDAY, JUNE 17, 2019 

RAY JORDAN TULSA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING  

500 S. DENVER, TULSA, OKLAHOMA 

ROOM 119  9:30 AM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. MINUTES 

A. Board of County Commissioner's Meeting of June 10, 2019 

III. REPORTS 

A. Elected Officials: 

1. Assessor 

2. Court Clerk 

3. Treasurer 

B. County Department  Election Board 

C. Annual Inventory Certifications: 

1. Administrative Services 

2. County Clerk 

3. Treasurer 

D. Social Services  Annual Cemetery Report 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Bid/Proposal Awards: 

1. Sheriff  Video Visitation for David L. Moss (DLM) Criminal Justice Center  

Deferred 

2. TC Departments  Agricultural Supplies  Deferred 

B. Amendment #1  (TC Central Garage)  to Renew the Award for Ford Automotive Repair 

to Mark Allen GMC 

C. Amendment #3  (Board of County Commissioners)  Revision #3 to Amendment #3 to 

the Professional Services Agreement with CH2M HILL, Inc., for the Arkansas River 

Corridor Projects 

D. Amended Agreement  (Engineers)  ONEOK Gas Transportation, LLC  Amended Right 

ofWay Agreement Replacing the Previous Agreement Approved on 6/3/19 CMF #247998 

V. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Gasoline & Diesel Fuel Quotes 

B. Resolution on Disposition of Funds/Cash Fund Estimate of Needs 

C. Request for Approval  (Board of County Commissioners)  Timmons Oil Company, Inc. - 

Credit Application 

D. Requests for Approval  Human Resources: 

1. Proposal from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc., for Excess 

Workers Compensation Policy with Safety National Casualty Corp. 

2. for Authorization of Plan Sponsor Web Portal User Access for Lori Cherrington at 

Expo Square for Tulsa County 401(a) and 457 Plans 

 



2  
 

E. Requests for Approval  (Social Services)  to Accept Donations  (2) 

F. Resolution  (Employees' Retirement System of Tulsa County)  Changing the 

Contribution Rate for the Employer and Employee of the Employees' Retirement 

System of Tulsa County, Oklahoma 

G. Tort Claim  (District Attorney)  TC201919, Claimant: Larry Goldesberry, Jr. 

H. Agreements: 

1. Assessor - LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL, Inc. - Accurint Services Renewal 

Agreement for FY 2019-2020 

 2.      Board of County Commissioners: 

a. Department of the Army  for Design for the Arkansas River Corridor Ecosystem 

Restoration Project Design 

b. L2M, LLC  for Administration of Claims Related to the May 2019  

Flooding Emergency in Tulsa County 

c. Metro Roofing Company, LLC  for Trade Contractor Agreement for Roofing for 

Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations 

d. Oakridge Builders, a Division of Flintco, LLC  for Trade Contractor 

Agreement for Concrete for Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building 

Renovations 

e. Oklahoma Waterproofing Company  for Trade Contractor Agreement for 

Waterproofing for Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations 

 3.     Court Clerk  Wycom Systems, Inc.  for Annual License and Support 

 4. Engineers  Washington County Rural Water District #3  Utility Relocation    

Agreement for Improvements to N. 137th E. Ave. Over Horsepen Creek 

5. Human Resources  Vision Services Plan, Inc., Oklahoma  for Group Vision Care 

Policy for FY 20192020 

 6.     Treasurer: 

                             a. BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma  for Warrant and Credit Reimbursement 

b. Financial Equipment Company  Equipment Service and Maintenance Renewal     

Agreement for FY 2019-2020 

I. Agreement Renewals: 

1. Administrative Services  JD Young 

2. Board of County Commissioners  Tulsa CityCounty Health Department 

3. Employees' Retirement System of Tulsa County: 

a. &CO 

b. Milliman, Inc. 

4. Highways  ImageNet Consulting, LLC 

5. Human Resources  Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

6. IT  ConvergeOne, Inc. 

7. Juvenile Bureau  ImageNet Consulting, LLC 

8. Parks  Tulsa Little League 

J. Inventory Resolutions: 

1. Fiscal Office 

2. IT 

3. Sheriff  (6) 

K. Sole Sources: 

1. Sheriff  PortionPac Chemical Corporation 

2. Treasurer  Public Access to Court Electronic Records (PACER) 



3  
 

L. Utility Permits  Engineers: 

1. AT&T 

2. Keystone Rural Gas District #1 

3. Oklahoma Natural Gas Company, a Division of ONEOK, Inc. 

M. Travel/Training: 

1. Human Resources 

2. IT  (2) 

N. Personnel Actions: 

1. Building Operations 

2. Election Board 

3. Highways 

4. Parks 

O. Juvenile Bureau Documents to Accept & File: 

1. Personnel Actions 

2. Travel/Training 

P. CC Health Department Documents to Accept & File 

1. Agreements: 

a. North Tulsa Community Coalition 

b. ImageNet Consulting, LLC 

c. Coontz Roofing, Inc. 

2. Personnel Actions 

Q. Claims to be Disallowed (payments cancelled as of 6/1014/19) 

R. Claims (payments for bills to be paid by 6/37/19) 

S. Blanket Purchase Orders and Emergency Purchase Orders Submitted from 6/1014/19 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

In accordance with the Open Meeting Act, Title 25 O.S. § 311.A.10, new business is defined as 

any matter not known about or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the time 

of posting the agenda 

VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

County Events and Status Updates for Comment and Discussion from: Administrative 

Services, Building Operations, Court Services, Election Board, Fiscal Officer, Human 

Resources, Information Technology, Parks, Purchasing, Social Services, Engineering, 

Highways, Inspections, Sheriff, Assessor, County Clerk, Court Clerk, Treasurer, District 

Attorney, Presiding Judge, Juvenile Justice, Expo Square, INCOG, Tulsa Area Emergency 

Management Agency, OSU Extension, CC Library, CC Health Department, River Parks 

Authority, Levee Drainage District #12, Board of County Commissioners Chief Deputies, 

Director of Governmental Affairs 

VIII. ADJOURN 



 

BOCC Minutes 1  Monday, June 10, 2019 

 
(Agenda of meeting was posted in the central and outside lobby of the Ray Jordan Tulsa 

County Administration Building on June 6, 2019 at 4:30 p.m.) 
 

 
MINUTES 

Monday, June 10, 2019 

 

The Board of County Commissioners for Tulsa County met at the hour of 9:30 a.m. 

with the following members present:  Karen Keith, Chairman, represented by Chief Deputy 

John Fothergill; Ron Peters, Member; Stan Sallee, Member; and Michael Willis, Tulsa 

County Clerk, represented by Whitney Alexander. 

 Ron Peters, Chairman Pro Tem, called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. and the 

following business was transacted:   

 Chairman Pro Tem advised the announcements and County Events and Status 

updates were open for comment and discussion.  The departments with information gave a 

report.   

 Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve the minutes of the Board of 

County Commissioners Meeting of June 3, 2019.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; 

Peters, yes.  Motion carried.  

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize, as needed, the 

following reports: 

 1. County Clerk - Monthly for 5/19  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248031) 
 2. Assessor - Annual Inventory Certification for FY 2018-2019  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 

248032) 
 

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

 NOTICE:  A complete listing of all information relating to the following bids is on file 

and available for public inspection in the offices of County Purchasing and County Clerk. 

Sealed bids for Agricultural Supplies were received and opened.  The bidders being 

seven (7) in number are as follows:  

 1. Advanced Industrial Solutions by item (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248033) 

 2. Harrell's, LLC   by item (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248034) 
 3. Helena-Agri Enterprises, LLC by item (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248035) 
 4. Innovative Turf Supply by item (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248036) 

 5. Simplot Partners by item (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248037) 
 6. SiteOne Landscape Supply, LLC by item (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248038) 
 7. Winfield Solutions, LLC by item (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248039) 

 



 

BOCC Minutes 2  Monday, June 10, 2019 

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to refer the bids to TC Departments and 

Purchasing for analysis, report and recommendation on June 17, 2019.  Upon roll call, 

Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

 Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve the following bid/proposal awards:  

 1. Juvenile Bureau and Sheriff - Inmate Clothing, Uniforms, Linens and Bedding - to 
Bob Barker Company, Inc., and Victory Supply, Inc., the overall lowest bids 

received on the majority of the most purchased and used items.  This award is for 
one year beginning 6/14/19  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248040) 

 2. Sheriff - Video Visitation Services for the David L. Moss (DLM) Criminal Justice 
Center - Deferred 

 3. TC Departments - Dodge Automotive Repair - to Mark Allen Buick GMC, the only 

bid received, but it is within budgeted expectations.  This award is for one year 
beginning 6/12/19  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248041) 

 4. TC Departments - Paper Products - to Veritiv Operating Company, the lowest on the 
most commonly purchased items.  Advanced Industrial Solutions submitted 
samples that were deemed not equivalent to what was requested.  This award is for 

one year beginning 6/18/19  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248042) 
 

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve Amendment #1 from TC 

Departments, to the award for Restaurant, Kitchen and Concessionary Supplies to Ben E. 

Keith, CMF #247293, for clerical error on the bid for 10 oz., 12 oz. and 16 oz. cups.  The 

cups were quoted as 500 count per pack but are 1,000 count per pack.  The original bid 

price for all of the cups will remain the same. Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; 

Peters, yes.  Motion carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248043) 

  Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, Change Order #1 from the Board of County Commissioners, to the 

agreement with All American Fire Systems, Inc, for Fire Protection for the Tulsa County "HQ" 

Administration Building Renovations, CMF #247510, for the purchase of the sprinkler 

system drawings from the original designer.  The contract time is unaffected by this change 

order.  The contract sum will increase in the amount of $7,475 with a new total contract sum 

of $288,435.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.  (Clerk’s 

Misc. File No. 248044) 

   Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the amendatory resolution from Inspections, CMF #247993, to 

temporarily waive any County Inspections permit fees related to plumbing, electrical, 

mechanical, demolition or remodeling for the victims of the current flood emergency until 



 

BOCC Minutes 3  Monday, June 10, 2019 

June 30, 2019, effective immediately.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  

Motion carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248045) 

  Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve the gasoline and diesel fuel quotes 

for the week ending 6/17/19.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion 

carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248046) 

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve the appointment from 

Commissioner Sallee, of Bud York to the Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority, effective 

6/26/19 with term to expire 7/31/20.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  

Motion carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248047) 

 Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to accept and file the insurance proposal from 

Zurich for property insurance for County properties for FY 2019-2020.  Upon roll call, Sallee, 

yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248048) 

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the following requests from Engineers: 

 1. to reserve drainage easement to the County on a piece of County owned property. 
The property has been declared surplus and will be sold, and the easement will 
reserve the needed right of way for an existing drainage channel  (Clerk’s Misc. File 

No. 248049) 
 2. Notice of Sale of County Real Estate, County Property located at 6010 North 

Rockford in Turley, OK, and more particularly described as Lots Twelve (12), 
Thirteen (13), Fourteen (14), Fifteen (15), Sixteen (16), and Seventeen (17), Block 
Four (4), East Turley Addition, an addition to the Town of Turley, Tulsa County, 

Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat thereof, subject to a Drainage Easement 
along the west 60 feet, and any other easements of record, to the highest and best 

bidder for cash, subject to the determination of said Commission, on or after 
7/1/19; Bids must be in writing, sealed in an envelope, and may be left at the office 
of Tulsa County Clerk prior to 4:00 p.m. on 6/28/19.  Bids for said property must 

be in the minimum amount of $1,600 (80% of appraised value thereof) or same will 
be rejected as required by law  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248050) 

  

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

 Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the following requests from INCOG: 

 1. to adopt the Tulsa County HOME Consortium and Tulsa County CDBG Urban 

County FY2019 Annual Action Plan and required certifications, and authorize 
submittal to HUD, HOME Consortium Funds in the amount of $1,001,261 for the 
following projects: Rehabilitation of Elderly Congregate Housing $451,135; New 

Construction of Rental Units for Disabled Individuals $450,000; Administration 
$100,126; and Tulsa County CDBG Urban County Funds in the amount of 
$1,391,322 for the following projects: City of Bixby Addition Storm Sewer 

Construction Phase III $82,972.41; City of Broken Arrow Street Rehabilitation 
$399,942.85; City of Collinsville Waterline/Fire Hydrant Improvements 

$117,630.50; City of Jenks Drainage Improvements $117,630.50; City of Owasso 
Sanitary Sewer Line Rehabilitation $133,117.11; City of Sand Springs Water Line 



 

BOCC Minutes 4  Monday, June 10, 2019 

Replacement $96,302.91; City of Sapulpa Street Rehabilitation $158,129.03; Public 
Services Activities (Awarded by Broken Arrow) $70,578.15; Administration (18%) 

$215,018  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248051) 
 2. Proposal Acceptance Recommendation for Home Consortium FY 2019 Rental 

Housing - to A New Leaf, Inc. in the amount of $450,000, to assist in the 
construction of 62 units in Phase 1 of A New Leaf Community to be located in 
Owasso, OK.  HOME funds will be used for 20 units at a HOME investment of 

$22,500 per unit  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248052) 
  

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

  Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the request from Social Services for the renewal of application for Tulsa 

County Pharmacy and training area licenses for The George Protho, MD Pharmacy for FY 

2019-2020.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.  (Clerk’s 

Misc. File No. 248053)   

  Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Commission, the resolution from the Board of County Commissioners for the partial 

distribution of Vision Tulsa Capital Improvement Program sales tax funds-bond proceeds for 

renovation of the Ray Jordan Building design and construction in the amount of $2,000,000.  

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 

248054)  

  Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the resolution from Inspections to temporarily allow RVs on private 

property in the areas of the County affected by flood waters and being addressed by FEMA 

until 11/30/20 effective immediately.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  

Motion carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248055) 

  Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve and authorize execution, as 

needed, the following agreements: 

 1. Board of County Commissioners:  
  a. Bennett Steel, Inc. - trade contractor agreement for structural steel for the Tulsa 

County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 
248056) 

  b. ReliaStar Life Insurance Company dba Voya Financial - for Group Long Term 
Disability Insurance for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248057) 

 c. ReliaStar Life Insurance Company dba Voya Financial - for Group Short Term 

Disability Insurance for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248058) 
 d. ReliaStar Life Insurance Company dba Voya Financial - for Group Accident 

Insurance for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248059) 

 e. ReliaStar Life Insurance Company dba Voya Financial - for Group Critical Illness 
Insurance for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248060) 



 

BOCC Minutes 5  Monday, June 10, 2019 

 f. Talon Commercial Services, LLC - trade contractor agreement for drywall for 
Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 

248061) 
 2. District Attorney: 

  a. Thomson Reuters - for West Products subscription for civil division FY 2019-
2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248062) 

  b.  Thomson Reuters - for West Products subscription for criminal division for FY 

2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248063) 
 3. Engineers - State of Oklahoma Department of Transportation - project 

maintenance, financing and right-of-way for County Road 137th E. Ave. over 

Horsepen Creek between 161st St. N. & 166th St. N. Project No. J3-3566(04)CI 
(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248064) 

 4. Human Resources: 
  a. Delta Dental Plan of Oklahoma - for administrative services for FY 2019-2020  

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248065) 

  b.  Delta Dental Plan of Oklahoma - for fully insured plan for FY 2019-2020  
(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248066)   

   

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.      

  Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the following agreement renewals: 

 1. Board of County Commissioners - Pythian, LLC - for renewal of CMF #245424 for 

FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248067) 
2. County Clerk: 
 a. American Eagle Title & Abstract, LLC - for renewal of CMF #244967 for FY 2019-

2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248068) 
 b. Civic Plus - for renewal of CMF #244894 for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File 

No. 248069) 

 c. Corporation Services Company - for renewal of CMF #244968 for FY 2019-2020  
(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248070) 

 d. First American Title - for renewal of CMF #245081 for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s 
Misc. File No. 248071) 

 e. Indecomm Holdings, Inc. - for renewal of CMF #244969 for FY 2019-2020  

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248072) 
 f. Underground Vaults & Storage, LLC - for renewal of CMF #244970 for FY 2019-

2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248073) 
 g. Xerox Corporation - for renewal of CMF #244971 for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s 

Misc. File No. 248074) 

 h. Xerox Corporation - for renewal of CMF #245082 for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s 
Misc. File No. 248075) 

3. Employees’ Retirement System of Tulsa County: 

 a. Chickasaw Capital - for renewal of CMF #244972 for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s 
Misc. File No. 248076) 

 b. Phillips Murrah P.C. - for renewal of CMF #245289 for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s 
Misc. File No. 248077) 

 c. Toqueville Asset Management L.P. - for renewal of CMF #245226 for FY 2019-

2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248078) 
4. Human Resources - Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services - for renewal of 

CMF #245072 for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248079) 
5. Parks: 
 a. JSJ, Inc. - for renewal of CMF #245216 for FY 2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 

248080) 
 b. York Electronic Systems, Inc. - for renewal of CMF #244845 for FY 2019-2020  

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248081) 

6. Sheriff - BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma - for renewal of CMF #245089 for FY 
2019-2020  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248082) 

  

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   



 

BOCC Minutes 6  Monday, June 10, 2019 

  Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve the request to advertise for bids 

from TC Departments for Vehicle Lubricants and Antifreeze.  Bids to be received by 4:00 p.m. 

on 6/28/19 & to open on 7/1/19 at 9:30 a.m.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; 

Peters, yes.  Motion carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248083) 

    Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the following inventory resolutions: 

  1. Administrative Services - junked; Camera, Planetary, ALOS 41, w/Accessory, SN 
36006388, purch. 5/11/07 for $3,776.27  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248084)   

  2. County Clerk - junked; 8-Fujitsu Scanner for Munis Project, SN 048459, 048498, 

048565, 048814, 049580, 049679, 051867, 052504, purch. 2/19/09 for $885.10 
ea.; AR-E Rapid Time Stamp Clock, SN 537714, purch. 4/10/13 for $775; Optiplex 

9010 Small Form Factor, SN GKNSHX1, purch. 7/2/13 for $1,508.13  (Clerk’s 
Misc. File No. 248086)   

  3. Highways - junked; Chair Lazy Boy Tan, SN 01101020120, purch. 6/17/91 for 

$506; Stihl HT-131 Pole Saw, SN 285722303, purch. 6/21/11 for $584.99  (Clerk’s 
Misc. File No. 248085)   

  4. Human Resources - junked; 2-36" 5-Drawer Lateral File Cabinets, SN 

01301040035, 01301040038, purch. 6/29/90 for $596.40 ea.; 42" 5-Drawer 
Lateral File Cabinet, SN 01301040040, purch. 6/29/90 for $687; 4-Drawer File 

Cabinet File, Lat, 42' W/L, SN HON7946-Q, purch. 3/30/01 for $500; Secretarial 
Desk Steelcase, SN 01301050010, purch. 8/7/90 for $787.80; Steelcase Desk, SN 
01301050014, purch. 8/7/90 for $848.90; Steelcase Return, SN 01301050015, 

purch. 8/7/90 for $1,108.90; Desk/Return Extension LH w/Lateral, SN 
977402472LPCW, purch. 8/2/00 for $1,199.99; Shredder: GBC GDX2019 Jam 
Free CROS, Asset No. 12203, purch. 1/31/11 for $743.08  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 

248087)   
  5. Sheriff - junked; 3-Dell Optiplex 760 SFF-Duo Core Processors, SN 2L92GK1, 

2L8YFK1, 2L9ZFK1, purch. 10/21/09 for $1,090.60 ea.; Processor: Dell Optiplex 
760 SFF, SN J51R4J1, purch. 6/16/09 for $1,144.06; Dell Optiplex 990 SFF, SN 
J4KWKS1, purch. 3/14/12 for $1,277.98; HP DL38OE GEN8 8-SFF CTO Server, 

SN MXQ43803PJ, purch. 9/29/14 for $7,152.95; 2-Dell Poweredge R710 per Dell 
Quote, SN BF10MN1, BF11MN1, purch. 10/29/10 for $6,723.38 ea.; Dell 

Poweredge R720 for Netmotion, SN 479NLV1, purch. 5/29/12 for $7,310.58; Dell 
Poweredge R720, Intel Server, SN 68DXK02, purch. 4/21/14 for $14,294.43; Dell 
Poweredge R720, Intel Xeon Serv, SN CLQ0K02, purch. 5/1/14 for $12,471.20; 7-

PC, Optiplex 755 SFF Duo Core Processors, SN 4L2N6G1, 5K2N6G1, 7L2N6G1, 
CK2N6G1, 1K2N6G1, 8J2N6G1, HK2N6G1, purch. 5/1/08 for $1,239.62 ea.; HP 
Laserjet 4250DTN Printer, SN CNBXC06361, purch. 10/25/04 for $1,724.97; 

Monitor; Dell Ultrasharp 2001 FP 20IN, SN CN0C06464663359MOLYL, purch. 
12/2/05 for $566.10; 6-Monitors/Dell Ultra Sharp 2001FP 20", SN 

MXOC95364663464010JS, MXOC95364663464010DS, MXOC95364663464010FS, 
MXOC95364663464010HS, MXOC95364663464L2NHS, 
MXOC95364663464010GS, purch. 5/8/06 for $534.10 ea.; Dell Optiplex 745, SN 

C10Z3C1, purch. 11/27/06 for $2,124.03; 4-Processors, Dell Optiplex 755 SFF, 
Duo Core, SN GJBMRH1, JJBMRH1, CJBMRH1, BJBMRH1, purch. 12/03/08 for 

$1,239.33 ea.; Dell Optiplex 210 Desktop Computer, SN 8XSOKC1, purch. 2/14/07 
for $1,034.92; 12-Dell Optiplex 745 Small Form Factors, 78VR5D1, 2BVR5D1, 
39VR5D1, 48VR5D1, 4CVR5D1, 6CVR5D1, 78VR5D1, 89VR5D1, BCVVR501, 

D9VR5D1, GCVR5D1, H8VR5D1, purch. 7/6/07 for $1,011.12 ea.; Dell Inspiron 
Mini Laptop, SN 13GX4L1, purch. 3/10/10 for $346.90; Dell Optiplex 780 SFF, 
Quad Core Processor, SN 2BSXPM1, purch. 5/18/10 for $1,293.60; 3-Dell Optiplex 

780 SFF, Quad Core Processors, SN 10RSKM1, 10RVKM1, 10SPKM1, purch. 
6/25/10 for $1,477.56 ea.; 2-Dell Inspiron Mini 10 Laptops, SN 1K7GQM1, 

FK7GQM1, purch. 7/23/10 for $328.27 ea.; 2-Dell Optiplex 780 SFF, Quad Core 
Processors, SN BWJ6LM1, BWJLKM1, purch. 7/6/10 for $1,475.04 ea.; 3-Dell 



 

BOCC Minutes 7  Monday, June 10, 2019 

Optiplex 780 SFF, Quad Core Processors, SN 9JS29P1, 9JS59P1, 9JS39P1, purch. 
1/11/11 for $1,289.83 ea.; Dell Optiplex 780 SFF, Quad Core Processor, SN 

63NYBP1, purch. 2/15/11 for $1,370.65; Dell Latitude 2120 Netbook, SN 
G7KVRQ1, purch. 8/11/11 for $379.20; Fujitsu 6240Z Document Scanner, SN 

401757, purch. 12/7/12 for $1,867.55; 2-Maxtor Maxattach 80 GIG Hard Drives 
10/10, SN EA00A38C, EA00A68B, purch. 2/7/01 for $919 ea.; 2-Gateway Laptop 
Computers, SN 0030020410, 0030020409, purch. 4/20/03 for $2,484 ea.; Gateway 

Laptop, SN 0032886323, purch. 2/17/04 for $2,296; Dell GX620 Computer, SN 
C1R24B1, purch. 6/14/06 for $956.22; Dell Color Laser Printer 3100CN, SN 
40D9D41, purch. 7/26/06 for $647; Lexmark E 450 DN Laser Printer, SN 

33SO700, purch. 2/20/07 for $591.89; Lexmark E450DTN Printer, SN 621H1CV, 
purch. 11/28/07 for $772.68; Dell Optiplex Computer and Monitor, SN J3J2GG1, 

purch. 6/13/08 for $1,187.22; 5-Dell Optiplex 755 Duo Core Processors W/D, SN 
FD5V4H1, BD5V4HL, GD5V4HL, DD5V4H1, CD5V4HL, purch. 8/12/08 for 
$1,080.86 ea.; Dell Laptop Computer, SN GRBLJH1, purch. 10/13/08 for 

$1,186.80; Dell Optiplex Computer, SN 6NKMQH1, purch. 11/21/08 for $1,076.95; 
2-Dell Optiplex 755 Computers & Monitors, SN DRNG1J1, CRNG1J1, purch. 

1/30/09 for $1,057.05 ea.; Dell Optiplex 755 Computer & Monitor, SN HKM56J1, 
purch. 2/9/09 for $1,057.05; Dell Optiplex 760SFF Duo Core Processor, SN 
9K638J1, purch. 2/26/09 for $1,077.30; Dell Optiplex 755 SFF Duo Core 

Processor, SN 2MTRJG1, purch. 3/18/09 for $1,061.69  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 
248088)   

 

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

  Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the following sole sources:    

  1. CC Health - Littlefield, Inc. - for alterations, updates, maintenance and hosting of 
the Tulsa Health Department (tulsa-health.org) website created by Litttlefield, Inc.  

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248089) 
  2. IT: 

    a. OneNet - Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education - for sole internet service 
provider that can provide reliable and redundant connectivity to the Oklahoma 
State Network.  OneNet can accommodate dark fiber resources to Tulsa County 

via these publicly managed assets in addition to network engineering support to 
manage the border gateway protocol  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248090) 

    b. Tyler Technologies, Inc. - for Munis Software and is the only party authorized to 
support and update Munis Software  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248091) 

  3. Sheriff - Security Trend Corporation dba ProxiGuard - for RFID Guard Tour 

Management based on Client/Server Professional MS SQI solution in the USA 
market  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248092) 

  

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

  Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Chairman Pro Tem, the following utility permits from Engineers to Oklahoma Natural Gas 

Company, a division of ONEOK, Inc.: 

  1. to parallel E. 141st St. +/- 1 mile N. & 3.72 miles E. of the US Hwy 75 & St Hwy 67 
junction and further described as 1,200' W. of the SE/NE Corner of Section 8/7, 

Township 17N, Range 13E by boring for 6" natural gas pipeline  (Clerk’s Misc. File 
No. 248093)   

  2. to cross E. 122nd St. & S. 193rd E. Ave. and parallel S. 193rd E. Ave. +/- 4.50 

miles S. & 1.19 miles W. of the Creek & Muskogee Turnpikes and further described 
as NW & SW of the SE/C of Section 6/1, Township 17N, Range 15E/14E by boring 

for 6" natural gas pipeline  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248094)   
 



 

BOCC Minutes 8  Monday, June 10, 2019 

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

  Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve the following travel/training 

requests from IT: 

  1. Kyle Freeman and Ryan Hamilton to Milestone Workshop from 7/9-11/19 in Tulsa, 

OK; cost of $3,190  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248095) 
  2. Dan Pease, Alan Vanderburg, Joe Lord, Jeff Droll, and Beau Blackford to IT 

Symposium Managers Forum on 8/28/19 in Tulsa, OK; cost of $300 per person  

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248096) 
 

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.   

  Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve the following Personnel Actions: 

 
A. Name B. Action  C. Salary  D. Eff. Date 

Building Operations 
Donoho, Kagen Promotion $2,806.55 6/1/19 
Hunter, Marquis Resignation  6/4/19  

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248097) 
 
Highways 

Murray, Royal Donald Begin Military Leave  
   w/pay with Orders  

   Flood Relief $3,836.99 5/28/19 
Murray, Royal Donald End Military Leave  
   w/pay with Orders  

   Flood Relief $3,836.99 6/4/19                                                                                 
(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248098) 
 

Parks 
Hesterlee, Danny Intermittent FMLA $5,481.31 6/6/19 

Houpe, Caleb Part Time $10.00/hr. 6/4/19 
Hamilton, Marquiz Seasonal $9.25/hr. 6/4/19 
Grant, Madelyn Seasonal-Rehire $9.25/hr. 6/4/19 

Huffman, Gwyneth Seasonal $9.25/hr. 6/4/19 
Scott, Cierra Seasonal Rehire $8.25/hr. 6/5/19 

Matulis, Dylan Seasonal $9.25/hr. 6/5/19 
Thurman, John Correction $11.00/hr. 5/1/19 
Baker, Michal Seasonal $8.00/hr. 6/5/19  

Lee, Janet End FMLA w/pay $2,378.49 6/5/19  
Lee, Janet Start FMLA w/o pay  6/6/19 
Watson, Kimberli Resignation  5/31/19  

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248099) 
 

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.     
 

  Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to accept and file the following Juvenile 

Bureau Personnel Actions: 

A. Name B. Action  C. Salary  D. Eff. Date 
Arnold, Yolanda Promotion/Move to 

   26003900-505010 $2,173.21 6/1/19  
Stie, Frank Resignation  6/1/19 
Claessens, Robert Discharged  5/30/19 

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248102) 
 

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.     
 



 

BOCC Minutes 9  Monday, June 10, 2019 

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to accept and file the following CC Health 

Documents: 

Agreements: 
1. Tulsa Public Schools - advertising banners for Prescription Drug Abuse Prevention 

Campaign from 5/1/19 to 10/31/19; cost of $1,000  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248103) 

2. Indian Health Care Resource Center - for subcontractor service for Healthy Start Program 
from 4/1/19 to 3/31/20; cost of $50,639/yr. (as invoiced monthly)  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 
248104) 

3. Littlefield Agency - for Opioid Prescriber Campaign to replace CMF #247972 from 
5/15/19 to 6/30/19; cost of $40,888  ($30,000 and $10,888)  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 

248105) 
 
Personnel Actions: 

A. Name B. Action  C. Salary  D. Eff. Date 
Cox, Michael New Hire Regular  

   Full Time $3,599.95 6/1/19 
Holley, Marquis New Hire Regular  
   Full Time $3,340.38 6/4/19 

Lunsford, Taylor Resignation  6/14/19 
Ibarra, Omar Resignation  6/30/19 
(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248106) 

 
Travel/Training:  

1. Catherine Ndhlovu attended Haruv Conference on Child Maltreatment from 5/15-16/19 
in Tulsa, OK; cost of $60 

2. Letitia Dehart, Allison Burke, Shannon Culler, Kathleen Turner & Kimberly Whitty to 

Annual Child Guidance Meeting from 7/7-9/19 in Moore, OK; cost of $1,883.60.  
3. DeBrena Hilton to 2019 NACCHO Annual Conference from 7/8-12/19 in Orlando, FL; 

cost of $2,725 

4. Steven Smith to National Environmental Health Association Conference from 7/8-12/19 
in Nashville, TN; cost of $2,525 

5. Ashley Cutright to course; Women and Health, University of Alabama, Summer 2019; cost 
of $1,182 

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248107) 

 
Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.      

 

 Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Commission, the claims, (payments for bills to be paid 5/28-31/19) that are in order as 

required by Title 19 O.S. §1505 D 11 providing all claims involving wages and/or salaries be 

subject to state and federal withholding tax, retirement fund and social security deductions.  

Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.     

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to approve and authorize execution by the 

Commission, Blanket Purchase Orders and Emergency Purchase Orders submitted from 

6/3-7/19.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.    

 Chairman Pro Tem recognized members of the public signed up to speak regarding the 

287(g) contract.  Bruce DeLay of Tulsa; Peggy Burgess of Tulsa; Ronda Vuillemont-Smith of 

Broken Arrow; Bill Westmoreland of Bixby; Gary Johnson of Broken Arrow; John Smucker of 



 

BOCC Minutes 10  Monday, June 10, 2019 

Jenks; Gary McCargar of Tulsa; David Hughes of Tulsa; Carol Greer of Tulsa; E’Lena Ashley 

of Tulsa, Ken Yates of Tulsa; Randall Barnett of Sperry; Mike Schultz of Tulsa; Chaz Jaco of 

Tulsa; and John Huffines of Tulsa spoke in favor of the 287(g) contract.  Amanda Pellegrino 

of Tulsa; Deanna Tirrell of Tulsa, OK; Molly Bryant of Tulsa; Daniela Rosales of Tulsa; Rosa 

Hernandez of Tulsa; Robin Sherman of Tulsa; Miriam Marton of Tulsa; Julie Sky of Tulsa; 

Erica Quick of Tulsa; Alex Koenig of Tulsa; and Mike Workman of Tulsa spoke in opposition 

of the 287(g) contract.   

 Chairman Pro Tem recognized Sheriff Regalado to speak concerning 287(g). 

 Executive Session #1 from the District Attorney, requested by Nicholas Williams, 

pursuant to 25 O.S. § 307(B)(4), I am requesting this matter be discussed in Executive 

Session between the Board and its attorney, Jay McAtee, for the purpose of confidential 

communications concerning a pending claim, to-wit: Carolyn Parks v. Tulsa County, Workers’ 

Compensation Claim, disclosure of the details of which its attorney advises would seriously 

impair the ability of the Board to proceed in the public interest. 

 Executive Session #2 from the District Attorney, requested by Nicholas Williams, 

pursuant to 25 O.S. § 307(B)(4), I am requesting this matter be discussed in Executive 

Session between the Board and its attorney, Jay McAtee, for the purpose of confidential 

communications concerning a pending claim, to-wit: Jerry Quinton v. Tulsa County, Workers’ 

Compensation Court No. CM-16-04248X, disclosure of the details of which its attorney 

advises would seriously impair the ability of the Board to proceed in the public interest 

 Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, to go into Executive Session.  Upon roll call, 

Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried. 

 Executive Session commenced at 10:40 a.m. 

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to reconvene the regular meeting at 10:47 

a.m.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried. 

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to authorize settlement in the amount 

discussed in executive session, to-wit: Carolyn Parks v. Tulsa County, Workers’ 

Compensation Claim.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.  

(Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248108) 

 Moved by Fothergill, seconded by Sallee, to authorize settlement in the amount 

discussed in executive session, to-wit: Jerry Quinton v. Tulsa County, Workers’ Compensation 



 

BOCC Minutes 11  Monday, June 10, 2019 

Court No. CM-16-04248X.  Upon roll call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion 

carried.  (Clerk’s Misc. File No. 248109) 

 Moved by Sallee, seconded by Fothergill, that this meeting be adjourned.  Upon roll 

call, Sallee, yes; Fothergill, yes; Peters, yes.  Motion carried.     

 

 



Tulsa County Assessor's 
Monthly Revolving Fund Report 

Board of County Commissioners: 

In compliance with the provisions of Title 19 O.S. § 684, this report is submitted for the 
Assessor's Revolving Fund. 

A total of $1,286.00 was deposited with the Tulsa County Treasurer's Office from the 
Assessor's Duplicating Fees for the Reporting Period from May 1st 2019 through 
May 31 st 2019. 

Disbursements in the amount of $344.14 have been made from this fund for this 
Reporting Period. 

The balance in the Assessor's Revolving Fund at the end of the reporting period is 
$8,949.12. 

Jo 

cc:\~ar~ Keith, BO
1 

Chairman 
Rcrn Peters, Commissioner 
Stan Sallee, Commissioner 

Placed on commission meeting agenda for June 17, 2019. 



PRINTING AND DUPLICATING 

Tulsa County 
Assessor Fee Revolving 
Fund 

MONTH April/May YEAR2019 

Date 

. Week Beginning 04/29/2019 

04/30/2019 

05/01/2019 

05/02/2019 

Week Ending 05/03/2019 

' 

Daily Total 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$175.00 

$0.00 

$225.00 

,-· 

0•00 + 
0•00 + 

175•00 + 
QoQO + 

225°00 + 
~ 

Employee WeeldyTotal 

dz 
~ 

dz 

ah 

ah 

ah $400.00 



+ -~ 

00 
00 

" 0 
00 J~ lj ~ 

-~ 
Vo 

' . 

Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa:eounty, Oklaho~a . 

· Cash Receipts 

+* + * 
o·o 0 0 
00 0 0 

·a " 0 " 
0 ;J -r::J 

0) 

l© 1 Q) 

pc:e up;. __ 

Date 

V Db 00. 00 



+* 
a a a o 

0 0 

0 0 

+ * 
a o 
DD 

0 0 

0 0 

~ 
? 

]~ r re-

Please Initial When Logging 
. C~unty Assessor_ 

Tulsa-County, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ * 
0 0 
0 0 

00 <S' 

Jl 

Date 

00. e> · 00 



. -· .. - -

* 
0 

0 

+++?(-

0000 
a o o·o 
§L0CJtn r-- lD r--

"t-

~\ 

Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa."county, Olda~o~a . 

· Cash Receipts 

++ +·* + + + • E-
0000 0000 0000 cooo 0 0 0 0 

0 LO O LC) 
0 0 0 o 

lD I'- LO r-- 0 0 0 c, 
"t-

d, 

~ ~~ 
~~ ~ . 

!YI. ·,...J_.9 
Date . ~/. 

t-------~k) 

1~ DD ll~ ub. 



+ • E-

1 
0 0 
0 a 

0 0 

0 0 

c~ ~~ 't-

Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa:eounty, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ * 
0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

~ 
<:y ..,.. 

~ ,_ 

~l 
···- ---·-·-

Date_5_· · -1_. _( f . 

+ * 
0 0 
0 0 .. 0 

0 0 

~ -~ ct \~-·~ V,V) 

~ . 
~ 

', 1 
l 



....;, 
) 

Cf' 

{~ 

+ 
0 
0 

0 
Lf") 
OJ 
C\.1 

Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa:eounty, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

<, 

•~ + * 
0 OD 
0 0 0 

0 0 0 

LO LO LO 
C\J C\J C\J 
C\.I (\J C-,J 

~ 

~:i ~i \- 1· 
--·~ -~---

Date_-5 __ · __ · 3_· -_[ _f _ 

·;, 

+ J,;" 

0 0 
0 D 

0 0 

0 0 

~\ ~ 

t -
~-

~!2_ 
(f) 1-0 



PRINTING AND DUPLICATING 

MONTH May 

Date 

Week Beginning 05/06/2019 

05/07/2019 

05/08/2019 

05/09/2019 

Week Ending 05/10/2019 

YEAR2019 

Daily Total 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$750.00 

QoQQ + 
QoQQ + 
QoQQ + 
0•00 + 

750°00 + 

~ 

Tulsa County 
Assessor Fee Revolving 
Fund 

Employee Weekly Total 

ah 

ss 

ss 

ah 

ah $750.00 



. .. .. - -

1 

] 
* 
0 

0 

+* 

88 
0 0 

Do 

~-6 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa."county, Oklahoma . 

Cash Receipts 

+ • f 

0 0 
Cl CJ 

0 0 

G C: 

~ ~~t 

Date_-5 __ · -_·k _____ ! _9_ 

+ -><-

0 0 
0 CJ 

ii 
0 0 

0 0 

-~ 

~\ ~ vb 
·a,-

-o- -o-



. .. .. - -

+ -:,~ 

0 0 
c:; CJ 

0 0 

Ci CJ 

-~ -¥- -:, 
~A 

+ -x 
0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

C) " 

Please Initial When Logging 
. CC?unty Assessor_ 

Tulsa-County, Oklahoma . 

Cash Receipts 

+ ~-

0 0 
0 CJ 

0 0 

C C 

-~ ~ O"" --¥ '-i 
~s 
J~ (!) .t.. 

\0 ~ \f] "l 

-~ 0f 

Date ·s·~ J-. I~ 



... .. ,.... . 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa."County, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ ?<" 

-----

@ 

+ •~. 

oO 
oO 

0 0 

oD 

Date 

. " 

.i 

--- \ 



... .. - ~ 

Oo 
Ge 
o. O 

oo 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa:county, Oklahoma . 

+ -}<" 

0 0 
G C 

C 0 

0 

Cash Receipts 

00 
G C1 

0 0 

O C 

Date 

1 

:· ~;----+----+----+----i----11 

.---



... 
.. - -

-S~ LLC· 

1------11 

+ -1- •~ 

ooo ooo 
0 0 0 

Lf") LO C, 
C\J C\J Lf") 
CU L0 I'--

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa."county, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ + -x-
000 
ooc 

C O 0 

LO LO C 
C\J C\J L0 
C\J LO I'--

/'BJ 

00 0 ,...., 
0 0 

0 0 

6D 

Date 

\ 

So oD - 0 cu+· 



I , 

PRINTING AND DUPLICATING 

MONTH May 

Date 

Week Beginning 05/13/2019 

05/14/2019 

05/15/2019 

05/16/2019 

Week Ending 05/17/2019 

YEAR2019 

Daily Total 

$75.00 

$40.00 

$0.00 

$2.00 

$0.00 

75°C)Q + 
£W 0 00 + 

OolJQ + 
2o(JO + 
0°00 + 

Tulsa County 
Assessor Fee Revolving 
Fund 

Employee Weekly Total 

ah 

ss 

ah 

ah 

ah $117.00 

CIT7•noD 

; 



. ., .. - ~ 

~ 
r 
._; 

) 

~ 

'l 
V) 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa.'County, Oklahoma . 

Cash Receipts 

+ * + * 0 0 0 0 0 0 a a . 0 0 0 LO LO LO LO r-- r-- r--- r---
c:::.l 

l\ ~7~ -~ 

Date 

+ * o. 0 
0 0 
0 0 

oo 

~½i 



. -· .. - -

+ 7(-

oo oo 
O 0 

~~ 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa:county, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ -3/:-

-------· 

Date 

o o'o 0 DO ss· 



·+ * 
0 0 
C) 0 

0 0 -~ 0 0 
.... 
\ 
lJ) 

;~ 

Please Initial When Logging· 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa.'county, Oklahoma . 

Cash Receipts 

+ -* 
0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

+ •~ 

0 0 
0 0 

0 0 ,cs-
0 0 ----' c:::;i,l \n 

%~.~~~~ \:-\_~ ~. 

Date .S-'t~-- r1 

- - _;) -



... .. ,.., -

* 
0 

0 Do 
Oo 

0 0 

C\J C\J 

Please Initial When Logging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa:county, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ * 
00 
DO 
0 0 

DO 
C\J C\J 

+ * 
00 oo 

0 • 

CD OJ ...... ,-

Date 



1 
+ ..,~ 
Oo 
Oc, 

0 0 

<;3- Oc 

\" 
r 

~i \n 

---

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa:county, Oklahoma 

Cash Receipts 

+ • C-

0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

~ 

~l 
~ ~ 

Date 

+ * 
0 0 
0 c, 

0 0 

O C <:s-

~ --r-\\ ~ ----~ ls) 

a:r ·~ 

-o -0 



PRINTING AND DUPLICATING 

MONTH May YEAR2019 

Date Daily Total 

Week Beginning 05/20/2019 $0.00 

05/21/2019 $0.00 

05/22/2019 $17.00 

05/23/2019 $2.00 

Week Ending 05/24/2019 $0.00 

Tulsa County 
Assessor Fee Revolving 
Fund 

Employee Weekly Total 

ah 

cm 

ah 

ah 

ss 

$19.00 



. .. .. ,,.... ~ 

1 + * 
0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

00 

ii 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa.'County, Oklaho~a . 

Cash Receipts 

+ * 
0 0 
C CJ 

0 0 

oo 

q 
~~ -~ 

Date_.5_. -~·,;z_o_~_l_l_ 

+ • E-

0 0 
0 C 

0 0 

OG 

~, .~ 

CfO 

-D -o 



1~ 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa.'County, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ * + * 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

C . . . 
0 0 ·o o 

!t ---0 
~ 

m ~~ ~-~ -o \3~ 
-- -- ---- ---------·-

Date -S~2 t.-l 4. · 

+ * 
0 0 
0 CJ . . 
co 

~ 

Jj 
'--._)~ 



... .. - -

~ 
\i" 

\ 

"' .,; 
) 

If\ 

-{- + * 
ooo 
ooo 

0 0 0 

r-- o r----
,- ,-

i~ 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa."county, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ + * + I 

ooo 0 
0 ooo 0 

0 0 0 
0 r-- 0 r--

,- ,-

* 
0 
Cl 

0 

0 

t\ e \\ 

-c ;.'[ 1-· -- r ~ 
Date /. . 

0---~~ 
Vl-

'-0 

-o- OA-f . 



... .. - -

~ 
"' ~-

0 

0 

+ * 
Oo De 

0 0 
(\J (\J 

*~ C 

Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa:county, Oklahoma . 

· Cash Receipts 

+ % 

+ * Oo 
0 C..) oo 

0 0 0 CJ 
(\J (\J 0 0 

oc 

d,.c,i d 
~/-& ~~ 'C ~ 

Date 

1~ 'S.. 

~i 
en 

oD oD --·· ,,--



··~. 

-
-l- * 

O c, 
cu 

O 0 

oc 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa:county, Oklahoma . 

Cash Receipts 

Date_S' ___ · _..,. __ ;)_L{.;....-...... 1 _. 4 __ 



PRINTING AND DUPLICATING 

MONTH May 

Date 

Week Beginning 05/27/2019 

05/28/2019 

05/29/2019 

05/30/2019 

Week Ending 05/31/2019 

YEAR2019 

Daily Total 

Holiday 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

0°no + 
0°00 + .,1-
QoOO + (Y' 

~ 

Tulsa County 
Assessor Fee Revolving 
Fund 

Employee Weekly Total 

ah 

ah 

ah 

ah 

ah $0.00 



Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa.'County, Oklahoma . 

Cash Receipts 

Date 

~ Date Issue: . 

M D Y 
. . - . . . -

• I @ 

' I @ 

l 1 @ j 

I " I a #'\. • I 

~ 0 \ I If ., 'j . , 
~ @d j j 

I \. ( ) I ( @ 

1 

).'rJ ( /.- '-"v 
( \) '-----""' I ~-

@ 

@ ,,. I 

@ 
l,____.,V 

@ 

: 
@ 

" @ 

@ 

@ 

'@ 

@ 
-J 

@ 

@ .. 

@. 

@. 

@ 

@ 

@ 

@ 

@. 



~r;-

0 

0 

! 
!)0-

(""( 
t 

lr) 

+ -'-' ,,. 

0 0 
c.::: C 

0 0 

C 0 

Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa."county, Oklahoma 

Cash Receipts 

+ ~~ 

0 0 
C; G 
0 0 

0 0 

~ 

i\ ~ ~ ~-·~ --:- ~ . 

Date 

+ -x-
0 0 
0 G 
0 0 

0 0 

~ 
~~ ~-

-D- -----o---



+ * 1 0 0 
C: C! 

0 0 

0 0 
~ --I 
,:-

~~ ti 
' Zf) 

Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa.'county, Oklahoma . 

Cash Receipts 

+ • s-

0 0 
0 CJ 

0 0 

cc 
d-. 

<>j 

~~ 
~i 

Date 

+ •~ 

0 0 
C C 

0 0 

d 

\\ 
'"" 

-o 



0 

0 
oo co 
0 C 

oo 

Please Initial When Logging 
. County Assessor 

Tulsa."County, Oklahoma 

Cash Receipts 

-1- •~ 

oo c, 0 
0 O 

Oo 
oo oc 
0 O 

0 C) 

Date 

,--c:J-



• <.-

~ 0 

\,) 0 

~ --I -l'O 
I 

'lh 

+ 
0 
0 

0 

0 

Please Initial When L_ogging 
· County Assessor 

Tulsa."County, Oklahoma 

Cash Receipts 

* + 7(-

0 0 0 
C 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 D 

d 

l-i ~ 

¥\ 

Date 

+ * 
0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

~ ~ 
~~~ 

. "1~ 

-- CJ 



















































To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Commissioner Keith 

Chairman, BOCC 

County Clerk 

Memo 

Annual Inventory Certification 

June 12, 2019 

In accordance with TCP002: Capital Inventory Certification, attached is the County Clerk annual 

inventory certification for fiscal year 2019. 

ORIGINAL SENT TO COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE FOR PLACEMENT ON THE BOARD 

OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' MEETING AGENDA OF JUNE 17, 2019. 

Attachment 









































































TULSA COUNTS

PURCHASING
DEPARTMENT

E /T

DATE:

FROM:

TO:

SUBJECT:

June 12, 2019

Megan L. Blackford
Assistant Purchasing Director

o^^z^^\
Board of County Commissioners

Amendment # 1 - Ford Automotive Repair

On July 23, 2018, the bid for Ford Automotive Repair as awarded to Mark Alien GMC
by the Board of County Commissioners, CMF#245461.

This amendment # 1 is to renew the Ford Automotive Repair award for a one year period,
effective July 29, 2019 through July 28, 2020. Marc Alien GMC has agreed to keep
pricing that is currently in place with no changes to the terms of the bid.

This recommendation is respectfully submitted for your approval.

MLB / arh

ORIGINAL: Michael WiUis, County Clerk, for the June 17, 2019 agenda.



CONTRACT / AGREEMENT RENEWAL

Department: Tul^a County Central Garage

Vendor: Mark A] en GMC

Describe produc / seivice provided by this contract:

Ford Autom, tive Repair

Original CMP # 2454fil

Current CMF# 245461

Dated: 07/23/2018

Dated: 07/2^/2018

The Board of C unty Commissioners, on behalf of the departinent above, by this renewal
adopts and ratifi s al! the provisions and terms in the original or most recent renewal of the
coiitract/agreem nt, without ameudmenls or addcudums, as if the tenns and provisious
were set out in 11 herein.

The terms of t is coutract/agreement shall be id full force and efFeci for the period
July 29, 2019 tbro. eh July 28. 2020 and shall be
effective upon fiill execution ofthisconti'act/agT eement renewal.

Vendor: /V^^ AU^A^ £l/^l^ 6A^

Printed N me; ^i Z?K-^S Date: &|tz|lcj

Approved by the B ard of County Conmiissioners this

ATTEST:

day of , 20

Michael WilUs
Tulsa County Cler

Chairman, Board of County Commissio&eis
Tulsa County

NOTE: Original t County Clerk for placement on Board of County Commissioners' Meeiing Agenda.



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Revision 3 to Amendment 3 of the Professional Services Agreement with 

CH2M HILL, Inc. for the Arkansas River Corridor Projects 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  The vendor 

has already signed this document, and it is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

John Fothergill, Chief Deputy Comm’r 



PMg_ 
May 23, 2019 

Matney Ellis, Purchasing Director 
Tulsa County 
500 South Denver 
Tulsa, OK 74103 

Program Management 
011 ner"s Representative 

Capital lmpro1•ements Planning 

RE: Proposed Third Revision to Third Amendment of Contract with CH2M HILL for the Arkansas River 
Corridor Projects 

Dear Matney: 

Please find attached the proposed Revision 3 to Amendment #3 of the Contract with CH2M HILL for the 
Arkansas River Corridor Projects. The purpose of this modification is to revise the existing Scope of 
Service and fee for the referenced Agreement. This revision reduces the scope and fee because those 
services are no longer needed to complete the project. This revision has been coordinated with CH2M 
HILL. They concur with these revisions and have signed the attachment. 

The attached revised Scope of Services items will replace the existing, corresponding Scope items and 
associated fees per the attachment. The previously revised Contract amount after Revision 2 to 
Amendment #3 (approved copy attached) was $1,004,990 and the new scope fee is $804,990, with a net 
fee reduction of $200,000. The work is projected to be completed by October 31, 2019, and the existing 
contract completion date will be extended to that date with this executed amendment. 

The Corps of Engineers will be kept involved and informed about the project to the greatest extent 
practicable. We will continue to coordinate this project with pertinent local stakeholders, including River 
Parks Authority, the City of Tulsa, City of Jenks, and impacted property owners. 

If you agree to this contract amendment, please place this contract item on the next available BOCC 
meeting agenda for action. The May 28, 2019 BOCC meeting would be preferable, if possible. If you 
have any questions concerning this matter, please do not hesitate to call. 

En c. 

Program Management Group, L.L.C. 
601 . Bouldt·r A1·e. • Suite 1200 • Tulsa, OK 7nl9 

(918) 582-7595 • !'ax (918) 587- n63 • \\\I'll .pmgtulsa.com 



Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement 

Amendment Number: 3- Revision 3 

In accordance with Section 17.0 ofthe Agreement dated January 26, 2009 

BETWEEN the Owner: 
Board of County Commissioners, Tulsa County 
500 South Denver Ave. 
Tulsa, OK 74103 

And the Engineer: 
CH2M HILL, Inc. 
Mid-Continent Tower 
401 South Boston, Suite 330 
Tulsa, OK 74103 

For the Project: 
Arkansas River Corridor Projects 
Tulsa County, Oklahoma 

Authorization is requested to proceed with Additional Services or a Change in Services as described in Attachment 
B, Scope of Services. 

The following adjustments shall be made to compensation and time: 

Compensation: 'Attachment D' ofthe Contract is hereby amended to decrease the fee by Two Hundred-Thousand
Dollars and No Cents ($200,000.00). The revised contract amount is Eight-Hundred-Four-Thousand-Nine-Hundred
Ninety Dollars and No Cents ($804,990.00). 

Time: Extend Completion date to October 31, 2019. 

SUBMITTED BY: 

Jennifer Kassa, Business Vice-President CH2MHill, Inc 
(Printed name and title) 

(Date): May 22, 2019 

AGREED TO: 

Karen Keith - Chair of BOCC 
(Printed name and title) 

(Date): ______ _ 

ATTEST: 

County Clerk 

Page I of2 



ATTACHMENT B 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The SERVICES to be performed by CH2M HILL, Inc. (CH2M) under this AGREEMENT consists of preparing 
a Section 404 permit application and supplemental supporting studies for the Arkansas River Corridor Project. 
A portion of the Scope of Services previously authorized included the preparation of an Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) or Environmental Assessment (EA) for the selected project(s). The U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE) has determined that an EA will be required for the proposed South Tulsa/Jenks Low Water 
Dam, therefore, certain Scope of Services Tasks will be deleted that would have been undertaken as part of the 
EIS preparation that is no longer needed. 

The following Task items will be deleted or modified per this Amendment: 

Task 2.1 -Public Scoping: 
Task 2.2- Agency Consultations: 
Task 4.5 -Hydrology Study: 
Task 4.6- Preliminary Cost Estimate: 
Task 5.3- Existing Conditions: 

Delete and reduce Task 2.1 amount by $7,411.00 
Delete and reduce Task 2.2 amount by $16,075.00 
Delete and reduce Task 4.5 amount by $108,917.00 
Delete and reduce Task 4.6 amount by $57,247.00 
Reduce Task 5.3 scope and amount by $10,350.00 

Page 2 of2 



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Amended Right-of-Way Agreement with ONEOK Gas Transportation, 

L.L.C. Replacing the Previous Agreement 

Approved Jun. 3, 2019 (CMF no. 247998) 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  This document 

is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  Please let me know if you have any 

questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

Tom Rains, County Engineer 



RIGHT-OF-WAY AGREEMENT 
Return To: MECO Land Services 724 N. Santa Fe Avenue Edmond, OK  73003 

 
                                         AFE:  045.145.5321.010017.136520 
 TR. OKGCLS.TU.002.00 OKGCLS.TU.003.00 

 
Agent:  J. Holcomb 
 
 

STATE OF {OKLAHOMA}      
COUNTY OF {TULSA} 
                                                                                                                                                                                 

For and in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) in hand paid, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned landowner, Tulsa County (hereinafter called 
GRANTOR, whether one or more), does hereby GRANT, BARGAIN, SELL and CONVEY 
to ONEOK Gas Transportation, L.L.C., an Oklahoma limited liability company, its successors 
and assigns (hereinafter called GRANTEE), a right-of-way and easement along a route, the 
location of which has been agreed to by the parties herein (the location of the pipeline, as 
constructed, to evidence such agreed route), to construct, maintain, operate, repair, replace, 
abandon in place, change the size of, inspect, reconstruct, relocate remove and any and all related 
uses thereto (the “Permitted Uses”) pipeline(s) and necessary and incident facilities, equipment 
and appurtenances, including but not limited to valves and markers (the “Facilities”) for the 
transportation of oil, gas, petroleum products, and/or any other liquids, gases, or substances 
which can be transported through pipelines, across under and upon the lands of GRANTOR in 
the County of  Tulsa, State of Oklahoma, To wit: 

                                                                          
A permanent easement Fifty (50’) feet in width and a temporary construction easement of 

an additional Twenty-five (25’) feet in width across the following tract(s) of land: 
 

In a part of the Southwest Quarter (SW/4) of Section Eight (8) and Lots 1 and 2, Block 9, 
and a part of the Northwest Quarter (NW/4) of Section Seventeen (17), Township Nineteen (19) 
North, Range Twelve (12) East, I.M., Tulsa County, Oklahoma. 

 
And as generally depicted on the attached Exhibit “A” (the “Easement”). 

  
 During construction, GRANTEE shall have the right to use an additional work space of 
up to one hundred fifty feet by one hundred fifty feet (150’ x 150’), or equivalent square footage, 
along the easement area at the crossing of road, railroads, stream, terraces and uneven terrain. 

 
The GRANTEE shall have all of the rights and benefits necessary or convenient for the 

full enjoyment or use of the rights herein granted, including but without limiting the same to the 
free right of ingress and egress over and across said lands to and from said Easement, the right to 
use all roads over and across said lands, and the right from time to time to cut all trees and 
undergrowth and remove other obstructions that may injure, endanger or interfere with the use of 
said Facilities.  GRANTOR may continue to use the surface of the Easement for agricultural, 
pasturage, or other purposes which will not interfere with the use of the Easement by GRANTEE 
or any of the rights herein granted (the “Retained Rights”); provided, however, that GRANTOR 
shall not impound water upon the Easement, change the ground elevation or grade of the 
Easement, or construct or permit to be constructed any building, structure, improvement or 
obstruction, or plant any trees or shrubs upon the Easement which would interfere with 
GRANTEE’S exercise of the rights hereby conveyed, including access to the Easement, and the 
safe operation of the Facilities.  The GRANTEE shall have the absolute right to assign, sell, lease 
or otherwise transfer this Easement in whole or in part. 

 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD unto the said GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, for so 

long as said Easement is used by GRANTEE or useful to GRANTEE, with ingress to and egress 
from said premises for the Permitted Uses.  However, GRANTEE shall have the right to abandon 
and terminate all or any part of the rights granted herein, by filing a release of same in the county 
records.  The undersigned hereby bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators and 
assigns, to warrant and forever defend all and singular said premises unto GRANTEE, its 
successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same 
or any part thereof. 

 
The GRANTEE agrees to pay for any physical damage to growing crops, timber, fences, 

or other structural improvements located outside the above-described Easement which are caused 
by the Permitted Uses.  Furthermore, GRANTEE shall compensate GRANTOR for damages to 



 
 

{00069327 - 1 } 

the right-of-way surface, including damages for growing crops, which may be occasioned upon 
said Easement by the Permitted Uses. 

 
Grantee agrees to protect, indemnify, and hold harmless Grantor for any claims, damages, 

and/or liabilities, including but not limited to claims for damage to property and personal injury 
(including bodily injury and death), to the extent arising out of Grantee’s negligent acts or 
omissions, intentional misconduct, or illegal acts, in the construction, operation, maintenance, 
and removal of Grantee’s pipeline.   

 
No failure to comply with any covenant on the part of GRANTEE shall be construed as a 

breach of this agreement unless and until written notice has first been given to GRANTEE that 
GRANTOR believes GRANTEE has failed to comply with such covenant, setting out the 
grounds therefor, and GRANTEE has then failed to correct such failure within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of such notice or has failed to correct such failure within thirty (30) days after final 
determination, by agreement or by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction, that a breach, in 
fact, exists. 

 
It is agreed that this grant covers all the agreements between the parties and that no 

representation or statements, verbal or written, have been made modifying, adding to or changing 
the terms of this Agreement. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the GRANTORS herein have executed this conveyance 

this       day of                                             , 2019. 
  

LANDOWNER’S SIGNATURE 
 
Tulsa County 
          
              
________________________________  ________________________________ 
             

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 
State of       
County of                
 

On this       day of      , 2019, before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and 
State, personally appeared       to me personally known to be the identical person who 
subscribed the name of the maker thereof to the foregoing instrument as       of        a(n)       

and acknowledged to me that       executed the same as       free and voluntary act and deed 
and as the free and voluntary act and deed of such corporation for the uses and purposes therein 
set forth. 
 
My commission expires: 
 
____________________________         
        ______________________________
                Notary Public 
My Commission No.     



1 ---- ----v·W 21•1 ST s
1 

~~ : 
I 

NWQTR 
SEC17 

! 
~ 
~ 

~ 
"' 
! 

L _________________ j 
VICINITY MAP 

N.T.S. 

,-NW CORNER 
SEC 17 

EXHIBIT "A" 
PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 

SEC 17-T19N-R12E, INDIAN MERIDIAN 
TULSA COUNT~ OKLAHOMA 

.._ 

j 
.N 

I 

N 1/4 CORNER 
Of SEC 17 

7 :!-- L4 

16 17 

PROPOSED 50' ~ 
_ \\10E EASEMENT ....... 

~-~------lt'n $_ - -,,.....,.---(\-'I, .---~--
---~ ..... 1 _ } ,-\-~~--_.,.,..'it"!; --.-::. L1 -

J-L \ - L3 LL2 

~~R~~RAAY ..._ .\ ..._ j-._ \ ~ . 
~Of PROPOSED 12• PIPELINE . / .O.B. 

QKGCLS.TU.003 .00) 
TULSA COUNTY 

/ 

LEGEND 

( PEAMlt£NT EASOEHT 
------- PERIWIENT EASEMENT 
-- , __ PROPERTY LINE 

--l-- SECTION lff 
-X-X-X- FDa LINE 
~,,.___,~_,,__ A::RICN PIPEl.H 

- - --- - CENTER Of ROAO 

~ 
P.O.B. • POINT OF BEGINNING 
E.0.L • ENO OF I.Iii£ 
ROW • RIGHT-of-WAY 
HTS • NOT TO SCAlE 

/ 
/ 

-~ 
/ 

/ 

'2.'s"'\ 
?v-c<t.. 

.~ 
~x..s"'\ 

. .( 

LINE TABLE 

NUMBER BEARING 

L1 s 69"26' w 
l2 s 69"12' w 
l.l N 69"47' W 

l4 s 89"28' w 

_.......-
/ I / 

I 

LENGTH 

606' 

50' 

49' 

1750' 

LENGTH OF BASELINE: 49 FEET = 3.0 RODS 
PERMANENT EASEMENT: (2465 SF.) 0 .1 ACRES 
TEMPORARY WORKSPACE: (2786 SF.) 0.1 ACRES 

~; ONEOK 
"':._:-

PROPOSED 1 2" PIPELINE 
TULSA COUNTY 

PROPERTY EXHIBIT 

S:VFS\Projeet• oM\019468-001 - GicreoH-'telocoUonJ'roject\801_Mappin9\01CLExhibits\OKGCl.S.lU.OOl.OO.dwv PRtf'rfTtO: 2/1-4/201D 11:25 AM 



I 
I 

I I I 
I -- ----- - - -SEC' a-=·:. - - 1 
1-----.,,. I I 

- ~ 
"' 6 

~ _L _w 21st ST SJ 

VICINITY MAP 
N.T.S. 

EXHIBIT "A" 
PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUATER 

SEC 8-T19N-R12E, IND/AN MERIDIAN 
TULSA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 

r PROPOSED so· WlDE 
EASEMENT 

\ 

OKGCLS.TU .002.00 l 
TULSA COUNTY 

EXTRA TEMPORARY 
WORKSPACE ~t.-'.l . -t3 · ~ 

25' WlOE TEMPORARY _/ )!\· 
WORKSPAC.E, P.0 .8 . .-/ : \ - \ 

I 

I -- I -......._f - ..(l\ 
'~ ........._ i" 

! I 
I 
I 

: ' ---=::::~ OF PROPOSED -......._ • \ 
: 12" PIPELINE ~ 
I .............. \ 

-!-..... '~~ 

N 
...J 

%~ --
l 

SW CORNER :F-8 SEC 8 

18 17 -,/\~¥-~--L1-rv- - 3-
s 1/4 CORNER 

SEC 8 

LEGEND 

t PERIWIDIT EASEMENT 
------- ~ENT EASEMENT 
-- t-- PROPERTY I.NE 
--l-- SECTlOH I.NE 
-X-X-X- FENCE I.NE 
~,_......,..........,_ FOREIGN PIPEl..NE 

- - --- - CENTER Of RO.ID 

l:IQIES; 
P.0.8. • POf(f OF BEGIHNG 
E.0.L • END OF LINE 
ROW • RICKT-Of"-WAY 
HTS • NOT TO SCAL£ 

I LINE TABLE 

NUMBER BEARING LENGTH 

L 1 s 89'28' w 1273' 

L2 N oo·oo· E 277' 

L3 N 04'23' E 33' 

L4 s 88'56' w 86' 

LS s oo·oo· E 309 ' 

L6 s 89'28 ' w 1294' 

LENGTH OF BASELINE: 33 FEET = 2.0 RODS 
PERMANENT EASEMENT: (1669 SF.) 0.04 ACRES 
EXTRA TEMPORARY WORKSPACE: (6180 SF.) 0.1 ACRES 
TEMPORARY WORKSPACE: (468 SF.) 0.01 ACRES 

PROPOSED 12" PIPELINE 
TULSA COUNlY 

PROPERTY EXHIBIT 

... _.,,o-+"ISSl.En=C!.~,,,111c.:;11EW:=•=---DESCRIPT10H---------+-~"'JH'-+2"-11,,.'-"1 ~~'-'1"-9 +at<'ll-'JA"--i----':..=--.-i:==r-,.-•• ~::"11 :"-=~"~.u.---J"'1A: OKGCLS. TU. 00 2. OON 

"'"' 2/u/1• 1 .Ill< I......,. o l!HET 1 OF 1 
S:\N!i"\ Project. \V"t'- , \\oilcreosc\Ot 94&8-001 - Gilcreoae-Relocotion_Projeet\801 _Moppino\01 CLE.xhibiU:\OKCCL.S.T\J.002.00 .ctwo PRINTED: 2/H/2019 1:« ~ 



VICINITY MAP 
N.T.S. 

EXHIBIT "A" 
PART OF SOUTHWEST QUARTER 

SEC 8-Tf9N-Rf2E, INDIAN MERIDIAN 
TULSA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 

- , 
OKGCLS.TU.002.00) 

L . 1ULSA cuUNTY 

~ f L; x_ It_ Of PROPOSED 
r ~ . .._ 12" PIPELINE 

' N 

I 

~ (Jl,,;, "l\1--.. ~ 
SWCORNER~ ~ ..\:lrt ~· .._- . - 8 

SEC 8 -'.i ~ - ~ ~W 21ST STREET S 
L6 --- V j) POB . L1 11 

WIDE TEMPORARY__/ PROPOSED 50' WIDE , / _ S l/4 CORNER 
WORKSPACE . EASEMENT • '<-P- SEC 8 

LEGEND 

{ PERMANENT EASEMENT 
------- PERMANENT EASEMOO 
--f-- PROPERTY LINE 
--{-- SECTlOH I.IE 
-X-X-X- FENCE UIE 
._,,___,~,__ FOREIGN PlPEUNE 

- - --- - CENTER OF RO.ID 

llllIIS; 
P.0.8. • POM" Of BEGINNING 
E.OL • ENO OF UNE 
ROW • RIGHT-of-WAY 
NTS • NOT TO $CAI.£ 

I /~~~~ 

NUMBER 

L1 

L2 

L3 

L4 

LS 

L6 

LINE TABLE 

BEARING LENGTH 

s 89.28 ' w 901 ' 

N 59·47' w 409' 

N 04·23• E 26' 

N 59·47' W 49 ' 

s 01·04 ' E 188' 

s 89.28 ' w 1325' 

LENGTH OF BASELINE: 435 FEET = 26.4 RODS 
PERMANENT EASEMENT: (21761 SF.) 0 .50 ACRES 
TEMPORARY WORKSPACE: (9566 SF.) 0.22 ACRES 

:~: ONEOK 
-;. ~ 

PROPOSED 12" PIPELINE 
TULSA COUNTY 

PROPERTY EXHIBIT 
0 ISSOOl f<Jl --- TM 7/IJ/19 JI. D< - TJH r-'• ~] 

t;RtV:;;;t="-'-'-"'-==--:D£SCRIPTION==~-----;~.,.:::'--IP.:""'=n::'=-t-,'CHK~'D::+-..:: ....... ~-i.._~-1 .-.:zoo'.!t!!..\. 1 -.. ~~""'--w-->16.11 0 K GCLS. TU. 00 2. OOS 
~· 2/1J/19 I JllK I""""'" 0 I SH[[T 1 OF 1 

PmNTEO: 2/14/2019 1.50 PM 



Resolution Certificate
For Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners Approval

From:  5/16/2019    To:  6/12/2019

Fund Org No Object No Amount
Journal Number

60
1 HWY TCASH 30002325 404419 APP   ACT SHORT 30,000.00
2 HWY TCASH 30002325 505847 APP   ACT SHORT 30,000.00
83
1 SHER CASH 23003600 404222 APP   CASH FEE  101,368.86
2 SHER CASH 23003600 404220 APP   CASH FEE  25.00
3 SHER CASH 23003600 404416 APP   CASH FEE  47,453.31
4 SHER CASH 23003600 807970 APP   CASH FEE  148,847.17
85
1 CO CONTRIB 23203645 404079 APP   SCAAP     129,078.00
2 CO CONTRIB 23203645 506080 APP   SCAAP     129,078.00
325
1 CO CONTRIB 23203644 506080 APP   USMARSH   210,588.00
2 CO CONTRIB 23203644 404061 APP   USMARSH   210,588.00
335
1 CO CONTRIB 23203644 506080 APP   ICEHOUSING 230,322.00
2 CO CONTRIB 23203644 404062 APP   ICEHOUSING 230,322.00
344
1 CO CONTRIB 23203644 506080 APP   ICETRANS  9,010.40
2 CO CONTRIB 23203644 404064 APP   ICETRANS  9,010.40
346
1 SHER CASH 23003605 404070 APP   USM OT    2,174.40
2 SHER CASH 23003605 505080 APP   USM OT    2,174.40
367
1 CO CONTRIB 23203644 404064 APP   ICE TRANS 4,800.00
2 CO CONTRIB 23203644 506080 APP   ICE TRANS 4,800.00
399
1 COMMISSARY 23953595 404227 APP   JAIL COM  33,048.17
2 COMMISSARY 23953595 506450 APP   JAIL COM  33,048.17
411
1 MO CER FEE 29002975 404248 APP   MAY APPR  9,660.00
2 MO CER FEE 29002975 404550 APP   MAY APPR  388.47
3 MO CER FEE 29002975 607050 APP   MAY APPR  10,048.47
412
1 RESAL PROP 29103000 403120 APP   MAY APPR  572,698.23
2 RESAL PROP 29103000 403121 APP   MAY APPR  156,612.71
3 RESAL PROP 29103000 505010 APP   MAY APPR  251,310.94
4 RESAL PROP 29103000 505030 APP   MAY APPR  20,000.00
5 RESAL PROP 29103000 505081 APP   MAY APPR  2,500.00
6 RESAL PROP 29103000 505086 APP   MAY APPR  500.00
7 RESAL PROP 29103000 505110 APP   MAY APPR  25,000.00
8 RESAL PROP 29103000 505120 APP   MAY APPR  25,000.00
9 RESAL PROP 29103000 505140 APP   MAY APPR  25,000.00
10 RESAL PROP 29103000 505199 APP   MAY APPR  10,000.00
11 RESAL PROP 29103000 505539 APP   MAY APPR  20,000.00
12 RESAL PROP 29103000 506185 APP   MAY APPR  300,000.00
13 RESAL PROP 29103000 506450 APP   MAY APPR  50,000.00
428
1 CO CONTRIB 23203644 404067 APP   USMARSHTRA 690.34
2 CO CONTRIB 23203644 506080 APP   USMARSHTRA 690.34
434
1 RISK MGMT 20101625 404521 APP   RISK MGMT 130,332.57
2 RISK MGMT 20101625 505170 APP   RISK MGMT 130,332.57
3 RISK MGMT 20101635 404542 APP   RISK MGMT 64,066.94
4 RISK MGMT 20101635 505144 APP   RISK MGMT 64,066.94
5 RISK MGMT 20101640 404542 APP   RISK MGMT 21,425.26
6 RISK MGMT 20101640 505144 APP   RISK MGMT 21,425.26
475
1 SPEC COURT 22504325 404251 APP   DCUSEFEE  3,060.00

TO:  Commissioner Karen Keith
FROM:  Marc A Langston
DATE:  June 17, 2019
SUBJECT:  Estimate of Needs and Request for Appropriations and Resolution of Disposition of Funds FY 2018-2019

Page 1 of 6



Resolution Certificate
For Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners Approval

From:  5/16/2019    To:  6/12/2019

Fund Org No Object No Amount
Journal Number

2 SPEC COURT 22504325 506130 APP   DCUSEFEE  3,060.00
478
1 CO CONTRIB 23203644 505969 APP   SOC SEC   10,300.00
2 CO CONTRIB 23203644 404070 APP   SOC SEC   10,300.00
481
1 CO CONTRIB 23203646 404044 APP   BOND FEES 6,038.88
2 CO CONTRIB 23203646 505969 APP   BOND FEES 6,038.88
485
1 LAW LIBR  41008000 404091 APP   REVTOEXP  28,719.36
2 LAW LIBR  41008000 404410 APP   REVTOEXP  1,013.05
3 LAW LIBR  41008000 404501 APP   REVTOEXP  99.26
4 LAW LIBR  41008000 505081 APP   REVTOEXP  621.85
5 LAW LIBR  41008000 505110 APP   REVTOEXP  1,000.00
6 LAW LIBR  41008000 505670 APP   REVTOEXP  28,209.82
487
1 SPEC COURT 22504325 404059 APP   DC GRANT  40,729.13
2 SPEC COURT 22504325 506130 APP   DC GRANT  40,729.13
636
1 SPEC COURT 22504350 404059 APP   MH COURT  20,531.25
2 SPEC COURT 22504350 506130 APP   MH COURT  20,531.25
647
1 SHER CASH 23003650 404226 APP   CASH FEE  30,579.95
2 SHER CASH 23003650 505010 APP   CASH FEE  10,000.00
3 SHER CASH 23003650 505110 APP   CASH FEE  5,000.00
4 SHER CASH 23003650 505120 APP   CASH FEE  5,000.00
5 SHER CASH 23003650 505140 APP   CASH FEE  10,579.95
6 SHER CASH 23003600 404025 APP   CASH FEE  150.00
7 SHER CASH 23003600 807970 APP   CASH FEE  150.00
650
1 SPEC PROJ 27002825 404079 APP   CDBG ADMIN 17,540.55
2 SPEC PROJ 27002825 506082 APP   CDBG ADMIN 17,540.55
651
1 SPEC PROJ 27004850 404079 APP   HOME ADMIN 6,712.45
2 SPEC PROJ 27004850 506130 APP   HOME ADMIN 6,712.45
652
1 SPEC PROJ 27004850 404079 APP   CARDASSIST 11,459.75
2 SPEC PROJ 27004850 506130 APP   CARDASSIST 11,459.75
833
1 SHER CASH 23003600 404221 APP   CASH FEE  290.00
2 SHER CASH 23003600 807970 APP   CASH FEE  290.00
3 SHER CASH 23003650 404226 APP   CASH FEE  31,597.35
4 SHER CASH 23003650 505010 APP   CASH FEE  31,597.35
5 SHER CASH 23003603 404509 APP   CASH FEE  87,246.64
6 SHER CASH 23003603 505010 APP   CASH FEE  50,000.00
7 SHER CASH 23003603 505120 APP   CASH FEE  17,246.64
8 SHER CASH 23003603 505140 APP   CASH FEE  10,000.00
9 SHER CASH 23003603 505086 APP   CASH FEE  1,000.00
10 SHER CASH 23003603 505081 APP   CASH FEE  9,000.00
970
1 COUNTY DEB 54007600 403110 APP   DEBTSERV  474,860.02
2 COUNTY DEB 54007600 403111 APP   DEBTSERV  3,066.35
3 COUNTY DEB 54007600 707210 APP   DEBTSERV  477,926.37
988
1 COMMISSARY 23953595 404227 APP   JAIL COM  35,867.84
2 COMMISSARY 23953595 505120 APP   JAIL COM  35,867.84
1025
1 DRAIN 12  43007950 404459 APP   DC8M1     8,003.36
2 DRAIN 12  43007950 607031 APP   DC8M1     8,003.36
1077
1 SPEC COURT 22504350 404059 APP   MHCOURT   20,531.25
2 SPEC COURT 22504350 506130 APP   MHCOURT   20,531.25
1100
1 CRT CL REV 20404026 404079 APP   CT13V     11,586.00
2 CRT CL REV 20404026 506082 APP   CT13V     11,586.00

Page 2 of 6



Resolution Certificate
For Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners Approval

From:  5/16/2019    To:  6/12/2019

Fund Org No Object No Amount
Journal Number

1101
1 LAW LIBR  41008000 404410 APP   REVTOEXP  1,185.90
2 LAW LIBR  41008000 505081 APP   REVTOEXP  1,185.90
1247
1 COMMISSARY 23953595 404227 APP   JAIL COM  34,505.55
2 COMMISSARY 23953595 807970 APP   JAIL COM  34,505.55
1254
1 CO CONTRIB 23203644 404067 APP   US MARSH  1,138.06
2 CO CONTRIB 23203644 506080 APP   US MARSH  1,138.06
1258
1 CO CONTRIB 23203646 404228 APP   ATM DEPOT 155.00
2 CO CONTRIB 23203646 505969 APP   ATM DEPOT 155.00
1312
1 COMMISSARY 23953595 404227 APP   CSG       38,182.45
2 COMMISSARY 23953595 506082 APP   CSG       38,182.45
1320
1 LAW LIBR  41008000 404410 APP   REVTOEXP  1,019.40
2 LAW LIBR  41008000 505081 APP   REVTOEXP  500.00
3 LAW LIBR  41008000 505670 APP   REVTOEXP  519.40
1397
1 COMMISSARY 23953595 404227 APP   JAIL COM  32,845.64
2 COMMISSARY 23953595 807970 APP   JAIL COM  32,845.64
1442
1 CO CONTRIB 23203644 404041 APP   ODOC      69,255.00
2 CO CONTRIB 23203644 506080 APP   ODOC      69,255.00
1445
1 SHER CASH 23003605 404070 APP   CASH FEE  256.69
2 SHER CASH 23003605 404070 APP   CASH FEE  543.60
3 SHER CASH 23003605 404070 APP   CASH FEE  417.23
4 SHER CASH 23003605 404070 APP   CASH FEE  15,421.69
5 SHER CASH 23003605 505080 APP   CASH FEE  15,000.00
6 SHER CASH 23003605 505110 APP   CASH FEE  825.60
7 SHER CASH 23003605 505170 APP   CASH FEE  813.61
8 SHER CASH 23003600 404416 APP   CASH FEE  45,413.36
9 SHER CASH 23003600 807970 APP   CASH FEE  45,413.36
10 SHER CASH 23003625 404059 APP   CASH FEE  5,098.02
11 SHER CASH 23003625 505080 APP   CASH FEE  5,098.02
12 SHER CASH 23003604 404927 APP   CASH FEE  40,724.14
13 SHER CASH 23003604 807970 APP   CASH FEE  40,724.14
14 SHER CASH 23003600 404416 APP   CASH FEE  21,649.59
15 SHER CASH 23003600 807970 APP   CASH FEE  21,649.59
1452
1 CO CONTRIB 23203646 404023 APP   2320 REV  24,118.46
2 CO CONTRIB 23203646 404523 APP   2320 REV  1,199.00
3 CO CONTRIB 23203646 404450 APP   2320 REV  15.05
4 CO CONTRIB 23203646 404550 APP   2320 REV  102.99
5 CO CONTRIB 23203646 505969 APP   2320 REV  25,435.50
1471
1 CJA OPER  40507651 404407 APP   CJA APP   34,887.51
2 CJA OPER  40507651 404993 APP   CJA APP   863.42
3 CJA OPER  40507651 404509 APP   CJA APP   51,825.96
4 CJA OPER  40507651 404511 APP   CJA APP   170.00
5 CJA OPER  40507651 404512 APP   CJA APP   1,257.90
6 CJA OPER  40507651 505894 APP   CJA APP   34,887.51
7 CJA OPER  40507651 505010 APP   CJA APP   863.42
8 CJA OPER  40507651 505010 APP   CJA APP   51,825.96
9 CJA OPER  40507651 505892 APP   CJA APP   170.00
10 CJA OPER  40507651 505845 APP   CJA APP   1,257.90
1487
1 CJA OPER  40507651 505010 APP   JAIL PR   540,198.68
2 CJA OPER  40507651 505030 APP   JAIL PR   4,121.25
3 CJA OPER  40507651 505080 APP   JAIL PR   59,606.46
4 CJA OPER  40507651 505081 APP   JAIL PR   25,306.29
5 CJA OPER  40507651 505110 APP   JAIL PR   46,409.05
6 CJA OPER  40507651 505120 APP   JAIL PR   75,748.66

Page 3 of 6



Resolution Certificate
For Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners Approval

From:  5/16/2019    To:  6/12/2019

Fund Org No Object No Amount
Journal Number

7 CJA OPER  40507651 505130 APP   JAIL PR   965.20
8 CJA OPER  40507651 505140 APP   JAIL PR   72,461.90
9 CJA OPER  40507651 505145 APP   JAIL PR   4,085.04
10 CJA OPER  40507651 505150 APP   JAIL PR   615.57
11 CJA OPER  40507651 505170 APP   JAIL PR   26,648.06
12 CJA OPER  40507651 505180 APP   JAIL PR   1,259.37
13 CJA OPER  40507651 505185 APP   JAIL PR   200.05
14 CJA OPER  40507651 505195 APP   JAIL PR   3,087.34
15 CJA OPER  40507651 505198 APP   JAIL PR   4,601.87
16 CJA OPER  40507651 505199 APP   JAIL PR   6,587.62
17 CJA OPER  40507651 505010 APP   JAIL PR   438,202.38
18 CJA OPER  40507651 505081 APP   JAIL PR   6,553.34
19 CJA OPER  40507651 505086 APP   JAIL PR   25.00
20 CJA OPER  40507651 505110 APP   JAIL PR   35,847.92
21 CJA OPER  40507651 505120 APP   JAIL PR   68,603.86
22 CJA OPER  40507651 505130 APP   JAIL PR   879.77
23 CJA OPER  40507651 505140 APP   JAIL PR   72,680.73
24 CJA OPER  40507651 505145 APP   JAIL PR   3,648.17
25 CJA OPER  40507651 505150 APP   JAIL PR   521.27
26 CJA OPER  40507651 505170 APP   JAIL PR   21,230.87
27 CJA OPER  40507651 505185 APP   JAIL PR   118.95
28 CJA OPER  40507651 505195 APP   JAIL PR   3,652.66
29 CJA OPER  40507651 505198 APP   JAIL PR   4,678.13
30 CJA OPER  40507651 505199 APP   JAIL PR   9,768.44
31 CJA OPER  40507651 505010 APP   JAIL PR   109,023.76
32 CJA OPER  40507651 505030 APP   JAIL PR   4,769.75
33 CJA OPER  40507651 505080 APP   JAIL PR   161.48
34 CJA OPER  40507651 505081 APP   JAIL PR   3,026.25
35 CJA OPER  40507651 505086 APP   JAIL PR   5.00
36 CJA OPER  40507651 505110 APP   JAIL PR   8,438.39
37 CJA OPER  40507651 505120 APP   JAIL PR   15,263.32
38 CJA OPER  40507651 505130 APP   JAIL PR   192.72
39 CJA OPER  40507651 505140 APP   JAIL PR   16,345.00
40 CJA OPER  40507651 505145 APP   JAIL PR   851.54
41 CJA OPER  40507651 505150 APP   JAIL PR   143.57
42 CJA OPER  40507651 505170 APP   JAIL PR   2,447.99
43 CJA OPER  40507651 505185 APP   JAIL PR   35.00
44 CJA OPER  40507651 505195 APP   JAIL PR   800.00
45 CJA OPER  40507651 505198 APP   JAIL PR   960.00
46 CJA OPER  40507651 505199 APP   JAIL PR   1,674.86
47 CJA OPER  40507651 505894 APP   JAIL PR   44,242.00
48 CJA OPER  40507651 505909 APP   JAIL PR   421,829.00
49 CJA OPER  40507651 506080 APP   JAIL PR   259,894.45
50 CJA OPER  40507651 442500 APP   JAIL PR   2,428,417.98
1512
1 SPEC PROJ 27004750 404299 APP   E911PAY   97,294.37
2 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505010 APP   E911PAY   42,473.82
3 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505030 APP   E911PAY   7,442.40
4 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505081 APP   E911PAY   2,471.92
5 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505110 APP   E911PAY   3,800.25
6 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505120 APP   E911PAY   5,946.33
7 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505130 APP   E911PAY   64.45
8 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505140 APP   E911PAY   5,852.97
9 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505145 APP   E911PAY   393.54
10 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505150 APP   E911PAY   52.74
11 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505170 APP   E911PAY   131.00
12 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505180 APP   E911PAY   0.01
13 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505185 APP   E911PAY   13.00
14 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505195 APP   E911PAY   300.00
15 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505198 APP   E911PAY   400.00
16 SPEC PROJ 27004750 505199 APP   E911PAY   650.30
17 SPEC PROJ 27004750 506135 APP   E911PAY   27,301.64
1524
1 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505010 APP   JAIL PR   40,315.33
2 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505080 APP   JAIL PR   4,202.94

Page 4 of 6



Resolution Certificate
For Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners Approval

From:  5/16/2019    To:  6/12/2019

Fund Org No Object No Amount
Journal Number

3 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505081 APP   JAIL PR   1,290.37
4 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505086 APP   JAIL PR   5.00
5 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505110 APP   JAIL PR   3,339.42
6 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505120 APP   JAIL PR   5,644.15
7 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505130 APP   JAIL PR   69.87
8 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505140 APP   JAIL PR   6,774.89
9 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505145 APP   JAIL PR   304.94
10 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505150 APP   JAIL PR   41.02
11 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505170 APP   JAIL PR   1,675.25
12 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505185 APP   JAIL PR   14.00
13 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505195 APP   JAIL PR   175.00
14 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505198 APP   JAIL PR   400.00
15 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505199 APP   JAIL PR   606.57
16 CO CONTRIB 23203649 505969 APP   JAIL PR   94,208.93
17 CO CONTRIB 23203649 444800 APP   JAIL PR   159,067.68

Page 5 of 6



Resolution Certificate
For Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners Approval

From:  5/16/2019    To:  6/12/2019

BE IT REMEMBERED that on the _____________  day of  ________________________, _________ at a regular

meeting of the board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County, the previous Resolutions were presented,

adopted, and read:

Whereas, the above listed funds have been received by the County Treasurer of Tulsa County

from the agency accepted above and the funds are being derived or paid from the accounts indicated.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:      That the County Treasurer of Tulsa County will be

directed to deposit the amount granted into the designated fund.

Done by the order of the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County and recorded in the

minutes of the Board of County Commissioners meeting on the date referenced above by the County Clerk at

Tulsa, Oklahoma.

Attest:

County Clerk Chairman

** All are approved unless specifically indicated in column 1

Page 6 of 6



TULSA COUNTY

PURCHASING
DEPARTMENT

E1 i

DATE: June 12, 2019

FROM: Megan L. Blackford
Assistant Purchasing Director

TO: Board of County Conunissioners

SUBJECT: Request for Approval- Timmons Oil Company, Inc.

Submitted for your approval and execution is the attached credit application to establish
an account for Tulsa County with Timmons Oil Company, Inc.

MLB / arh

ORIGINAL: Michael Willis, County Clerk, for the June 17, 2019 agenda.



Sales Rep: Dustin Dunkle Office: 800-364-6457 Email: Dustin.Dunkle@TimmonsOilCo.com Cell: 918-734-3280

AGREEMENT FOR SALE OF GOODS ON OPEN ACCOUNT

Name of Account: Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners
. 500 S. Denver Ave.Billing Address:

p^, 918.596-5022
Structure: Individual_Partnership

Type of Business: Government
BANK REFERENCE:

,. See Attached

cjtyTulsa
Fax:

s^. OK z,. 74103

.
Corporation_ TIN#

Monthly Credit Request: $

Name of Bank:

Phone:

Account Number:

Fax or Email (REQUIRED):

TRADE REFERENCES: (Credit References Where You Currently Have an Account)

See Attached1.

2.

3.

Name Phone Fax or Email (REQUIRED)

Name Phone Fax or Email (REQUIRED)

Name Phone Fax or Email (REQUIRED)

PRINCIPAL OWNERS, PARTNERS, or STOCKHOLDERS:

1 Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners
Name Address Phone

2.
Name Address Phone

I (we) authorize Timmons Oil Co. Inc. to run a credit report and check any and all credit related references,
accounts, and activities on the above-mentioned applicant. I also state that I have authority to give this
authorization.

Printed Name:

Signature:

Date:

For Internal Use Onl :

Credit Limit:

Approved by:

Date:

PO Box 691140 . Tulsa, Oklahoma 74169-1140 . TOLL FREE (800) 364-6457 . FAX (918) 437-2251
Website: www. timmonsoilcompany. com Email: creditapps@timmonsoilco. com



Company Name:. Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners

CREDIT TERMS AND AGREEMENT

Our terms are NET 30/1% 10, unless otherwise specified. Should invoices on this account become past due, applicant
agrees to pay a finance charge of one and one-half percent (1-1/2%) per month on all past due invoices.

Your account will be assigned a MAXIMUM CREDIT LIMIT, subject to review at any time, and should your unpaid balance '
exceed this limit, you will be required to make a payment on your account prior to the due date or accept purchases on a
"CASH ON DELIVERY" basis until such time as your balance is reduced to within your credit limit. Timmons Oil Company,
Inc. reserves the right to discontinue "CHARGE" shipments should your account become past due; if there is an ownership
or name change; in the event of bankruptcy; or at any time Timmons Oil Company, Inc., for good cause, deems itself
insecure.

The applicant hereby authorizes a full and complete investigation by Timmons Oil Company, Inc. and understands that
Timmons Oil Company, Inc. will not process a "CHARGE" order until a signed and completed credit application has been
submitted and approved.

Should it be necessary to place this account with an attorney for collection, or a collection agency, the applicant agpees
to pay the reasonable attorney's fees and any and all costs of collection associated therein. I^RA/

^t2-(<?
This CONFIDENTIAL CREDIT APPLICATION contains all terms negotiated between the parties and may be modified
only upon written agreement between Timmons Oil Company, Inc. and the Applicant.

BOND? YES NO / BONDING COMPANY

1) Have you declared or are you in the process of declaring bankruptcy?
2) Do you have any pending litigations filed or claimed against the business for which you are applying for credit with

Timmons Oil Company, Inc.?
If you answered yes to either of the two questions above, please attach an explanation of each yes Answer.

3) Would you be willing, if requested, to provide a LOC and/or a corporate guaranty? If no, please attach an
explanation.

1/WE HAVE READ THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THEM IN ALL RESPECTS
(MUST SIGN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING)

PERSONAL GUARANTEE

In consideration of the extension of credit privileges, I (we) hereby grant Timmons Oil Company, Inc. a continuing guarafrty
of payment of this account and agree to personally guarantee payment of all indebtedness, including interest, collection
costs and expenses as stated hsreinabove,

IM^

(^Z^

Signature
CORPORATE GUARANTEE

In consideration of the extension of credit privileges, I (we) hereby grant Timmons Oil Company, Inc. a continuing guaranty
of payment of this account and agree to guarantee payment of all indebtedness, including interest, collection costs and
avnanoao go o+'atarl hominahni/o

Date:
Signature (Must be a principal or officer of the company)

Printed Name: Title:

PO Box 691140 . Tulsa, Oklahoma 74169-1140 . TOLL FREE (800) 364-6457 . FAX(918) 437-2251
Website: www. timmonsoilcompany. com Email: creditapps@timmonsoilco. com

^^¥(^^^^\
^t. D^^



Welcome to Timmons!
We are thankful you have chosen Timmons for your fuel and lubricant needs!

Please complete the following REQUIRED information so that we can better serve you.

CONTACT INFORMATION

,
8-5

Hours of Operation: Mon-Fri

Accounts Payable Contact:

Name=Toni Kizer
^aii; tkizer@tulsacounty. org

Delivery/Purchasing Contact:

Name=seeAttached

INVOICING

Preferred method of invoice delivery: Email

Sat/Sun

Pl,one:918-596-5839^,

Phone:

Fax D Mail

Does your company require the following: Purchase Order Number Copy of delivery ticket with invoice D

TAXES

Does your company have any tax exemptions? Yes ̂  No

If yes, please indicate which of the following tax exemptions you qualify for
and rovide co ies of your current exemptions:

State Sales/Use Tax

State Excise Tax

Federal Excise Tax

Shipping Address:

Phone:

. See Attached
City State -Zip

Thank you for your business!

We look forward to working with you!

PO Box 691140 . Tulsa, Oklahoma 74169-1140 . TOLL FREE (800) 364-6457 . FAX(918) 437-2251
Website: www.timmonsoilcompany.com Email: creditapps@timmonsoilco.com



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Proposal from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

for an Excess Workers Compensation Policy 

with Safety National Casualty Corp. 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  This document 

is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  Please let me know if you have any 

questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

Kathy Burrows, HR Director 



 

ajg.com 

2019 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved. 

 
 

Executive Summary 
July 1, 2019 - 2020 
 

Arthur J Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. 

Denise Engle, MBA, CPCU, AIC | Insurance Broker 
Denise_engle@ajg.com | 405-639-3816 
Melissa Pascarella | Client Service Manager 
Melissa_pascarella@ajg.com | 918-764-1680 
 
5/10/19 
 

Tulsa County 

Gallagher 
Gallagher 

• • CORE360. Insurance I Risk M I anagement Consu lting 



 

 
Tulsa County  
2019 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved. 
18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum – Separate 

2 

Table of Contents 
SECTION PAGE 
Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
Your Team ............................................................................................................................................................................ 2 
CORE360™ Executive Summary Scorecard ........................................................................................................................ 3 
Insurance Premiums ............................................................................................................................................................ 4 
Gallagher At A Glance .......................................................................................................................................................... 6 

 
 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

Tulsa County  
2019 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  
18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum – Separate 

1 

Introduction 
Thank you for this opportunity to present your renewal proposal program options and recommendations for your Excess 
Workers Compensation policy.  

This Executive Summary is intended to summarize the highlights and point you to any decisions that need to be made 
prior to binding. We highlight each CORE360™ cost driver, beginning with Insurance Premiums and ending with 
Contractual Liability. This will not only organize the document but ensure that we are deliberate in driving value to each of 
your six cost drivers which represent your total cost of risk. It also follows the decisions made and action items we 
discussed in our Strategic Review; which serves as the basis for this proposal. We know that you have a choice and we 
appreciate your business and continued support. 

 

 

 

  

Cost for all your existing insurance 
policies. It also includes our compensation 

as your broker. 

Costs resulting from the unsuccessful 
transfer of risk to, or assumption of 

uninsurec liability from, a third party. 

ii 

Your part1cipat1on in a loss, and how you 
minimize costs through appropriate loss 

prevention programs and claims management. 

-!!I 
Program 
Structure 

• Loss Prevention 
&Claims 

• • • Gallagher 
• • • CORE360. 

How the individual pieces of your program work 
together, as well as how you balance your risk 
appetite against your loss experience. 

£-Y 
Coverage 

Gaps 

ta 
Uninsured 

& Uninsurable 
Losses 

Potential costs from any gaps in 
existing policies, such as sublimits, 

removable exclusions and extensions 
of coverage. 

Potential or actual costs of any 
risks you knowingly or unknowingly 

leave urnnsurec or are uninsurable. 



 

Tulsa County  
2019 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  
18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum – Separate 

2 

Your Team 
Your Gallagher team is a true partner. We have the expertise to understand your business and we’re here to service and 
stay alongside you, every step of the way. 

Name/Title Phone Email Role 
Primary Service Team 
Denise Engle 405-639-3816 Denise_engle@ajg.com Broker 

Melissa Pascarella 918-764-1680 Melissa_pascarella@ajg.com Client Service Manager 
    

 

 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

Tulsa County  
2019 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  
18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum – Separate 

3 

• Gallagher is limitedly engaged to broker 
Excess WC and provide actuarial 
services relating to this placement. Tulsa 
County currently self-insures many 
exposure areas for which coverages may 
be considered. It may be advantageous  
to consider other stop gap coverages to 
limit these uninsured exposures. 
Example: Cyber, Liability, Sexual abuse, 
Malicious Acts.   

• Discussed large losses and their 
outcomes throughout year 

• Offered carrier training resources  

• Excess Workers Compensation 
- Marketed to  

- United Heartland 
- Midwest Employers 
- CompSource Mutual 
- Safety National 

• Offer to review agreements addressing 
workers’ compensation exposures 

• Premium rate is flat 

• Statutory coverage  

CORE360™ Executive Summary Scorecard 
Your CORE360™ Executive Summary Scorecard has been developed for you to get a quick snapshot of how we’ve 
impacted your total cost of risk for the policies detailed in this proposal. 
  

• • • Gallagher 
• •• CORE360. 



 

Tulsa County  
2019 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  
18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum – Separate 

4 

Insurance Premiums 
STRATEGY 
Excess Workers Compensation –  

• United Heartland 

• Midwest Employers Casualty 

• CompSource Oklahoma 

• Safety National (Incumbent) 

RESULTS 
• United Heartland – Declined – Will not quote any organization with law enforcement or fire personnel 

• Midwest  - Declined - Due to multiple years of quoting unsuccessfully against incumbent carrier’s rates  

• CompSource – Declined – Will not provide excess workers’ compensation  

• Safety National (Incumbent)* – Quoted flat renewal terms 

*Midlands Management was purchased by Safety National earlier this year.  

 

  

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 

0 



 

Tulsa County  
2019 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  
18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum – Separate 

5 

Thank You for Your Business 
We have enjoyed our partnership and appreciate the continued time, support and confidence you have placed in us as your risk 
management team. This past year has been successful as evidenced by your scorecard. Your total cost of risk is being 
impacted favorably and our strategy for this upcoming renewal continues to focus on ways to improve this positive impact on 
your budget cycle. 

Thank you. 

  

Legal Disclaimer 

Gallagher provides insurance and risk management advice that is tailored to our clients’ risk transfer needs. Our review can include evaluation of 
insurance premium, risk transfer options, finance agreements, insurance limits, indemnification obligations, and contracts to ascertain appropriate 
coverage. We do emphasize that any risk management advice, insurance analysis, and limited review of contract terms and conditions, is only 
provided from an insurance/risk management perspective and is NOT legal advice. We do not provide legal advice and always recommend that our 
clients seek advice from legal counsel to become fully apprised of all legal implications from their business transactions. 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

Tulsa County  
2019 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.  
18GGB17\29618W – Exec Sum – Separate 

6 

 

 

• • • Gallagher 
•• • CORE360. 

We help you face your 
future with confidence. 

Gallagher 
Insurance I Risk Management I Consulting 

Gallagher's holistic approach keeps your total cost of risk-and your best interest-in focus. With expertise where 

you most need it Gallagher d~ivers the solutions that let businesses grow. Communities thrive. And people prospei 

u.i 
u 
z 
LU 
V) 
LU 
er 
Q. 

...J 

< 
u 
0 
...J 

:i 
u 
< 
LU 
er 
...J 

< 
CD 
0 
...J 
I.!) 

Founded in 

$5B 

HIGHLY SPECIALIZED. DEEP EXPERTISE. 
Alternatrve Risk & captives 

Aviation 
casualty 

Commercial Surety & Bonds 

Cyber Uabtlity 

Entertainment 

Environmental 
Enterpnse Risk Management 

Equity Advisors 

Fine Arts 

Law Firms 

Management Liability 

OUR APPROACH TO RISK. 

e Gallagher 
e• CORE36o· 

Private Chent Servtees 
Property 

Risk Management 
Trade Credit & Polit1ea1 Risk 

Insurance 

Total AdJusted Brokerage & Risk 

CORE360'" is our unique. comprehensive 
approach of evaluating our client's risk 

management program that leverages 
analytical tools and diverse resources for 

customized, maximum impact on six cost 
drivers of their total cost of risk. Management Revenues (2018) 

30,000+ 
Employees worldwide 

850+ 
Offices 1n 35 countries 

150+ 
Countries served 

0, WORLD'S MOST •• 

~~~J.ff~. 
WWW.ETHISPHEAE.COM 

22+ INDUSTRY PRACTICES 

~ ~ A 
'01:J' 

As1aPac1hc Aulomol,ve Construction 

lltI 
,•,, 

!} 'I" .. ,, w~ 
Fmanciol Food& Healthcare 

lnstinmons Agr1buslf'W!SS 

J:, ~ WJ 
Mo,.., Nonprort PnvateCUtl'ft 

r01 
..... • 1::1:1::1 C<l)) 

Restaurant Sen.or living Technol00y 

LEADERS WHERE IT COUNTS 
Gallagher Named One of the World's Most Ethical 
Companies• for 2019 

The only insurance broker to have received this honor. Gallagher 
has been named as one of the World's Most Ethical Companies by 
the Ethisphere• Institute, a global leader in defining and advancing 
the standards of ethical business practices, eight year:s in a row. 

Gallagher has been designated as one of the "World's 
Best Employers" by Forbes Magazine for 2018. 

This 1s a great honor that 1s given to Just 500 companies around 
the world each year. Designation recipients are determined by 

an independent collection and analysis of anonymous employee 
reviews collected by Stahsta, a leading stattStical agency. Gallagher 
was the only Insurance Brokerage to be honored with this 
designation for 2018. 

_M .,. ~ 
""""' Enlcrloinment Equrtyand"".\.A 

~ @ 

·- L.awFirITTS 
EdJcat1on 

• P!JblkStctor Real Estate& 
Hosp,lahty 

~ 
Transoo1abon 

SHARED VALUES+ 
PASSION FOR EXCELLENCE = 
PROMISES DELIVERED 
The Gallagher Way 

.; 
u .. ""'°"' 

~ 
RthQIOUi 

25 tenets that have guided a team-oriented culture 

for 30+ years 

Social Responsibility 
Companywide focus on ethical conducl employee 

health and welfare. environmental Integnty and 

community service 



 

 

Tulsa County 

16 

 

Program Structure 
Program Structure 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

17 

Named Insured 

Named Insured Schedule: 

Add / 

Change / 

Delete 

Named Insured 

E
xc

e
ss

 W
o

rk
e

rs
' 

C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n
 

 Tulsa County X 

 

Note:  Any entity not named in this proposal, may not be an insured entity. This may include affiliates, subsidiaries, LLC's, 
partnerships and joint ventures.

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

18 

Market Review 

We approached the following carriers in an effort to provide the most comprehensive and cost effective insurance program. 
 

INSURANCE 
COMPANY 

LINE OF 
COVERAGE 

RESPONSE PREMIUM 

Safety National 
Casualty Corporation 

Excess Workers' 
Compensation 

Recommended Quote / 2019 Manual Premium $1,451,540 

2018 Manual Premium $1,476,174 

2017 Manual Premium $1,700,067 

2016 Manual Premium $1,737,379 

$137,669.00 

Midwest Employers 
Casualty Company 

Excess Workers' 
Compensation 

Declined to Quote - Other / Midwest sitting this one out as 
they have quoted each year aggresively and never win so 
they are not going to try 

 

Employers Holdings, 
Inc. 

Excess Workers' 
Compensation 

Declined to Quote - No Market for this Type of Business  

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

19 

Program Details 
Excess Workers' Compensation - Safety National Casualty Corporation 

Coverage: Excess Workers' Compensation 

Carrier: Safety National Casualty Corporation 

Policy Period: 7/1/2019  to  7/1/2020 

   
 

Coverage: 

DESCRIPTION 
LIMIT 
TYPE 

AMOUNT BASIS 

Specific Limit  Statutory  

Employers Liability Limit Limit $1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

 
 

Deductibles / Self Insured Retention 

TYPE COVERAGE AMOUNT ADDITIONAL INFO 

Self Insured Retention Self-Insured Retention  $600,000 All Other 

Self Insured Retention Self-Insured Retention  $750,000 Police Officers 

 
 

Experience Modification Factor(s): 

DESCRIPTION FACTOR 

OK 1 

 
 

States: 

DESCRIPTION STATE 

States Covered: OK 

States Excluded: OH, ND, WA, WY 

 
 

Endorsements include, but are not limited to: 

DESCRIPTION 

Oklahoma Cancellation, Nonrenewal And Change Endorsement - 0034 00 1291 (XWC) 

Voluntary Compensation Endorsement-Premium Delineation - 0291 00 0708 (XWC) 

Policyholder Disclosure Notice Of Terrorism Insurance Coverage - 1061 11 0115 (XWC) 

 

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

20 

 

Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 

DESCRIPTION 

Exclusion Of Owned, Leased Or Regularly Chartered Aircraft Oklahoma Mandatory Endorsement(S), If Applicable - 2018 01 
1008 (XWC) 

 
 

Binding Requirements: 

DESCRIPTION 

Subject to :- 

- receipt, review, and approval of vehicle and watercraft supplemental application forms prior to binding 

 
 

Other Significant Terms and Conditions/Restrictions: 

DESCRIPTION 

Deposit Premium : $ 123,902 

 
 

Premium  

 Total Manual Premium $1,451,540.00 

 Increased Limits  

 Maritime Limits  

 Experience Modification $1.00 

 Premium Debit - Schedule Rating Plan  

 Premium Discount  

 Expense Constant  

 Terrorism  

 Catastrophe  

 TWM&C Flat Charge  

Estimated Annual Premium  

ESTIMATED PROGRAM COST $137,669.00 

Minimum Premium -  123,902.00% 

TRIA/TRIPRA PREMIUM 
(+ Additional Surcharges, Taxes and Fees as applicable) 

INCLUDED 

 
Subject to Audit: Voluntary 
 

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

21 

Auditable Exposures: 

STATE CLASS CODE DESCRIPTION EXPOSURE 
RATE PER 
$100 

OK 2802 Carpentry--Shop Only & Drivers  $155,499.00 - Payroll 6.60 

OK 4299 Printing $307,245.00 - Payroll 2.54 

OK 4611 

Drug, Medicine or 
Pharmaceutical Preparation, 
Compounding or Blending--No 
Mfg. of Ingredients 

$141,227.00 - Payroll 0.79 

OK 5611 
Street or Road Construction or 
Maintenance & Drivers 

$2,503,715.00 - Payroll 7.66 

OK 7380 
Drivers, Chauffeurs and Their 
Helpers NOC Commercial 

$94,867.00 - Payroll 5.41 

OK 7720 Police Officers & Drivers $25,252,368 - Payroll 3.97 

OK 8391 
Automobile Repair Shop & 
Parts Department Employees, 
Drivers 

$327,055 - Payroll 2.69 

OK 8810 Clerical Office Employees NOC $26,171,519.00 - Payroll 0.20 

OK 8864 
Social Service Organization-All 
Employees & Salesperson, 
Drivers 

$152,754.00 - Payroll 2.57 

OK 9015 
Building - Operation by Owner 
or Lessee 

$865,695.00 - Payroll 3.24 

OK 9060 
Club-Country, Golf, Fishing or 
Yacht-& Clerical 

$1,725,964.00 - Payroll 1.40 

OK 9102 
Parks NOC-AII Employees & 
Drivers 

$2,006,179.00 - Payroll 2.80 

OK 9410 
Municipal, Township, County or 
State Employee NOC 

$2,872,896.00 - Payroll 2.07 

OK . . 62,576,983 - Total Payroll .22 

 
 

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

22 

Premium Summary 

The estimated program cost for the options are outlined in the following table: 

 

      EXPIRING PROGRAM PROPOSED PROGRAM 

LINE OF COVERAGE CARRIER EXPIRING COST CARRIER ESTIMATED COST 

Excess Workers' Compensation Premium 

Estimated Cost 

Annualized Cost 

TRIA Premium 

Safety National Casualty 
Corporation (Tokio Marine 
Holdings, Inc.) 

- 

$177,449.00 

$177,449.00 

- 

Safety National Casualty 
Corporation (Tokio Marine 
Holdings, Inc.) 

$137,669.00 

$137,669.00 

- 

Included 

Total Estimated Program Cost  $177,449.00  $137,669.00 

 

 

Quote from Safety National Casualty Corporation (Tokio Marine Holdings, Inc.) is valid until 
7/2/2019 

 

Gallagher is responsible for the placement of the following lines of coverage: 

Excess Workers' Compensation 

 

 

It is understood that any other type of exposure/coverage is either self-insured or placed by another 
brokerage firm other than Gallagher. If you need help in placing other lines of coverage or covering other 
types of exposures, please contact your Gallagher representative. 

 

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE36o· 



 

 

Tulsa County 

23 

Payment Plans 

CARRIER LINE OF COVERAGE PAYMENT SCHEDULE PAYMENT METHOD 

Safety National Casualty 
Corporation (Tokio Marine 
Holdings, Inc.) 

Excess Workers' 
Compensation 

Annual Payment Agency Bill 

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

24 

 

Proposal Disclosures 
Proposal Disclosures 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

25 

Proposal Disclosures 

The following disclosures are hereby made a part of this proposal. Please review these disclosures prior to signing the Client Authorization to 
Bind or e-mail confirmation. 

 

Proposal Disclaimer 

IMPORTANT: The proposal and/or any executive summaries outline certain terms and conditions of the insurance proposed by the insurers, 
based on the information provided by your company.  The insurance policies themselves must be read to fully understand the terms, coverages, 
exclusions, limitations and/or conditions of the actual policy contract of insurance.  Policy forms will be made available upon request.  We make 
no warranties with respect to policy limits or coverage considerations of the carrier. 
 
Compensation Disclosure 

1. Gallagher Companies are primarily compensated from the usual and customary commissions, fees or, where permitted, a combination of 
both, for brokerage and servicing of insurance policies, annuity contracts, guarantee contracts and surety bonds (collectively “insurance 
coverages”) handled for a client’s account, which may vary based on market conditions and the insurance product placed for the client. 
 
2. In placing, renewing, consulting on or servicing your insurance coverages, Gallagher companies may participate in contingent and 
supplemental commission arrangements with intermediaries and insurance companies that provide for additional compensation if certain 
underwriting, profitability, volume or retention goals are achieved. Such goals are typically based on the total amount of certain insurance 
coverages placed by Gallagher with the insurance company, not on an individual policy basis.  As a result, Gallagher may be considered to have 
an incentive to place your insurance coverages with a particular insurance company. If you do not wish to have your commercial insurance 
placement included in consideration for additional compensation, contact your producer or service team for an Opt-out form. 
 
3. Gallagher Companies may receive investment income on fiduciary funds temporarily held by them, or from obtaining or generating premium 
finance quotes, unless prohibited by law. 
 
4. Gallagher Companies may also access or have an ownership interest in other facilities, including wholesalers, reinsurance intermediaries, 
captive managers, underwriting managers and others that act as intermediaries for both Gallagher and other brokers in the insurance 
marketplace some of which may earn and retain customary brokerage commission and fees for their work. 
 
If you have specific questions about any compensation received by Gallagher and its affiliates in relation to your insurance placements, please 
contact your Gallagher representative for more details.  
 
In the event you wish to register a formal complaint regarding compensation Gallagher receives from insurers or third-parties, please contact 
Gallagher via e-mail at Compensation_Complaints@ajg.com or by regular mail at: 
 
     Chief Compliance Officer 
     Gallagher Global Brokerage 
     Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. 
     2850 Golf Rd. 
     Rolling Meadows, IL 60008 
 
TRIA/TRIPRA Disclaimer 

If this proposal contains options to purchase TRIA/TRIPRA coverage, the proposed TRIA/TRIPRA program may not cover all terrorism losses. 
While the amendments to TRIA eliminated the distinction between foreign and domestic acts of terrorism, a number of lines of coverage 
excluded under the amendments passed in 2005 remain excluded including commercial automobile, burglary and theft insurance; surety 
insurance, farm owners multiple perils and professional liability (although directors and officers liability is specifically included). If such excluded 
coverages are required, we recommend that you consider purchasing a separate terrorism policy. Please note that a separate terrorism policy 
for these excluded coverages may be necessary to satisfy loan covenants or other contractual obligations. TRIPRA includes a $100 billion cap 
on insurers' aggregate liability. 
 
The TRIPRA program increases the amount needed in total losses by $20 million each calendar year before the TRIPRA program responds 
from the 2015 trigger of $100 million to $200 million by the year 2020. 
 
TRIPRA is set to expire on December 31, 2020. There is no certainty of extension, thus the coverage provided by your insurers may or may not 
extend beyond December 31, 2020. In the event you have loan covenants or other contractual obligations requiring that TRIA/TRIPRA be 
maintained throughout the duration of your policy period, we recommend that a separate "Stand Alone" terrorism policy be purchased to satisfy 
those obligations. 
 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

26 

Carrier Ratings and Admitted Status 

PROPOSED INSURANCE COMPANIES 
A.M. BEST'S RATING & 
FINANCIAL SIZE CATEGORY 
* 

ADMITTED/NON-ADMITTED 
** 

Safety National Casualty Corporation A+ XV Admitted 

 
*Gallagher companies use A.M. Best rated insurers and the rating listed above was verified on the date the proposal document 
was created. 
 
Best's Credit Ratings™ reproduced herein appear under license from A.M. Best and do not constitute, either expressly or 
impliedly, an endorsement of Gallagher’s service or its recommendations. A.M. Best is not responsible for transcription errors 
made in presenting Best's Credit Ratings™. Best’s Credit Ratings™ are proprietary and may not be reproduced or distributed 
without the express written permission of A.M. Best. 
 
A Best’s Financial Strength Rating is an independent opinion of an insurer’s financial strength and ability to meet its ongoing 
insurance policy and contract obligations. It is not a warranty of a company’s financial strength and ability to meet its obligations 
to policyholders.    Best's Credit Ratings™ are under continuous review and subject to change and/or affirmation. For the latest 
Best’s Credit Ratings™ and Guide to Best’s Credit Ratings, visit the A.M. Best website at http://www.ambest.com/ratings. 
 
**If coverage placed with a non-admitted carrier, it is doing business in the state as a surplus lines or non-admitted carrier, and 
is neither subject to the same regulations as an admitted carrier nor do they participate in any state insurance guarantee fund. 
 
Gallagher companies make no representations and warranties concerning the solvency of any carrier, nor does it make any 
representation or warranty concerning the rating of the carrier which may change. 

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

27 

 

Client Signature Requirements 
Client Signature Requirements 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

28 

Coverages for Consideration 

Overview 

•  A proposal for any of the coverages can be provided. 

•  The recommendations and considerations summarized in this section are not intended to identify all exposures. 

•  Since Gallagher does not handle your complete insurance program, these recommendations only reflect items within our 
scope of responsibility. 

 

Other Coverage Considerations 

•  Cyber Liability 

•  Flood 

 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

29 

Client Authorization to Bind Coverage 

After careful consideration of Gallagher's proposal dated 6/17/2019, we accept the following coverage(s). Please check the 
desired coverage(s) and note any coverage amendments below: 

 

  COVERAGE/CARRIER DESCRIPTION / MAJOR DIFFERENCES 

☐ Accept ☐ Reject  Excess Workers' Compensation  

 Safety National Casualty Corporation 

Payroll decreased from $62,902,932 in 2018 to 
$62,576,983 in 2019 

Rate /$100 decreased from $0.23 in 2018 to $0.22 in 
2019 

TRIA Cannot Be Rejected  

 

The above coverage may not necessarily represent the entirety of available insurance products. If you are interested in 
pursuing additional coverages other than those addressed in the coverage considerations included in this proposal, 
please list below: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Producer/ Insured Coverage Amendments and Notes: 

 

 

 

EXPOSURES AND VALUES 

We confirm the payroll, values, schedules, and other data contained in the proposal, and submitted to the underwriters, are 
compiled from our records and we acknowledge it is our responsibility to see that they are maintained accurately.  If no updates 
were provided to Gallagher, the values, exposures and operations used were based on the expiring policies. 

 

Provide Quotations or Additional Information on the Following Coverage Considerations: 

Gallagher recommends that you purchase the following additional coverages for which you have exposure. By rejecting a 
quotation for this valuable coverage, you understand that there will be no coverage and agree to hold Gallagher harmless in the 
event of a loss. 

 

Other Coverages to Consider 

☐ Yes   ☐ No - Cyber Liability 

☐ Yes   ☐ No - Flood 

 

Other Services to Consider 

☐ Yes   ☐ No - eRiskHub 

 

We agree that your liability to us arising from your negligent acts or omissions, whether related to the insurance or surety placed 
pursuant to these binding instructions or not, shall not exceed $20 million, in the aggregate. Further, without limiting the 

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

30 

foregoing, we agree that in the event you breach your obligations, you shall only be liable for actual damages we incur and that 
you shall not be liable for any indirect, consequential or punitive damages. 

 

Gallagher has established security controls to protect Client confidential information from unauthorized use or disclosure. For 
additional information, please review Gallagher’s Privacy Policy located at https://www.ajg.com/privacy-policy/. 

 

I have read, understand and agree that the above-information is correct and has been disclosed to us prior to authorizing 
Gallagher to bind coverage and/or provide services to us. 

 

By:         _______________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name (Specify Title) 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Company 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Signature 

 

Date:      _______________________________________________________________________ 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

31 

 

Appendix 
Appendix 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

32 

Claims Reporting By Policy 

Direct Reporting  

Immediately report all claims for the following lines of coverage to the insurance carrier. 

 Excess Workers Compensation 
 Safety National Casualty Corporation 
 www.safetynational.com  

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



 

 

Tulsa County 

33 

Bindable Quotations & Compensation Disclosure Schedule 

Client Name: Tulsa County 

 

COVERAGE(S) CARRIER NAME(S) 
WHOLESALER, MGA, OR 
INTERMEDIARY NAME1 

EST. ANNUAL 
PREMIUM2 

COMM.% OR 
FEE3 

GALLAGHER U.S. OWNED 
WHOLESALER, MGA, OR 

INTERMEDIARY % 

Excess 
Workers' 
Compensation 

Safety National Casualty Corporation (Tokio Marine 
Holdings, Inc.) 

N/A $137,669.00 0 %  

 

1 We were able to obtain more advantageous terms and conditions for you through an intermediary/ wholesaler. 

2 If the premium is shown as an indication: The premium indicated is an estimate provided by the market. The actual premium and acceptance of the coverage requested will be determined by the 
market after a thorough review of the completed application. 

  * A verbal quotation was received from this carrier. We are awaiting a quotation in writing. 

3 The commission rate is a percentage of annual premium excluding taxes & fees. 

  * Gallagher is receiving ___% commission on this policy. The fee due Gallagher will be reduced by the amount of the commissions received. 

• • • Gallagher 
e• CORE36o· 



 

 

Tulsa County 

34 

Premium Financing 

Arthur J. Gallagher is pleased to offer Premium Financing for our clients. 

What is Premium Financing? 

Premium financing is a short-term loan that provides premium payment flexibility. By financing, you have the option to spread 
out your premium payments instead of paying in full at the time of policy purchase or renewal. 

 
Why Premium Financing May be Good for Your Business? 

 May improve capital and cash flow management by spreading out premium payments over the policy period.  

 Allows for consolidation of multiple policies into one premium finance agreement with a single monthly or quarterly 
payment. 

 Provides automated ACH options and flexible payment terms. 

 

Want to Learn More? 

If you are interested in learning more or obtaining a quote, contact your Client Service Manager. 

• • • Gallagher 
••• CORE360. 



PHONE # (314) 995-5300 

Safety National Casualty Corporation 
1832 Schuetz Road 
St. Louis, MO 63146 

FAX# (314) 995-3843 
TO: GALLAGHER, ARTHUR J & COMPANY ATTN: Ms. MELISSA PASCARELLA 
PHONE: (918) 584-1433 FAX: (918) 582-1329 
FROM: Lana Holmes DATE: 04/08/2019 

EXCESS WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE QUOTATION 

Name of Risk: TULSA COUNTY 
Account: 6013819 Previous Policy Number: AGC4058567 

I Specific & Aggregate Excess 

Contract Terms Option 4367599282 Option 4434919848 
Liability Period 07/01/2019 - 07/01/2020 07/01/2019 - 07/01/2020 
Payroll Reporting Period 07/01/2019 - 07/01/2020 07/01/2019 - 07/01/2020 
Payroll $ 62,576,983 $ 62,576,983 
Manual Premium $1,451 ,540 $ 1,451 ,540 
Experience Modification Factor 1.000 1.000 
Standard Premium $1,451 ,540 $1,451 ,540 
Self-Insured Retention $600,000 Police Officers $750,000 

All Other $600,000 
Specific Limit Statutory Statutory 

Employers Liability Limit Per 0cc $1,000,000 Per 0cc $1,000,000 

Loss Fund Rate Rate% Std Premium 215.00 % Rate% Std Premium 220.00 % 
Est imated Loss Fund $3,120,81 1 $3,193,388 
Minimum Loss Fund $3,120,811 $3,193,388 
Aggregate Excess Limit $ 1,000,000 $1 ,000,000 
Loss Limitation $600,000 All Other $600,000 

Police Officers $750,000 
Premium Rate Rate $100 Payroll $ 0.23285 Rate $100 Payroll $ 0.22 

Deposit Premium $ 145,711 $137,669 
Minimum Premium $ 131 ,140 $123,902 
Commission Net 0.00% Net 0.00% 
Pay Plan ANNUAL PAYMENT ANNUAL PAYMENT 
Audit Type Voluntary Voluntary 
*Quote expires 1 day after Payroll Reporting Period effective date for each Quote Option. 

1 of 3 



PHONE# (314) 995-5300 

Safety National Casualty Corporation 
1832 Schuetz Road 
St. Louis, MO 63146 

FAX# (314) 995-3843 
TO: GALLAGHER, ARTHUR J & COMPANY ATTN: Ms. MELISSA PASCARELLA 
PHONE: (918) 584-1433 FAX: (918) 582-1329 
FROM: Lana Holmes DATE: 04/08/2019 

EXCESS WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE QUOTATION 
Endorsements: 

General Endorsements applicable to all quote options: 
0034 00 1291 (XWC) OKLAHOMA CANCELLATION, NONRENEWAL AND CHANGE ENDORSEMENT 
0291000708 (XWC) VOLUNTARY COMPENSATION ENDORSEMENT-PREMIUM DELINEATION 
2018 01 1008 (XWC) EXCLUSION OF OWNED, LEASED OR REGULARLY CHARTERED AIRCRAFT 
OKLAHOMA MANDATORY ENDORSEMENT(S), IF APPLICABLE 
1061 11 01 15 (XWC) POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE NOTICE OF TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE 

Contingencies: 
The quote is subject to the following: 
1. Subject to receipt, review, and approval of vehicle and watercraft supplemental application forms prior to binding. 
2. Commission shall be earned by the Broker of Record on an annual basis. For a single year policy, commission 

shall be earned by the Broker of Record as of the Effective Date. For the first year of a multi-year policy, 
commission shall be earned by the Broker of Record as of the Effective Date. For each subsequent year of a multi
year policy, commission shall be considered earned by the Broker of Record as of each annual anniversary of the 
Effective Date. 

3. This Agreement will include coverage for Workers' Compensation loss caused by acts of terrorism as defined in the 
Agreement. Coverage for such losses will still be subject to all terms, definitions, exclusions, and conditions in the 
Agreement, & any applicable federal and/or state laws, rules, or regulations. Be advised that, under the Terrorism 
Risk Insurance Act of 2002 as amended and extended by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization of 
2015 (collectively, the Act), terrorism losses would be partially reimbursed by the U.S. Government under a formula 
established by the Act. Under this formula , the U.S. Government would generally reimburse 80% to 85% of covered 
terrorism losses exceeding a deductible paid by us. The Act contains $100 billion cap that limits the reimbursement 
from the U.S. Government as well as from all insurers. If aggregate insured losses for all insurers exceed $100 
billion, your coverage may be reduced. The portion of the EMPLOYER's annual premium attributable to coverage 
for losses caused by a certified act of terrorism is: 0.5% 

Comments: 
1. Endorsements mandated by the coverage state(s) will automatically be added to your policy regardless of whether 

they are shown in the above schedule. In addition, a change in an endorsement form number may occur as a 
result of state filing requirements/updates arising subsequent to this quote. 

2. Included in our quote: MAP Client Services. These resources consist of both risk control and claim services, 
including resources like Safety Essentials Online, Workers' Comp Kit, and Safety Training Source. Medical 
Management Program. These services help facilitate complicated claims towards the best-possible outcome. 
Available services include Catastrophic Claims Consulting, Impartial Medical Review, Long-Term Claims 
Evaluation, and Chronic Pain & Opioid Dependency Programs. 

2 of 3 



Safety National 

TULSA COUNTY 

EXCESS 

Account Number 6013819 Effective Date 07/01/2019 

Policy Number AGC4058567 Date Printed 

OKLAHOMA 

01/01/2019 Advisory Loss Costs, NCCI as of07/01/2019 

Surcharge 1.2400 included in rate 

1/o Payroll Code Classification 
0.2485 % 2802 Carpentry--Shop Only & Drivers 
0.491 % 4299 Printing 

0.2257 % 461 1 Drug, Medicine or Pharmaceutical 
Preparation, Compounding or Blending--No 
Mfg. of Ingredients 

4.001 % 5611 Street or Road Construction or Maintenance 
& Drivers 

0.1516 % 7380 Drivers, Chauffeurs and Their Helpers NOC-
Commercial 

40.3541 % 7720 Police Officers & Drivers 
0.5226 % 8391 Automobile Repair Shop & Parts Department 

Employees, Drivers 
41 .8229 % 8810 Clerical Office Employees NOC 

0.2441 % 8864 Social Service Organization-All Employees & 
Salesperson, Drivers 

1.3834 % 9015 Building - Operation by Owner or Lessee 
2.7581 % 9060 Club-Country, Golf, Fishing or Yacht-& 

Clerical 
3.2059 % 9102 Parks NOC-All Employees & Drivers 
4.591 % 9410 Municipal, Township, County or State 

Employee NOC 

OKLAHOMA Totals 

Total rotal Annual Manual Premium 
Payroll $ 62,576,983 

Manhours 0 
Combined 

Page 1 of 1 

04/04/2019 

=xoosure 
$155,499 
$307,245 
$141,227 

$2,503,715 

$94,867 

$ 25,252,368 
$327,055 

$26,171,519 
$152,754 

$865,695 
$1 ,725,964 

$2,006,179 
$2,872,896 

$ 62,576,983 

Rate Premium 
6.60 $10,263 
2.54 $7,804 
0.79 $1 ,116 

7.66 $191 ,785 

5.41 $5,132 

3.97 $ 1,002,519 
2.69 $8,798 

0.20 $52,343 
2.57 $3,926 

3.24 $28,049 
1.40 $24,163 

2.80 $56,173 
2.07 $59,469 

$ 1,451 ,540 

$ 1,451,540 
$0 

$1 ,451,540 



SRFETV NRTIONRL 

Your Service Team 

Safety National is committed to providing industry leading services to our policyholders. The Service 
Team is the keystone to that promise. This highly experienced team is identified now and established 
early in the policy term so there is a seamless transition and efficient delivery of service for your 
client's needs. The Service Team consists of a one point contact in underwriting, claims, risk control, 
policy services, audit, legal, and finance. 

We welcome the opportunity for you to experience our commitment to your success by contacting any 
member of our team with your questions or requests. 

Lana Holmes (314) 810-5535 Lana.Perry@safetynational.com 
Director - Excess Underwriting 

Michelle Smith (314) 812-1346 Michelle. Smith@safetynational.com 
Coordinator-UW Stand Alone 
Operations 
Don Enke (314) 810-5427 don. enke@safetynati onal. com 
Risk Control 

Joanna Pallardy (314) 692-9507 j oanna. pallardy@safetynational.com 
MAP Client Services 

Mike Harris (314) 692-9516 michael.harris@safetynational.com 
VP Claims 

Shelly Stuck (314) 692-1370 shelly .stuck@safetynational.com 
Premium Audit 



CRISIS 
PROTECTION 

Domestic Crisis Management 
and International Extraction 

Safety National Crisis Protection is a crisis management and extraction benefit provided exclusively for Safety National's 
Excess and Large Deductible Workers' Compensation customers. If your business undergoes a qualifying "Domestic 
Crisis Event" that directly involves your business and involves the death of two or more of your employees, Safety National 
will either pay one of our approved vendors to assist with crisis management or reimburse you directly for the approved 
costs incurred with a vendor of your choice. If you experience a qualifying "International Extraction Crisis Event" that 
requires international employee extraction, we will reimburse you directly for the approved costs. 

How Does It Work? 
If a qualifying "Domestic Crisis Event" or "International Extraction Crisis Event" occurs, Safety National Crisis Protection will help 
you minimize post-crisis risk to the organization, its stakeholders and employees directly involved in the event (including 
immediate family of the involved employee). The annual, aggregate limit for these complimentary benefits, or any combination 
of the two, is $50,000. These benefits are accessible when you need them and are provided by Safety National free of charge. 

"Domestic Crisis Events" Include: 

Multiple employee deaths (tv.o or more) 
resulting from the folloWing man-made events: 

• Explosion 
• Arson 
• Bombing 
• Workplace Violence 
• structural Fire 
• Vehicular Accident 

Multiple employee deaths (two or more) 
resulting from the following natural dis asters: 

• Tornado 
• Explosion 
• Wildfire 
• Structural Fire 
• Earthquake and any Resulting Tsunami 
• Hurricane 
• Flood 

"International Extraction Crisis Events" Include: 

Employee extraction nece-ssiated by the following: 

Man-Made Events: 

• Explosion 
• Arson 
• Bombing 
• Riot 
• Government Collapse & Political Unrest 

Benefits: 

• Provided at no cost to policyholders, with a $50,000 
annual, aggregate benefit limit for a qualifying 
"Domestic Crisis Event; a QUaJifying · 1ntemalional 
Extraction Crisis Evenf or any combination of the two. 

• A 24-hour crisis hotline to preferred and approved 
·oomes1ic Crisis Event' vendors 

• Benefit extends to immediate family of an employee 
that is directly involved in the · o omeslic Crisis Event.' 

Natural Disasters: 

• Tornado 
• Explosion 
• Wildfire 
• EarthQuake and any Resulting Tsunami 
• Cydone/Typhoon/Hurricane 
• Flood 

• The benefit can be used for qualified 
·Domestic Crisis Events-to help you with: 

• Crisis Management 
• Crisis Response 
• Public Relations 
• Emergency Psychological Treatment 

• Includes cnsis communication and media management 
• Short-term counseling and referral for directly invotved 

employees and their immediate family. 

1 .. 9-.1 For more information about Safety National Crisis Protection, please visit 
www.safetynational.com/crisis_protection. If you have additional questions about this 

free benefit, please contact us at crisisprotection@safetynational.com. 
TOKIO M A RIN[ 

GROU P 



SAFETY NATIONAL 

AT A GLANCE 
AM. Best Rating A+ (Superior) 
Financial Size Category XV 

Why Safety National? 
• Leading specialty insurance carrier, offering a variety of risk solutions for large commercial 

and public entity clients. 

• Long-time presence in the market, providing uninterrupted service to thousands of customers nationwide 
for over 75 years. 

• Relationship-focused approach to customer service, listening closely to customer needs and 
designing flexible programs and placements to address them. 

• Unique claims and medical management proficiency, managing complex claims efficiently and effectively. 

Financial Strength* 

• Policyholders' surplus: $2.4 billion (13.7% increase over 12/17) and $8.0 billion in assets 

• A.M. Best Rating "A+" (Superior), Financial Size Category XV 

• Standard & Poor's "A+" 

• A member of the Tokio Marine Group, with over $211 billion in total assets. The Group's 
main operating subsidiary, Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire {TMNF), maintains an A.M. Best 
rating of A++ (Superior), Financial Size Category XV. 

PRODUCTS 

Workers' Compensation: 
• Excess 
• Large Deductible 
• Large Guaranteed Cost 
• TEXcess 

Public Entity Liability: 
Law Enforcement Liability 

• Public Officials Liability 
• Educators Legal Liability 

SERVICES 

Commercial Auto 

Commercial General Liability 

Cyber Risk 

Reinsurance 

Loss Portfolio Transfers 

Captive Services 

Self-Insurance Bonds 

• Medical Management Resources: Supplemental programs designed to help manage 
complicated claims towards best possible outcomes. 

• MAP Client Services: A full suite of online resources designed to help build or enhance 
safety and compliance programs. 

*asof 12/18 

• Risk Control Services: A vetted network of highly-qualified consultants available to assist with on
site safety and risk control projects. 

SRFETY NRTIONRl 
(888) 995-5300 · info@safetynational.com · safetynational.com 
A member of the Tokio Marine Group 



Safety National Crisis Protection®

Domestic crisis management and international extraction.

Safety National Crisis Protection® is a crisis management and 
extraction benefit provided exclusively for Safety National’s 
excess, large deductible and select guaranteed cost workers’ 
compensation customers. Safety National® has partnered 

with Black Swan Solutions and The Abernathy MacGregor Group to 
provide this benefit.

If your business undergoes a qualifying “Domestic Crisis Event” 
that directly involves your business and involves the death of two or 
more of your employees, Safety National will either pay one of our 
approved vendors to assist with crisis management or reimburse you 
directly for the approved costs incurred with a vendor of your choice.

•	 Benefits can be used to assist with crisis management, 
public relations or emergency psychological treatment. 

•	 Benefits also extend to immediate family of an employee 
that is directly involved in the event. 

If your business experiences a qualifying “International Extraction 
Crisis Event” that requires international employee extraction, we 
will reimburse your business directly for the approved costs.

Safety National Crisis Protection is provided at no cost to 
policyholders, with a $50,000 annual, aggregate benefit limit.  
Please visit www.safetynational.com or contact us at 
crisisprotection@safetynational.com, if you have additional 
questions about this free benefit or would like more information.

Domestic Man-Made Crisis Events: 
•	 Explosion 
•	 Arson
•	 Bombing 
•	 Workplace violence
•	 Structural fire 
•	 Vehicular accident 

Domestic Natural Disaster  
Crisis Events: 

•	 Tornado 
•	 Explosion
•	 Wildfire structural fire
•	 Hurricane 
•	 Flood
•	 Earthquake and any resulting tsunami 

International Extraction Man-Made  
Crisis Events: 

•	 Explosion 
•	 Arson
•	 Bombing 
•	 Riot
•	 Government collapse and  
 political unrest 

International Extraction Natural  
Disaster Events: 

•	 Tornado 
•	 Explosion
•	 Wildfire 
•	 Flood
•	 Earthquake and any resulting tsunami
•	 Cyclone/Typhoon/Hurricane

Mf\P 
ERV I CES 

.., , ' 
,. - --i-:.....• . ' \~,-

\. ', '· I, 
i \ 



\\\(\\~·r- ~ ,:-:' \'' ~. , "\\\J ' .•'I \ \ \ ,\, 

~ B , f!~~ANCIAL: J~ '2.~tartRight. RetireRight". 

Su\ \ \ ~ 
Plan Sponsor Web Portal User Access Fo , ,. 

)\.J\! 
Reset Form 

Use this form to add , remove, or change a user's access to the plan sponsor web portal. ... ,_,- ::·· '::"~ 

~M·~ 'J ' \ I\\ 
1'~ ,, ~·\( -----· ma.1~m:t4~N'~'l•l9 ~flt!Jlt•l~ • .-

' n :: \._,-·' · 
Company Name 
Tulsa County 

2 USER INFORMATION 

Plan Name ('l -

Tu!sa County 401 (a) and 457 

Once access is established, each user will receive a user ID and default password at the email address provided in five to seven business days. Please 
attach an additional page(s) for additional users. 

1. Select One: Ill Add Ci Remove r Change 

User's Name 
Lori Cherrington 

E-mail Address 
lcherrington@exposquare.com 

2. Select One: Add 

User's Name 

E-mail Address 

3. Select One: [] Add 

User's Name 

E-mail Address 

Web Portal Access Level 

Remove Change 

Remove C Change 

Web Portal Access Level: _L_im_ite_d_ w_ith_ S_m_ a_rt_F_i_le ________ _ 

Last 4 Digits of SSN 
9426 

Primary Phone # 
918-744-1113 x2029 

Hire Date 
5/20/2019 

Mother's Maiden Name 
Roby 

Web Portal Access Level: -----------------

Last 4 Digits of SSN Hire Date 

Primary Phone# Mother's Maiden Name 

Web Portal Access Level: ----------------

Last 4 Digits of SSN Hire Date 

Primary Phone # Mother's Maiden Name 

• Inquiry Access - View plan level information. User does not have the abil ity to update information. 

• Limited Access - Includes Inquiry functionality plus the ability to update non-financial transactions including , but not limited to. participant 
demographics. contribution rates and investment elections. 

• Limited Access with Smart File - Includes Inquiry functionality with Smart File access plus the ability to update non-financial transactions 
including, but not limited to, participant demographics, contribution rates, and investment elections. 

• Full Access - Includes Inquiry and Limited functionality plus the ability to update all plan and participant information including, but not limited to , the 
ability to initiate transfers of core investment options and loan requests on behalf of participants. 

• Full Access with Smart File - Includes Inquiry and Limited functional ity with Smart File access plus the ability to update all plan and participant 
information including, but not limited to, the ability to initiate transfers of core investment options and loan requests on behalf of participants. 

• Consultant Access - Includes Inquiry functionality to view plan level information only. User does not have the ability to view any participant level 
information including plan reports . 

• Smart File Only Access - Includes Inquiry functionality to view plan level information only. Allows user to upload and modify files to be submitted 
for processing . User does not have the ability to view any participant level information including plan reports. 

3 AUTHORIZATION AND SIGNATURE 

By signing this form, I represent that I am an Authorized Representative of the Company and Plan and I grant BOK Financial permission to give the 
above-named user(s) access to the Start Right website (startright.bokf.com) for the Plan. I understand that each user granted Limited or Full Access 
would have the ability to view confidential Plan information and may be able to execute transactions for participant accounts maintained by BOK 
Financial for the Plan. I agree that this access will remain in effect until the Plan provides BOK Financial an updated form requesting the user's access 
be removed. BOK Financial will remove the user within one business day of receipt of the form. 

Signature of Authorized Representative Printed Name Date 

©BOK Financial. Services provided by BOKF, NA. Member FDIC. 

~ 
::a 
m 
;i: 
m z .... .,, 
\;: 
z 

"' m 

~ 
0 m 

"' 



Tulsa County Social Services 

Memo 
TO: Board of County Commissioners 

FROM: Linda J. Johnston ~ 
DATE: 6/10/2019 

RE: Donations for April, 2019. 

Attached you will find copies of documents to acknowledge donations made to Tulsa County 
Social Services in the month of April, 2019. 

• Agency Invoices - Community Food Bank - Food Donation 
• Manifest Record - Various Nursing Homes - Medications 
• Shelter Record - Various Individuals - Various Items 

I am respectfully requesting that the Board formally approve the acceptance of these items. 

cc: Commissioner Karen Keith 
Commissioner Pro Tern Ron Peters 
Commissioner Stan Sallee 
Mike Craddock, Chief Deputy 
John Fothergill, Chief Deputy 
Vicki Adams, Chief Deputy 

Original to: Michael Willis, County Clerk, for Commission Meeting of Monday, June 17th, 2019. 

LJ:gs 



COPY 

To: Tulsa County Social Services 
2401 Charles Page Blvd. 
Tulsa, OK 74127 

Ship Date: 
Appt. Time: 
Due Date: 
Terms: 

4/3/2019 
1:30:00 PM 
5/15/2019 
Due 15th of month 

Delivery Info: - SHOPPER: GINA SOLOMON 1047301 

Item No. Description 

U00891 USDA Pork Ham/ Thin Sliced 

Case 
Weight 

40 

Total GW: 

Ship 

Agency Invoice 
Invoice Number: A0-32973-1 

Invoice Date: 4/3/2019 
Page: · 1 

To: Tulsa County Social Services 
Angela Patton 
918-596-5560 
2401 Charles Page Blvd. 
Tulsa, OK 74127 

Parent Agency ID: 
Agency ID: 
Your Reference No.: 

10473 
10473-01 
P03393415 
4/1/2019 Order Date: 

Gross 
Weight Qty. Unit Fee Total Price 

200 5 

200 Subtotal : 0.00 

Total $: 0.00 

Food Bank policy requires that all invoices be paid within 30 days of the invoice date. 



COPY 

To: Tulsa County Social Services 
2401 Charles Page Blvd. 
Tulsa, OK 74127 

Ship Date: 
Appt. Time: 
Due Date: 
Terms: 

4/25/2019 
9:15:00 AM 
5/15/2019 
Due 15th of month 

Delivery Info: - Shopper Gina Solomon 1047301 

Item No. Description 

U01032 USDA Brown Rice/ US #1 24/ 2 lb 
U00361 USDA Beans/ Refried 24/ #300 
U00897 USDA Juice/ Orange 81 64 oz 

Temp at Pickup: Drop Off: 

Case 
Weight 

48 
24 
37 

Total GW: 

Signature :~ 
Counter Signat : 

Ship 

Agency Invoice 
Invoice Number: A0-33452-1 

Invoice Date: 4/25/2019 
Page: 1 

To: Tulsa County Social Services 
Angela Patton 
918-596-5560 
2401 Charles Page Blvd. 
Tulsa, OK 74127 

Parent Agency ID: 
Agency ID: 
Your Reference No. : 
Order Date: 

Gross 

10473 
10473-01 
P03403904 
4/17/2019 

Weight Qty. Unit Fee Total Price 

48 1 
72 3 

370 10 

490 Subtotal : 0.00 

Total$ : 0.00 

Food Bank policy requires that all invoices be paid within 30 days of the invoice date. 



The George Prothro, MD, Pharmacy of Tulsa County 
Medication Donations 

Aberdeen Heights Assisted Living 
7220 South Yale 
Tulsa, OK 74136 

Broken Arrow Nursing Home 
424 North Date Avenue 

Broken Arrow, OK 7 4012 

Emerald Care Health Services 
2425 South Memorial Drive 

Tulsa, OK 74129 

Forrest Manor Nursing Center 
141 O North Choctaw 
Dewey, OK 74029 

Franciscan Villa, Inc. 
17110 East 51st Street 

Broken Arrow, OK 74012 

The Gardens 
1165 South Brenner Road 

Sapulpa, OK 7 4066 

Gracewood Health and Rehab 
6201 East 36th Street 

Tulsa, OK 74135 

Green Country Care Center 
3601 North Columbia Avenue 

Tulsa, OK 74110 

Heatheridge Assisted Living 
2130 South 85th East Avenue 

Tulsa, OK 74129 

Inverness Village 
3800 West 71 st Street 

Tulsa, OK 74132 

April, 2019 

Inverness Village 
3800 West 71st Street 

Tulsa, OK 74132 

Montereau 
6800 South Granite Avenue 

Tulsa, OK 74136 

Oklahoma Methodist Manor, Inc. 
4134 East 31st Street 

Tulsa, OK 74135 

Park's Edge Nursing & Rehabilitation Center 
5115 East 51 st Street 

Tulsa, OK 7 4135 

Senior Suites Healthcare 
3501 West Washington 

Broken Arrow, OK 74012 

Shawnee Care Center 
1202 West Gilmore 

Shawnee, OK 74804 

Tulsa Nursing Center 
10912 East 14th Street 

Tulsa, OK 74128 

Tulsa Nursing Center 
10912 East 14th Street 

Tulsa, OK 74128 

Southern Hills Rehabilitation Center 
5170 South Vandalia 

Tulsa, OK 74135 

Wewoka Healthcare Center 
1400 West 1st 

Wewoka, OK 74884 



DATE RCV'D 
4/1/2019 

4/1/2019 

4/6/2019 

4/6/2019 

4/9/2019 

4/12/2019 

4/16/2019 

4/17/2019 

4/18/2019 

4/22/2019 

4/23/2019 

4/23/2019 

4/24/2019 

TULSA COUNTY EMERGENCY SHELTER 
April, 2019 
DONATIONS 

ITEM DONOR 
2 gowns, 3 t-shirts Joyce Wortham 

Marie Kasper 
2 bags miscellenous itmes 6143 West 1 Oth Street 

Tulsa, OK 74127 
women's and children's 

Anonymous 
clothina and shoes 

Clothing - women's and Sandra Wickliffe 
children's purses and baby 5957 East King Place 

formula Tulsa, OK 74115 
Rich Brierre 

5 bags clothing 3131 South Utica Avenue 
Tulsa, OK 7 4105 

Coats, dishes, pots and Route 66 
pans, puzzles, children's Fran Woodside 

socks, baby items, hygeine 12609 East 34th Street 
oroduts Tulsa, OK 74146 

Route 66 

Easter Baskets 
Fran Woodside 

12609 East 34th Street 
Tulsa, OK 74146 

2 boxes clothing , baskets 
Anonymous 

and misc household items 
Jane Watson 

Television Set 5715 South 69th East Avenue 
Tulsa, OK 74145 

10 bags women's and Holtzclaw Oxford House 
children's clothing, shoes, 6444 South 87th East Avenue 

sheets Tulsa OK 74133 

Clothing, Shoes, 
Gwen Waasdorp 

705 West Atlanta Place 
Toothbrushes and soaps 

Broken Arrow, OK 74012 

Baby Diapers, clothing, car 
Mr & Mrs. Luke Neumayr 

P.O. Box 505 
seat, stroller 

Boling, TX 77420 

Clothing, shoes, household 
Sharilyn Munroe 

7477 North 146th East Avenue 
items Owasso, OK 7 4055 

VALUE 
None Given 

None Given 

None Given 

None Given 

$ 300.00 

$ 187.30 

$ 424.00 

None Given 

$100.00 

$400.00 

$50.00 

$ 1,000.00 

$ 200.00 



Tulsa County Social Services . 

--
Memo 

TO: Board of County Commissioners 

FROM: Linda J. Johnston W 
DATE: 6/10/2019 

RE: Donations for May, 2019. 

Attached you will find copies of documents to acknowledge donations made to Tulsa County 
Social Services in the month of May, 2019. 

• Agency Invoices - Community Food Bank - Food Donation 
• Manifest Record - Various Nursing Homes - Medications 
• Shelter Record - Various Individuals - Various Items 

I am respectfully requesting that the Board formally approve the acceptance of these items. 

cc: Commissioner Karen Keith 
Commissioner Pro Tern Ron Peters 
Commissioner Stan Sallee 
Mike Craddock, Chief Deputy 
John Fothergill, Chief Deputy 
Vicki Adams, Chief Deputy 

Original to: Michael Willis, County Clerk, for Commission Meeting of Monday, June 17th, 2019. 

LJ:gs 



To: Tulsa County Social Services 
2401 Charles Page Blvd. 
Tulsa, OK 74127 

Ship Date: sn12019 
Appt. Time: 10:45:00AM 
Due Date: 6/15/2019 
Terms: Due 15th of month 

Delivery Info: - Shopper: Gina Solomon 1047301 

Case 
Item No. Description Weight 

U00337 USDA Dehydrated Potato Flakes 12/ 12 
U00897 USDA Juice/ Orange 81 64 oz 37 
U10450 USDA Pasta/ Spaghetti 20/ 1 lb 20 
U10478 USDA Chicken Boned/ Canned 25 

Total GW: 
Temp at Pickup: Drop Off: 

Signfilure: ~~ 
Counter Sign:u; 

Ship 

Agency Invoice 
Invoice Number: A0-34373-1 

Invoice Date: Sn/2019 
Page: 1 

To: Tulsa County Social Services 
Angela Patton 
918-596-5560 
2401 Charles Page Blvd. 
Tulsa, OK 74127 

Parent Agency ID: 10473 
Agency ID: 10473-01 
Your Reference No.: P03422504 
Order Date: 5/2/2019 

Gross 
Weight Qty. Unit Fee Total Price 

48 4 
370 10 
80 4 

125 5 

623 Subtotal: 0.00 

Total$: 0.00 

Food Bank policy requires that all invoices be paid within 30 days of the invoice date. 



The George Prothro, MD, Pharmacy of Tulsa County 
Medication Donations 

May, 2019 

Arbor Village 
310 West Taft 

Sapulpa, OK 7 4066 

Autumn Leaves Assisted Living 
7807 South Mingo 
Tulsa, OK 74133 

Broken Arrow Nursing Home 
424 North Date Avenue 

Broken Arrow, OK 74012 

Memory Care Center of Claremore 
2700 North Hickory 

Claremore, OK 74018 

Rainbow Healthcare 
111 East Washington 
Bristow, OK 74010 

Ranch Terrace Nursing Home 
1310 East Cleveland 
Sapulpa, OK 7 4066 

Shawnee Care Center 
1202 West Gilmore 

Shawnee, OK 7 4804 

Sherwood Manor Nursing Home 
2416 West 51st Street South 

Tulsa, OK 74107 

University Village 
8555 South Lewis 
Tulsa, OK 74137 



DATE RCV'D 

5/1/2019 

5/2/2019 

5/7/2019 

5/8/2019 

5/9/2019 

5/9/2019 

5/15/2019 

TULSA COUNTY EMERGENCY SHELTER 
May, 2019 
DONATIONS 

ITEM DONOR 

Kids and adult socks Anonymous 

Women's clothing , shoes 
Sharilyn Munroe 

7477 North 146th East Avenue 
and jewelry 

Owasso, OK 74055 

3 bags stuffed animals 
Anonymous 

1 O bags miscellaneous 
Joan Land 

117 45 Skyline Drive 
household items 

Collinsville, OK 74021 

Clothing, Christmas items, 
Nancy Boevers 

6306 South 110th East Avenue 
Art Supplies 

Tulsa, OK 7 4133 
Sandra Friday 

Miscellaneous Items 5370 South Owasso Avenue 
Tulsa, OK 7 4105 

Orange chicken , rice, 
Jack Morton 

bread, salad, green beans, 
10809 South Marion Avenue 

cookies, bananas, ranch 
Tulsa, OK 7 4137 

dressing 

VALUE 
None 
Given 

$250.00 

None 
Given 

None 
Given 

$60.00 

$50.00 

$180.00 



RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE CONTRIBUTION RATE 
FOR THE EMPLOYER AND EMPLOYEE OF THE EMPLOYEES' 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TULSA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 

WHEREAS, the Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners is authorized and 
directed pursuant to the authority of 19 O.S. § 952 to provide for the control and 
management of a county retirement fund by resolution which, in addition to other 
provisions, shall provide for contributions to be made by the County and the amount to be 
made by the employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Employees' Retirement System of Tulsa 
County, Oklahoma has determined upon the advice of the fund's actuary and financial 
advisors that market trends are not likely to meet the continued funding requirements of 
the System; and 

WHEAREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Employees' Retirement System of Tulsa 
County, Oklahoma do not wish to under-fund the retirement fund by continuing funding at 
the present rate; and 

WHEAREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Employees' Retirement System of Tulsa 
County, Oklahoma has been advised by the fund's actuary that an increase in funding to 
eighteen and one-half percent (18.50%) would be a prudent rate adjustment to address 
ongoing fluctuations in the economy; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Employees' 
Retirement System of Tulsa County, Oklahoma to set the funding level at seventeen and 
one-half percent ( 17 .50%) of the base salary of each employee-member, effective on the 1st 

day of July 2019; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Employees' 
Retirement System of Tulsa County, Oklahoma to set the funding level at eighteen and one
half percent (18.50%) of the base salary of each employee-member, effective on the 1st day 
of January 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Employees' Retirement System of Tulsa 
County, Oklahoma recommends to the Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners that 
the Tulsa County Employer's contribution increase to fifteen percent (15%) of the base 
salary of each employee-member, effective July 1, 2019 and the employee-member 
contribution increase from two and one-half percent (2.50%) to three and one-half percent 
(3.50%) of the base salary of each employee-member, effective January 1, 2020. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Employees' Retirement System of Tulsa 
County, Tulsa, Oklahoma this 28th day of May 2019. 



BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF 
TULSA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 

Sherril Williams, Chairman 

ATIEST: 

Michael Willis, Tulsa County Clerk 

NOW, THEREFORE, BEING RESOLVED by the Tulsa County Budget Board, it 
hereby recommends to the Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners that it accept 
and ratify the above stated Resolution. 

APPROVED and accepted by the Tulsa County Budget Board this 13th day of June 
2019. 

~.~~ -< 

Tulsa County Budget Board 

ty Commissioner 

Michael Willis, County Clerk 

NOW, THEREFORE, BEING RESOLVED by the Tulsa County Board of County 
Commissioners, it accepts and ratifies the above stated Resolution and does hereafter 
instruct the participating organizations and departments, that the Tulsa County Employer's 
contribution increase to fifteen percent (15%) of the base salary of each employee-member, 
effective July 1, 2019 and the employee-member contribution increase from two and one
half percent (2.50%) to three and one-half percent (3.50%) of the base salary of each 
employee-member, effective January 1, 2020; 



APPROVED and accepted by the Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners this 
17th day of June 2019. 

Karen Keith, Chairman 
Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

Michael Willis 
Tulsa County Clerk 





 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Agreement Renewal with LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL Inc. for FY 19-20 

Regarding Accurint Services 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  Vendor has 

signed this document and it is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  Please let 

me know if you have any questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

Lisa Moore, Deputy Assessor 

 



Page 1 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

LexisNexis Risk Solutions

SCHEDULE A
Accurint for Government

(Per User Subscription)

Customer Name: Board of County Commissioners on the behalf of the 
Tulsa County Assessor

Billgroup #: ACC-6695033
LN Account Manager: David Ivey

This Schedule A sets forth additional or amended terms and conditions for the use of the Accurint for 
Government services (“LN Services”), as set forth in the services agreement between Customer and LN or LN’s 
affiliate(s) for the LN Services (“Agreement”), to which this Schedule A is incorporated by reference. The LN 
Services herein shall be provided by LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL Inc. ("LN"). Customer acknowledges that the 
services provided under this Schedule A are non-FCRA services and are not “consumer reports” within the 
meaning of the FCRA and Customer agrees not to use such reports in any manner that would cause them to be 
characterized as “consumer reports”. 

1. SCHEDULE A TERM 
The term of this Schedule A will be 12 months beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 (the "Term"). If 
an account is activated after the first day of a calendar month, charges will not be pro-rated. 

2. FEES 
2.1 User Fees: The following table (the “Price Table”) describes the agreed upon user fees (the “User Fees”): 

PRICE TABLE
Standard Features Fee (per user):
       $105.00

Premium Features:
Email Search $0.00
Real Time Phone Search $0.00
Total Monthly User Fees (per user): $105.00
Minimum  Number of Users 1
Total Monthly Minimum Amount $105.00

All of the searches and reports included in the attached Price Schedule are referred to as the “Features”. The 
User Fees include unlimited access to all Features, excluding those Features identified herein as Excluded 
Features but including the Premium Features listed in the Price Table. User Fees shall be due each month for: 
(i) any User ID upon which any search occurs during a calendar month; and (ii) any User ID activated on 
Customer's account which was not used to perform any searches and is not suspended or terminated by the 
close of business on the last day of any calendar month. 
2.2 Features Not Included: The following Features (“Excluded Features”) are not included in the User Fees 
and shall in all cases be charged separately according to the pricing specified in the attached Price Schedule:

American Board of Medical Specialties Search and Report
Bankruptcy Docket Sheet
Bankruptcy Documents
Business Link Report
Canadian Phones
Comprehensive Healthcare Business and Provider Report
Contact Card Report

5/17/19



Page 2 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

Court Search Wizard
Disclosed Entity Service
Dun & Bradstreet Global Market Identifiers
Dun & Bradstreet Records
Dun & Bradstreet Search
DE Corporation Search and Report
Email Search
FCRA Credit Reports
Federal Civil Court Records Search
Flat Rate Comprehensive Healthcare Business and Provider Report
Government Location Report
Identity Authenticate
Identity Verification
Medical, Employment Or Business Records Retrieval
MVR Reports (Driving Records)
National Motor Vehicle Accident Search and Report 
News Searches
Online Batch
OSHA Investigative Reports Search
Property Deed Image
Provider Report Card
Provider Sanction Search and Report
Provider Search and Report
Real Time Person Search
Real Time Phone Search
SEC Filings
Virtual Identity Search and Report
Workplace Locator
XML

LN standard pricing will be in effect for any new features made generally available by LN subsequent to 
the execution of this Schedule A.

2.3 Payment Amount: Customer shall pay to LN each month the greater of: (i) the total User Fees and 
applicable Excluded Features fees; or (ii) the total monthly minimum amount(s) of $105.00.

3. EXPIRATION
Unless otherwise accepted by LN, the terms herein are valid if the Schedule A is signed by the Customer and 
received by LN on or before June 20, 2019.



Page 3 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

4. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
This Schedule A contains the confidential pricing information of LN.  Customer acknowledges that the disclosure 
of such pricing information could cause competitive harm to LN, and as such, Customer agrees to maintain this 
Schedule A in trust and confidence and take reasonable precautions against disclosure to any third party to the 
extent permitted by local and state law.

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY: Board of County Commissioners on the behalf of the Tulsa County 
Assessor

Signed: $#3276043-Signed#$

Name:  $#3276043-CustName1#$

Title:     $#3276043-Title1#$

Date: $#3276043-Date1#$

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY: LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL Inc.

Signed: $#3276043-LNSigned1#$

Name:  $#3276043-LNSignerName1#$

Title:     $#3276043-LNSignerTitle1#$

Date: $#3276043-LNSignerDate1#$

Haywood Talcove

CEO (LNSSI)

May 17, 2019



Page 4 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

Accurint for Government
(Updated October 11, 2018)

(Plan 44)

(Pricing is per hit unless otherwise indicated. All searches/reports with a price of $0.00 are considered 
"Standard Features" and are included in Subscription plan.)

PRICE SCHEDULE (Subscription)
ACCURINT FOR GOVERNMENT FEATURES PRICE
Advanced Motor Vehicle Search $0.00
Advanced Person Search $0.00
Automated Valuation Model (AVM) Report $0.00
American Board Of Medical Specialties Search $1.00
American Board Of Medical Specialties Report $5.00
Associates ("Next Steps") $0.00
Bankruptcies, Liens & Judgments Search $0.00
Bankruptcy Search $0.00
Bankruptcy Report $0.00
Bankruptcy Docket Sheet ($0.50 For First 5 Pages & $0.20 Per Page Thereafter) (not 
discountable) $0.50

Bankruptcy Documents (Per Page, Up To Max Charge Of $6 Per Document) (not 
discountable) $0.20

Boolean Search $0.00
Business Credit $0.00
Business Credit Report $0.00
Business InstantID $0.00
Business InstantID & FraudDefender $0.00
Business Search $0.00
Businesses In The News (not discountable) $5.00
Canadian Phones $0.40
Case Audit Compliance $0.00
Case Connect Deconfliction Alerts $0.00
Civil Courts Search (Report Included) $0.00
CLIA Report $0.00
Concealed Weapons Permit $0.00
Corporation Filings (Report Included Except In Delaware) $0.00
Court Search Wizard (Additional Fees May Apply; Orders Are Non-Refundable) --
  -County Civil Lower & Upper Court - 7 Year  (not discountable) $35.00
  -County Civil Lower & Upper Court - 10 Year  (not discountable) $40.00
  -County Criminal - 7 Year  (not discountable) $25.00
  -County Criminal - 10 Year  (not discountable) $30.00
  -Federal Division Civil - 7 Year  (not discountable) $16.00
  -Federal Division Civil - 10 Year (not discountable) $25.00
  -Federal Division Criminal - 7 Year  (not discountable) $16.00
  -Federal Division Criminal - 10 Year  (not discountable) $25.00
  -Statewide Criminal (not discountable) $24.00
Criminal Records $0.00
Criminal Records Report $0.00
DEA Controlled Substances License Search $0.00
Death Records $0.00



Page 5 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

Death Records Report $0.00
Delaware Corporations (not discountable) $1.00
Delaware Corporations Report (not discountable) $11.00
Disclosed Entity Service (charged per search) (not discountable) $5.00
Driver Licenses $0.00
Dun & Bradstreet (not discountable) $0.25
Dun & Bradstreet Global Market Identifiers Search $3.75
Email Search $0.40
FAA Aircraft (Report Included) $0.00
FAA Pilots (Report Included) $0.00
Federal Civil Court Records Search (charged per search) $2.00
Federal Criminal Court Records Search $0.00
Federal Firearms & Explosives $0.00
Federal Employer ID Numbers (FEIN) $0.00
Fictitious Business Name $0.00
Foreclosures Search (Report Included) $0.00
Hunting/Fishing Licenses $0.00
Identity Authenticate (charged per search) $1.25
Identity Verification (charged per search) $0.60
InstantID Consumer Search $0.00
InstantID Consumer & FraudDefender Search $0.00
Internet Domains $0.00
Liens & Judgments $0.00
Liens & Judgments Report $0.00
Marriages / Divorces Search $0.00
Medical, Employment and Business Records Retrieval --
  -Medical, Employee Or Business Record Retrieval With Authorization (not 
discountable) $35.00

  -Medical, Employee Or Business Record Retrieval With Authorization And Affidavit 
(not discountable) $72.50

  -Medical, Employee Or Business Record Retrieval By Subpoena (not discountable) $87.50
  -Canvassing Up To 5 Custodians (not discountable) $50.00
  -Canvassing From 5 To 10 Custodians (not discountable) $100.00
  -Canvassing Above 10 Custodians, Per Custodian (not discountable) $10.00
  -Chronological Sorting (charged per page) (not discountable) $0.03
  -Pagination Only (charged per page) (not discountable) $0.10
  -Research And Identify Custodial Location $0.00
  -   Long distance charges, phone charges, initial and follow up calls $0.00
  -Prepare And Deliver Notice And Subpoena For Signature (If Required) $0.00
  -Deliver Notice To All/3rd Party Notices $0.00
  -Serve Subpoena To Custodian Of Record $0.00
  -Pick-Up Scheduling And Two (2) Field Trips $0.00
  -Mileage $0.00
  -Return Record Review For Completeness And Legibility $0.00
  -Rush Fee (One Way) (not discountable) $25.00
  -Witness Fee (Pass Through Fees May Be Charged) $0.00
  -Deposition Trip Fee (not discountable) $20.00
  -Deposition Certification Fee (not discountable) $20.00



Page 6 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

  -Custodial Fee (Pass Through Fees May Be Charged) $0.00
  -Custodial Fee Carrying Fee (10% of Pass Thru Fees May Be Charged) $0.00
  -Hard Copy Per Page, Authorization (not discountable) $0.50
  -Hard Copy Per Page, Subpoena, Includes Pagination And Sealing If Required (not 
discountable) $0.50

  -Hard Copy, Shipping Cost (Pass Through Fees May Be Charged) $0.00
  -Sales/Revenue Taxes (Pass Through Fees May Be Charged) $0.00
  -X-Ray Duplication (not discountable) $17.50
  -Fax Or Electronic Receipt Of Authorization For The Release Of Records $0.00
  -Phone Charges $0.00
  -Authorization Cover Sheet Preparation And Delivery Per Location $0.00
  -Record Receipt And Review (QA) $0.00
  -Electronic Posting Of Record, Per Page $0.00
  -Hospital Charting (charged per page) (not discountable) $0.25
  -Maximum Spend Without Client Authorization, MRR * (not discountable) $75.00
  -Maximum Spend Without Client Authorization, X-Ray Duplication * (not discountable) $210.00
  *Default Can Be Lower Or Higher Based On Customer Specifications --
Motor Vehicles Search $0.00
Motor Vehicles Report $0.00
MVR Reports (Driving Records)** (plus state fee) (charged per search) (not 
discountable) $5.00

** Coverage and state fees are available in the product and are subject to change --
National Motor Vehicle Accident Search & Report (not discountable) $3.00
National UCC Filings (Report Included) $0.00
NCPDP (National Council for Prescription Drug Programs) Search $0.00
NCPDP (National Council for Prescription Drug Programs) Report $0.00
Neighbors ("Next Steps") $0.00
NPI Data Search $0.00
NPI Report $0.00
Official Records Search (Report Included) $0.00
OSHA Investigative Reports Search $1.00
Passport Validation $0.00
People At Work Search $0.00
People In The News (not discountable) $5.00
Person Alerts Monitoring (Monthly Monitoring Transactions Per Acct.) (Alerts Charged 
At Regular Price) --

  -1 - 50 $0.00
  -51 - 250 $0.00
  -251 - 500 $0.00
  -501 - 1,000 $0.00
  -1,001 - 5,000 $0.00
  -5,001 - 25,000 $0.00
  -25,001 - 100,000 $0.00
Professional Licenses (Report Included) $0.00
Property Assessment Search $0.00
Property Assessment Report $0.00
Property Deed Search $0.00
Property Deed Report (excluding Deed Image) $0.00
Property Deed Image (additional charge when ordered from within Property Reports) $8.00



Page 7 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

(not discountable)
Property Search (Property Assessments, Deeds & Mortgages) $0.00
Property Report (Property Assessments, Deeds & Mortgages, excluding Deed Image) $0.00
Provider Search $0.25
Provider Report $5.00
Provider Report Card (charged per search) $5.00
Provider Sanction Search (charged per search) $0.25
Provider Sanction Report $5.00
Real Time Person Search (charged per search) $3.50
Real Time Phone Search $0.50
Relatives ("Next Steps") $0.00
Relatives, Neighbors & Associates ("Next Steps") $0.00
Relavint Visual Link Analysis (Per Diagram) $0.00
Satellite Image Search $0.00
SEC Filings Search $3.50
Sexual Offenders (Report Included) $0.00
SIRIS $0.00
USA Patriot Act $0.00
Virtual Identity Search & Report $2.00
Voter Registrations $0.00
Watercraft $0.00
Watercraft Report $0.00
WorkPlace Locator (not discountable) $3.50
Reports
Asset Report: Property Deeds & Assessments, Vehicle Registrations, Watercraft, FAA 
Pilots, FAA Aircraft, and UCC Filings. $0.00

Business Link Report (charged per search) $5.00
Comprehensive Report (Best Value): Summary Report, Associates, Bankruptcy, 
Concealed Weapons Permits, Criminal Records, DEA Controlled Substances License 
Search, Driver's Licenses, FAA Aircraft, FAA Pilots, Federal Firearms & Explosives 
License Search, Hunting/Fishing Permits, Liens/Judgments, National Motor Vehicle 
Accident Search & Report, Neighbors, People at Work, Phones Plus, Possible 
Education, Professional Licenses,  Property, Relatives (3 Degrees), Sexual Offenders, 
UCC Filings, Vehicle Registrations, Voter Registration and Watercraft.

$0.00

Contact Card Report: Summary Report: Names Associated with Subject, Contact List: 
At Home, At Work, Through Family, Through Associates, Through Neighbors, Possible 
Relocation, Address Summary and Phones Plus (optional).

$3.50

Entitlement Report: Summary Report, Phones Plus, Bankruptcy, Liens/Judgments, 
UCC Filings, People At Work, Driver’s Licenses, Vehicle Registrations, Property, 
Watercraft, FAA Pilots, FAA Aircraft, Professional Licenses, Associates, Relatives (3 
Degrees), Criminal Records And Sexual Offenders.  Results Can Be Restricted By The 
User To Their Applicable Dates Of Interest.

$0.00

Finder Report: Address Summary, Others Using SSN, Date/Location Where SSN 
Issued, Phone Summary, Current Listed Phones, Unverified Phones With Type And 
Date Indicators, Current Neighbor Phones, Possible Relative Phones (2 Degrees), 
Possible Associate Phones, Phones At Historical Addresses, Bankruptcy Filings And 
Corporate Affiliations.

$0.00

Government Location Report (charged per search) $1.00
Summary Report: Address Summary, Others Using SSN, Date/Location Where SSN 
Issued, Census Data, Bankruptcy Indicator, Property Indicator And Corporate 
Affiliations Indicator.

$0.00



Page 8 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

Comprehensive Address Report: (Base Report Features: Current And Previous 
Residents And Phones At Address) $0.00

  Additional Report Options: --
  -Bankruptcy $0.00
  -Businesses At Address $0.00
  -Concealed Weapons Permit Search $0.00
  -Criminal Records Search $0.00
  -Criminal Records Report $0.00
  -Driver Licenses At Address $0.00
  -Hunting/Fishing License Search $0.00
  -Liens And Judgments $0.00
  -Motor Vehicles Registered At Address $0.00
  -Neighborhood Profile (2010 Census) $0.00
  -Neighbors At Address $0.00
  -Property Ownership Current / Previous $0.00
  -Sexual Offenders Search (Report Included) $0.00
Comprehensive Business Report (Base Report Features: Name and TIN Variations, 
Parent Company, and Industry Information) $0.00

  Additional Report Options: --
  -Associated Businesses $0.00
  -Associated People $0.00
  -Bankruptcy $0.00
  -Business Registrations $0.00
  -Corporation Filings $0.00
  -Dun & Bradstreet Records (not discountable) $3.75
  -FAA Aircraft $0.00
  -Internet Domain Names $0.00
  -IRS 5500 $0.00
  -Liens and Judgments $0.00
  -Motor Vehicles $0.00
  -Properties $0.00
  -UCC Filings $0.00
  -Watercraft $0.00
Custom Comprehensive Report (Base Report Features: Others Using Same SSN, Date 
and Location where SSN Issued, Company Header, Address Summary, Possible 
Education, Comprehensive Report Summary)

$0.00

  Additional Report Options: --
  -Associates $0.00
  -Bankruptcy $0.00
  -Criminal Records $0.00
  -DEA Controlled Substances License Search $0.00
  -Driver Licenses Information $0.00
  -Email Search $0.40
  -Federal Firearms & Explosives License Search $0.00
  -Liens And Judgments $0.00
  -Motor Vehicle(s) Registration (Watercraft & Boat Trailers Included) $0.00
  -National Motor Vehicle Accident Search & Report $0.00
  -Neighborhood Profile (2010 Census) $0.00
  -Neighbors (Up To 6 Neighbors At 10 Different Addresses) $0.00



Page 9 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

  -People At Work $0.00
  -Phones Plus $0.00
  -Professional Licenses (Report Included) $0.00
  -Properties $0.00
  -Relatives (Up to 3 Degrees of Separation) $0.00
  -Sexual Offenders $0.00
  -Supplemental Data Sources $0.00
  -UCC Filings $0.00
Flat Rate Comprehensive Healthcare Business Report (includes Base Report Features 
and Additional Report Options listed below) $10.00

Comprehensive Healthcare Business Report (Base Report Features: Name, Address 
and Phone Variations; Parent Company, ID Numbers and Industry Information) $0.50

  Additional Report Options: --
  -Associated Businesses $1.00
  -Associated People $1.00
  -Bankruptcy (charged per search) $1.00
  -Business Phone Matches $0.25
  -Business Registrations $0.25
  -Corporation Filings $1.00
  -Dun & Bradstreet Records (not discountable) $3.75
  -FAA Aircraft $0.25
  -Internet Domain Names $0.25
  -IRS 5500 $0.00
  -Liens And Judgments (charged per search) $0.25
  -Motor Vehicles $0.75
  -Properties $1.00
  -Sanctions $0.50
  -UCC Filings $0.50
  -Verification $0.75
  -Watercraft $1.00
Flat Rate Comprehensive Healthcare Provider Report (includes Base Report Features 
and Additional Report Options listed below) $6.00

Comprehensive Healthcare Provider Report (Base Report Features: Gender, Date of 
Birth, Social Security Number, Tax ID(s) UPIN and NPI number) $0.50

  Additional Report Options: --
  -Additional Deceased Data Sources $0.00
  -Associates $0.00
  -Bankruptcy (charged per search) (not discountable) $0.25
  -Business Address Summary $0.25
  -Business Affiliations $0.50
  -Business Phone Matches $0.25
  -DEA Licenses $0.25
  -Degrees $0.00
  -Education $0.50
  -Group Affiliations $0.50
  -GSA Sanctions (charged per search) $0.50
  -Hospital Affiliations $0.50
  -Liens And Judgments (charged per search) $0.25
  -Medical Licenses (charged per search) $1.00



Page 10 of 10 327604.3v2
Customized Schedule A

Accurint for Government (Plan 44)

  -Possible Criminal Records (charged per search) $0.25
  -Professional Licenses (charged per search) $1.00
  -Sanctions (Disciplinary) (charged per search) $0.50
  -Sexual Offenses (charged per search) $1.00
  -Specialties $0.00
  -Verification $0.75
Online Batch
Advanced Person Search $0.50
Deceased Person $0.25
Address (Single) $0.13
Address (Multiple) $0.16
Waterfall Phones: Directory Assistance Match, Address And Name Variations, Co-
Residents, Phones Plus & Relatives; Add-Ons Possible Relocation, Neighbors & 
People At Work (Single)

$0.23

Waterfall Phones: Directory Assistance Match, Address And Name Variations, Co-
Residents, Phones Plus & Relatives; Add-Ons Possible Relocation, Neighbors & 
People At Work (Multiple)

$0.25

Waterfall Phone with Address (single) $0.25
Waterfall Phone with Address (multiple) $0.30
Address and/or Phone Confirmation (per input) (single) $0.03
Address and/or Phone Confirmation (per input) (multiple) $0.04
Phones Plus $0.50
Real Time Phone Search $0.50
Real Time Motor Vehicle Registrations $1.50
Property - Add Up To Five Properties Owned By The Subject $1.00
Consumer InstantID $0.65
Consumer InstantID With Fraud Defender $0.95
Consumer InstantID With Red Flags Rule $0.90
Business InstantID $1.30
Business InstantID With Fraud Defender $1.30
  Multiple = 2 Or More Phones/Addresses Returned --



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Design Agreement with the Department of the Army for Design for the 

Arkansas River Corridor Ecosystem Restoration Project Design 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  This document 

is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  Please let me know if you have any 

questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

John Fothergill, Chief Deputy Comm’r 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

DESIGN AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 

AND 

TULSA COUNTY 

FOR  

DESIGN  

FOR THE 

ARKANSAS RIVER CORRIDOR ECOSYSTEM RESTORATION PROJECT DESIGN  

 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this ________ day of ________, ____, by 

and between the Department of the Army (hereinafter the “Government”), represented by 

the U.S. Army Engineer, Tulsa District (hereinafter the “District Engineer”) and the 

Tulsa County (hereinafter the “Non-Federal Sponsor”), represented by the Tulsa County 

Board of County Commissioners. 

 

 WITNESSETH, THAT: 

 

WHEREAS, Federal funds were provided in the Consolidated Appropriations 

Act, 2018 (PL 115-141) to initiate design of the Arkansas River Corridor Ecosystem 

Restoration Project includes design of a pool control structure to release low flows during 

times of non-release from Keystone Dam, a rock riffle with created wetlands, and an 

interior least tern island; 

 

WHEREAS, construction of the Project is authorized by the Water Resource 

Development Act of 2007 Section 3132;  

 

WHEREAS, Section 103 of the Water Resources Development Act of 1986,  as 

amended (33 U.S.C. 2213), specifies the cost-sharing requirements applicable to 

construction of the Project, and Section 105(c) of the Water Resources Development Act 

of 1986 (33 U.S.C. 2215), provides that the costs of design shall be shared in the same 

percentages as construction of the Project;  

 

WHEREAS, based on the Project’s primary project purpose aquatic ecosystem 

restoration, the parties agree that the Non-Federal Sponsor shall contribute 35 percent of 

the total design costs under this Agreement;  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 221(a)(4) of the Flood Control Act of 1970, as 

amended (42 U.S.C.  1962d-5b(a)), the Non-Federal Sponsor may perform or provide in-

kind contributions for credit towards the non-Federal share of the total design costs; and  

     

WHEREAS, the Government and Non-Federal Sponsor have the full authority 

and capability to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 



2 | P a g e  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS 

 

A.  The term “Project” means Arkansas River Corridor Ecosystem Restoration 

Project, which includes design of a pool control structure, a rock riffle with created 

wetlands, and an interior least tern island, as generally described in the Director’s Report, 

dated June 8, 2018 and approved the Director of Civil Works on August 3, 2018.  

 

 B.  The term “Design” means the geotechnical, HTRW, anchor and other 

appropriate investigations to perform design work, for detailed pre-construction 

engineering and design, including preparation of plans and specifications for the initial 

construction contract for the Project. 

 

C.  The term “total design costs” means the sum of all costs that are directly 

related to the Design and cost shared in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the term shall include, but is not necessarily 

limited to: the Government’s costs for engineering and design, economic and 

environmental analyses, and evaluation; for contract dispute settlements or awards; for 

supervision and administration; for Agency Technical Review and other review processes 

required by the Government; for response to any required Independent External Peer 

Review; and the Non-Federal Sponsor’s creditable costs for in-kind contributions, if any.  

The term does not include any costs for dispute resolution; participation in the Design 

Coordination Team; audits; an Independent External Peer Review panel, if required; or 

betterments; or the Non-Federal Sponsor’s cost of negotiating this Agreement.  

 

D.  The term "in-kind contributions" means those materials or services provided 

by the Non-Federal Sponsor that are identified as being integral to design of the Project 

by the Division Engineer for the Southwest Division.  To be integral, the material or 

service must be part of the work that the Government would otherwise have undertaken 

for design of the Project.  In-kind contributions also include any investigations performed 

by the Non-Federal Sponsor to identify the existence and extent of any hazardous 

substances that may exist in, on, or under real property interests required for the Project.  

 

E.  The term “fiscal year” means one year beginning on October 1st and ending on 

September 30th of the following year. 

 

F.  The term “betterment” means a difference in the design of a portion of the Project 

that results from the application of standards that the Government determines exceed those 

that the Government would otherwise apply to the design of that portion.   

 

 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  

 

ARTICLE II - OBLIGATIONS OF THE GOVERNMENT AND  

THE NON-FEDERAL SPONSOR 

  

A.  In accordance with Federal laws, regulations, and policies, the Government 

shall conduct the Design using funds appropriated by the Congress and funds provided by 

the Non-Federal Sponsor.  The Non-Federal Sponsor shall perform or provide any in-

kind contributions in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, and policies.  

If the Government and non-Federal interest enter into a Project Partnership Agreement 

for construction of the Project, the Government shall include the total design costs in the 

calculation of construction costs for the Project in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of the Project Partnership Agreement. 

  

B.  The Non-Federal Sponsor shall contribute 35 percent of total design costs in 

accordance with the provisions of this paragraph and provide required funds in 

accordance with Article III. 

  

1.   After considering the estimated amount of credit for in-kind 

contributions, if any, that will be afforded in accordance with paragraph C. of this Article, 

the Government shall provide the Non-Federal Sponsor with a written estimate of the 

amount of funds required from the Non-Federal Sponsor for the initial fiscal year of the 

Design.  No later than 15 calendar days after such notification, the Non-Federal Sponsor 

shall provide the full amount of such funds to the Government. 

 

2.  No later than August 1st prior to each subsequent fiscal year of the 

Design, the Government shall provide the Non-Federal Sponsor with a written estimate 

of the amount of funds required from the Non-Federal Sponsor during that fiscal year to 

meet its cost share.  No later than September 1st prior to that fiscal year, the Non-Federal 

Sponsor shall provide the full amount of such required funds to the Government. 

 

C.  The Government shall credit towards the Non-Federal Sponsor’s share of total 

design costs, the costs, documented to the satisfaction of the Government, that the Non-

Federal Sponsor incurs in providing or performing in-kind contributions integral to the 

Design, including associated supervision and administration.  Such costs shall be subject 

to audit in accordance with Article VII to determine reasonableness, allocability, and 

allowability, and crediting shall be in accordance with the following procedures, 

requirements, and limitations: 

 

 1.  As in-kind contributions are completed and no later than 60 calendar 

day after such completion, the Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide the Government 

appropriate documentation, including invoices and certification of specific payments to 

contractors, suppliers, and the Non-Federal Sponsor’s employees.  Failure to provide 

such documentation in a timely manner may result in denial of credit.   

 

   2.  No credit shall be afforded for interest charges, or any adjustment to 

reflect changes in price levels between the time the in-kind contributions are completed 

and credit is afforded; for the value of in-kind contributions obtained at no cost to the 



4 | P a g e  

 

Non-Federal Sponsor; for any items provided or performed prior to the effective date of 

this Agreement unless covered by an In-Kind Memorandum of Understanding; for any 

items not identified as integral in the integral determination report; or for costs that 

exceed the Government’s estimate of the cost for such item if it had been performed by 

the Government. 

 

          3.  No reimbursement will be provided for any in-kind contributions that 

exceed the Non-Federal Sponsor’s share of the total design costs under this Agreement.  

As provided in Article II.A., total design costs, including credit for in-kind contributions, 

shall be included in the calculation of construction costs for the Project in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of the Project Partnership Agreement. 

   

D.  To the extent practicable and in accordance with Federal laws, regulations, 

and policies, the Government shall afford the Non-Federal Sponsor the opportunity to 

review and comment on solicitations for contracts prior to the Government’s issuance of 

such solicitations; proposed contract modifications, including change orders; and contract 

claims prior to resolution thereof.  Ultimately, the contents of solicitations, award of 

contracts, execution of contract modifications, and resolution of contract claims shall be 

exclusively within the control of the Government. 

 

E.  The Non-Federal Sponsor shall not use Federal Program funds to meet any of 

its obligations under this Agreement unless the Federal agency providing the funds 

verifies in writing that the funds are authorized to be used for the Project.  Federal 

program funds are those funds provided by a Federal agency, plus any non-Federal 

contribution required as a matching share therefor. 

 

F.  Except as provided in paragraph C. of this Article, the Non-Federal Sponsor 

shall not be entitled to any credit or reimbursement for costs it incurs in performing its 

responsibilities under this Agreement. 

  

G.  In carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, the Non-Federal Sponsor 

shall comply with all the requirements of applicable Federal laws and implementing 

regulations, including, but not limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 

88-352), as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d), and Department of Defense Directive 5500.11 

issued pursuant thereto; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6102); and the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), and Army Regulation 600-7 

issued pursuant thereto. 

 

 H.  If Independent External Peer Review (IEPR) is required for the Design, the 

Government shall conduct such review in accordance with Federal laws, regulations, and 

policies.  The Government’s costs for an IEPR panel shall not be included in the total design 

costs.   

 

I.  In addition to the ongoing, regular discussions of the parties in the delivery of 

the Design, the Government and the Non-Federal Sponsor may establish a Design 

Coordination Team consisting of Government’s Project Manager and the Non-Federal 



5 | P a g e  

 

Sponsor’s counterpart and one senior representative each from the Government and Non-

Federal Sponsor to discuss significant issues or actions.  Neither the Government’s nor 

the Non-Federal Sponsor’s costs for participation on the Design Coordination Team shall 

be included in the total design costs.  The Non-Federal Sponsor’s costs for participation 

on the Design Coordination Team shall be paid solely by the Non-Federal Sponsor 

without reimbursement or credit. 

 

J.  The Non-Federal Sponsor may request in writing that the Government perform 

betterments on behalf of the Non-Federal Sponsor.  Each request shall be subject to 

review and written approval by the Division Engineer for the Southwest Division.  If the 

Government agrees to such request, the Non-Federal Sponsor, in accordance with Article 

III.F., must provide funds sufficient to cover the costs of such work in advance of the 

Government performing the work. 

  

 

ARTICLE III - METHOD OF PAYMENT 

 

A.  As of the effective date of this Agreement, total design costs are projected to 

be $ 6,975,000, with the Government’s share of such costs projected to be $4,534,000, 

the Non-Federal Sponsor’s share of such costs projected to be $2,441,000; and the costs 

for betterments are projected to be $0.  These amounts are estimates subject to adjustment 

by the Government, after consultation with the Non-Federal Sponsor, and are not to be 

construed as the total financial responsibilities of the Government and the Non-Federal 

Sponsor. 

 

B.  The Government shall provide the Non-Federal Sponsor with quarterly reports 

setting forth the estimated total design costs and the Government’s and Non-Federal 

Sponsor’s estimated shares of such costs; costs incurred by the Government, using both 

Federal and Non-Federal Sponsor funds, to date; the amount of funds provided by the 

Non-Federal Sponsor to date; the estimated amount of any creditable in-kind 

contributions; and the estimated remaining cost of the Design.   

 

C.  The Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide to the Government required funds by 

delivering a check payable to “FAO, USAED, Tulsa District (M5)” to the District 

Engineer, or verifying to the satisfaction of the Government that the Non-Federal 

Sponsor has deposited such required funds in an escrow or other account acceptable to 

the Government, with interest accruing to the Non-Federal Sponsor, or by providing an 

Electronic Funds Transfer of such required funds in accordance with procedures 

established by the Government.  

 

 D.  The Government shall draw from the funds provided by the Non-Federal 

Sponsor to cover the non-Federal share of the total design costs as those costs are 

incurred.  If the Government determines at any time that additional funds are needed 

from the Non-Federal Sponsor to cover the Non-Federal Sponsor’s required share of the 

total design costs, the Government shall provide the Non-Federal Sponsor with written 

notice of the amount of additional funds required.  Within 60 calendar days of such 



6 | P a g e  

 

notice, the Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide the Government with the full amount of 

such additional funds. 

 

 E.  Upon conclusion of the Design and resolution of all relevant claims and 

appeals, the Government shall conduct a final accounting and furnish the Non-Federal 

Sponsor with the written results of such final accounting.  Should the final accounting 

determine that additional funds are required from the Non-Federal Sponsor, the Non-

Federal Sponsor, within 60 calendar days of written notice from the Government, shall 

provide the Government with the full amount of such additional funds.  Should the final 

accounting determine that the Non-Federal Sponsor has provided funds in excess of its 

required amount, the Government shall refund the excess amount, subject to the 

availability of funds or if requested by the Non-Federal Sponsor, apply the excess amount 

towards the non-Federal share of the cost of construction of the Project in the event a 

Project Partnership Agreement is executed for the Project.  Such final accounting does 

not limit the Non-Federal Sponsor's responsibility to pay its share of total design costs, 

including contract claims or any other liability that may become known after the final 

accounting. 

 

 F.  Payment of Costs for Betterments Provided on Behalf of the Non-Federal 

Sponsor.  No later than 30 calendar days after receiving written notice from the 

Government of the amount of funds required to cover any such costs, as applicable, the 

Non-Federal Sponsor shall make the full amount of such required funds available to the 

Government by delivering a check payable to “FAO, USAED, Tulsa District (M5)” to the 

District Engineer, or by providing an Electronic Funds Transfer of such funds in 

accordance with procedures established by the Government.  If at any time the 

Government determines that additional funds are required to cover any such costs, as 

applicable, the Non-Federal Sponsor shall provide those funds within 30 calendar days 

from receipt of written notice from the Government. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV - TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 

 

 A.  If at any time the Non-Federal Sponsor fails to fulfill its obligations under this 

Agreement, the Government may suspend or terminate Design unless the Assistant 

Secretary of the Army (Civil Works) determines that continuation of the Design is in the 

interest of the United States or is necessary in order to satisfy agreements with any other 

non-Federal interests in connection with the Project. 

 

 B.  If the Government determines at any time that the Federal funds made 

available for the Design are not sufficient to complete such work, the Government shall 

so notify the Non-Federal Sponsor in writing, and upon exhaustion of such funds, the 

Government shall suspend Design until there are sufficient Federal funds appropriated by 

the Congress and funds provided by the Non-Federal Sponsor to allow Design to resume.    

 

 C.  In the event of termination, the parties shall conclude their activities relating to 

the Design and conduct an accounting in accordance with Article III.E.  To provide for 



7 | P a g e  

 

this eventuality, the Government may reserve a percentage of available funds as a 

contingency to pay costs of termination, including any costs of resolution of contract 

claims and contract modifications. 

 

 D.  Any suspension or termination shall not relieve the parties of liability for any 

obligation incurred.  Any delinquent payment owed by the Non-Federal Sponsor pursuant 

to this Agreement shall be charged interest at a rate, to be determined by the Secretary of 

the Treasury, equal to 150 per centum of the average bond equivalent rate of the 13 week 

Treasury bills auctioned immediately prior to the date on which such payment became 

delinquent, or auctioned immediately prior to the beginning of each additional 3 month 

period if the period of delinquency exceeds 3 months. 

 
 

ARTICLE V – HOLD AND SAVE 

 

 The Non-Federal Sponsor shall hold and save the Government free from all 

damages arising from the Design, except for damages due to the fault or negligence of the 

Government or its contractors. 

 
 

ARTICLE VI - DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 

 As a condition precedent to a party bringing any suit for breach of this 

Agreement, that party must first notify the other party in writing of the nature of the 

purported breach and seek in good faith to resolve the dispute through negotiation.  If the 

parties cannot resolve the dispute through negotiation, they may agree to a mutually 

acceptable method of non-binding alternative dispute resolution with a qualified third 

party acceptable to the parties.  Each party shall pay an equal share of any costs for the 

services provided by such a third party as such costs are incurred.  The existence of a 

dispute shall not excuse the parties from performance pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

 

ARTICLE VII - MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS AND AUDIT 

 

 A.  The parties shall develop procedures for the maintenance by the Non-Federal 

Sponsor of books, records, documents, or other evidence pertaining to costs and expenses 

for a minimum of three years after the final accounting.  The Non-Federal Sponsor shall 

assure that such materials are reasonably available for examination, audit, or reproduction 

by the Government.   

 

 B.  The Government may conduct, or arrange for the conduct of, audits of the 

Design.  Government audits shall be conducted in accordance with applicable 

Government cost principles and regulations.  The Government’s costs of audits for the 

Design shall not be included in total design costs.  

 

 C.  To the extent permitted under applicable Federal laws and regulations, the 

Government shall allow the Non-Federal Sponsor to inspect books, records, documents, 



8 | P a g e  

 

or other evidence pertaining to costs and expenses maintained by the Government, or at 

the request of the Non-Federal Sponsor, provide to the Non-Federal Sponsor or 

independent auditors any such information necessary to enable an audit of the Non-

Federal Sponsor’s activities under this Agreement.  The costs of non-Federal audits shall 

be paid solely by the Non-Federal Sponsor without reimbursement or credit by the 

Government.     

 

 

ARTICLE VIII - RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

 

 In the exercise of their respective rights and obligations under this Agreement, the 

Government and the Non-Federal Sponsor each act in an independent capacity, and 

neither is to be considered the officer, agent, or employee of the other.  Neither party 

shall provide, without the consent of the other party, any contractor with a release that 

waives or purports to waive any rights a party may have to seek relief or redress against 

that contractor. 
 

 

ARTICLE IX - NOTICES 

 

 A.  Any notice, request, demand, or other communication required or permitted to 

be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been duly given if in writing and 

delivered personally or mailed by certified mail, with return receipt, as follows:  

 

If to the Non-Federal Sponsor: 

Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners, Chair 

500 South Denver Avenue 

Tulsa, OK 74103 

 

If to the Government: 

US Army Corps of Engineers 

Tulsa District, PP-C 

Attn: Cynthia Kitchens 

2488 East 81st Street 

Tulsa, OK 74137-4290 

 

 B.  A party may change the recipient or address for such communications by 

giving written notice to the other party in the manner provided in this Article. 

 

 

ARTICLE X - CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

 To the extent permitted by the laws governing each party, the parties agree to 

maintain the confidentiality of exchanged information when requested to do so by the 

providing party. 

 

 



9 | P a g e  

 

ARTICLE XI - THIRD PARTY RIGHTS, BENEFITS, OR LIABILITIES 

 

 Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor may be construed, to create any rights, 

confer any benefits, or relieve any liability, of any kind whatsoever in any third person 

not party to this Agreement. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, 

which shall become effective upon the date it is signed by the District Engineer. 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

BY: __________________________  BY: __________________________ 

Christopher A. Hussin    Karen Keith   

Colonel, U.S. Army      Chairman 

District Engineer    

 

 

DATE: _______________________  DATE: ________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 
 

 I, Steve Kunzweiler, Tulsa County District Attorney, do hereby certify that I am the 
principal legal officer of the Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners, that the 
Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners  is a legally constituted public body with 
full authority and legal capability to perform the terms of the Agreement between the 
Department of the Army and the Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners in 
connection with Arkansas River Corridor Ecosystem Restoration Project, and to pay 
damages, if necessary, in the event of the failure to perform in accordance with the terms of 
the Agreement, as required by Section 221 of the Flood Control Act of 1970, as amended 
(42 U.S.C. 1962d-5b), and that the persons who executed the Agreement on behalf of the 
Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners  acted within their statutory authority. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have made and executed this certification this 
______________ day of _____________ 20___. 
 
 
STEVE KUNZWEILER 
TULSA COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
 
 
By:  ___________________ 
NOLAN M. FIELDS IV 
ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
Tulsa County District Attorney’s Office 
500 S. Denver #800 
Tulsa, OK 74103 

 



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that: 
 
 (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 
 (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the 
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 
 
 (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts 
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and 
disclose accordingly. 
 
 This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  Any person who fails to 
file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 
more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 
 
 
  
__________________________________ 
Karen Keith 
Chair, Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 
 
DATE: _______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 

County Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________________ 
 Assistant District Attorney 



 

NON-FEDERAL SPONSOR’S 
SELF-CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CAPABILITY 

FOR AGREEMENTS 
 
I, Karen Keith, do hereby certify that I am the Chair of the Tulsa County Board of County 

Commissioners, (the “Non-Federal Sponsor”); that I am aware of the financial obligations of the 

Non-Federal Sponsor for the Arkansas River Corridor Ecosystem Restoration Project Design; 

and that the Non-Federal Sponsor has the financial capability to satisfy the Non-Federal 

Sponsor’s obligations under Arkansas River Corridor Ecosystem Restoration Project Design . 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have made and executed this certification this ________ day of 

___________________, ________. 

 
 
BY:      _________________________________________ 
  Karen Keith 
 
TITLE: ___Chair, Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 
 
DATE: _________________________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
______________________________________ 

County Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________________ 
 Assistant District Attorney 
 



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Large Loss Management Agreement with L2M, LLC for Administration 

of Claims Related to the May 2019 Flooding Emergency in Tulsa County 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  The vendor 

has already signed this document, and it is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

Kathy Burrows, HR Director 



 

   1 

LARGE LOSS MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
  

This Large Loss Management Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this 12th day of 
June 2019, by and among the Client and/or Insured, Tulsa County, 500 South Denver, Tulsa, 
OK, 74103, Client , (hereinafter jointly referred to as "Client"), and L2M, LLC, a Texas LLC 
having offices in Castle Rock, Colorado, at 202 6th street, Suite 301K and 2530 East 71st Street, 
Suite L, Tulsa Oklahoma 74136 (hereinafter “L2M”) (collectively “Parties”).  This agreement is 
regarding pre-claim and/or active insurance claims associated with Client Properties (hereinafter 
“Properties”) legally identified in Schedule A attached.   

 
 
  

RECITALS 
 WHEREAS, The Client has the authority to act on behalf of the Insured for the Properties 
(Attached) and has or may in the future experience a Large Loss (as defined below) (each, a “Large 
Loss Claim”), and represents that they or their agents are duly authorized to enter into this binding 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Client acknowledges that the complexity of the Claims is in excess of 
their normal scope of work, requiring professional management, and wishes to engage L2M to 
perform the services listed in Exhibit A and to otherwise manage the indemnification and repairs 
related to a Large Loss Claim; and  
 
 WHEREAS, L2M is a professional firm specializing in Large Loss insurance claims and 
the indemnification of its clients to return their property to pre-loss state; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises made herein, and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the Parties agree as follows: 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

1. Claim Amount or Replacement Cost Value (RCV): The total amount of money paid by the 
Insurer to the Insured (Client) in conjunction with any and all parts or associated costs relating 
to the Claim, including deductibles; full or partial settlements, whether by agreement, court 
judgment, mediation, arbitration, appraisal, and other forms of dispute resolution. 

 
2. Construction/Commercial Management: The activities and processes required to complete a 

construction project as defined by a Scope of Work, Plans, Specifications or other instrument 
that is commonly accepted in the construction industry.  

 



 

   2 

3. Claims Administration: The act or process of managing an insurance claim for the best possible 
outcome for the Client, including but not limited to damage assessments, documentation, 
interfacing with the Carrier, Brokers, Trades, Property Managers, and others as necessary to 
pursue indemnification of the Client.  

 
4. Large Loss: Any loss or damage that is greater than $50,000 USD or a claim that the Client 

requests L2M to assist with due to scope and complexity. 
 

5. Insurer/Carrier: The Insurance Company with whom the Client is insured with respect to the 
Claim or by whom the Client is owed indemnification. 

 
6. Overhead and Profit (O&P) and Commercial Construction Management Fees: The Insurer line 

item(s) that reflects the cost of managing the construction required to indemnify the Client 
from their Claim; paid in addition to the trade’s actual costs of labor, materials and their 
corporate O&P for the indemnification of the Claim.  

 
7. Pre-event envelope assessment: The performance, and subsequent documentation, of a 

baseline assessment regarding the existing external conditions of a facility.  
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Consideration and Fees. The Parties agree that the fees to be paid to L2M for services 
shall be the total amount of negotiated O&P, Commercial Construction Management fees, 
if any, or other insurance paid items paid by the Carrier for managing the construction for 
each Claim that L2M manages. Fees are due and payable promptly upon receipt of funds 
from the Carrier. Any additional fees for out of scope work must be agreed, in advance and 
in writing, by both Parties. L2M recognizes that we are at risk of payment from the 
insurance provider as it relates to an insurance claim, on a “pay if paid” basis. 
Initial________. 

 
2. Term and Termination. The term of this Agreement shall be for twelve months (12) 

following the date of this Agreement and shall continue thereafter on a month to month 
basis unless terminated as provided in this paragraph. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either 
Party may terminate this agreement by giving 30 (thirty) days written notice to the other 
Party, during which time all outstanding invoices shall be paid in full based on the work in 
place as of the effective date of termination (but subject to receipt of funds from the Carrier 
in accordance with paragraph 1) and a final reconciliation of any work in place shall be 
conducted. L2M shall be entitled to its full fees for any and all services rendered during 
the period of performance. Should there be any dispute between Parties regarding close out 
of services for anything less than the full agreed service fee, defined in paragraph 1, L2M 
shall be entitled to payment of $300 (three-hundred) USD per hour of work related to the 
project and actual expenses plus 10% (ten percent). The termination of this Agreement will 



 

   3 

not release either Party from any payment or other obligations accruing prior to the 
effective date of such termination and such obligations shall remain in effect until all 
payments and other obligations are made and/or performed in full and both Parties release 
each other. Initial________.  
 

3. Scope and Claim Identification. Scope of work shall be identified in Exhibit A. An active 
Claim shall be documented in Exhibit B and shall constitute a notice to proceed by the 
Client for L2M to begin all work identified in this Agreement. L2M shall obtain the prior 
written approval of Client prior to any final settlement or adjustment of a Claim. At all 
times during the performance of the services under this Agreement, L2M is and shall be an 
independent contractor, and shall act solely as agent and for the account of Client regarding 
each Claim. 
 

4. Pre-event envelope assessment. Unless L2M is paid for the Pre-event assessment, the 
Parties agree that the Pre-event assessment is NOT work for hire and is the wholly owned 
IP of L2M, until such time as it is used in an actual Claim. Once the Claim has been 
completed, all invoices are settled and a final Acceptance of Work and Mutual release is 
signed, the complete documentation package, including the Pre-event assessment shall 
become property of the Client. Client hereby grants a perpetual license to L2M, or is 
successors, to the rights and use of all documentation, construction documents, photos, 
video, and Claim information for the purposes of record keeping. 
 

5. Third-Party Paymaster. In order to better facilitate the construction and indemnification 
process, L2M uses a Third-Party Paymaster to receive any and all funds from the Claim 
paid by the Carrier and including deductibles paid by Client. Client shall have the right to 
approve the Paymaster and any agreement with the Paymaster prior to its being retained, 
and to impose reasonable requirements to ensure that all funds are adequately protected, 
bonded and/or insured. The Paymaster will pay all approved invoices at the direction of 
the Client and L2M. The service provides a buffer between the Client and 
tradesmen/material suppliers and allows for full accounting of the Claim. The service 
includes a fully audited accounting of the Claim and a segregated accounting file for the 
Client’s records by an independent CPA and fraud examiner. This service is provided at 
NO COST to the Client but must be selected and requires a separate contract with the 
Paymaster.  
 

6. Notifications. Parties agree to notify each other of any damage to the Property before 
engaging or notifying any third-party, except that Client shall be permitted to notify its 
lender, tenants and others as may be required pursuant to any agreement or by law. This is 
specifically intended to prevent any third-party from complicating the Claim and 



 

   4 

potentially causing a detriment to the Client. (i.e. roofers, contractors, outside adjusters, 
etc.) Initial________. 
 

7. L2M is authorized to negotiate terms and conditions with all contractors and trades working 
on the Claim, including but not limited to, prices and fees, scheduling, materials 
management and disposal, site clean-up, punch lists and close out. Client, or the applicable 
property owner, shall be the signatory to, and shall have final approval over the terms and 
conditions of, any contracts for the work under each Claim, and L2M acknowledges that 
such contracts may be subject to lender approval as well.  

 
8. L2M shall have no other duties to Client, contractors, subcontractors, materials suppliers 

or any other party, and L2M shall have no authority to act regarding a Claim, other than as 
set forth herein. L2M shall have no liability for liens or other proceedings which may arise 
as a result of a failure to pay an invoice which has not been properly approved by the Client 
or for which the Carrier has not made payment. L2M shall perform its services under this 
Agreement in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders of any 
governing authority having jurisdiction, and in accordance with all licenses and permits 
issued for any work pursuant to a Claim. 

 
9. Client and each contractor are responsible for making any regulatory, tax or other filings if 

any are required. L2M shall have no obligation to make such filings. 
 

10. L2M shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Client and its members, managers, 
directors, officers and employees from any and all Actions (as defined below) sustained or 
incurred by or asserted against any one or more of them arising from (a) the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of L2M or its agents or employees, (b) a breach by L2M of its 
duties and obligations under this Agreement, or (c) acts by L2M outside the scope of its 
authority under this Agreement (each, a “L2M Indemnified Action”). Client shall 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless L2M and its members, managers, directors, officers 
and employees from any and all Actions sustained or incurred by or asserted against any 
one or more of them arising from (y) the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Client or 
its agents (other than L2M) or employees, or (z) a breach by Client of its duties and 
obligations under this Agreement, except in each case, to the extent that any 
indemnification by Client arises out of a L2M Indemnified Action. “Actions” means any 
third-party claim, demand, cause of action, loss, damage, fine, penalty, liability, cost and 
expense, including attorneys’ fees and court costs. Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this Agreement to the contrary, each party’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the other party shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

 

mblackford
Cross-Out



 

   5 

11. This agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of Oklahoma, USA. Any dispute 
arising from or related to this agreement shall be submitted to binding arbitration before 
the American Arbitration Association. Any such Arbitration shall be located and conducted 
in Tulsa, Oklahoma, USA according to the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act and 
the Commercial Rules of the American Arbitration Association. 

 
12. The Client represents and warrants that all documents and information provided to L2M to 

complete its due diligence in connection with any Claim are true and accurate, and that the 
individuals identified as such are the authorized signatories for the Client. 

 
13. The provisions in this agreement shall survive the expiration or completion of the duties 

set forth herein. 
 

14. This is the entire agreement between the parties; any modifications of this agreement shall 
be in writing signed by the parties agreeing to any modification. 

 
15. This agreement shall become effective upon the date of the last signature of the parties. 

 
16. If any provisions within this contract are found to be unenforceable by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

17. This Agreement may be executed in as many counterparts as may be necessary, including 
by facsimile or .pdf format, and each such counterpart so executed shall be deemed to be 
an original; and such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
18. Following the voluntary termination of this agreement all provisions regarding 

confidentiality and trade secrets shall remain in effect.  
 

Confidentiality & Protection of Trade Secrets 
 
1. Parties’ Obligations.  Each of the parties will: (1) keep and maintain all Confidential 

Information of the other Party in confidence, using such degree of care as is appropriate to 
avoid unauthorized use or disclosure; (2) not, directly or indirectly, disclose Confidential 
Information of the other Party, except as set forth in paragraph 3 below or with the prior written 
consent of the other Party; (3) upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement and upon 
the request of the other Party, promptly deliver to the requesting Party or, at the requesting 
Party's option or in the absence of direction from the other Party, destroy, all information, data, 
memoranda, notes, records, reports, media and other documents and materials (and all copies 
thereof) regarding or including any Confidential Information of the requesting Party which the 
other Party may then possess or have under its control; and (4) not take any action with respect 



 

   6 

to the Confidential Information of the other Party that is inconsistent with its confidential and 
proprietary nature.  

 
2. Confidential Information Defined.  For purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential 

Information" will mean with respect to L2M, (i)  trade secrets (including the identities of agents 
and contacts and information related to business methods and services (“Trade Secrets”)), (ii) 
information with respect to employees, customers and strategies, (iii) confidential information 
of third parties with which L2M conducts business, and with respect to each Party any 
information marked confidential, restricted or proprietary, and the payment terms of this 
Agreement.  

 
3. Permitted Disclosure.  Each of the Parties will be permitted to disclose Confidential 

Information of the other Party: (1) to its employees, lenders and agents having a need to know 
such information in connection with the performance or receipt of the Services or its 
obligations pursuant to this Agreement; and (2) if disclosure is required by law or requested 
by an authorized government agency; provided, however, that the disclosing Party will notify 
the other Party in advance of such disclosure, and provide the Party with copies of any related 
information so that the Party may take appropriate action to protect its Confidential 
Information.  With respect to this clause (1) each of the parties will instruct all such employees, 
agents and subcontractors of their obligations under this Agreement. 

  



 

   7 

Signature Page 
 

The above terms and conditions of this Agreement are hereby agreed: 
  
  
Client 
  
Signature: ______________________________ 
 
By: 
Title: 
Dated: 
 
 
L2M, LLC    

  
Signature:  
 
By: Chris Dorris 
Title: Managing Director 
Dated: 12 June 2019 
  



 

   8 

Schedule A 
 

The Properties identified as under contract by L2M as agreed in this Agreement are: 
 
 
Address: Multiple unnamed locations in Tulsa County, OK covered by policy # MLP0198193-02 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

   9 

Exhibit A 
 

Scope of Work.  Activities vary based on each claim and includes, but are not limited to, the 
following:  
 

1. L2M (if applicable) will perform a pre-event assessment of the Properties and document 
the findings for use in the event of subsequent claim.   

2. Provide active storm tracking and alerts. 
3. As part of an active claim, L2M will perform the necessary activities required to document 

the loss, assist with any negotiations with the Carrier, manage construction, and assist in 
the indemnification of the Properties, based on the agreed scope with the Carrier.  

4. Recommend and vet ethical trades and contractors, including policies and procedures, 
appropriate liability insurance, safety plans and history and other items as necessary to 
retain the best available trades. 

5. Review all contractor agreements for language that would cause undue risk/liability to the 
Client and negatively impact the Claim. 

6. Management of trades including scheduling, inventory of materials and working around 
Property activities. 

7. Review and approve trade invoices for accuracy and payment. 
8. Obtain a Release of Lien for each contractor’s work. 
9. Distribute weekly activity and status reports to Client. 
10. Address all Client concerns with the Claim and construction process. 
11. Coordinate with Carrier to expedite the Claim process. 
12. Provide a full accounting of all work done by trades on the Property 
13. Create a bound deliverable documenting all aspects of the claim. 
14. Perform in the overall capacity of the owner’s representative and advocate.  
15. Other tasks as may be necessary and relevant to the best interests of the Client. 
 
 

Agreed and accepted: Initial________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

   10 

Exhibit B 
Identification of Active Loss or Claim and Notice to Proceed 

 
1. Client:     Tulsa County 
2. Property Address:   O’Brien Park Recreation Center 6149 North Lewis; Tulsa, OK 74130  
3. Date of Loss:   On or about May 2019 
4. Carrier:    Zurich 
5. Claim Number:   TBD 
6. Type of Loss:   Flood 
 
 
L2M is hereby directed to begin the management of the above Claim in accordance with the 
Agreement between the Parties. Client Authorizes the Carrier to release all information related to 
the Claim to L2M for the purpose of Claim and construction management, including but not 
limited to estimates, bids, engineering reports, complete copy of the policy and all endorsements. 
 
 
 
Agreed and accepted: 
 
Client 
  
Signature:       
 
By: 
Title: 
Dated: 
 
 



TULSA COUNTY 

PURCHASING 
DEPARTMENT 

DATE: June 12, 2019 

MEMO 

FROM: Matney M. Ellis ~_d.,;;?:yz~ 
Purchasing Direct~ r /~~ ?,-----------

TO: Board of County Commissioner 

SUBJECT: Agreement- Metro Roofing Company, LLC 

Bids for the Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations were opened on 
May 6, 2019 and the recommendation to award Bid Package 07A {Roofing) to Metro 
Roofing Company, LLC was approved by the Board of County Commissioners on May 
20, 2019, CMF# 247860. 

The Tulsa County Purchasing Department respectfully requests the Board of County 
Commissioners approve and execute the attached Trade Contractor Agreement between 
the Board of County Commissioners and Metro Roofing Company, LLC for the scope of 
work as defined in the agreement and referenced bid documents. 

Respectfully submitted for your approval and execution. 

MME/ mlb 

ORIGINAL: Michael Willis, County Clerk, for the June 17, 2019 agenda. 



TRADE CONTRACT NO. HQ-075419 

TRADE CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

1. Effective Date, Parties and Notice 

This Agreement Is entered into this 20 day of May In the year 2019 by and between 

_Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners _ ____ ~ referred to In this Agreement as the Owner, and the 

TRADE CONTRACTOR Metro Roofing Company, LLC 

8090 Glade Avenue 
Oklahoma City, Ok 73132 

Tax ID/EIN/SSN: 46-4324163 

ATTENTION: Dan Wedman 

referred to In this Agreement as the Trade Contractor for services in connection with thi5 

PROJECT NAME 

PROJECT NUMBER 

LOCATION 

whose 

CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGER Is 

and whose 

ARCHITECT is 

Tulsa County Administration Build Ing Renovations 

HEADQ 

218 W 6"' St 

Tulsa, OK 74119 

FLINTCO, 11C 
1624 W 21st St 
Tulsa, OK 74107 

G H 2 Architects 
320 S Boston Ave 
Suite 100 
Tulsa, Ok 74103 

NOTICE TO THE PARTIES SHALL BE GIVEN AT THESE ADDRESSES 



2. Safety 

2.1 The Trade Contractor agrees that the prevention of accidents to workmen and property engaged upon or in the vicinity of the Trade 
Work is its responsibility. The Trade Contractor agrees to comply with all Federal, State, Municipal and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, 

codes, standards, orders, notices and requirements concerning safety as shall be applicable to the Trade Work, including, among others, the 

Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as amended, and all standards, rules, regulations and orders which have been or shall be 

adopted or issued thereunder, and with the safety standards established during the progress of the Trade Work by the Construction Manager 

(referred to herein as "CMn). 

2.2 When so ordered, the Trade Contractor shall stop any part of the Trade Work which the CM deems unsafe until corrective measures 

satisfactory to the CM have been taken. The Trade Contractor agrees that it shall not have nor make any claim for damages arising from such 

stoppages. Should the Trade Contractor fall to take appropriate corrective measures In a timely manner, the CM may do so at the cost and 

expense of the Trade Contractor and may deduct the cost and expense thereof from any payments due orto become due to the Trade Contractor. 

Failure on the part of the CM to stop unsafe practices shall in no way relieve the Trade Contractor of its responsibility therefor. 

2.3 The Trade Contractor will follow the provisions of al I applicable statutes and ordinances which require persons or firms doing 

excavation to do so only after giving notice to utility companies and obtaining information on the location of utilities (such as "one-call" systems). 

3. Trade Contractor Representations 

3.1 The Trade Contractor acknowledges receipt of all policies listed in Exhibit C. Subject to applicable law the Trade Contractor further 

agrees to be bound by these policies as part of this Agreement. The Trade Contractor represents and agrees that it has carefully examined and 

understands this Agreement and the other Trade Contract Documents, has investigated the nature, locality and site of the Trade work and the 

conditions and difficulties under which it is to be performed, and that it enters into this Agreement on the basis of its own examination, 

investigation and evaluation of all such matters and not in reliance upon any opinions or representations of the CM, the Owner or any of their 

respective officers, agents or employees. 

a.2 The commencement of the Trade Work by the Trade Contractor on the site of the Project shall constitute the legal and binding 

acceptance by the Trade Contractor of this Agreement. For purposes of this paragraph the mobilization of equipment, delivery of materials or 

the performance of actual labor on the Project site, whichever occurs first, shall constitute a #commencement" of Trade work by the Trade 

Contractor. The owner reserves the right, however, to insist on a signed Agreement prior to the making of any payment to the Trade Contractor. 

4. Bonds 

The Trade Contractor shall furnish a Performance Bond and a Separate Payment Bond satisfactory to the CM, in its sole determination, in the full 

amount of the Agreement Amount. Bonds shall be furnished by a surety acceptable to the CM, in the full amount of the Agreement Amount, and 
on the forms attached as Exhibit G. Trade Contractor must also furnish any applicable statutory bonds If required by the state in which the Project 

;s located. 

5. Trade Contractor Duties 

5.1 Trade Work. The owner retains the Trade Contractor as an Independent contractor, to provide all labor, materials, equipment and 

services necessary or incidental to complete that portion of the work on the Project as set forth In Exhibit A to this Agreement, consistent with 

the Project Schedule and in strict accordance with and reasonably Inferable from the Trade contract Documents. The Trade Contractor agrees 

to perform such part of the work (hereafter ca lied "Trade Work") for the Project under the general direction of the CM and subject to the final 

approval of the CM, Architect/Engineer or other specified representative of the Owner. 

5,Z Trade Contract Dotuments. The Trade Contract Documents include this Agreement, Agreement between the Owner and the CM 
("CM Agreement"), including all addenda, modifications, revisions, plans, drawings, specifications, details, together with all general, technical, 

supplementary and special terms and conditions, any invitations for bids or Information for bidders, if any, to the extent applicable, and all other 

documents listed in or referred to by the CM Agreement. The Owner and the Trade Contractor are mutually bound by the terms of this 

Agreement. To the eKtent the terms of the CM Agreement apply to the work of the Trade Contractor, then the CM on behalf of the Owner 

assumes toward the Trade Contractor all the obligations, rights, duties and redress that the Owner under the CM Agreement assumes toward 

the CM. In the Identical way, the Trade Contractor assumes tow.rd the CM all the same obligations, rights, duties and redress that the CM 

assumes toward the Owner and Architect/Engineer under the CM Agreement. This Agreement and the rest of the Trade Contract Documents 

are intended to supplement and complement each other and shall, where possible, be so interpreted. However, if any provision ofthisAgreement 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 2 of 13 

TRADE NO. KQ-075419 

Metro Roofing Company, LLC 



Irreconcilably conflicts with a provision of the Trade Contract Documents, the provision granting greater rights or remedies to the Owner or 
imposing tile greater duty, standard or responsibility or obi lsatlon on the Trade Contractor shall govern. 

5.3 Design Delegation. If the Trade Contract Documents (1) specifically require the Trade Contractor to provide design services and (2) 

specify all design and performance criteria, the Trade Contractor shall provide the design services necessary to satisfactorily complete the Trade 

work. Design services provided by the Trade Contractor shall be procured from licensed, design professionals (the "Designer") retained by the 
Trade Contractor as permitted by the law of the place where the Project is located. The Designer's signature and seal shall a pp ear on all drawings, 

calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submlttals prepared by the Designer. Shop Drawings and other submittals 

related to the Trade Work designed or certified by the Designer, if prepared by others, sh a II bear the Trade Contractor's and the Deslgne r's written 

approvals when submitted to the CM. The Owner and the CM shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and ccmpleteness of the 
services, certifications or approvals performed by the ~signer. 

5.3,1 If the Designer is an independent professional, the design services shall be procured pursuant to a separate 

agreement between the Trade Contractor and the Designer. The Trade Contractor-Designer agreement shall not provide for 

any limitation of liability or exclusion from participation in the multiparty proceedings requirement of Paragraph 21.6. If 

applicable, the Deslgner(s) is (are) 

The Trade Contractor shall notify the CM in writing If It Intends to change the Designer. The Trade Contractor warrants the 
design furnished by the Designer will be In conformance with the information given and the design concept expressed in the 

Trade Contract Documents. The Trade Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance or design 

criteria required by the Trade Contract Documents furnished by the Owner, Architect/Engineer or CM 

5.3.2 The Trade Contractor shall not be required to provide design services in violation of any applicable law. 

5.4 Clean Up. The Trade Contractor is responsible for its awn "clean-up" and keeping the Trade Work areas "broom clean". If the CM 

determines the Trade Work area to be unsatisfactorily cleaned, the CM will so advise the Trade Contractor. If the Trade Contractor rails to 

commence cleaning procedures within twenty four [24) hours and continue to clean Seid area to the CM's satisfaction, the CM may without 

further notice execute and complete such clean up activities as the CM deems necessary and charge the cost to the Trade Contractor or deduct 

such cost from payments due to the Trade Contractor. The Trade Contractor ts responsible to clean the mud and gravel off its vehtcles (including 

vehicles operated by its lower tier contractors and suppliers) prior to leaving the site. Any mud or gravel that is tracked onto the surrounding 

roads shall be removed immediately. The CM has the right to clean up surrounding roads immediately upon the Trade Contractor's failure to do 

so, the cost of which shall be deducted from the Trade contractor's neKI payment. 

5.5 Protection of Trade Work. The Trade Contractor is responsible for protection of its material, eq ulpment and installation until the 

fl na I acceptance by the Owner and the A re h ltect. 

5.6 Prote(tlon of the Project. The Trade Contractor shall confine operations at the Project site to areas permitted by the CM and shall 

not unreason ably encumber the Project site with m ateria Is or eq ui pm ent. The Trade Contractor is responsible for any dam age caused to adjacent 

property or access roads by the Trade Contractor, Its lower tier contr;ictors or suppliers during the course of the Trade Work. 

5.7 Supervision. All of the Trade Work is the sole and absolute responslblllty of the Trade Contractor; shall be initiated, managed, 

performed and completed by qualified, competent, skilled and reputable supervisors, administrators, mechanics and laborers, all of which are 

satisfactory to the CM; shall be in full compliance with the Trade Contract Documents including this Agreement; and shall meet the approval and 
acceptance of the CM and the Owner or Its authorized representative. 

6. Schedule 

Time is of the essence. The Trade Contractor shall commence the Trade work under this Agreement when notified by the CM and shall complete 

the Trade Work in a dlllgent manner In ac:cordance with the Trade Contract Documents and the Schedule of Work as set forth in Exhibit E so that 

progress or completion of the Project will not be delayed and in such a manner that the CM, any other Trade contractors, and any separate 

contra ct ors of the Own er sh a II not be delayed or Impeded in their work. The Trade Contractor s ha II participate and cooperate in the deve lo pm ent 

of schedules and other efforts to ach le~e time ty com pletlo n of the Trade Work by providing information on the timing and seq ue nee ofoperatlons 

so as to meet the CM's overall schedule requirements. The Trade Contractor shall continuously monitor the Project Schedule Including any 

revisions thereto, and other work on the Project so as to execute the Trade Work in accordance with the requirements of the Project Schedule. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Pase 3 of 13 

TRAD, NO. HQ-0754-19 

Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



The Trade Contractor agrees to be responsible for, carry out, and perform all time guarantees upon work or materials referred to in the Trade 

Contract Documents relating to any labor performed or material furnished under this Agreement. 

7. Payment 

7.1 In consideration of faithfu I and timely performance by the Trade Contractor of all the covenants ,md the conditions aforesaid, the 

Owner agrees to pay the Trade Contractor, subject to other provisions hereof, including authorized additions and deletions, the sum of 

Five Hundred and Sixty-Nine Thousand, Eight Hundred and Ninety-Five Dollars and 00/100 DOLLARS ($,569,895.00) 

(the llAgreement Amount") [wl1lch amount is Tax Exempt in accordance with attached Exhibit HJ. Payment shall only be due for the portion of 

the Trade Work actually completed to the satisfaction of the CM, the Architect and the Owner. Trade Contractor shall submit a progress payment 

application to the Owner, with a copy to the CM and the Architect, for Trade contractor Work properly performed during that month. Within 

thirty (30) days after Trade Contractor's complete, proper and timely payment application has been received by the Owner, the Owner shall make 

payment to Trade Contractor, less any applicable retal nage or other set off. The Owner may withhold payment of part or all of Trade Contractor's 

payment application upon notice to Trade Contractor as allowed by law. Progress payment applications must be submitted by the Trade 

Contractor each month in an amount equal to ninety percent (90%) of the estimated value of the labor, materials and equipment incorporated 

in the construction and materials and equipment suitably stored at the Project site, less the aggregate of previous payments. The Trade 

Contractor's Affidavit and Waiver of Lien for prior payments must be properly executed by an authorized representative of the Trade Contractor 

and returned to the Owner and the CM prior to issuance of subsequent payments. 

7.2 Progress payment appllcations are to be submitted on AIA G702 with Schedule of Values AIA G703. With each progress payment 

application, the Trade Contractor sha 11 furnish a tabulated breakdown of the portion of the Trade Work included in the payment request, listing 

items of the work in sufficient detail as determined by the Owner and the CM to easily facilitate payment requests to be checked by the CM as 

the work progresses. 

7.3 Each payment request or invoice must be received by the Owner by the last day of the month to be processed with other progress 

payment applications for that month. Invoices and payment requests received that are imiccurnte or without substantiation, or after said day of 

the month will be held until corrected and substantiated, and then processed with the following month's payment application. 

7.4 The Trade Contractor shall submit its request for partial payment conforming to the standard CM billing form, with schedule of values 

attached thereto, representing a true and accurate estimate of the Trade Work completed, and materials stored during the immediately 
preceding month or such other immediately preceding period as directed by the CM. In addition, if allowed by the Trade Contract Documents, 

all Invoices and Insurance certificates shall be included for all stored materials in an off-site storage area applicable to the payment request. 

7.5 The Trade Contractor shall, additionally with each payment request, submit copies of payrolls to document the value of work in place 

and a Partia I Release of Lien from all lower tier contractors and major material suppliers for which payment has previously been made to the 

Trade Contractor. 

7.6 If the Owner or the CM on behalf of the Owner, in their sole discretion, deem it necessary, the Trade Contractor agrees to receive 

each of its progress payments and final payment in the form of multiple checks issued jointly between the Trade Contractor's lower tier 

contracto~ and major material suppliers and the Trade Contractor. Lower tier contractors that are to receive part or all of their progress payments 

as joint checks shall additionally submit with their Payment Requests all invoices from each lower tier contractor and major supplier and the net 

payments to be issued to each. 

7.7 No partial payment, or certificate therefore, shall constitute acceptance or approval by the Owner, the CM or the Architect of the 

Trade Work or material for which the partial payment is made. No partial payment shall constitute a waiver by the Owner of any right to require 

fulfillment of all the terms of this Agreement. Neither the final payment nor any partial payment, nor any certificate for either, shall constitute 

acceptance by the Owner of defective work or improper materials or of any element ofthe Trade Contractor's performance determined to be at 

variance with this Agreement. 

7.8 The Owner shall have the right to set off any amounts the Trade Contractor owes to the Owner under this Agreement or by law against 

the remaining balance under this Agreement, or against any amounts due the Trade Contractor under any other agreements with the Owner. 

7.9 Final Payment. Final payment by the Owner to the Trade Contractor shall not become due and payable to the Trade Contractor until 

the following express conditions precedent have been met: (1) The completion of the Trade Work required by this Agreement and acceptance of 
the Trade Work by the CM, the Owner and the Architect; (2) execution and delivery by the Trade Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the CM, of 

a general release running to and in favor of the CM and the Owner; and (3) complete and full satisfaction of all claims, demands, disputes and 

obligations of the Trade Contractor arising out of or related to this Agreement, Including those between the Owner and the Trade Contractor and 

between the Trade Contractor and any third party. Should there be any such claim, lien or unsatisfied obligation, whether before or after final 

payment is made, the Trade Contractor shall deliver payment to the Owner an amount equal to whatever cost the Owner must pay to discharge 

or defend against any such claim, obligation, lien or action brought, or any judgment thereon and all costs, including legal fees and expenses and 

a 15% Administrative Fee, incurred in connection therewith. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page4of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ·075419 
Metro Roofing Comparrv, LLC. 



8. Hazardous Materials 

The Trade Contractor shall at all times comply with all rules and regulations of any municipality, state or federal environmental protection, and 
toxic waste and hazardous substances laws, ordinances and regulations, and how they relate to the Trade Work, and sha II be equally responsible 

for actions and Inactions ofTrade Contractors, lower tier contractors, and any other agents or Independent contractors of the Trade Contractor. 

The Trade Contractor shall be deemed to, and sh all, have included in the Agreement Amou ntth econ ta in ment, rem ova I, disposa I or n eutra lizatio n 
of all toxic wastes and hazardous substances created, generated or transported to or from the Project site in conjunction with the Trade Work. 

The Trade Contractor will be respon5ible for identifying toxic wastes and hazardous substances generated, released, caused by or resulting from 

the Trade Work and notifying the CM of its presence in writing as soon as it is identified. The terms "toxic wastes" and "hazardous substancesw 

shall have the same meaning as defined under federal environmental laws and regulations. At all times the Trade contractor shall defend, 

indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and the CM from any and all expenses, costs, damages, suits, fines, assessments, penalties and/or causes 

of action, In cl udl ng attom ey's fees th rough a II investigations, negotiations, h ea rings or appea Is, relating to or a rising out of the Trade Contractor's 

failure to strictly comply with the terms of this paragraph. 

9. Compliance with Laws 

9.1 The Trade Contractor agrees to be bound by, and at Its own costs comply with, all federal, state and local laws, ordinances and 

regulations (the ulaws"} applicable to the Trade Work, including but not limited to safety, equal employment opportunity, minority business 

enterprise, women's business enterprise, disadvantaged business enterprise, sexual and racial harassment, and all other Laws with which the 
Owner or CM must comply. 

9.2 Where prescribed by Law l)Ursvant to direct Federal contracts or Federally-financed or aided contracts, or otherwise required by Law, 

the Trade Contractor agrees the following clauses found in the Trade Contract Documents or In the Code of Federal Regulations (CFRl are 

incorporated in this Agreement and binding on Trade Contractor as if written herein word for word: the clauses entitled "Equal Opportunity 

Clause» ! 41 CFR Sections 60-1.4 & 60-4.3); "Affirmative Action Obligations of Contractors and Subcontractors for Disabled Veterans oft he VI etnam 

Era" ,41 CFR Section 60-250.4); "Affirmative Action Obligations of Contractors and Subcontractors for Handicapped Workers" (41 CFR section 60-

741.ll; "Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act-Overtime Compensation"; uApprentices and Trainees"; "Payrolls and Basic Records"; 

Ncompliance with Copeland Act Requirements»; "Withholding"; "Subcontracts"; "Contract Terminat'ion-Department»; "Disputes Concerning 

Labor Standards"; •compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements"; and "Certification of Eligibility" and such other clauses as the 

Fed era I Government has required by law or contract. Trade Con tractor agrees to ind ud e a II such clauses in any non-exempt, lower-tier contracts. 

9.3 Immigration Compllance. The Trade Contractor represents and warrants that the Trade Contractor is in compliance with, and shall 

remain in compliance with, the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (The "Act"l and all other Federal, State, and/or 

local immigration statutes/ordinances, as applicable, including, but not limited to the provisions of the Act ~rohlbitlng hiring and continued 

employment of unauthorized aliens, requiring verification and record keeping with respect to Identity and eligibility for employment and 

prohibiting discrimination on the basis of national origin, United States citizenship, or intending citizen status. The Trade Contractor agrees to 
Indemnify the Owner and the CM and to hold the Owner and the CM harmless from all liability, including liability for interest and penalties, the 
Owner and/or the CM incurs with resuhs from or is attributable to the Trade Contractor's failure to comply with any provisions of the Act, and or 

applicable Federal, State, and/or local immigration statute/ordinance, including reimbursing the Owner and the CM any monies expended by 

either of them in participating in or responding to any investigation/suit/civil or crlmlnal Immigration matter involving the Trade Contractor. As 
it relates to immigration compliance, the Trade Contractor shal I be responsible for completing any and all required documentation In accordance 

with requirements put forth by the Owner, CM or applicable law. 

9.4 The Trade Contractor shall be liable to 1he CM and the Owner for all loss, cost and expense attributable to any acts of com mission or 

omission by the Trade Contractor, Its contractors at any tier, and Its and their respective employees and agents resulting from the failure to 
comply with Laws, Including, but not limited to, any flnes, penalties 

10. Insurance 

10.1 The Trade Contractor agrees to procure, pay for and maintain in full force and effect during the course of the performance of the 

Agreement all insurance required by 1he laws of the state in which the Trade Work covered by this Agreement Is being performed, and In such 

form and amounts as described in Exhibit B which is attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement. The Trade Contractor shall not 

commence the Trade Work nor receive any payment hereunder until Certificate of such insura nee is furnished to the CM. 

10.2 The CM shall have no duty to the Trade Contractor orto any of Its Insurers or their insurance agents to review any certificates or copies 

of insurance furnished to the CM or to determine whether the terms of each certificate or policy of Insurance comply with the insurance-related 

provisions of the Agreement. A failure of the CM to detect that the Trade Contractor has not submitted certificates, or proper certificates, or is 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Pases of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-075419 

Metro Roofing Company, llC. 



otherwise not in compliance with the insurance-related provisions of the Agreement shall not be construed as a w. iver or other impairment of 

any of the Owner's or CM's rights under such insurance-related provisions. 

10.3 If the Trade Contractor fails to procure and maintain such Insurance, in addition to the option of declaring the Trade Contractor in 

default for breach of a material provision of this Agreement, the Owner or the CM shall have the right, but not the duty, to pre cure and maintain 
the same insurance, or other insurance that provides the Owner and the CM with equivalent protection, and the Trade Contractor shal I furnish 

all necessary information to make effective and maintain such insurance. At the option of the Owner, the cost of said Insurance purchased by the 

Owner or the CM shall be charged against and deducted from any monies then due or to become due to the Trade Contractor or the CM shall 

notify the Trade Contractor of the cost thereof ond the Trade Contractor shall promptly pay such cost. 

10.4 The Trade Contractor shall identify by certificate any Residential, Mold, EIFS, Silica or other major exclusions that impact the Trade 

Contractor's ability to insure its risk. If the Project includes any Residential components or the proposed design includes EIFS systems, then the 

Trade Contractor sha II obtain appropriate endorsements aoceptable to the CM as a condition of this Agreement. 

10.5 The Trade Contractor shall at its own eKpense provide insurance coverage for materials stored off the site after written approval of 
the CM at the value established in the approva I, and also for portions of the Trade Work in transit until such materials are permanently 

incorporated Into the Project. The risk of loss for material and equipment provided by th is Agreement, whether in a deliverable state or otherwise, 

shall remain with the Trade Contractor. Any damages to the material and equipment or loss of any kind occasioned in transit shall be borne by 

the Trade Contractor, notwithstanding the manner in which the goods are shipped or who pays the freight or other transportation costs. 

11. Indemnity 

11.1 General Indemnity. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Trade Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the CM, the 

Owner's other Trade Contractors, the Arch itect/E ngi neer, the Owner and their agents, con su lta nts, members a nd employees (the "Ind em n ltees" I 
from and against all claims, damages, loses and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees, costs and expenses for bodily injury and 

property damage that may arise from the performance of the Trade Work to the eident of the negligent acts or omissions by, or the fault of, the 

Trade Contractor, the Trade Contractor's lower tier contractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them or by anyone for whose 

acts or omissions any of them may be liable. The Trade Contractor agrees to purchase and maintain contractual liability insurance covering its 

obligations In this article. These obligations shall not be interpreted to reduce or negate any other rights or obligations of indemnity otherwise 

existing with regard as to any party or person described in this Article. 

11.2 Patents. The Trade Contractor hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the CM and the Owner from and against any 

and all liability, loss or damage and to reimburse the CM and the Owner for any costs, including legal fees and expenses, which the CM and the 

Owner may incur because of claims or litigation on account of infringement or alleged infringement of any letters patent or patent rights by 

reason of the Trade Work, or materials, equipment or other items used by the Trade Contractor in its performance. 

11.3 No Limitations. In furtherance to, but not in limitation of the indemnity provisions in this Agreement, the Trade Contractor hereby 

expressly and specifically agrees that Its obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as provided in this Agreement shall not In anyway be 

affected or diminished by any statutory or constitutional immunity it enjoys from suits by its own employees or from limitations of liability or 

recovery under worker's compensation laws. 

12. Termination for Convenience 

12.1 It is understood that the basic assumption underlying the mutual obligations and responsibilities entered into by the parties to this 

Agreement is the continued performance with respect to the CM Agreement that exists between the CM and the Owner. If, for any reason, the 

CM Agreement is breached, rescinded or terminated, the Owner shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement. In no event shall 

the CM or the Owner be obligated to the Trade Contractor for any anticipatory profits or any damages incurred by the Trade Contractor as a 

result of the termination of this Agreement, unless approved and paid by the Owner. The Trade Contractor agrees that It shall have no claim or 

cause of action against the CM arising from or relating to Owner's termination of this Agreement or Owner's determination of any amount it 

agrees to pay Trade Contractor upon term In atlon of th Is Agreement. 

12.2 The Owner shall have the right at any time by written notice to the Trade Contractor, to terminate this Agreement without cause and 

require the Trade Contractor to cease work. In the event of such a termination for convenience, the Trade Contractor shall be entitled to payment 

pursuant to the terms of the Agreement for the portion of the Trade Work actually completed as of the date of termination, provided that such 

amount may be reduced by all amounts for which the Trade contractor ls liable or responsible. However, the Trade Contractor shal I only be 
entitled to profit on that portion of the work actually completed and approved for payment to the date of termination together with retain ages 

withheld from prior payments. The Trade Contractor waives any claim for loss of anticipated profits or other damages against the Owner or the 

CM in the event the Owner exercises this clause. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
?age 6 cf 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-075419 
Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



13. Failure of Performance 

13.1. Non-Conforming Trade Work. The Trade Contractor shall provide sufficient, safe and proper facilities at all times for inspection by 

the Architect, the Owner or the CM of the Trade Work in the field, at shops or at any other place where materials required hereunder are in 

course of prepa ration, manufacture, trea Im ent or storage. The Trade Contractor sh al I, with in twenty four ( 24) hours after receiving written notice 

from the CM to that effect, proceed to remove from the site any materials condemned by the Architect, the Owner, or the CM, whether worked 

or u nworked, and to take down al I portions of the Trade Work which the Architect, the Owner or the CM has condemned in writing, as unsound 

or improper, or as in any way failing to conform to the drawings, specificaliOns and addenda and shall take full financial responsibility for all 

damage caused by such removal. In the event that all or any portion of the Trade Work as condemned should be of such a nature, or the time 

available should be so limited, that in the judgment of the Architect, the Owner or the CM It would not be expedient to order the same replaced 

or corrected, the Owner, at its option, may deduct from the payments due or to become due to the Trade Contractor such amount or amounts 

as In the opinion of the Archltect, the CM or the Owner shall represent the difference between the fair and reasonable value of the Trade Work 

so condemned and Its value had It been e~ecuted in conformity with the Trade contract Documents. 

13.2 Notice to cure If the Trade Contractor is unable, refuses or falls to supply enough properly-skilled workers, proper materials, correct 

non-conforming Trade Work, or maintain the Schedule of Work, or fails to make prompt payment to its workers, Trade Contractors or suppliers, 

or disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction, or otherwise Is guilty of a material breach 

of a provision of this Agreement, the Trade Contractor shal I be deemed In default of this Agreement. If the Trade Contractor falls within three 

(3) business days after written notification to commence and continue satisfactory correction of the default with diligence and promptness, then 

the Owner without prejudice to any other rights or remedies, shall have the rightto any or all of the following remedies: 

13.2, 1 to supply workers, m ateri a Is, equipment and facilities as the Owner deems necessary for the co mp I et ion of the Trade Work 

or any part which the Trade Contractor has failed to complete or perform after written notification, and charge the cost, including 

reasonable overhead, profit, attorneys' fees, costs and expenses to the Trade Contractor; 

13.2.2 to contract with one or more additional contractors to perform such part of the Trade Work as the CM determ Ines will 
provide the most expeditious completion of the Trade Work, and charge the cost to the Trade Contractor; 

13.2,3 withhold any payments due or to become due the Trade Contractor pending corrective action in amounts sufficient to 
cover losses and compel performance to the extent required by and to the satisfaction of the Owner and the CM. 

13.2A terminate the Trade Contractor for default by delivering written notice of such termination tot he Trade contractor. 

13.2.S to charge to the Trade Contractor an Administrative Fee of 15% of all costs incurred by the Owner or the CM in exercising 

any of the above remedies. 

In the event of an emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the CM on behalf of the Owner may proceed as above without notice, 

but the Owner shall give the Trade Contractor notice promptly after the fact as a precondition of cost recovery. 

13.3 Termination for Default. If the Trade Contractor has been terminated for default, the Owner may take possession of the plant and 

Trade Work, materials, tools, appliances and equipment of the Trade Contractor at the Project site, and through Itself or others provide labor, 

equipment and materials to prosecute Trade Work on such terms and conditions as shall be deemed by the Owner as necessary, and shall deduct 

the cost, Including without restriction all claims, charges, expenses, losses, costs, damages, and attorneys' fees, Incurred as a result of the Trade 

Contractor's failure to perform, from any money then due or thereafter to become due to the Trade Contractor under this Agreement. 

13.3.l If the Owner so terminates the employment of the Trade Contractor, the Trade Contractor shall not be entitled to ,my 
further payments under this Agreement and no sum shall be deemed due or to become due to the Trade Contractor until Trade Work 

has been completed and accepted by the owner, all Agreement requirements have been fulfilled, and payment has been received by 

the CM from the Owner. In the event the unpaid Agreement Amount earned by Trade Contractor exceeds the cost of completion and 

any and all incidental costs, including administrative, legal and other professional fees, the difference shall be paid to the Trade 

Contractor, but if such expenses exceed the unpaid earned Agreement Amount, the Trade Contractor agrees to pay the difference to 

the Owner within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice. 

13.3.2 If it Is determined or agreed that the Owner wrongfully exercised any option under this Article, the Owner shall be liable 

to the Trade Contractor solely for the reasonable value of Trade Work performed by the Trade Contractor prior to such action, 

including reasonable overhead and profit on the Trade work performed, less prior payments made. Under no circumstances shall the 

Trade Contractor be entitled to recovery cf claimed lost future profits. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 7 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-075419 

Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



14, Delays 

14.1 Should the progress of the Trade Work be delayed, obstructed or interfered with through any fault, action or failure to act by the 

Trade Contractor or any of its officers, agents, employees, Trade Contractors or suppliers so as to cause any additional cost, expense, liability or 

damage to the CM or the Owner, Including legal fees or expenses incurred in defending claims arising from such delay or seeking reimbursement 

and indemnity from the Trade Contractor and Its surety hereunder, the Trade Contractor and its surety agree to compensate and indemnify the 

CM and the Owner against all such costs. expenses, damages and liabilities. 

14.2 In addition, the Trade Contractor, at the CM's direction and at the Trade Contractor's own cost and expense, shall work such overtime 

as may be necessary to make up for all time lost in the completion of the Trade Work and in the completion of the Project due to such delay. If 

the Trade Contractor fails to make up for the time lost by reason of such delay, the CM has the right to use other Trade contractors or suppliers 

and to take whatever other action the CM deems necessary to avoid delay in the completion of the Trade Work and the Project, the cost of which 
shall be borne by the Trade Contractor. In the event Trade Contractor delays timely performance of the Trade Work or to the completion of the 

ProJect, either by its acts or omissions, and such delays result in the CM being charged by the Owner with actual or liquidated damages, then the 

Trade Contractor shall reimburse the CM the full amount of all such damages and charges resulting from the delays caused by the Trade 

Contractor. The CM may offset any such damages against the remaining balanced ue to the Trade Contractor on the Agreement Amo um, if any. 

14.3 If the commencement and/or progress of the Trade Work is delayed without the fault or responsibility of the Trade Contractor, the 

time for the Trade Work shall be extended by Change Order to the extent ob~ined by the CM from the Owner pursuant to the CM Agreement, 

and the Schedule of Work shall be revised accordingly. 

15. Changes 

1s.1 Trade Work Changes. The Owner and the Trade Contractor agree the Owner may make changes to the Trade Work, including but not 
limited to; additions, deletions or revisions. Any changes made to the Trade Work Involved, or any other parts of this Agreement, shall be by a 

written Change Order. To the extent that any such change impacts Trade Contractor's cost of or time for performance, the Agreement Amount 
and Agreement Schedule shall be equitably adjusted to compensate for such Impact. Changes shall be initiated by one of the three methods 

outlined below, or as provided in the CM Agreement and shall be incorporated into the Agreement by a Change Order. 

1s.1.1. Request for Change Proposal. A Request for Change Proposal ("FIFCP"J Is a written request that informs Trade Contractor about a 

potential change in the Trade Work and requests a proposal for the potential change. Trade Contractor shall promptly reply with such request. 

Trade Contractor shall not implement the change or incur any costs until a Change Order is fully executed. 

1s.1.2. Construction Change Directive. A Construction Change Directive ("CCO") Is a written directive that instructs Trade Contractor to take 

some immediate action in connection with the Trade Work. CCDs are issued when there Is not time to issue a RFCP or Change Order. Trade 

Contractor shall I mmed lately proceed so as not to delay the progress of the Work and in accordance with the terms of the CCD. Any impact of a 

CCD on the Contract Price or Schedule shall be adjusted by a Change Order. 

15.1.3. Change Order Requests. Within seven (7) calendar days after the occurrence of any event or observ,mce of any condition that Trade 

Contractor believes entitles Trade contractor to an adjustment in Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Schedule, Trade Contractor shall 

prepare and submit a Change Order Request ("COR"J to CM. The COR shall include a detailed factual narrative, a detailed analysis showing 

entitlement and a detailed analysis of the proposed change to the Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Schedule. 

15.2 Change Orders. A Change Order ("CO") is a written instrument prepared by the CM or Owner and signed by the Trade Contractor 

stating their agreement with the change In the Trade Work and any adjustment to the Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Work Schedule. 

All changes and/or additions In the Trade Work ordered in writing by the Owner or CM shall be deemed a part of the Trade Work and shall be 

performed and furnished in strict accordance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Trade Contract Documents, including the 

current schedule of Work. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 8 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-075419 
Metro Roofing Company, llC. 



Change Orders will be used to implement approve<J Requests for Change Proposals, Construction Change Directives and Change Order Requests. 

Upon receipt of a properly documented COR or CCD, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to determine if the Trade Contractor Is entitled to a 

Change Order and, if so, the appropriate equitable adjustment. Any adjustment to the Agreement Amount shall be established by one of the 

following methods: 

a. mutual acceptance of an itemized lump sum, or 

b. unit prices as Indicated in the Trade Contract Documents or as subsequently agreed to by the parties; or 

c. costs determined In a manner acceptable to the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or percentage fee; or 

d. another method provided in the Trade Contract Documents. 

If the Parties are unable to agree on the dispositions of a CCR or CCD, CM or Owner will either (i) issue a Notice denying Trade Contractor's 

request or (ii) issue a u nilatera I Change Order setting forth the fl n a I determination regarding the adjustments. Any cost and schedule adjustments 

shall be a full accord and satisfaction for all cumulative impacts of the underlying change. 

15.3 The Trade Contractor shall not be entitled to receive additional compensation for extra work or materials or changes of any kind except 

to the extent the same was ordered by the CM. The Trade Contractor shall be responsible for any costs incurred by the Owner or the CM for 

changes of any kind made by the Trade Contractor that increase the cost of the Work for either the Owner, the CM or other Trade Contractors 

when the Trade Contractor proceeds with such changes without a Change Order or Construction Change Directive. 

lSA Determination by Owner, CM or Architect/Engineer. Notwithstanding any other provision, if the Trade Work for which the Trade 

Contractor claims additional compensation is determined by the Owner, the CM or Architect/Engineer not to entitle the Trade Contractor to a 
Change Order, additional compensation or a time extension, the Owner and the CM shall not be liable to the Trade Contractor for any additional 

compensation or time extension for such Trade work, unless the Owner agrees in writing to pay such additional compensation or to grant such 

extension. 

16. Claims 

16.1 A Claim is a written demand by Trade Contractor seeking an adjustment in the Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Schedule or 

some other relief under the terms of the Agreement for events other than a RFCP that has been denied in writing. Trade Contractor shall provide 

Notice to the Owner and the CM of any potential Claim within seven (7) calendar days after the event giving rise to the Claim. Within fifteen (15) 

calendar days thereafter, Trade Contractor shall submit a detailed factual narrative, • detailed analysis showing entltlement and a detailed 

analysis of the alleged change to the Agreement Am cunt and/or Agreement Schedule. C la Im s not timely made, in writing, by the Trade Contractor 

shall be deemed to have been abandoned and waived. The acceptance and consideration of any claim out of time by the Owner shall not create 

any precedent nor "course of dealing' between the Owner and the Trade Contractor, nor shall it waive the Owner's right to insist on strict 

adherence by the Trade contractor to the contract claims procedures. If Owner denies Trade Contractor's Claim, Trade Contractor may pursue 

the matter under Article 21 Dispute Resolution. 

16.2 The Trade Contractor shall not delay or suspend the Trade Work because of the pendency of or the denial by the Owner of any such 

claim or because of the continuance of the condition out of which the claim arose, but shall proceed diligently In performing the Trade Work 

while the claim is being resolved by agreement or being fully adjudicated. 

16.3 In the event the Trade Contractor asserts that it should receive additional compensation because of an act or omlssioo on the Owner's 

part, or someone for whom the Owner is responsible, the Trade Contractor shall promptly submit the claim to the Owner and the CM in writing 

within the time required in Section 16.1. Failure of the Trade Contractor to submit such claims in a timely and proper manner shall result In a 

waiver of such claim. 

16.4 The Trade Contractor shall fully cooperate with the CM in the submission of such claims described in Section 16.3, shall prepare all 

supporting data and do everything else necessary to properly present the claims, Including payment of legal fees incurred by the CM to prepare, 

submit and negotiate or otherwise resolve such claim. Should the Owner allow and pay additional compensation to the CM on account of such 

claim asserted by the Trade Contractor, the CM will pay the same to the Trade Contractor. 

16.S It shall be an express condition precedent to any obllgatlon on the part of the CM to make payment of any cost, reimbursement, 

compensation or damages to the Trade Contractor h ereu nd er th at the CM sha II fl rst be determined to bee ntitl ed to such compensation on behalf 

of the Trade Contractor and then receive such payment from Owner, and Trade Contractor expressly acknowledges that the CM is not obligated 

or required to pursue the Trade Contractor's claim against the Owner if the CM, in its sole discretion, after review of the Trade contractor's claim. 

has deemed the claim to lack merit in whole or in part. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page9 of13 

TRADE NO. H Q-075419 
Metro l\oofing Company, LLC. 



16.6 If at any ti me a controversy should arise between the CM and the Trade Contractor with respect to any matter in this Agreement 

which the CM determines is not a claim, dispute or controversy which should involve or be asserted against the Owner, the decision of the CM 

relating to the subject of the controversy shall be followed by the Trade Contractor. 

17. Taxes 

The Agreement Amount includes all sales, excise, transportation, unemployment compensation, social security, and any other taxes presently 

existing or subsequently imposed and levied and the Trade contractor agrees to pay all of the above and to conform to all applicable municipal, 

state and federal laws in connection with such taxes. The Trade Contractor further agrees to withhold taxes from the wages and salaries of all 

employees of the Trade Contractor and pay the same in accordance with the federal and state laws and regulations pertaining thereto. The 

Agreement Amount includes federal, state and municipal taxes now levied or in force or hereafter imposed on any and all tangible personal 

property sold or transferred to the Owner under this Agreement and the Trade Contractor agrees to pay such tax or taxes on such property, the 

cost of which is included in the Agreement Amount. 

18. Liens 

18,l The Trade Contractor shall promptly pay when due all its project creditors, together with the project creditors of all those below ii in 

the contractual chain. 

18.Z If the Project involves private work, the Trade Contractor shall keep the property and improvements free and clear of all mechanic, 

materialmen and similar lien claims or statements. In the event any such lien Is flied, asserted or claimed, the Trade Contractor shall immediately 

secure !ts release either by paying the lien claimant, by filing a lien release bond, or by any other means permitted by law. If not so released, the 

Owner may retain an amount equal to 150% of the lien or claim and may pay the claimant and offset that amount, plus any legal fees from the 

amount so retained. If the Project involves public work, the Trade Contractor shall promptly pay and secure releases from all of its project 

creditors, Including all those below it in the contractual chain, who are entitled to assert claims against the Owner, the CM or its surety. 

18.3 If any claim or lien is made or filed with or against the CM, the Owner, the Project, 218 W 6'" St, Tulsa, Ok 74119 or the ~roject funds 

by any person claiming that the Trade Contractor or any Trade Contractor or other person under contract to the Trade Contractor, or any person 

or entity employed or engaged by the Trade Contractor at any tier, has failed to make payment for any labor, services, materials, equipment, 

taxes or other obligations furnished or incurred in connection with the Trade Work, or if the Trade Contractor or any Trade Contractor or other 

person under contract to the Trade Contractor, or any person or entity employed or engaged by the Trade Contractor at any tier causes damage 

to the Trade Work or any other work on the project, or if the Trade Contractor falls to perform or is otherwise in default of any term or provision 

of this Agreement, the Owner shall have the right to retain from any payment then due or thereafter due an amount which the Owner deems 

sufficient to (1) satisfy, discharge and/or defend against any such claim or lien, (2) make good any such nonpayment, failure, damage or default, 

and [3) defend, indemnify and hold harmless the CM and the Owner against any and all losses, damages and costs, including legal fees and 

expenses, incurred by either or both of them. The Owner shall require proof that any such nonpayment, claim or lien is fully satisfied, dismissed 

and discharged before any remaining retained funds will be released. The Owner shall, In addition, have the right to apply and charge against the 

Trade Contractor so much of the amount retained as may be required for the foregoing purposes and the Trade Contractor shall pay and 

reimburse the CM and the Owner all such losses, damages, and costs incurred by them which exceed the retained funds. 

19. Assignment 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Trade Contractor agrees that it shall not assign, sell, transfer, delegate or encumber any rights, duties 

or obligations arising under this Agreement including, but not limited to, any right to receive payments hereunder, without the prior written 

consent of the Owner in its sole discretion and the giving of any such oonsent to a particular assignment shall not dispense with the necessity of 

such consent to any further or other assignments. In the event the Trade Contractor assigns, sells, encumbers or otherwise transfers its right to 
any funds due or to become due under this Agreement as security for any loan, financing or other indebtedness ("Assignment"), notification to 

the Owner and the CM of such Assignment must be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Owner and the CM and the Assignment 

shall not be effective as against the Owner until the Owner provides Its written consent to such Assignment. The Trade Contractor agrees that 

any such Assignment shall not relieve the Trade Contractor of any of its agreements, duties, responsibilities or obligations under this Agreement 

and the Trade Contract Documents and shall not create a contractual relationship or a third party beneficiary relationship of any kind between 

the Owner or the CM and such assignee or transferee. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 10 cf 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-075419 
Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



20. Guarantee/Warranty 

For a period of one year from the date of the Owner's final acceptance of the Trade Work, the Trade Contractor guarantees and warrants that 

the Trade Work complies with the Trade Contract Documents requirements and is free from defects in material and workmanship. This 

guarantee/warranty shall include, but Is not limited to, the cost of all labor, material and related items necessary to correct any StJch defect, plus 

the cost of repairing any damage to other items which may have been c;wsed by the defective material or workmanship. If the Trade Contractor 

foils to begin warranty work within forty-eight (48) hours of being notified that such work is necessary, the Owner may, at its option, perform the 

necessary remedial work or secure its performance by others and charge the Trade Contractor with the cost thereof, pl us a 15% Administrative 

Fee. Nothing In this paragraph shall shorten the statute of limitations on any action by the Owner for breach of contract, negligence or other 

cause of action against the Trade Contractor. 

21. Dispute Resolution 

21.1 Scope of Disputes Provisions. All Claims, disputes or other matters in question between the parties to this Agreement which arise 

out of or relate to this Agreement (or the breach thereof], whether in contract or tort, (hereinafter "Dispute") shall be subject to the dispute 
resolutions set forth below. 

21.2 lnltlal Dispute Resolutlon/Medlation. A Dispute which either party desires to pursue shall be set forth in a detailed written statement 

of claim submitted to the other party providing the specific basis upon which monetary or other relief is claimed to be due, the specific contractual 

provlslon(s) supporting the claim and an itemization of the amount claimed to be due. Following submission of the detailed statement of claim, 
Owner and Trade Contractor shall endeavor to settle the Dispute first through face to face direct discussions between corporate officers of the 

Owner and Trade Contractor which discussions shall be held at the Owner's office location Involved with the Project within thirty (30) calendar 

days of a request by either party. If the Dispute cannot be resolve(j through direct discussions, the parties shall participate In mediation under 

the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association as a condition precedent and before recourse to any other 

form of binding dispute resolution. The location of the mediation shall be the same city as the location of the Project, unless the parties acree 

on another location. Upon written notice requesting mediation provided to the other party and the American Arbitration Association, the parties 

agree to proceed with the mediation as scheduled by the mediator. Either party may terminate the mediation at any time after the first session, 

but the decision to terminate must be personally delivered to the other party and the mediator. 

21.:1 Binding Dispute Resolution. In the event Owner and Trade Contractor cannot resolve the Dispute through direct discussions or 

mediation as contemplated above, then the Dispute shall, at the sole discretion of Owner, be decided either by submission to (a) arbitration 
administered by the American Arbitration Association or other arbitration tribunal mutually agreed upon by the parties; or (b) litigation subject 

to the exclusive Jurisdiction and venue of the location of the Project. 

21.4 Arbitration Election 

21.4.1 In the event Owner exercises its exclusive right to resolve the Dispute in arbitration, such arbitration shall be conducted in 

accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association or the applicable rules of such 

other arbitration tribunal as the parties may mutually determine In effect at the time the arbitration Is commenced as modlfled by the 

terms hereof. Any arbitration hereunder shall be held at the location of the Project. 

21.4.2 Should Owner exercise its exclusive right to resolve the Dispute by arbitration, then within fourteen (14) days after owner 

gives Trade contractor notice of Owner's election of arbitration, the parties shall use good faith efforts to select a single arbitrator 

mutually acceptable to both parties. If the parties are unable to select an arbitrator, then the parties will select the arbitrator(s) from 

a panel of experienced construction arbitrators on the American Arbitration Association's large complex case panel or a comparable 

panel of experienced oonstruction arbitrators maintained by such other arbitration tribunal mutually selected by the parties then In 

effect. In the event the amount in Dispute exceeds $1,000,000.00, Owner and Trade Contractor agree the arbitration shall be heard 

by a panel of three (3) arbitrators; otherwise, the Dispute shall be heard by a single arbitrator. 

21.4.3 The parties will enter into an Electronically Stored Information Agreement outllnlng the scope and volume for ESI discovery, 

which shall take into account the amount and complexity of the Dispute. 

2.1.4.4 The arbitration award shall be final and binding upon the parties, shall Include attorneys' fees and costs to the prevailing 

party or parties, and may be entered as a Judgment In any court having proper jurisdiction. In any arbitration the Arbltrator(s) shall 
have no power to render an award which has the effect of altering or amending or changing in any way any provisions of this 

Agreement. 

21.4.5 The parties stipulate and agree that the performance of this Agreement is a transaction involving lnterstate commerce. 

Notwithstanding other provisions in the Agreement, or choice of law provisions to the contrary, this agreement to arbitrate shall be 

enforced pursuant to, and governed by, the Federal Arbitration Act. 9 U. S. C. §1 et seq., which shall not be superseded or 

supplemented by any other arbitration act, statute or regulation. 

Rffil 02/22/2019 
Page 11 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ.075419 
Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



21.4.6 At the sole discretion of Owner, any arbitration with Trade Contractor shall be consolidated with any other arbitration 

proceeding relating to the work under the CM Agreement. 

21.5 Litigation Election. In the event Owner elects not to exercise its exclusive right to resolve the Dispute by a rbltratlon, or In the event 

the Dispute between Owner and Trade Contractor, or any portion thereof, is found to be non-arbitrable, then the parties hereby agree that the 

Dispute or a portion thereof (as the case may be) shall be subject to exclusive jurisdiction and venue at the location of the Project. In any such 

Dispute or portion thereof which is resolved by litigation, Trade Contractor expressly waives any right to trial by jury. 

21. 6 Multi party Proceeding. To the extent permitted by Trade Contract Documents, al I parties necessary to reso Ive a claim sha II be pa rues 
to the same dispute resolution proceeding. To the e,ctent Disputes between the Owner and the Trade Contractor involve in whole or In part 

disputes between the CM and the Owner, Disputes between the Trade Contractor and the Owner shall be decided by the same tribunal and in 

the same forum as disputes between the CM and the Owner. 

21.7 Stay of Proceedings. (a) In the event the provisions for resolution of disputes between the CM and the Owner contained in the Trade 
Contract Documents do not permit consolidation or joinderwith disputes of third parties, such as the Trade Contractor, resolution of any Dispute 

between Owner and Trade Contractor involving in whole or in part disputes between CM and Owner shall be stayed pending conclusion of any 
dispute resolution proceeding between CM and Owner. (bl In the event that any action is filed prior to exhaustion of remedies under the 

Agreement; such action shall be stayed pending conclusion of any dispute resolution proceedings. 

21.8 Work Continuation and Payment. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Trade Contractor shall continue the Trade Work and maintain 

the Schedule of Work during any dispute resolution proceedings. As Trade contractor continues to perform, Owner shall continue to make 

payments in accordance with this Agreement. 

21.9 Cost of Dispute Resolution;Attorneys' Fees. The cost of any mediation proceeding shall be shared equally by the parties participating. 

21.9.1 The prevailing party in any Dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or Its breach that is resolved by a dispute 

resolution procedure designated in the Trade Contract Documents shall be entitled to recover from the other party any remedies 

available under Oklahoma law after direct discussions and mediation. 

21.9.2 In the event the Trade Contractor is awarded an amount equal to or less than the last written offer of settlement from Owner, 

prior to the commencement of binding dispute resolution, Owner shall be deemed prevailing party and be entitled to recover those 

reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses (including expert fees and expenses) incurred by the Owner. 

22. Miscellaneous 

22.1 No one, other than the parties hereto, their successors, trustees and assigns, shall be entitled to bring action on this Agreement or the 

Performance Bond provided by the Trade Contractor, it being the express intent of the parties that this Agreement shall not be for the benefit of 

any thlrd pa My. 

22.2 Any term or provision of this Agreement which is held to be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, 

be Ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without rendering invalid or unenforceable the remaining terms and provisions 

of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction. 

22.3 This Agreement, together with the documents referred to or incorporated herein by reference, constitute the complete agreement 

between the parties. No agent or employee of either party possesses the authority to make, and the parties shall not be bound by nor liable for, 

any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein. Any article, section, paragraph or other headings contained in this 

Agreement are for reference purposes and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

22.4 The terms and provisions shall extend to and be binding upon the successors, trustees and assigns of the parties hereto, and shall be 

governed and controlled, except as expressly provided herein or as required by the Trade Contract Documents, by the laws of the State of the 

Oklahoma. 

22.5 The Trade Contractor agrees to comply wtth the provisions and any applicable local, state or federal ordinance, regulation, status, or 

other mandate regarding affirmative action and/or minority/women's business enterprise participation. 

22.6 This Agreement has not been altered In any manner from its original form as sent to the Trade Contractor except for required 

signatures and dates, or as clearly marked and initialed by this Trade Contractor. Any changes to this Agreement not initialed by the Owner will 

not be binding. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 12 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-075419 
Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



~- Schedule Of Exhibit=; m 1he·Agreement 

A 

Emlbitk 
Ellfllbit 8: 
Ellblbllli: 
bhl~t[!.: 
E>chlbitE: 
Exhibit F, 
EXhlblt. G: 

EllhltiitH: 

llie.Trai!e Contractor's SalpiH:ifWorl\. lilcllidliig~Jtematllie.J)I' Unit prfcts 
!11S1Jrance· Requ iremenn 
Fllntco Pollcie&/l>roced ui"e's .Adlnowle d_gement of Obtaining Form 
Ll$t of Ol'J!wing!, ~clfic:ati c,ns and_ Addenda 
scliedul! of Work" 
Certlf!catlon ofNon·S¢g,:ega~- Facllrtle, 
Payment.an1!Pe'rfotman,;e Bond forms 
Taii El<emptlon Certificate 

SUSAND.FYE 
Nolaiy !?vb~~-S\elll _of Okl~hnma 
COl!lmissioll Number 1 OIIOJOt1 

My commission Exf)iras Apr 14, 2022 

MWOR:~~,y~ 
BY: -L~K(..~~~~!::::!....:::::::-=====--

PRINT NAME: Dan Wedman 

PRlNTTITLE: General Manager 

oesrgnijt1HW,eofo(«anlzilti/m: { ) COfi!oratl<il'I ( ) Partlie1$hip .( 1 Sole Proprietorship _.IX) LLC _( J Other 

Organized irrthe Stateo_f_0_-1Jd_ ah_· ·_o_ro_a _________ _ 

Witli its principal place of-business-at_ 8090 Glade. Avenue, OKC, OK 73132 

ATTEST: BY: 

PRINTNAME: 

.PRINT Till£: 

ATTEST: BY: 

PRINT NAME: Michsel Willls 

Approved as -to form: 

ATTEST: BV: I\d!IAfu,J:(~ 
PRINT NAME: Nr,)CV\_ 6eltA.s 

V 

P.~I NT TITLE: Assistant Qlstritt Atto,ney 

~-'1inl/W19 TIIAD~ffO. HQ-07.5419 
P&ge U of 13 Mein> llogflns c., mpany, U.C. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR- SCOPE OF WORK 
Exhibit A 

Poge 1 of z 

BID PACKAGE 07A: ROOFING, SHEET METAL FLASHING & TRIM, PREFABRICATED 
ROOF SPECIALTIES & ROOF ACCESSORIES • COMPLETE 

Specification 
Section Description 

Procurement and Contracting Requirements 

General Requirements 

DIVISION 0 

DIVISION 1 

061000 
070150.19 
075419 
071800 
076200 
077200 
079005 

Rough Carpentry, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 

Preparation for Re-Roofing, Complete 
PVC Thermoplastic Single-Ply Roofing, complete 
Traffic Coatings, Complete 
Sheet Metal Flashing and Trim, complete 
Roof Accessories, complete 

DIV. 22& 23 

Joint Sealers, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
MECHANICAL, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 

DIV. 26 ELECTRICAL, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
{In addition to the Specification Sections listed, Bidders will include work from referenced specifications and other work normally 
associated with this trade whether referenced or not.) 

Definition ofTerm$ 
Contractor= Bidder 
Construction Manager= Flintco, LLC 
Owner =Tulsa County 
Architect= GH2 Architects 

The scope of work of this bid package shall also include the following items, but without limiting the scope of work as provided 
above: 

1) Elevator Sizes: 
a. Basement - 1st floor Service Elevator - 77" W x 5' -4" D x 7'-7" Tall 
b. 1s1 _ 91h Floors, all elevators - 6'-7" W x 4'-7" D x 7'-7" Tall 
c. Roof on cabs is not removable and there are no hatches 
d. There is no platform on top of elevator and material/ personnel are prohibited from riding on top of the cab. 

2.) Furnish and install all roofing systems, including but not limited to single-ply roofing, sheet metal flashing & trim, 
prefabricated roof specialties and roof accessories complete in accordance with the contract documents and manufacturer's 
installation instructions. 

3.) Furnish and install all underlayments, sheathing, insulation, roof flashings, wood blocking, roofing material, insulation, 
waterproofing and all attachment accessories for a complete installation. 

4.) Contractor to provide demolition of existing roofing as shown on the Contract Documents. Include cleaning of existing 
concrete deck after roofing is removed. Include wrapping up membrane on walls at a height that matches existing. 

5.) Provide and install any temporary weather protection measures necessary to keep the building water tight and protect the 
existing conditions during construction activities. This includes temporary waterproofing covers over penetrations of roof 
deck after equipment is removed. 

6.) Protect the existing roof at all limes when required to work on or near the existing roof. Any damage of existing roof by this 
contractor will be the responsibility of this contractor to make repairs to maintain watertighness. 

7.) Contractor responsible for on-site dumpsters required for the scope of work of this bid package. 
8.) Furnish and install insulation material for all roofs as specified and as required for positive drainage. Include any tapered 

insulation as required. Provide shop drawing of all crickets showing Hlicknesses and locations of roof drains, RT Units etc. 
for placement coordination. 

9.) Include roofing manufacturer's full system warranty and applicator's guarantee for roofing materials and installation, 
including sheet metal work as specified. 

10.) Furnish and install all roof-related flashing, snap-in counter flashing and sheet metal for all roof and parapet penetrations, 
copings, pre-finished downspouts, mechanical equipment. support structures, etc. as required for a complete installation. 

TRADE NO.I-IQ-075419 
Metro Roofing Company, llC. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR- SCOPE OF WORK 
Exhibit A 

Page 2 of 2 

Include manufactured metal curbs, metal fascia, neoprene roof bellows, coping caps, eave flashing, counter flashing, cleats, 
and all other roof flashing. Exclude through-wall flashings in the masonry and roof curbs that are part of the mechanical 
equipment. 

11.) Furnish and install all pre-finished guttering and downspouts as indicated on the Contract Documents. Include gutter liner 
and ice/water barrier as shown. Include all integral guttering systems with all blocking and flashing required. 

12.) Furnish and install all drains and scuppers as shown on the Contract Documents. Include connecting to collection boxes. 
Exclude roof drains and piping in the plumbing package. 

13.) Contractor to furnish and install all required sealing, flashing or other non-standard items required for the Lightning 
Protection System to not void the roof warranty. 

14.) Furnish and install roof expansion joints~ shown on the Contract Documents. 
15.) Furnish and install all prefabricated roof specialties including, but not limited to, snow guards, ice and water shield, splash 

blocks at roofs and at grade, gravel stops, and wall vents as required to install a complete roof in accordance with the 
contract documents and manufacturer's installation instructions. 

16.) Furnish and install all roof hatches and Roof Access Ladders (section 077200) as shown on the Contract Documents. 
Include wood blocking, supports, fasteners, mounting brackets, and all accessories required for a complete installation. 

17.) Furnish and install caulking materials associated with the roof, roof expansion joints, roof hatches, sheet metal, and 
prefabricated roof specialties installation as required by the contract documents. 

18.) Furnish and install all wood blocking, wood curbs, nailers, nailable sheathing, impact board, densdeck and gypsum board 
sheathing as required for the installation of the roofing systems in accordance with roofing manufacturer's standard details 
including, but not limited to, the 2x blocking shown al the tops of the parapets, at the roof edge, cant strips, roof expansion, 
sheathing at the backside of the parapets, and sheathing beneath roof system on metal deck. 

19.) All colors and finishes shall be as required by the contract documents. 
20.} Provide and perform all roofing related testing and quality control work in accordance w~h the contract documents. 
21.) Furnish and install all components of the pitch pans at roof penetrations if required. 
22.) Furnish and install all roof walkway protection systems and walk pads as required by the contract documents. 
23.) Furnish and install waterproof roof deck surfacing as shown. 
24.) Examine all sub-surfaces or substrates prior to beginning work and report any conditions detrimental to the roofing system. 

Commencement of work will be construed as acceptance of all surfaces. 
25.) Include traffic control and roof protection during installation. 
26.} Include flagmen and/or barricades below roofing operations. 
27.) This bid package is intended to be all inclusive of labor, material, and equipment for complete and watertight roofing and 

flashing system as required by the contract documents. 
28.) Contractor will provide means of access to their work including ladders, etc. as required for a complete installation of the 

scope of th is package. 
29.) Contractor to have roofing manufacturer visit site during construction to review, approve and confirm installation is per the 

manufacturer's recommendations as required by Contract Documents. 
30.) Contractor lo install and maintain safety measures for working in leading edge condnions. 
31.) Coordinate tie-in work by this contractor with work by other trades to insure a complete and continuous exterior building 

envelope with the integrity as required by the contract documents. 
32.) Contractor shall coordinate installation dates with Construction Manager. See Item 32 and schedule for hoisting. 
33.) Contractor can utilize erection crane. See General Bid Package for usage parameters and Bid Package 5B Structural Steel 

Erection for crane reach. 

NOTE: Each week, the Construction Manager will specify one day for general cleanup. During the extent of your 
contract, you will provide the Construction Manager with ONE laborer for this cleanup. This will not supersede daily 
cleanup of the work area as stipulated in Bid Package General Requirements (Document 0~00). 

Accepted Alternate Scope: All work associated wijh roofing/ flashing around sun shade support columns at 91h floor. 

Liquidated Damages for this scope will be $0 per day. 

TRADE NO.H0:-075419 

Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The contractor (and any Sub-contractors) shall carry and keep in force du ring this Contract, policies of insu ranee in minimum 

amounts as set forth below, or as required by the laws of the State of Oklahoma: 

Exhibit B 
Page 1 of 1 

1. General Liability Insurance providing for a combined amount of not less than $200,000 for all damages arising out of 

bodily injury, death and property damage for each occurrence with an aggregate limit of $300,000, and an excess 

umbrella liability coverage of $2,000,000; 

2. Workers Compensation Insurance and Employee Liability Insurance as required by Workers Compensation laws of 

the State of Oklahoma; 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Insurance; and 

4. Errors and Omissions Coverage (only applicable to Architect or Engineering Services). 

Note: Builders Risk Insurance wlll be the responsibility of the Construction Manager and therefore should not be included. 

IMPORTANT: 
The Contractor shall name the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County, Oklahoma as an additional insured; 

The Contractor shall furnish Certificates of Insurance which shall provide that said insurance will not be cancelled by the 

Insurer without Insurer providing thirty (30} days written notice to the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County; 

The Insurance specified shall be acquired from an Insurance Company properly licensed by the State of Oklahoma to 

provide such coverage in the State of Oklahoma. 

TRADE NO.HQ.07S419 
Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



METR022 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MMIODIYYYY) 

05/22/2019 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 405-418-8600 1.i~l:lI~cT Robbie Mitchell 
RICH & CARTMILL· OKC ~P~H""oN'"'E~-4~0~5,--4~1~8,--8=-c6cccOc-cO-------,-l=FA~X~-4..,.,0,..,5,---47""1~8,--8=6~4c--c1~ ---, 
9401 Cedar Lake Avenue (Alt, No, Ext): • • (A/C, Nol: • __ 
Oklahoma City, OK 73114 ~~nAJ~.,~- rmitchell@rcins.com 
Randall D Webb t-""""'"'....,,...._ ___ ~--------------,-----1 

JNSUR,Eg fo1borJ~&fa~A' Co., LLC. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73132 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 

INSURERISI AFFORDING~ C=O=IJ=E=RAG= E~-------,1---N=A=IC= #~----1 

INSURER A, Continental Insurance Co. 
INSURER 8 : National Fire Ins of Hartford 
INSURER c: Columbia Casualty Co. 27812 

INSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

REVISION NllllCC:D• 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOl\MTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT 'MTH RESPECT TO \f\l'HICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOINN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

TYPE 01' INSURANCE 

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY -• CLAIMS-MADE [K OCCUR - - ----------
- ----------- , 

R
GEN.'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER 

POLICY [K] )r& • LOC 

OTHER: 

A ~ TOMOBILE LIABILITY 

X AI-IYAUTO 
,__ OWNED 
~ ALITOSONLY 

,__ ~~E&ONLY 

~ SCHEDULED 
~ ALITOS 

I- ~81Hl"mr't9 

POLICY NUMBER 

X X 6057435078 

6057435095 

A l!_j UMBRELLA LIAS L!J OCCUR 

n EXCESSLIAB n CLAIMS-MADE X X 6057435114 

I DED I X I RETENTION$ 10000 
8 WORKERS COMPENSATION ~ 

AND EM PLOVERS' LIABILITY 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE ~NI N N I A 

I 

X I 057435100 
QfFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED? ~ 
(Mondalo<y ln IIIHJ 

~i~~~ 'b'ttiPERATIONS below 

A Equipment Floater I ~57435078 
C Pollution/Prof CE06057423576 

POLICY EPF POLICY !XP 
LIMITS 

EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 
05,01/2019 05/01/2020 B*~~~J9E~~~~Pe:',cei s 100,000 

r'-'ME=D= EX= P~,A=n,~ .. o=ne=,c=,E=rs=on~; --t~S-----:1-::5-::,0:-::0-=10 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY S 1,000,000 
CEt-!EBAL~ GGREGATE s 2,000,000 
PRODUCTS -COMP/OPAGG S 2,000,000 

05101/2019 05/01/2020 BODILY INJURY (Per oerson) S 

05101/2019 05/01/2020 

05/01/2019 05/01/2020 

BODILY INJURY /Per eccidentl S 

EACH OCCURREr-K;E 

AGGREGATE 

I OTH
ER 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 

s 
s 

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEr=: S 

E.L. DISEASE· POLICY LIMIT S 

05/01/2019105/01/2020 
01/17/2019 05/01/2020 PolUProf 

1,000,000 

5,000,000 
5,000,000 

1,000,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

2,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS I !JEHi CLES (ACORD 101, AddiUonal Rema,b Scnadule, may b& -t;hed if more spaco is required) 

Project: Tulsa County Administration Bulldlng Renovations 
ProJect Number: HEADQ 
Certificate holder, architect, architect's consultants and owner are 
additional insured when required by written contract. 
SEE ATTACHED HOLDER NOTES 

CERTIS:[CATE HnLO~D 

Flintco LLC 
1624 W. 21st Street 
Tulsa, OK 74107 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 

FLINT-1 
CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHOFII"'° REPRESENTATIVE 

/-µ; 1,/.wt,, 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



NOTEPAD: HOlDERCODE 

1NsuRED'SNAME Metro Roofing Co., LLC. 
METR022 
OP ID: R6 

Board of County Commissioners of Tu1sa County, Oklahoma is included as 
additional insured as respects to general liability {on a primary & non
contributory basis) auto liability & excess liability as requirea by 
written contract. Waiver of subrogation is included in favor of 
certificate holder as respects to general liability, auto liability, 
excess liability and workers compensation as required by written contract . 
Certificate holaers is included as additional insured as respects to 
genera1 liability for ongoing operations and products/completed operations 
as required by written contract. 
The Contractor shall furnish certificates of insurance wbicb shall provide 
that said insurance will not be cancelled by the insurer without insurer 
providing thirty (30) days written notice to the Board of County 
Commissioners of Tulsa County except for non payment which is 10 days 
notice. 
The insurance specified shall be acgµired from an insurance company 
properly licensed by the State of ORlaboma to provide such coverage in the 
State of Oklahoma. 

PAGE 2 

Date 05/28/2019 



FLINTCO POLICIES/PROCEDURES 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF OBTAINING FORM 

Exhibit C 
Page 1 of 1 

The following Policies and Procedures are part of the Agreement by reference. (Obtain documents at www.flintco.com, Select Subcontractors 
tab and then click on Forms.} 

• Substance Free Workplace: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Flintco, LLC policy statement regarding Substance Free Workplace 
and have read and understand my obllgatlons under this policy, 

• Firearm, Weapons-Free Worl<place Polley: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy the Fllntco, LLC policy statement regarding Firearm, 

Weapons-Free Workplace and have read and understar1d my obligations under this policy, 

• Smoke-Free Workplace: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Flintco, LLC policy statement regardir1g a Smok~Free Workplace and 
have read and understand my obligations under this policy, 

• Safety Manual: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Flintco, LLC Safety Manual and have read and understand my obligations 

regarding Job Site safety. 

• Certification of Nonsegregated Facllltles: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Fllntco, LLC policy statement regarding a 

Nonsegregated Facility and have read and understand my obligations under this policy, 

Trade Contractor acknowledges obtaining a copy of and agrees to comply with CM policies and procedures related to Trade Contractor 
performance on the jobsite. 

Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 
Trade Contractor Name 

Signature of Trade Contractor Representative 

5/31/19 
Date 

Return this signed form with your executed Trade. 

TRADE NO.HQ-075419 
Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



Specifications: 

Addenda: 

Drawings: 

DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS & ADDENDA 

Tulsa County Administration Building 

20180005 
Project Manual 
Volume 1& 2 
03/25/2019 

Addendum #lA Dated 04/08/2019 
Addendum #2A Dated 04/29/2019 

CM Clarification #1 Dated 04/08/2019 
CM Clarification #2 Dated 04/29/2019 

As listed in Sheet Index on Sheet CSl Cover Sheet 

Tulsa County Administration Building 
GH2 Architects 
Project #20180005 
03/25/2019 Conformed Set 

Exhibit D 

Page 1 of1 

TRADE NO.HQ-075419 
Metro Roofing Company, LLC. 



SCHEDULE OF WORK 

Exhibit E 
Page 1 of 1 

THE CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE WILL BE MAINTAINED AT THE PROJECT SITE AND WILL BE UPDATED AS WORK PROGRESSES. 
TRADE CONTRACTOR WILL GIVE IN PUT REGARDING THE SCH EDU LE AT REGULARLY SCHEDULED PROGRESS 
MEETINGS. TRADE CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW THE MOST CURRENT VERSION OF THE SCHEDULE MAINTAINED BY CM AND 
PERFORM THE SUBCONTRACT WORK ACCORDING TO THAT SCHEDULE. 

TRADE NO.HQ-075419 
Metro Roofing Comp, ny, LLC. 



CERTIFICATION OF 
NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES 

Exhibit F 

Page 1 of 1 

By the submission of this bid, the bidder, offeror, applicant, or subcontractor certified that he does not maintain or provide for his 
employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he does not permit his employees to perform their services at 
any location under his control, where segregated facilities are maintained. He certifies further that he will not maintain or provide for his 
employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he will not permit his employees to perform their services at 
any locatiOn, under his control where segregated facilities are maintained. The bidder, offeror, applicant or subcontractor agrees that a 
breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity clause in this Contract. As used in this certification, the term 
·segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms. restaurants and other eating areas, time 
ciocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, 
transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by e)[plicit directive or are in fact segregated on the 
basis of race, creed, color or national origin, because of habit, local custom or otherwise. He further agrees that (except where he has 
obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors or specific lime period) he will obtain identical certifications from 
proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provision of Equal 
Opportunity clause; that he will retain such certifications in his files; and that he will forward the following notice to such subcontractors 
(except where the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods): 

Notice to Prospective Subcontractors of Requirements for Certifications of Nonsegregated Facilities. 

Notification of Nonsegregated Facilities, as required by the May 9, 1967, order on Elimination of Segregated Facilities, by the Secretary 
of Labor (32 Fed. Reg. 7439, May 19, 1967), must be submitted prior to the award of a subcontract exceeding $10,000 which is not 
exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause. The certification may be submitted either for each subcontractor or for all 
subcontracts during a period (i.e. quarterly, semiannually, or annually). 

Note: The penalty for making false statement in offers is prescribed in 1 B U.S.C. 1001. 

Firm Comeanl Name 
I I Metro Roofing Com~1y, L~ 

Signature of Authorized Representative /J~I _1,, ..... 
Name of Authorized Representative (Print or Type) 

Dan Wedman 
Title of Authorized Representative 

General Mana2.er 

Return this signed form with your executed subcontract. 



Exhibit G 
Page 1 of 8 

Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations 

• Tulsa County Purchasing 
#413787P Payment Bond 

Niy singular rafe,ence to Contractor, Surety, Owner or oilier party shall be considered plural where applicable. This document may not be altered or modified. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): 

Metro Roofing Company, LLC 

8090 Glade Avenue 

Oklahoma City, OK 73132 

OWNER: Tulsa County Board of County Commissfoners 
Tulsa County Administration Building 
500 South Denver Avenue 

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Date: May 20, 2019 

Amount: $ 569.895.00 -""'""-'""""'"'"""''------

SURETY (Name and Principal Place 0f Su5iness): 

Developers Surely and Indemnity Company 
1771 Cowan, Suite 100 
Irvine, CA 92614 

Description (Name and Location): . • . B "Id' R 1· 
Tulsa Counly Adm1mslrat1on u1 1ng enova ions 
Bid Package 07A- Roofing. Sheet Metal Flashing & Trim 

BOND; 

Date (Not eartier than Construction Contract Date): May 22, 2019 

Amount: S 569.895.00 

CONTRACTOR (Repres 

Metro Roofing Compa • 

Signature: 

Name and Title: J. ~ • e: M.e..l.C 1-\ 

(FOR JNFDRMA TJON ONLY-Name, Address and Telephone) 

AGENT or BROKER: 
Insurance Agency or Mid-America, Inc. 
PO Box 890300 
Oklahoma City, OK 73189 
(405) 691-0016 

DCAMICAP - FORM A312B (08/2012) 

SURETY (Representative): ,. ........ 

_Developers S!!:nd l~d!::?:~ 

Signature: CZJ-laa ,~ 
Name and TIiie: Lisa K. Sherman -AttomeYtin-Fact; 

~ ' 
-. 

., . 
'•f 

.. ,~· . ~ , .. 

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE (Architect, Engineer or other party): 

Flintco, LLC 
1624 W. 21st St., Tulsa OK 74107 
GH2 Architects 
320 S Boston Ave., Suite 100, Tulsa OK 74103 

PAYMENT BOND PAGE 1 OF 3 



1 The Contractor and the Surety, jointly and severally, bind 
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors 
and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor, materials and 
equipment furnished for use in the performance of the 
Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

2 With respect to the Owner, this obligation shall be null and 
void if the Contractor: 

2.1 PrompUy makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all 
sums due Claimants, and 

2.2 Defends, indemnifies and holds harmless the Owner 
from claims, demands, liens or suits by any person or 
entity whose claim, demand, lien or suit is for the payment 
for labor, materials or equipment furnished for use in the 
performance of the Construction Contract, provided the 
Owner has promptly notified the Contractor and the Surety 
(at the address described in Paragraph 12) of any claims, 
demands, liens or suits to the Contractor and the Surety, 
and provided there is no Owner Default. 

3 With respect to Claimants, this obligation shall be null and 
void if the Contractor promptly makes payment, directly or 
indirectly, for all sums due. 

4 The Surety shall have no obligation to Claimants under 
this Bond until: 

4.1. Claimants who are employed by or have a direct 
contract with the Contractor have given notice to the 
Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 12) and 
sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the Owner, stating that a 
claim is being made under this Bond and, with substantial 
accuracy, the amount of the claim. 

4.2. Claimants who do not have a direct contract with the 
Contractor: 

4.2.1. Have furnished written notice to the 
Contractor and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the 
Owner, within 90 days after having last performed 
labor or last furnished materials or equipment 
included in the claim stating, with substantial 
accuracy, the amount of the claim and the name of 
the party to whom the materials were furnished or 
supplied or for whom the labor was done or 
performed; and 

4.2.2. Have either received a rejection in whole or 
in part from the Contractor, or not received within 30 
days of furnishing the above notice any 
communication from the Contractor by which the 
Contractor has indicated the claim will be paid directly 
or indirectly; and 

4.2.3. Not having been paid within the above 30 
days, have sent a written notice to the Surety (at the 
address listed on Page 1) and sent a copy, or notice 
thereof, to the Owner, stating that a claim is being 
made under this Bond and enclosing a copy of the 
previous written notice furnished to the Contractor. 

DCAM/CAP -FORM A312B (08/2012) 

Exhibit: G 
Page• of 7 

5 If a notice required by Paragraph 4 is given by the Owner 
to the Contractor orto the Surety, that is sufficient compliance. 

6 When the Claimant has satisfied the conditions of 
Paragraph 4, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's 
expense take the following actions: 

6.1 Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the 
Owner, within 45 days after receipt of the claim, stating the 
amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging 
any amounts that are disputed. 

6.2 Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed 
amounts. 

7 The Surety's total obligation shall not exceed the amount 
of this Bond, and the amount of this Bond shall be credited for 
any payments made in good faith by the Surety. 

8 Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the 
Construction Contract shall be used for the performance of the 
Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any 
Construction Performance Bond. By the Contractor furnishing 
and the Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds 
earned by the Contractor in the performance of the 
Construction Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of 
the Contractor and the Surety under this Bond. subject to the 
Owner's priority to use the funds for the completion of the 
work. 

9 The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including 
changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related 
subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations. 

10 No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under 
this Bond other than in a court of competent jurisdiction or after 
the expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the 
Claimant gave the notice required by Subparagraph 4. 1 or 
Clause 4.2.3, or (2) on which the last labor or service was 
perfom,ed by anyone or the last materials or equipment were 
furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, 
whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the provisions of this 
Paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of 
limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of 
the suit shall be applicable. 

11 Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be 
mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature 
page. Actual receipt of notice by Surety, the Owner or the 
Contractor, however accomplished, shall be sufficient 
compliance as of the date received at the address shown on 
the signature page. 

12 When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a 
statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the 
construction was to be performed, any provision in this Bond 
conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be 
deemed deleted herefram and provisions conforming to such 
statutory or other legal requirement shall be deem incorporated 
herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a 
statutory bond and not as a common law bond. 

13 Upon request by any person or entity appearing to be a 
potential beneficiary of this Bond, the Contractor shall promptly 
furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made. 

PAYMENT BOND PAGE 2 OF 3 



14 DEFINITIONS 

14.1. Claimant: An individual or entity having a direct 
contract with the Contractor or with a subcontractor of the 
Contractor to furnish labor, materials or equipment for use 
in the performance of the Contract. The intent of this 
Bond shall be to include without limitation in the terms 
"labor, materials or equipment" that part of water, gas, 
power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental 
equipment used in the Construction Contract, architectural 
and engineering services required for perfomiance of the 
work of the Contractor and the Contractor's 
subcontractors, and all other items for which a mechanic's 
lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, 
materials or equipment were furnished. 

14.2. Construction Contract The agreement between 
the Owner and the Contractor identified on the signature 
page, including all Contract Documents and changes 
thereto. 

14.3. Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has 
neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the Contractor 
as required by the Construction Contract. 

DCAMICAP. FORM A312B (0812012) 

Exhibit G 
Page 3 of 7 

PAYMENT BONO PAGE 3 OF 3 



El<hibit. <l 
Fage 4 <>f 8 

Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations 

• Tulsa County Purchasing 
#413787P Performance Bond 

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or olher party shall !le c.Jnsidered plural where applicable. This document may not be altered or modified. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and A!ldress): 

Metro Roofing Company, LLC 
8090 Glade Avenue 
Oklahoma City, OK 73132 

OWNER: Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 

Tulsa County Administration Building 
500 South Denver Avenue 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Dale: May 20, 2019 

Amoll!lt: $ 
569,895.00 

SURETY (Name and Principal Place of Business): 

Developers Surety and Indemnity Company 
1771 Cowan, Suite 100 
Irvine, CA 92614 

Descrlption {Name and Location): Tulsa County Administration Building Renovations - Bid Package 07 A 
Roofing, Sheet Metal Flashing & Trim 

BOND: 

Date (Not earlier than Conslruclion Contract Date): May 22, 2019 

Amount: s 
569,895.00 

CONTRACTOR {Representaliv 

Metro Roofing Companv-, .... ,.,,._, £ 

Signilture: ,, 
Name and Tille: 3: e ' Ern el(!_~ • i'Vlcmrt~ 

(FDR INFORMA T/ON ONLY-Name. Address and Telephone) 

AGENT or BROKER: 

Insurance Agency of Mid-America, Inc. 
PO Box 890300 
Oklahoma City, OK 73189 
(405) 691-0016 

DCAMICAP-FORM A312A (081.2012) 

SURETY (Representative): 

Developers $rff an~ lndemni~ 

Signature: (41.J4a , t< .~ 
Name a11d Tille: Lisa K. Sherman • Attomiy-in•Facl 

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE (Architect, Engineer or other party): 

Fllntco, LLC 
1624 W. 21st St, Tulsa OK 74107 
GH2 Architects 
3.20 S Boston Ave., Suite 100, Tulsa OK 74103 

PERFORMANCE BOND PAGE 1 OF 3 



1. The Contractor and the Surety, jointiy and severally, bind 
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors 
and a s s i g n s t o t h e Owner f o r the perfonnance o f the 
Construction Contract, which is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

2. If the Contract or perfonns the Construction contract, the 
Surety and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this 
Bond, except to participate in conferences as provided in 
Subparagraph 3.1. 

3. The Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after: 

3.1 The Owner has notified the Contractor and the Surety 
at its address on Page 1 that the Owner is considering 
declaring a Contractor Default as described in Paragraph 
10 and has requested and attempted to arrange a 
conference with the Contractor and the Surety to be held 
not later than ten (10) days after receipt of such notice to 
discuss methods of performing the Construction Contract. 
If the Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, the 
Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to 
perform the Construction Contract, but such an 
agreement shall not waive the Owner's right, if an 
y, subsequently to declare a Contractor's Default; 
and 

3.2 The Owner has declared a Contractor Default and 
formally terminated the Contractor's right to complete the 
contract. Such Contractor Default shall not be declared 
earlier than seven (7) days after the Contractor and the 
Surety have received notice as provided in Subparagraph 
3.1; and 

3.3 The Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the 
Contract Price to the Surety in accordance with the terms 
of the Construction Contract or to a contractor selected to 
perfonn the Construction Contract in accordance with the 
terms of the contract with the Owner. 

4. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 
3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take 
one of the following actions. 

4.1 Arrange for a Contractor, with consent of the Owner 
to perform and complete the Construction Contract; or ' 

4,2 Undertake to perform and complete the Construction 
Contract itself, through its agents or through independent 
contractors; or 

4.3 Obtain proposals or negotiated proposals from 
qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a 
contract for performance and completion of the 
Construction Contract, arrange for a contract to be 
prepared for execution by the Owner and the contractor 
selected with the Owner's concurrence, to be secured with 
perfonnance and payment bonds executed by a qualified 
surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction 
Contract, and pay to the Owner the amount of damages 
as described in Paragraph 6 in excess of the Balance of 
the Contract Price incurred by the Owner resulting from 
the Contractor's default; or 

4.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for 
completion, or obtain a new contractor and with 

DCAMfCAP • FORM A312A (08/2012) 

Exhibit G 
Page 5 of 7 

reasonable promptness under the circumstances: 

4.1.1. After investigation, determine the amount for 
which it may be liable to the Owner, and as soon as 
practicable after the amount is determined, tender 
payment therefor to the Owner; or 

4.1.2. Deny liability in whole or in pa rt and notify the 
Owner citing reasons therefor. 

5. If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 4 
with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be 
in default on this Bond fourteen (14) days after receipt of an 
additional written notice from the Owner to the Surety 
demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this 
Bond, and the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy 
available to the Owner. If the Surety proceeds as provided in 
Subparagraph 4.4, and the Owner refuses the payment 
tendered or the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, 
without further notice the Owner shall be entitled to enforce 
any remedy available to the Owner. 

6. After the Owner has terminated the Contractor's right to 
complete the Construction Contract, and if the Surety elects to 
act under Subparagraph 4.1, 4.2, or 4.3 above, then the 
responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not be greater 
than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, 
and the responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety shall not be 
greater than those of the Owner under the Construction 
Contract. To the limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to 
commitment by the Owner of the Balance of the Contract Price 
to mitigation of costs and damages on the Construction 
Contract, the Surety is obligated without duplication for: 

6.1 The responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of 
defective work and completion of the Construction 
Contract; 

8.2 Additional legal, design professional and delay costs 
resulting from the Contractor's Default, and resulting from 
the actions or failure to act of the Surety under Paragraph 
4;and 

6.3 Liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are 
specified in the Construction Contract, actual damages 
caused by delayed performance or no n-perfonnance of 
the Contractor. 

7. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including 
changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to r elated 
subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations. 

8. Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be 
mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature 
page. 

9. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a 
statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the 
construction was to be perfonned, any provisions in this Bond 
conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be 
deemed deleted here from and provisions conforming to such 
statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed 
incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be 
construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond. 

PERFORMANCE BOND PAGE 2 OF 3 



10. DEFINITIONS 

10.1 Balance of th e Contract Price: T he total amount 
payable by the Owner to the Contractor under the 
Construction Contract after all proper adjustments have 
been made, including allowance to the Contractor of a ny 
amounts received or to be received by the Owner in 
Settlement of i nsurance or ot her claims for damag es to 
which the Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and 
proper payments made to o r on behalf of the Contracto r 
under the Construction Contract. 

10.2Construction Contract: The agreement between the 
Owner and the Contractor identified on the sig nature 
page, including all Co ntract Documents and ch anges 
thereto. 

10.3Contraclor Default: Failure of the Contractor, which 
has neither been remedied nor waived, to perform or 
otherwise to c amply with the terms of th e Construction 
Contract. 

10.40wner Default Failure of the O wner, which has 
neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the Contractor 
as required by the Construction Contract. 

DCAM/CAP- FORM A312A (0812012) 

Exllibit G 
Page 6 of 7 

PERFORMANCE BOND PAGE 3 OF 3 



• 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, 

:;;xhibic G 
!>age 7 of 8 

Tulsa County Purchasing 
#413787P Statutory Defect Bond 

61 O.S. 1991, Section 113 (B)(3) 

That Metro Roofing Company. LLC • as Principal and Developers Surety and Indemnity Company 
a corporation organized under the laws of the State of California and authorized to transact business 
in the State of Oklahoma, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, 
in the penal sum of 
"** .. Five Hundred Sixty Nine Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety Five & OOf,00............................... Dollars($ 569.895.00 l 
in lawful money of the United States of America, said sum being equal to One Hundred percent (100%) of the Contract price, for the 
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and each of us. our heirs, executors. administrators, trustees, 
successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents: 

The condition of this obligation is such that 

WHEREAS, said Principal entered into a written contract with the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County. 
dated May 20, 2019 • for Tulsa County Administration Building Renovations - Bid Package 07 A Roofing 

Roofing, Sheet Metal Flashing & Trim all in compliance with the plans and specifications therefore. made 
a part of said contract and on file In the Tulsa County Clerk's Office, 500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa. Oklahoma 74103. 

NOW, THEREFORE. if said Principal shall pay or cause to be paid to the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County 
all damage, loss. and expense which may result by reason of defective materials andfor workmanship in connection with said work, 
occurring within a period of one (1) year from and after the acceptance of said project by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Tulsa County; then this obligation shall be null and void. otherwise to be and remain in full force and effect 

It is expressly agreed and understood by the parties hereto that no changes or alterations in said Contract and no deviations 
from the plan or mode of procedure herein fixed shall have the effect of releasing the sureties, or any of them, from the obligations of 
this Bond. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Principal has caused these presents to be executed in its name and its corporate seal to 
be hereunto affixed b" its duly authorized officers, and the said Surety has caused these presents to be executed in its·ria~~-~~ii'its 

~ '\ , 

corporate seal to be hereunto affixed by its attorney-in-fact. duly authorized so to do. the day and year set forth b:fow. 

DATED this 22nd dayof May 

ATTEST: 

DCAMfCAP- FORM A312C (08/2015) 

,. 
-·· .,, sz:. Devl~ and lndemnily .pompany 

UM) &>1U!--1~ 
{Attomey~n-Facl sig/,ature} . 

By· Lisa K. Sherman 
(A rtomay-in.Faci Printed Naroo/ 

17771 Cowan, Suite 100 
/Swvty Address) 

Irvine. CA 92614 
(City, State. Zip} 

405-759-8206 
(Telephone) 

Tina.Switzer@amtrustgroup.com 
(Emall) 

STATUTORY DEFECT BOND PAGE 1 OF 1 



POWER OF ATTORNEY FOR 
DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY 

PO Box 19725, IRVJNE. CA92623 (949) 263·3300 

KNOW All BY THESE PRESENTS tho! except as expressly hm.1ed, DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY. dces hereby make, conslitute alld appoi,t 

... William M. McNeil!, John L. Birsner, Kyle D. Reser, Cody M. McNeill, Lisa K. Sherman, John D. Rogers, Rocky D. Moore, Susanne 
M. Cusimano, jointly or severally' .. 

as its !We and la.vlu! Allorne,'{s)-11 •Fac1, 10 maioo. execute, deliver and ackrowledge. toc and on t>eh a II ct ~~id corporation. as sure 11, bomls, und!lrtekings and contfacts cf suret~stlp 
givi11g ~nd granUll!J unto Sllid A:tQlll~y(s}in-Fact full J)i)ITTir and ~ulMrilY 10 do all'.! topeJIQl'm eveiv 1lCt nacessary, requisite or proper lo be done in tonnecticn therewith as said 
corporation could do, but reserving to said corporatioo lull pcwer ol substilulioo and rellOCation. and all or the acts of sald Attomeyls]-in-Fact, pursuant lo these presents, are tiereby 
ra:i~ed arid oonfu~d. 

This Power of Allomey is granted and is s1gneo by facsimile IJ/lder and by authority ol lhe following resolutions adop!ed by the Boa1d of Directors of DEVELOPERS SURETY AND 
JNDEMNITV COMPANY, clfeciive as ol January 1 sl, 2008. 

RESOLVED, that a c(1mlxnaIion of any r.vool lhe Chairma.1 o! the B(l;lrd, Ille Pre~i!lent, Elel:llti\/e V1ce-President, Semcr Vice•Presidenl or V1ce-Pres1dent of the oorpc;:aliD!I 
be. ani1 tllateacho1 !hem hereby is. authorized to execute this Power ol Allomey, qualifying lhe anorney{s) named in lhe Powero! AUomey 10 etl!I.Ule, on benarr ol lhe corporaU011, 
boods, urv.lertakings am contll!cts of su retyshio: a r.d that !he Set.'l!lary or any Assi~lanl Socrel!lry ef lhe corporalion be, and each of thl!m hereby is. au!horized lo a tie.st lhe executiOO oJ 
any !oUch Power of Attorney; 

RESOLVED. FURTHER, tr.at the signalures ohuch officer.; may be affixed 10 any such Power of Attorney or to any certif1ca1e 1eIating lheieto by facsimile, and any suai 
Power o/ Attorney 01 certifttate bearing such facsimlle signalures shaff be valid end biming upon the corporalion when so alli~ed and in lhe future wilh respect lo any bend. undelUlking 
or oonlf!!ct d. &i:retyship !o ?thich tt is a!ladled. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY has caused lhese presents lo be signed by its omcers ar.d attested lly ii$ SeaeIary or Assistant 
S~lary this 41h day of Oclobef. 2018. 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual Who signed the 
docume,it to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accura , er validity of that doel.lment. 

S1aIe o! C'.alfomia 
County of Orange 

On -------'~"'cl,,,obe= ~_,4...,. 20.,"'18"---___ belae me, 
Oak 

L~cille Raymo ncl' Notary Public 
tin IM<rlN""" andTl!!tcl a., Olbr 

pers011ally ;ippeared _________________ .::Oan= ie::..l .:..:Yo:::un::;o..,an=-d "'M='ark=La"-'ns,,,do=--:.n _ ________ ________ _ 
""""!•Io' 57e'l•l 

i············f . • LUCILLE RAYMOMD 
: e• . Nota,y Public· CaHfornla a: 
I i • · · Ora nee County ~ 
~ ' ' Cocnmis.sion 1225B 185 t 

·:. • !' £0':. Expl6es ~ .!liJO~ 
Place Notal)' Seal AJ:ove 

who proved to me oo the basis of salisfaclllry evidence lo be lire pMOr1!sJ whose name(s) is/are subwibed 
lo the 11ilhilt nslrllmeol and acllllowlec:lged to me that hefshe/1hey executed the same in his/herllheir au!JKJize\l 
capacity(iesJ. and Ulil1 by his/1\er/lheir sigOalllle(s) on the instrument lhe person(s), or lhe entity upon behalf of 
whidi !he person(s) acted. eKec~ted the instrument 

I cerlify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the laws cl !he Slate of California th~l lh~ roregoirig pl!ragraph i! 
true and cO,'/ect. 

WITNESS my hand and offtcial seal. 

CERTIFICATE 

The undetsiGned. as secrete.Ty or Assisiant Secrelaly of DEVELOPERS SURETY ANO INDEMNITY COMPANY. does tr~reby eerti!y tllal the fc,regoiog P<lwer of Attorney 
remains in lul fOlte end has rot been re,'Oked a :id, lurtle!ll\ate, lhal 1he provisions of the reso!uti-:>l'.s ol lhe Board of Olreclors cl sa!ll corp,ralioo se\lO!lil in the P9wer ol Memey are in 
force as of tlle date of this Cernlica!e 

This Cenil'.cair: rs eireculed in I~ City ()! Irvine. Caf1JQrnia. this r{A!). ,u} 

By ~/fm,_~ 
day ot ·o 1ay-

ATS-1004 (10118) 



January 2. 2019 

Dear Vendor: 

board 01 County Conmis1i•oners 
Tulsa County Administration Bldg. 
500 South Denver 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 7 4103-3832 
918.596.5000 

STAN SALLEE 
DISTHICT1 
91 B.596.5020 

Exhibit H 
Page 1 of 2 

KAREN KEITH 
DISTRICT2 
918. 598.5015 

RONPEIERS 
DISTRICT3 
918.596..5010 

The Oklahoma Sales Tax Code, 68 O.S. 1991 Section 1356, exempts from the payment of sales taxes all 
political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma. 

Because each County in this State is a political subdivision of the State (Article 17, Section 1 of the 
Constitution of Oklahoma: Herndon v. Anderson, 1656 Okla. 104, 25P2d 328), Tulsa County is exempt 
from all sales tax. 

Sincerely, 

L?Jft"--- CZtt~ 
Karen Keith, Chairman 
Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 

KK:sl 

Approved: 

~ ,'. 
Dougiasdson 

.ul?-
Chief of the Civil Division 

Note: Tulsa County's Federal Identification Tax Number 73-6006419 



Exhibit H 
Page 2 of 2 

Oklahoma Tax Commission 
www .tax.ok.gov 

1111 hi,,, Ii ,I, 11I111•11•1111I 1111111 , 11,1 I• 111 I 11 I 11 II 111 ,I h I 11 
TULSA COUNTY 
500 S DENYER AVE STE 120 
TULSA OK 74103-3832 

AMY 

Date Issued: March 21, 2014 
Letter1D:L089ll54944 

Taxpayer ID: **-***6419 

Oklahoma Sales Tax. Exemption Permit 
Oklahoma State Government 

Non-Transferable 

Permit Number 
68 Oklahoma Slatutcs 2002 Supp., Section 1356( I) Sales of tangible personal propetty or strvi~ 10 the United S1211es Government or to 
!he State of Oklahoma. any political subdivision of tllis stale or any agency of a political subdivision of this state 11re hereby exempted 

EXM-10028212-06 from lhe lax I evied by th is article. 

Business Location Industry Code 

TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 921190 
COM MISSIONERS 
505 J S 129TH EAST A VE 
TULSA OK 74134-7004 

City Code 

7281 

Permit Effective Permit Expires 

February 1 0, 2006 NON-EXPIRING 

Thomas Kemp Jr., Chairman 
Jerry Johnson, Vice-ChailTllan 

Dawn Cash, Secretary-Member 



TULSA COUNTY 

PURCHASING 
DEPARTMENT 

DATE: June 12, 2019 

FROM: 

TO: 

Matney M. Ellis ~~ 
Purchasing Director/~ t'VV' 

Board of County Commissioner 

MEMO 

SUBJECT: Agreement - Oakridge Builders, a division of Flintco, LLC 

On May 13, 2019, the Board of County Commissioners approved the recommendation 
to award bid package 03A (Concrete) for the Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building 
Renovations to Oakridge Builders, a division of Flintco, LLC, CMF# 247808. 

The Tulsa County Purchasing Department respectfully requests the Board of County 
Commissioners approve and execute the attached Trade Contractor Agreement between 
the Board of County Commissioners and Oakridge Builders for the scope of work as 
defined in the agreement and referenced bid documents. 

Respectfully submitted for your approval and execution. 

MME/ mlb 

ORIGINAL: Michael Willis, County Clerk, for the June 1 7, 2019 agenda. 



TRADE CONTRACT NO. HQ-033000 

TRADE CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
l. Effective Date, Parties and Notice 

This Agreement is entered into thi5 13 day of May in the year 2019 by and between 
_ Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners ___ __ ~ referred to in thi5 Agreement as the Owner, and the 

TRADE CONTRACTOR Oakridge Builders a division of Flintco, LLC 
1624 w 21•st 
Tulsa, Ok 74107 

Tax ID/EIN/SSN: 27-3321079 

ATTENTION: Shane Davis 

referred to In this Agreement as the Trade Contractor for services in connection with this 

PROJECT NAME 

PROJECT NUMBER 

LOCATION 

whose 

CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGER is 

and whose 

ARCHITECT is 

Tulsa County Administration Building Renovations 

HEADQ 

218 W 6'" St 
Tulsa, OK 74119 

FLINTCO, LLC 
1624 W 21"St 
Tulsa, OK 74107 

GH2 Architects 
3 20 S Boston Ave 
Suite 100 
Tulsa, Ok 74103 

NOTICt: TO TltE PARTIES SHALL BE GIVEN AT THESE ADDRESSES 



2. Safety 

2.1 The Trade Contractor agrees that the prevention of accidems to workmen and property engaged upon or in the vicinity of the Trade 
Work is its responsibility. The Trade Contractor agrees to comply with all Federal, State, Municipal and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
codes, standards, orders, notices and requirements concerning safety as shall be applicable to the Trade Work, Including, among others, the 
Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as amended, and all standards, rules, regulations and orders which have been or shall be 
adopted or issued thereunder, and with the safety standards established during the progress of the Trade Work by the Construction Manager 
(referred to herein as "CM"). 

2.2 When so ordered, the Trade Contractor shall stop any pa rt of the Trade Work which the CM deems unsafe until corrective measures 
satisfactory to the CM have been taken. The Trade Contractor agrees that It shall not have nor make any claim for damages arising from such 
stoppages. Should the Trade Contractor fail to take appropriate corrective measures in a timely manner, the CM may do so at the cost and 
expense of the Trade Contractor and may deduct the cost and expense thereoffrom any payments due or to become due to the Trade Contractor. 
Failure on the part of the CM to stop unsafe practices shall in no way relieve the Trade Contractor of its responsibility therefor. 

2.3 The Trade Contractor will follow the provisions of all applicable statutes and ordinances which require persons or firms doing 
excavation to do so only after giving notice to utility companies and obtainlns Information on the location of utilities (such as "one-call" systems). 

3, Trade Contractor Representations 

3.1 The Trade Contractor acknowledges receipt of all policies listed in Exhibit C. Subject to applicable law the Tracie Contractor further 
agrees to be bound by these policies as part of this Agreement. The Trade Contractor represents and agrees that it has carefully examined and 
understands th is Agreement and the other Trade Contract Documents, has investigated the nature, locality and site of the Trade Work and the 
conditions and difficulties under which it is to be performed, and that It enters Into this Agreement on the basis of its own examination, 
investigation and evaluation of all such matters and not In reliance upon any opinions or representations of the CM, the Owner or any of their 
respective officers, agents or employees. 

3.2 The commencement of the Trade Work by the Trade Contractor on the site of the Project shall constitute the legal and binding 
acceptance by the Trade Contractor of this Agreement. For purposes of this paragraph the mobilization of equipment, delivery of materials or 
the performance of actual labor on the Project site, whichever occurs first, shall constitute a "commencement" of Trade Work by the Trade 
Contractor. The Owner reserves the right, however, to insist on a signed Agreement prior to the making of any payment to the Trade Contractor. 

4. Bonds 

The Trade Contractor shall furnish a Performance Bond and a Separate Payment Bond satisfactory to the CM, in its sole determination, in the full 
amount of the Agreement Amount. Bonds shall be furnished by a surety acceptable to the CM, In the full amount of the Agreement Amount, and 
on the forms attached as Exhibit G. Trade Contractor must also furnish any applicable statutory bonds if required by the state in which the Project 
is located. 

s. Trade Contractor Duties 

5.1 Trade Work. The Owner retains the Trade Contractor as an independent comractor, to provide all labor, materials, equipment and 
services necessary or Incidental to complete that portion of the work on the Project as set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement, consistent with 
the Project Schedule and in strict accorda nee with and reasonably inferable from the Trade Contract Documents. The Trade Contractor agrees 
to perform such part of the work (hereafter called "Trade Work") for the Project under the general direction of the CM and subject to the final 
approval of the CM, Architect/Engineer or other specified representative of the Owner. 

5.2 Trade Contract Documents, The Trade Contract Documents include this Agreement, Agreement between the Owner and the CM 
("CM Agreement"), including all addenda, modifications, revisions, plans, drawings, specifications, details, together with all general, technical, 
supplementary and special terms and conditions, any invitations for bids or information for bidders, if any, to the extent applicable, and all other 
documents listed in or referred to by the CM Agreement. The Owner and the Trade Contractor are mutually bound by the terms of this 
Agreement. To the extent the terms of the CM Agreement apply to the work of the Trade Contractor, then the CM on behalf of the Owner 
assumes toward the Trade Contractor all the obligations, rights, duties and redress that the Owner under the CM Agreement assumes toward 
the CM. In the identical way, the Trade Contractor assumes toward the CM all the same obligations, rights, duties and redress that the CM 
assumes toward the Owner and Architect/Engineer under the CM Agreement. This Agreemem and the rest of the Trade Contract Documents 
are Intended to supplement and complement each other and shall, where possible, be so interpreted. However, if any provision of this Agreement 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Pagel of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Flintco, LLC. 



irreconcilably conflicts with a provision of the Trade Contract Documents, the provision granting greater rights or remedies to the Owner or 
imposing the greater duty, standard or responsibility or obligation on the Trade Contractor sha II govern. 

5.3 Design Delegation. If the Trade Contract Documents (1) specifically require the Trade Contractor to provide design services and (2) 
specify all design and performance criteria, the Trade Contractor shall provide the design services necessary to satisfactorily complete the Trade 
Work. Design services provided by the Trade Contractor shall be prot:Ured from licensed, design professionals (the "Designer") retained by the 
Trade Contractor as permitted by the law of the place where the Project is located. The Designer's signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, 
calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by the Designer. Shop Drawings and other submittals 
related to the Trade Work designed or certified by the Designer, if prepared by others, shall beartheTrade Contractor's and the Designer's written 
approvals when submitted to the CM. The Owner and the CM shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the 
services, certifications or approvals performed by the Designer. 

5.3.1 If the Designer is an independent professional, the design services shall be procured pursuant to a separate 
agreement between the Trade Contractor and the Designer. The Trade Contractor-Designer agreement shall not provide for 
any limitation of liability or exclusion from participation in the multiparty proceedings requirement of Paragraph 21.6. If 
applicable, the Deslgner(s) Is (are] 

The Trade Contractor shall notify the CM In writing if it intends to change the Designer. The Trade Contractor warrants the 
design furnished by the Designer will be In conformance with the information given and the design concept expressed in the 
Trade Contract Documents. The Trade Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance or design 
criteria required by the Trade Contract Documents furnished by the Owner, Architect/Engineer or CM 

5.3.2 The Trade Contractor shall not be required to provide design services In vlolatlon of any applicable law. 

5.4 Clean Up. The Trade Contractor is responsible for its own "clean-up" and keeping the Trade Work areas "broom cleanN. If the CM 
determines the Trade Work area to be unsatisfactorily cleaned, the CM will so advise the Trade Contractor. If the Trade Contractor fails to 
commence cleaning procedures within twenty four (24) hours and continue to dean said area to the CM's satisfaction, the CM may without 
further notice execute and complete such clean up activities as the CM deems necessary and charge the cost to the Trade Contractor or deduct 
such cost from payments due to the Trade Contractor. The Trade Contractor is responsible to clean the mud and gravel off Its vehides (including 
vehicles operated by its lower tier contractors and suppliers) prior to leaving the site. Any mud or gravel that is tracked onto the surrounding 
roads shall be removed immediately. The CM has the right to clean up surrounding roads immediately upon the Trade Contractor's failure to do 
so, the cost of which shall be deducted from the Trade Contractor's next payment. 

5.5 Protection of Tracie Work. The Trade Contractor is responsible for protection of Its material, equipment and installation until the 
final acceptance by the Owner and the Architect. 

5.6 Protection of the Project. The Trade Contractor shall confine operations at the Project site to areas permitted by the CM and shall 
not unreasonably encumber the Project site with materials or equipment. The Trade Contractor ls responsible for any damage caused to adjacent 
property or access roads by the Trade Contractor, Its lower tier contractors or suppliers during the course of the Trade Work. 

s. 7 Supervision. All of the Trade Work Is the sole and absolute responsibility of the Trade Contractor; shall be initiated, managed, 
performed and completed by qualified, competent, skilled and reputable supervisors, administrators, mechanics and laborers, all of which are 
satisfactory to the CM; shall be In full compliance with the Trade Contract Documents includinc this Acreement; and shall meet the approval and 
acceptance of the CM and the Owner or its authorized representative. 

6. Schedule 

Time Is of the essence. The Trade Contractor shall commence the Trade Work under this Agreement when notified by the CM and shall complete 
the Trade Work in a diligent manner In accordance with the Trade Contract Documents and the Schedule of Work as set forth in Exhibit E so that 
progress or completion of the Project will not be delayed and in such a manner that the CM, any other Trade Contractors, and any separate 
contractors of the Owner shall not be delayed or imped e<I in their work. The Trade Contractor s ha 11 participate and cooperate in the d eve I opment 
of schedules and other efforts to achieve timely completion of the Trade Work by providing information on the ti m Ing and sequence of operations 
so as to meet the CM's overall schedule requirements. The Trade Contractor shall continuously monitor the Project Schedule including any 
revisions thereto, and other work on the Project so as to execute the Trade Work in accordance with the requirements of the Project Schedule. 

Rev 02./22/2019 
Page 3 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a divisico of Flintco, l1C. 



The Trade Contractor agrees to be responsible for, carry out, and perform all time guarantees upon work or materials referred to in the Trade 
Contract Documents relating to any labor performed or material furnished under this Agreement. 

7. Payment 

7.1 In consideration of faithful and timely performance by the Trade Contractor of all the covenants and the conditions aforesaid, the 
Owner agrees to pay the Trade Contractor, subject to other provisions hereof, including authorized additions and deletions, the sum of 

Four Hundred and Ninety-two Thousand, Eight Hundred Dollars and 00/100 DOLLARS ($492,800.00J 
(the "Agreement Amount") [which amount is Tax Exempt In accordance with attached Exhibit HJ. Payment shall only be due for the portion of 
the Trade Work actually completed to the satisfaction of the CM, the Architect and the Owner. Trade Contractor shall submit a progress payment 
application to the Owner, with a copy to the CM and the Architect, for Trade Contractor Work properly performed during that month. Within 
thirty (30) days after Trade Contractor's complete, proper and timely payment application has been received by the Owner, the Owner shall make 
payment to Tracie Contractor, less any applicable retain age or other set off. The Owner may withhold payment of part or a II of Trade Contractor's 
payment application upon notice to Trade Contractor as allowed by law. Progress payment applications must be submitted by the Trade 
Contractor each month in an amount equal to ninety percent (90%) of the estimated value of the l.ibor, materials and equipment incorporated 
in the construction and materials and equipment suitably stored at the Project site, less the aggregate of previous payments. The Trade 
Contractor's Affidavit and Waiver of Lien for prior payments must be properly executed by an authorized representative ofthe Trade Contractor 
and returned to the Owner and the CM prior to issuance of subsequent payments. 

7.2 Progress payment applications are to be submitted on AIA G702 with Scheclule of Values AIA G703. With each progress payment 
application, the Trade Contractor shall furnish a tabulated breakdown of the portion of the Trade Work included In the payment request, listing 
items of the work In sufficient detail as determined by the Owner and the CM to easily facilitate payment requests to be checked by the CM as 
the work progresses. 

7.3 Each payment request or invoice must be received by the Owner by the last day of the month to be processed with other progress 
payment applications for that month. Invoices and payment requests received that are inaccurate or without substantiation, or after said day of 
the month will be held until corrected and substantiated, and then processed with the following month's payment appllcatlo11. 

7.4 The Trade Contractor shall submit its request for partial payment conforming to the standard CM billing form. with schedule of values 
attachecl thereto, representing a true and accurate estimate of the Trade Work completed, and materials stored during the immecllately 
preceding month or such other immediately preceding period as directed by the CM. In addition, if allowed by the Trade Contract Documents, 
all invoices and insurance certificates shall be included for all stored materials In an off-site storage area applicable to the payment request. 

7.5 The Trade Contractor shall, additionally with each payment request, submit copies of payrolls to document the value of work In place 
and a Partial Release of Lien from all lower tier oontractors and major material suppliers for which payment has previously been made to the 
Trade Contractor. 

7.6 If the Owner or the CM on behalf of the Owner, in their sole discretion, deem it necessary, the Trade Contractor agrees to receive 
each of Its progress payments and final payment in the form of multiple checks Issued Jointly between the Trade Contractor's lower tier 
contractors and major material suppliers and the Trade Contractor. Lower tier contractors that are to receive part or all of their progress payments 
as joint checks shall additionally submit with their Payment Requests all invoices from each lower tier contractor and major supplier and the net 
payments to be issued to ea ch. 

7.7 No partial payment, or certificate therefore, shall constitute acceptance or approval by the Owner, the CM or the Architect of the 
Trade work or material for which the pa rtlal payment is made. No partial payment shall constitute a waiver by the Owner of any right to require 
fulfillment of all the terms of this Agreement. Neither the final payment nor any partial payment, nor any certificate for either, shall constitute 
acceptance by the Owner of defective work or Improper materials or of any element of the Trade Contractor's performance determined to be at 
varla nee with this Agreement. 

7,8 The owner shall have the right to set off any amounts the Trade Contractor owes to the owner under this Agreement or by law against 
the remaining balance under this Agreement, or against any amounts due the Trade Contractor under any other agreements with the Owner. 

7.9 Final Payment. Final payment by the Owner to the Trade Contractor shall not become due and payable to the Trade Contractor until 
the following express conditions precedent have been met: (1) The completion of the Trade Work required by this Agreement and acceptance of 
the Trade Work by the CM, the Owner and the Architect; (2) execution and delivery by the Trade Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the CM, of 
a general release running to and in favor of the CM and the Owner; and (3) complete and full satisfaction of all claims, demands, disputes and 
obligations of the Trade Contractor arising out of or related to this Agreement, including those between the Owner and the Trade Contractor and 
between the Trade Contractor and any third party. Should there be any such claim, lien or unsatisfied obligation, whether before or after final 
payment is made, the Trade Contractor shall deliver payment to the Owner an amount equal to whatever cost the Owner must pay to discharge 
or clefend against any such claim, obligation, lien or action brought, or any judgment thereon and all costs, Including legal fees and expenses and 
a 15% Administrative Fee, incurred in connect;on therewith. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page4 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Fllntco, LLC. 



8. Hazardous Materlals 

The Trade Contractor shall at all times comply with all rules and regulations of any municipality, state or federal environmental protection, and 
toxic waste and hazardous substances laws, ordinances and regulations, and how they relate to the Trade Work, and shall be equally responsible 
for actions and inactions of Trade Contractors, lower tier contractors, and any other agents or Independent contractors of the Trade Contractor. 
The Trade Contractor shall be deemed to, and shall, have included in the Agreement Amount the containment, removal, disposal or neutralization 
of all toxic wastes and hazardous substances created, generated or transported to or from the Project site in conjunction with the Trade Work. 
The Trade Contractor wi II be res pons ible for identifying toxic wastes and hazardous substances generated, released, caused by or resulting from 
the Trade Work and notifying the CM of its presence in writing as soon as It Is identified. The terms "toxic wastes" and "hazardous substances" 
shall have the same meaning as defined under federal environmental laws and regulations. At all times the Trade Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and the CM from any and all e){penses, costs, damages, suits, fines, assessments, penalties and/or causes 
of action, in cl ud i ng attorney's fees th rough a II investigations, n egotlatlons, hearings or a ppea Is, ~ la ting to or arising out of the Trade Contractor's 
failure to strictly comply with the terms of this paragraph. 

9. Compliance with Laws 

9.1 The Trade contractor agrees to be bound by, and at its own costs comply with, all federal, state and local laws, ordinances and 
regulations {the "Laws») applicable to the Trade Work, including but not limited to safety, equal employment opportunity, minority business 
enterprise, women's business enterprise, dlsadvantased business enterprise, sexual and racial harassment, and all other Laws with which the 
Owner or CM must comply. 

9.2 Where prescribed by Law pursuant to direct Federal contracts or Federally-financed or aided contracts, or otherwise required by Law, 
the Trade Contractor agr~s the following clauses found in the Trade Contract Documents or in the Code of Fe<leral Regulations (CFR) are 
incorporatec in this Agreement and binding on Trade Contractor as If written herein word for word: the clause5 entitled "Equal Opportunity 
Clause" (41 CFR Sections 60-1.4 & 60-4.3); "Affirmative Action Obligations of Contractors and Subcontractors for Disabled Veterans of the Vietnam 
Era" (41 CFR sec ti on 60-250.4); "Affirmative Action Obligations of Contractors and S ubco ntra ct ors for Ha nd ica p pec:t Workers" (41 CFR Section 60-
741.1); "Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act-Overtime Compensation»; "Apprentices and Trainees»; "Payrolls and Basic Records"; 
"Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements"; "Withholding"; "Subcontracts"; "Contract Termination-Department"; "Disputes Concerning 
Labor Standards"; "Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements"; and "Certification of Eligibility" and such other clauses as the 
Fed era I Government has required by law or contract. Trade Contractor agrees to include a 11 sue h clauses in any non-e){empt, I ower-ti er contracts. 

9.3 Immigration Compliance. The Trade Contractor represents and warrants that the Trade Contractor is In compliance with, and shall 
remain in compliance with, the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (The "Act") and all other Federal, State, and/or 
local immigration statutes/ordinances, as applicable, including, but not limited to the provisions of the Act prohibiting hiring and continued 
employment of unauthorized aliens, requiring verification and record keeping with respect to ldentity and eligibility for employment and 
prohibiting discrimination on the basis of national origin, United States citizenship, or intending citizen s1atus. The Trade Contractor agrees to 
indemnify the Owner and the CM and to hold the Owner and the CM harmless from all liability, including Ila bility for interest and penalties, the 
Owner and/or the CM Incurs with results from or is attributable to the Trade Contractor's failure to comply with any provisions of the Act, and or 
applicable Federal, State, and/or local immigration statute/ordinance, including reimbursing the Owner and the CM any monies expended by 
either of them In participating in or responding to any investigation/suit/civil or criminal immigration matter involving the Trade Contractor. A5 
it relates to immigration complia nee, the Trade Contractor shall be responsible for completing any and all required documentation in accordance 
with requirements pot forth by the Owner, CM or applicable law. 

9A The Trade Contractor shall be liable to the CM and the Owner for a II loss, cost and expense attributable to any acts of commission or 
omission by the Trade Contractor, its contractors at any tier, and its and their respective employees and agents resulllns from the failure to 
comply with Laws, including, but not limited to, any fines, penalties 

10. Insurance 

10.1 The Trade Contractor agrees to procure, pay for and malntain In full force and effect during the course of the performance of the 
Agreement all insurance required by the laws of the state in which the Trade Work covered by this Agreement Is being performed, and in such 
form and amounts as described In E~hlbit B which is attached hereto and incorporated Into this Agreement. The Trade Contractor shall not 
commence the Trade Work nor receive any payment hereunder until Certificate of such insurance Is furnished to the CM. 

10.Z The CM shall have no duty to the Trade Contractor or to any of its insurers or their insurance agents to review any certificates or copies 
of insurance furnished to the CM orto determine whether the terms of each certificate or policy of insurance comply with the insurance-related 
provisions of the Agreement. A failure of the CM to detect that the Trade Contractor has not submitted certificates, or proper certificates, or is 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page5of13 

TRADE NO. H Q-03 3000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Fllntco, LLC. 



otherwise not in compliance wrth the insurance-related provisions of the Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or other impairment of 
any of the Owner's or CM's rights under such insurance-related provisions. 

10.3 If the Trade Contractor fails to procure and maintain such Insurance, in addition to the option of declaring the Trade Contractor in 
default for breach of a material provision of this Agreement, the Owner or the CM shall have the right, but not the duty, to procure and maintain 
the same insurance, or other insu ranee that provides the Owner and the CM with equivalent protection, and the Trade Contractor shall furnish 
all necessary information to make effective and maintain such Insurance. At the option ofthe Owner, the cost of said insurance purchased by the 
Owner or the CM shall be charged against and deducted from any monies then due or to become due to the Trade Contractor or the CM shall 
notify the Trade Contractor of the cost thereof and the Trade Contractor shall promptly pay such cost. 

10,4 The Trade Contractor shall identify by certificate any Residentlal, Mold, EIFS, Silica or other major exclusions that impact the Trade 
Contractor's ability to insure its risk. If the Project includes any Residential components or the proposed design includes EIFS systems, then the 
Trade Contractor shall obtain appropriate endorsements acceptable to the CM as a condition of this Agreement. 

10.S The Trade Contractor shall at its own expense provide insurance coverage for materia Is stored off the site after written approva I of 
the CM at the value established in the approval, and also for portions of the Trade Work in transit until such materials are permanently 
incorporated into the Project. The risk of loss for material and equipment provided by th Is Agreement, whether in a deliverable state or otherwise, 
shall remain with the Trade Contractor. Any damages to the material and equipment or loss of any kind occasioned In transit shall be borne by 
the Trade Contractor, notwithstanding the manner in which the goods are shipped or who pays the freight or other transportation costs. 

11. Indemnity 

11.1 General Indemnity. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Trade Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the CM, the 
Owner's other Trade Contractors, the Architect/Engineer, the Owner and their agents, consultants, members and employees (the "lndemnitees") 
from and against all claims, damages, loses and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees, costs and expenses for bodily Injury and 
property damage that may arise from the performance of the Trade Work to the extent of the negligent acts or omissions by, or the fault of, the 
Trade Contractor, the Trade Contractor's lower tier contractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them or by anyone for whose 
acts or omissions any of them may be liable. The Trade Contractor agrees to purchase and maintain contractual liability insurance covering its 
obligations In this article. These obligations shall not be interpreted to reduce or negate any other rights or obligations of indemnity otherwise 
existing with regard as to any party or person described in this Article. 

11.2 Patents. The Trade Contractor hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the CM and the Owner from and against any 
and all liability, loss or damage and to reimburse the CM and the Owner for any costs, including legal fees and expenses, which the CM and the 
Owner may incur because of claims or litigation on account of infringement or alleged Infringement of any letters patent or patent rights by 
reason of the Trade Work, or materials, equipment or other items used by the Trade Contractor in its performance. 

11.3 No Limitations. In furtherance to, but not in limitation of the indemnity provisions In this Agreement, the Trade Contractor hereby 
expressly and specifically agrees that Its obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as provided In this Agreement shall not in anyway be 
affected or diminished by any statutory or constitutional immunity it enjoys from suits by its own employees or from limitations of liability or 
recovery under worker's compensation laws. 

lZ. Termination for Convenience 

12.1 It Is understood that the basic assumption underlying the mutual obligations and responsibilities entered into by the parties to this 
Agreement is the continued performance with respect to the CM Agreement that exists between the CM and the Owner. If, for any reason, the 
CM Agreement is breached, rescinded or terminated, the Owner shall have the right to lmmediately terminate this Agreement. In no event shall 
the CM or the Owner be obligated to the Trade Contractor for any anticipatory profits or any damages Incurred by the Trade Contractor as a 
result of the termination of this Asreement, unless approved and paid by the Owner. The Trade Contractor agrees that it shall have no claim or 
cause of action against the CM arising from or relating to Owner's termination of this Agreement or Owner's determination of any amount it 
agrees to pay Trade Contractor u pen termination of th ls Agreement. 

12.2 The Owner sha II have the right at any time by written notice to the Trade Contractor, to terminate this Agreement without cause and 
require the Trade Contractor to cease work. In the event of such a termination for convenience, the Trade contractor shall be entitled to payment 
pursuant to the terms of the Agreement for the portion of the Trade Work actually completed as of the date of termination, provided that such 
amount may be reduced by all amounts for which the Trade Contractor is liable or responsible. However, the Trade Contractor shall only be 
entitled to profit on that portion of the work actually completed and approved for payment to the date of termination together with retain ages 
withheld from prior payments. The Trade Contractor waives any claim for loss of anticipated profits or other damages against the Owner or the 
CM in the event the Owner exercises this clause. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page6 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ•033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Fllntco, LLC. 



13. Failure of Performance 

13,1, Non-Conforming Trade Work. The Trade Contractor shall provide sufficient, safe and proper facilities at all times for inspection by 
the Architect, the Owner or tile CM of the Trade Work in the field, at shops or at any other place where materials required hereunder are in 
course of preparation, manufacture, treatment or storage. The Trade Contractor shall, within twenty four (24} hours after receiving written notice 
from the CM to that effect, proceed to remove from the site any materials condemned by the Architect, the Owner, or the CM, whether worked 
or unworked, and to take down all portions of the Trade Work which the Architect, the Owner or the CM has condemned in wrjting, as unsound 
or improper, or as In any way falling to conform to the drawings, specifications and addenda and shall take full financial responslbi lity for all 
damage caused by such removal. In the event that all or any portion of the Trade Work as condemned should be of such a nature, or the time 
available should be so limited, that In the Judgment of the Architect, the Owner or the CM it would not be expedient to order the same replaced 
or corrected, the Owner, at its option, may deduct from the payments due or to become due to the Trade Contractor such amount or amounts 
as in the opinion of the Architect, the CM or the Owner shall represent the difference between the fair and reasonable value ofthe Trade Work 
so condemned and its value had it been executed in conformity with the Trade Contract Documents. 

13.2. Notice to Cure If the Trade Contractor ls unable, refuses or falls to supply enough properly-skilled workers, proper materials, correct 
non-conforming Trade Work, or maintain the Schedule of Work, or falls to make prompt payment to its workers, Trade Contractors or suppliers, 
or disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction, or otherwise is guilty of a material breach 
of a provision of this Agreement, the Trade Contractor shall be deemed in default of this Agreement. If the Trade Contractor falls within three 
(3) business days after written notification to commence and continue satisfactory correction of the default with dlllgence and promptness, then 
the Owner without prejudice to any other rights or remedies, shall have the right to any or all of the following remedies: 

13.2.1 to supply workers, materials, equipment and facilities as the Owner deems necessary for the completion oft he Trade Work 
or any part which the Trade Contractor has failed to complete or perform after written notification, and charge the cost, including 
reasonable overhead, profit, attorneys' fees, costs and expenses to the Trade contractor; 

13.2.2. to contract with one or more additiona I contractors to perform such part of the Trade Work as the CM determines will 
provide the most e~peditious completion of the Trade Work, and charge the cost lo the Trade Contractor; 

1:1,2.3 withhold any payments due or to become due the Trade Contractor pending corrective octlon ln amounts sufficient to 
cover losses and compel performance to the extent required by and to the satisfaction of the Owner and the CM. 

13.2.4 terminate the Trade Contractor for default by delivering written notice of such termination to the Trade Contractor. 

13.2.5 to charge to the Trade Contractor an Administrative Fee of 15% of all costs incurred by the Owner or the CM in exercising 
any of I he above remedies. 

In the event of an emergency affecting tile safety of persons or property, the CM on behalf of the Owner may proceed as above without notice, 
out the Owner shall give the Trade Contractor notice promptly after the fact as a precondition of cost recovery. 

13.3 Termination for Default. If the Trade Contractor has been terminated for default, the Owner may take possession of the plant and 
Trade Wort, materials, tools, appliances and equipment of the Trade Contractor at the Project site, and through itself or others provide labor, 
equipment and materials to prosecute Trade Work on such terms and conditions as shall be deemed by the Owner as necessary, and shall deduct 
the cost, including without restriction all claims, charges, expenses, losses, costs, damages, and attorneys' fees, incurred as a result of the Trade 
Contractor's fallure to perform, from ariy money then due or thereafter to become due to the Trade Contractor under this Agreement. 

13.3,1 If the Owner so terminates the employment of the Trade Contractor, the Trade Contractor shall not be entitled to any 
further payments under this Agreement and no sum shall be deemed due or to become due to the Trade Contractor until Trade Work 
has been completed and accepted by the Owner, all Agreement requirements have been fulfilled, and payment has been received by 
the CM from the Owner. In the event the unpaid Agreement Amount earned by Trade Contractor exceeds the cost of completion and 
any and all Incidental costs, including administrative, legal and other professional fees, the difference shall be paid to the Trade 
Contractor, but if such expenses exceed the unpaid earned Agreement Amount, the Trade Contractor agrees to pay the difference to 
the Owner within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice. 

13-3.2 If it is determined or agreed that the Owner wrongfully exercised any option under this Article, the Owner shall be liable 
to the Trade Contractor solely for the reasonable value of Trade work performed by the Trade contractor prior to such action, 
including reasonable overhead and profit on the Trade Work performed, less prior payments made. Under no circumstances shall the 
Trade Contractor be entitled to recovery of claimed lost future profits. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page7of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-033000 
Dakridge Builders a divi$1on of Flintco, LLC. 



14. Delays 

14.1 Should the progress of the Trade work be delayed, obstructed or interfered with through any fault, action or failure to act by the 
Trade Contractor or any of its officers, agents, employees, Trade Contractors or suppliers so as to cause any additional cost, expense, liability or 
damage to the CM or the Owner, including legal fees or expenses incurred in defending claims arising from such delay or seeking reimbursement 
and indemnity from the Trade Contractor and Its surety hereunder, the Trade Contractor and its surety agree to compensate and indemnify the 
CM and the Owner against all such costs, expenses, damages and llabllltles. 

14.2 In addition, the Trade Contractor, at the CM's direction and atthe Trade Contractor's own cost and expense, shall work such overtime 
as may be necessary to make up for all time lost in the completion of the Trade Work and In the completion of the Project due to such delay. If 
the Trade Contractor fails to make up for the time lost by reason of such delay, the CM has the right to use other Trade Contractors or suppliers 
and to take whatever other action the CM deems necessary to avoid delay in the completion of the Trade Work and the Project, the cost of which 
shall be borne by the Trade Contractor. In the eve11t Trade Contractor delays timely performance of the Trade Work or to the completion of the 
Project, either by its acts or omissions, and such delays result in the CM being charged bv the Owner with actual or liquidated damages, then the 
Trade Contractor shall reimburse the CM the full amount of all such damages and charges resulting from the delays caused by the Trade 
Contractor. The CM may offset any such damages against the remaining balance due to the Trade Contractor on the Agreement Amount, if any. 

14.3 If the commencement and/or progress of the Trade Work Is delaye<I without the fault or responsibility of the Trade contractor, the 
time for the Trade Work shall be extended by Change Order to the extent obtained by the CM from the Owner pursuant to the CM Agreement, 
and the Schedule of Work shall be revised accordingly. 

15, Changes 

15.1 Trade Work Changes. The Owner and the Trade Contractor agree the Owner may make changes to the Trade Work, Including but not 
limited to; additions, deletions or revisions. Any changes made to the Trade work involved, or any other parts of this Agreement, shall be by a 
written Change Order. To the extent that any such change Impacts Trade Contractor's cost of or time for performance, the Agreement Amount 
and Agreement Schedule shall be equitably adjusted to compensate for such impact. Changes shall be Initiated by one of the three methods 
outlined below, or as provided in the CM Agreement and shall be incorporated into the Agreement by a Change Order. 

15.1.1. Request for Change Proposal. A Request for Change Proposal ("RFCP") is a written request that informs Trade Contractor about a 
potential change in the Trade Work and requests a proposal for the potential change. Trade Contractor shall promptly reply with such request. 
Trade Contractor shall not implement the change or Incur any costs until a Change Order is fully e~ecuted. 

15.1. 2. Construct ion Change Directive. A Construct Ion Change Directive ( "CCD") is a written directive th at in st ructs Trade Contractor to take 
some immediate action in connection with the Trade Work. CCDs are Issued when there is not time to issue a RFCP or Change Order. Trade 
Contractor shall immediately proceed so as not to delay the progress of the Work and In accordance with the terms of the CCD. Any impact of a 
CCD on the Contract Price or Schedule shall be adjusted by a Change Order. 

15.1.3. Change Order Requests, Within seven (7) calendar days after the occurrence of any event or observance of any condition that Trade 
Contractor believes entitles Trade Contractor to an adjustment in Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Schedule, Trade contractor shall 
prepare and submit a Change Order Request ("COR") to CM. The COR shall Include a detailed factual narrative, a detailed analvsis showing 
entitlement and a d etai I ed a na lysi s of the proposed change to the Agreement Amou nt and/ or Agreement Schedule. 

1S.2 Olange Orders. A Change Order ("CO") is a written instrument prepared by the CM or Owner and signed by the Trade Contractor 
stating their agreement with the change in the Trade Work and any adjustment to the Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Work Schedule. 
All changes and/or additions in the Trade Work ordered in writing by the Owner or CM shall be deemed a part of the Trade work and shall be 
performed and furnished in strict accordance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Trade Contract Documents, including the 
current Schedule of Work. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 8 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Flintco, LLC. 



Change Orders will be used to Implement approved Requests for Change Proposals, construction Change Directives and Change Order Requests. 
Upon receipt of a properly documented COR or CCD, the parties shall negotiate In good faith to determine if the Trade Contractor is entitled to a 
Change Order and, if so, the appropriate equitable adjustment. Any adjustment to tile Agreement Amount shall be established by one of the 
following methods; 

a. mutual acceptance of an itemized lump sum, or 

b. unit prices as indicated in the Trade Contract Documents or as subsequently agreed to by the parties; or 

c, costs determined In a manner acceptable to the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or percentage fee; or 

d. another method provided in the Trade Contract Documents. 

If the Parties are unable to agree on the dispositions of a COR or CCD, CM or Owner will either (ii issue a Notice denying Trade Contractor's 
request or ( ii) issue a u n ii at era I Cha nge Order setting forth the fin al determination reg a rd ing the adjustments, Any cost and schedule adjustments 
shall be a full accord and satisfaction for all cumulative impacts of the underlying change. 

15.3 The Trade Contractor shall not be entitled to receive additional com pensatlon for extra work or materia Is or changes of any kind except 
to the extent the same was ordered by the CM. The Trade Contractor shall be responsible for any costs incurred by the owner or the CM for 
changes of any kind made by the Trade Contractor that Increase the cost of the Work for either the Owner, the CM or other Trade Contractors 
when the Trade Contractor proceeds with such changes without a Change Order or construction Change Directive. 

15.4 Determination by Owner, CM or Architect/Engineer. Notwithstanding any other provision, lf the Trade Work for which the Trade 
Contractor claims additional compensation is determined by the Owner, the CM or Architect/Engineer not to entitle the Trade Contractor to a 
Change Order, additional compensation or a time extension, the Owner and the CM shall not be liable to the Trade Contractor for any additional 
compensation or time extension for such Trade Work, unless the Owner agrees in writing to pay such add ltional compensation or to grant such 
extension. 

16. Cairns 

16.1 A Claim is a written demand by Trade Contractor seeking an adjustment In the Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Schedule or 
some other relief under the terms of the Agreement for events other than a RFCP that has been denied in writing. Trade Contractor shall provide 
Notice to the Owner and the CM of any potential Claim within seven (71 calendar days a~er the event giving rise to the Claim. Within fifteen (151 
calendar days thereafter, Trade Contractor sha II submit a detailed factual narrative, a detailed analysis showing entitlement and a detailed 
an a lysls of the a If eged change to the Agreement Amount a nd/or Agreement Schedule. Claims not timely made, In writing, by the Trade Contractor 
shall be deemed to have been abandoned and waived. The acceptance and consideration of any claim out of time by the Owner shall not create 
any precedent nor Hcourse of dealing' between the Owner and the Trade contractor, nor shall it waive the Owner's right to insist on strict 
adherence by the Trade Contractor to the contract claims procedures. If Owner denies Trade Contractor's Claim, Trade Contractor may pursue 
the matter under Article 21 Dispute Resolution. 

16.2 The Trade Contractor shall not delay or suspend the Trade Work because of the pendency of or the denia I by the Owner of any such 
claim or because of the continuance of the condition out of which the claim arose, but shall proceed diligently in performing the Trade Work 
while the claim is being resolved by agreement or being fully adjudicated. 

16.3 In the event the Trade Contractor asserts that it should receive additional compensation because of an act or omission on the Owner's 
part, or someone for whom the Owner Is responsible, the Trade Contractor shall promptly submit the claim to the Owner and the CM In writing 
within the time requirecl in Section 16.1. Failure of the Trade Contractor to submit such claims In a timely and proper manner sha II result in a 
waiver of such claim. 

16.4 The Trade Contractor shall fully cooperate with the CM In the submission of such claims described in Section 16.3, shall prepare all 
supporting data and do everything else necessary to properly present the claims, including payment of legal fees Incurred by the CM to prepare, 
submit and negotiate or otherwise resolve such claim. Should 1he Owner allow and pay additional compensation to the CM on account of such 
claim asserted by the Trade Contractor, the CM will pay the same to the Trade Contractor. 

16,5 It shall be an express condition precedent to any obligation on the part of the CM to make payment of any cost, reimbursement, 
compensation or damages to the Trade Contractor hereunder that the CM shall first be determined to be entitlecl to such compensation on behalf 
of the Trade Contractor and then receive such payment from Owner, and Trade Contractor expressly acknowledges that the CM is not obligated 
or required to pursue the Trade Contractor's claim against the Owner if the CM, in its sole discretion, after relliew of the Trade Contractor's claim, 
has deemed the claim to lack merlt In whole or In pan. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page9ofl3 

TRADE NO. H Q-033000 
Oakridge Bullders a division of Flintco, LLC. 



16.6 If at any time a controver5Y should arise between the CM and the Trade Contractor with respect to any matter in this Agreement 
which the CM determines is not a claim, dispute or controversy which should involve or be asserted against the Owner, the decision of the CM 
relating to the subject of the controversy shall be followed by the Trade Contractor. 

17. Taxes 

The Agreement Amount includes all sales, excise, transportation, unemployment compensation, social security, and any other taxes presently 
existing or subsequently imposed and levied and the Trade Contractor agrees to pay all of the above and to conform to all applicable municipal, 
state and federal laws in connection with such taxes. The Trade Contractor further agrees to withhold taxes from the wages and salaries of all 
employees of the Trade Contractor and pay the same in accordance with the federal and state laws and regulations pertaining thereto. The 
Agreement Amount includes federal, state and municipal taxes now levied or in force or hereafter imposed on any and all tangible personal 
property sold or transferred to the Owner under this Agreement and the Trade Contractor agrees to pay such tax or taxes on such property, the 
cost of which is included in the Agreement Amount. 

18. Liens 

18.1 The Trade Contractor shall promptly pay when due all its project creditors, together with the project creditors of all those below It In 
the contractual chain. 

18.2 If the Project involves private work, the Trade Contractor shall keep the property and improvements free and clear of all mechanic, 
materialmen and similar lien claims or statements. In the event any such lien is filed, asserted or claimed, the Trade Contractor shall immediately 
secure Its release either by paying the lien claimant, by fil Ing a lien release bond, or by any other means permitted by law. If not so released, the 
Owner may retain an amount equal to 150% of the lien or claim and may pay the claimant and offset that amount, plus any legal fees from the 
amount so retained. If the Project involves public work, the Trade Contractor shall promptly pay and secure releases from all of its project 
creditors, including all those below it in the contractual chain, who are entitled to assert claims against the Owner, the CM or its surety. 

18.3 If any claim or lien is made or filed with or against the CM, the Owner, the Project, 218 w 6th St, Tulsa, Ok 74119 or the Project funds 
by any person claiming that the Trade Contractor or any Trade Contractor or other person under contract to the Trade Contractor, or any person 
or entity employed or engaged by the Trade Contractor at any tier, has failed to make payment for any labor, services, materials, equipment, 
taxes or other obligations furnished or incurred in connection with the Trade Work, or if the Trade Contractor or any Trade Contractor or other 
person under contract to the Trade Contractor, or any person or entity employed or engaged by the Trade Contractor at any tier causes damage 
to the Trade Work or any other work on the project, or if the Trade Contractor fails to perform or is otherwise in default of any term or provision 
of this Agreement, the Owner shall have the right to retain from any payment then due or thereafter due an amount which the Owner deems 
sufficient to (1) satisfy, discharge and/or defend agalnst any such claim or llen, (2) make good any such nonpayment, failure, damage or default, 
and (3) defend, Indemnify and hold harmless the CM and the Owner against any and all losses, damages and costs, including legal fees and 
expenses, incurred by either or both of them. The Owner shall require proof that any such nonpayment, claim or lien is fully satisfied, dismissed 
and discharged before any remaining retained funds will be released. The Owner shall, in addition, have the right to apply and charge asainst the 
Trade Contractor so much of the amount retained as may be required for the foresoing purposes and the Tracie Contractor shall pay and 
reimburse the CM and the Owner all such losses, damages, and costs Incurred by them which e~ceed the retained funds. 

19. Assignment 

To the fullest e><tent permittecl by law, the Trade Contractor agrees that 11 shall not assign, sell, transfer, delegate or encumber any rights, duties 
or obligations arising under this Agreement including, but not limited to, any right to receive payments hereunder, without the prior written 
consent of the Owner in its sole discretion and the giving of any such consent to a particular assignment shall not dispense with the necessity of 
such consent to any further or other assignments. In the event the Trade Contractor assigns, sells, encumbers or otherwise transfers its right to 
any funds due or to become due under this Agreement as security for any loan, financing or other indebtedness ("Assignment"), notification to 
the Owner and the CM of such Assignment must be sent by certified mall, return receipt requested, to the Owner and the CM and the Assignment 
shall not be effective as against the Owner until the Owner provides its written consent to such Assignment. The Trade Contractor agrees that 
any such Assignment shall not relieve the Trade Contractor of any of Its agreements, duties, responsibllltles or obligations under this Agreement 
and the Trade Contract Documents and shall not create a contractual relationship or a third party beneficiary relationship of any kind between 
the Owner or the CM and such assignee or transferee. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
PagelOof 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Flintco, UC. 



20. Guarantee/Warranty 

For a period of one year from the date of the Owner's final ;icceptance of the Tracie Work, the Trade Controctor gua r;inte€s and warrants that 
the Tracie Work complies with the Trade Contract Documents requl rements and Is free from defects In material and workmanship. This 
guarantee/warranty shall include, but is not limited to, the cost of all labor, material and related Items necessary to correct any such defect, plus 
the cost of repairing any damage to other items which may have been caused by the defective material or workmanship. If the Trade Contractor 
fails to begin warranty work within forty-eight (48) hours of being notified that such work is necessary, the Owner may, at Its option, perform the 
necessary remedial work or secure Its performance by others and charge the Trade Contractor with the cost thereof, plus a 15% Administrative 
Fee. Nothing in this paragraph shall shorten the statute of limitations on any action by the Owner for breach of contract, negligence or other 
cause of action against the Trade Contractor. 

21. Dispute Resolution 

21.1 Scopa of Disputes Provisions. All Claims, disputes or other matters In question between the parties to this Agreement which arise 
out of or relate to this Ag,eement (or the breach thereof), whether in contract or tort, (he~inafter "Dispute#) shall be subject to the dispute 
resolutions set forth below. 

21.2 lnltlal Dispute Resolutlon/Medlatlon. A Dispute which either party desires to pursue shall be set forth in a detailed written statement 
of claim submitted to the other party providing the specific basis upon which monetary or other relief is claimed to be due, the specific contractual 
provislon(sl supporting the claim and an itemization of the amount claimed to be due. Following submission of the detailed statement of claim, 
Owner and Trade Contractor shall endeavor to settle the Dispute first through face to face direct discussions between corporate officers of the 
Owner and Trade Contractor which discussions shall be held at the Owner's office location involved with the Project within thirty (30) calendar 
days of a request by either party. If the Dispute cannot be resolved through direct discussions, the parties shall participate in mediation under 
the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association as a condition precedent and before recourse to any other 
form of binding dispute resolution. The location of the mediation shall be the same city as the location of the Project, unless the portles agree 
on a not her location. U pon written notice requesting mediation prov I ded to the other party and the American Arbitration Association, the parties 
agree to proceed with the mediation as scheduled by the mediator. Either party may terminate the mediation at any time after the first session, 
but the decision to terminate must be personally delivered to the other party and the mediator. 

21.3 Binding Dispute Resolution. In the event Owner and Trade contractor can not resolve the Dispute through direct discussions or 
mediation as contemplated above, then the Dispute shall, at the sole discretion of Owner, be decided either by submission to (a) arbitration 
administered by the American Arbitration Association or other arbitration trlbuna I mutually agreed upon by the parties; or (bl lltlgatlon subject 
to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the location of the Project. 

21.4 Arbitration Elec:tlon 

21.4.1 In the event Owner exercises its exclusive right to resolve the Dispute in arbitration, such arbitration shall be conducted in 
accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association or the applicable rules of such 
other arbitration tribunal as the parties may mutually determine in effect at the time the arbitration Is commenced as modified by the 
terms hereof. Any arbitration hereunder shall be held at tlle location of the Project. 

21.4.2 Should Owner exercise its exclusive right to resolve the Dispute by arbitration, then within fourteen (14) days after Owner 
gives Trade Contractor notice of owner's election of arbitration, the parties shall use good faith efforts to select a single arbitrator 
mutually acceptable to both parties. If the parties are unable to select an arbitrator, then the parties will select the arbitrator(s) from 
a panel of experienced construction arbitrators on the American Arbitration Association's large complex case panel or a comparable 
panel of experienced constnuctlon arbitrators maintained by such other arbitration tribunal mutually selected by the parties then in 
effect. In the event the amount In Dispute exceeds $1,000,000.0D, owner and Trade Contractor agree the arbitration shall be heard 
by a panel of three (31 arbitrators: otherwise, the Dispute shall be heard by a single arbitrator. 

21.4.3 The parties will enter into an Electronically Stored Information Agreement outlining the scope and volume for ESI discovery, 
which shall take into account the amount and comple~ity of the Dispute. 

21.4.4 The arbitration award shall be final and binding upon the parties, shall include attorneys' fees and costs to the prevailing 
party or parties, and may be entered as a judgment in any court having proper jurisdiction. In any arbitration the Arbitrator{s) shall 
have no power to render an award which has the effect of altering or a mending or changing in any way any provisions of this 
Agreement. 

21.4.S The parties stipulate and agree that the performance of this Agreement Is a transaction involving interstate commerce. 
Notwithstanding other provisions 1n the Agreement, or choice of law provisions to the contrary, this agreement to arbitrate shall be 
enforced pursuant to, and governed by, the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U. S. C. §1 et seq., which shall not be superseded or 
supplemented by any othe1" arbitration act, statute or regulation. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 11ofB 

TRADE NO. HQ-033000 
0.-.kridge Bullders a divisiOn of Aintco, LLC. 



21.4.6 At the sole discretion of Owner, any arbitration with Trade Contractor shall be consolidated with any other arbitration 
proceeding relating to the work under the CM Agreement. 

21.5 Litigation Elec11on. In the event Owner elects not to e~ercise its exclusive right to resolve the Dispute by arbitration, or in the event 
the Dispute between Owner and Trade Contractor, or any portion thereof, is found to be non-arbltrable, then the parties hereby agree that the 
Dispute or a portion thereof (as the case may be) shall be subject to exclusive Jurisdiction and venue at the location of the Project. In any such 
Dispute or port;on thereof which Is resolved by litigation, Trade Contractor expressly waives any right to trial by jury. 

21.6 M uhiparty Proceeding. To the extent permitted by Trade Contract Documents, all parties necessary to resolve a claim shall be parties 
to the same dispute resolution proceeding. To the extent Disputes between the Owner and the Trade Contractor involve in whole or in part 
disputes between the CM and the Owner, Disputes between the Trade Contractor and the Owner shall be decided by the same tribunal and in 
the same forum as disputes between the CM and the owner. 

21.7 Stay of Proceedings. [a) In the event the provisions for resolution of disputes between the CM and the Owner contained in the Trade 
Contract Documents do not permit consoli d atlon or Joi nd er with disputes oft h ird parties, such as the Trade contractor, resolution of any O ispute 
between Owner and Trade Contractor involving in whole or in part disputes between CM and Owner shall be staved pending conclusion of any 
dispute resolution proreed;ng between CM and Owner. (b) In the event that any action Is flied prior to eKhaustion of remed;es under the 
Agreement; such action shall be stayed pending conclusion of any dispute resolution proceedings. 

21.8 Work Continuation and Payment. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Trade Contractor shall continue the Trade work and maintain 
the Schedule of Work during any dispute resolution proceedings. As Trade Contractor continues to perform, Owner shall continue to make 
payments in accordance with this Agreement. 

21,9 Cost of Dispute Resolution; Attorneys' Fees. The cost of any med i at lo n proceeding sh all be shared e qua I ly by the parties pa ni cipati ng. 

21.9.l The prevailing party in any Dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement or its breach that Is resolved by a dispute 
resolution procedure designated in the Trade Contract Documents shall be entitled to recover from the other party any remedies 
available under Oklahoma law after direct discussions and med;ation. 

21,9.2 In the event the Trade Contractor is awarded an amount equal to or less than the last written offer of settlement from Owner, 
prior to the commencement of binding dispute resolution, Owner shall be deemed prevail;ng party and be entitled to recover those 
reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses (including expert fees and expenses) incurred by the Owner. 

22. Miscellaneous 

22.1 No one, other than the parties hereto, their successors, trustees and assigns, shall be entitled to bring action on this Agreement or the 
Performance Bond provided by the Trade Contractor, it being the express intent of the p;i rties that this Agreement shall not be for the benefit of 
any third party. 

22.2 Any term or provision of this Agreement which is held to be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, 
be Ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without rendering Invalid or unenforceable the remaining terms and provisions 
of this Agreement or affecting the vaHd;ty or enforceability of any of the terms or provisions of th;s Agreement in any other Jurisdiction. 

22,3 Th;s Agreement, together with the documents referred to or incorporated herein by reference, const;tute the complete agreement 
between the parties. No agent or employee of either party possesses the authority to make, and the parties shall not be bound by nor liable for, 
any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein. Any article, section, paragraph or other headings contained In this 
Agreement are for reference purposes and shall not affect in any way the meaning or Interpretation of this Agreement. 

22.4 The terms and provisions shall extend to and be binding upon the successors, trustees and assigns of the parties hereto, and shall be 
governed and controlled, except as expressly provided herein or as required by the Trade Contract Documents, by the laws of the State of the 
Oklahoma. 

22.5 The Trade Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions and any applicable local, state or federal ordinance, regulation, status, or 
other mandate regarding affirmative action and/or minority/women's business enterprise participation. 

22.6 Th;s Agreement has not been altered in any manner from its original form as sent to the Trade Contractor except for required 
signatures and dates, or as clearly marked and Initialed by this Trade Contractor. Any changes to this Agreement not Initialed by the Owner will 
not be binding. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 12 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ--033000 
OakridJle Builders a division of Flintco, LLC. 



23. Schedule of Exhibits ta the Agreement 

The follDWing Exhibits are attached to and are a pa rt of this Agreement 

EJchlhitA: 
Exhibit 8: 

The Trade Contractor's Scope of Work, lndudiBg altemetlve or unit prices 
Insurance Req u iremenl:5 

ExhlbltC: 
Exhibit D: 

Fl!ntco Policies/P racedures Acknowledgement of Obta ln ing Form 
Ll5t of Drawings, Spetific.atiom and Addenda 

Elchlblt E: 
Exhibit F: 
EllhlbltG: 
ExhlbltH: 

Schedule of Work 
Certification of Non-Segregated FaclUtles 
Payment and Performance Bond Forms 
Tax Exemption Certificate 

Th ls Agreement ls entered into as of the date entered in Article 1. 

NOTARY 
ATTEST: 

OSHATHOMPSOt-: 
Nclaiy Pul:!it - State o! m1ahoma 

CommiSsilV! Num!:er Wl035i2 
MyCommlssion ~i;,.es A::r 21. 2022 

Designate ty rtnership 

Organized in the State of Ql(la horna_ 

:~-·,7 · "'':~Anuo, llC 
~ 
PRINTNAME: \.. j,EjCr) ES: 

PRINT TITLE; S R. V p 
) Sole Proprietorship j<u-Lc ( l Other 

With its principal place of business at ./IM )A[ ~;J SI, 1u/r;n ()J{_ 14 1/,TJ 

TUisa County 

ATTEST: BY: 

PRINT NAME: 

PRINT TITLE: 

County Clerk 

ATTEST: BY: 

PRINT NAME: Michael WIiiis 

Approved as to form: 

ATTEST: SY: 

PRINT NAME: f\k½b h eMs 
PRINT TITLE: Assistant District Attomey 

Rev 02/22/2019 TRADE NO. H~D33000 
P;,ge 13 of 13 OJJkrldge Builders a division of Flinlco, 1.1.C. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR - SCOPE OF WORK 
Exhibit A 

Page 1 of 4 

BID PACKAGE 03A: CONCRETE-COMPLETE 

Specification 
Section 
DIVISION 0 
DIVISION 1 
024100 
033000 
034100 
055000 
055100 
055213 
071200 

071400 

071313 
072100 
079005 
079100 
311000 
312001 
312316 
312323 
311123 
321313 
321726 

Description 
Procurement and Contracting Requirements 
General Requirements 
Demolition, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Cast-ln•Place Concrete, complete 
Precast Structural Concrete, complete 
Metal Fabrications, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Metal Stairs, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Pipe and Tube Railings, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Built up Bituminous Waterproofing, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid 
package 
Fluid-Applied Waterproofing, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid 
package 
Bentonite Panel Waterproofing, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid 
package 
Thennal Insulation, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Joint Sealers, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Preformed Joint Seals, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Site Clearing, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Structural Earth Moving, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Excavation, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Fill, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Aggregate Base Courses, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Concrete Paving, complete 
Tactile Warning Surfacing, complete 

(In addition to the Specification sections listed, Bidders will include work from referenced specifications and other work normally 
associated with this trade whether referenced or r10t.) 
Dennltlon of Terms 
Contractor= Bidder 
Construction Manager= Flintco, LLC 
Owner =Tulsa County 
Architect= GH2 Architects 

The scope of woli< of this bid package shall also include the following items, but without limiting the scope of work as provided 
above: 
1.) This Contractor to carry an Allowance of $7,000 in the bid price. Allowance usage will be directed by Construction Manager. 

Unused allowances will be removed from final contract price by change order at completion of work. 
2.) This bid package is intended to be all inclusive of labor, material, and equipment required for the building concrete, Precast 

concrete, structural excavation and grouting work required by the contract documents for a complete project. 
3.) Furnish and install all foundations, slab on grade, slab on deck, slab on forms, stairs, stair treads, columns, elevator P* 

walls, sump pit:s, grade beams, footings, piers, elevated concrete beams, foundation walls, basement walls, mechanical 
pads, and transfonner pads including, but not limited to, placement, formwork, concrete material, and reinforcing steel. 

4.) Place all floors within the specified floor flatness and floor leveling tolerances as indicated in the documents. Refer to finish 
schedule for materials that will be laid over concrete and verify tolerances. Adhere to most stringent requirement. 

TRADE NO.HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Flintco, LLC. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR - SCOPE OF WORK 
Exhibit A 

Page 2of4 
5.) Include structural excavation, backfill, and compaction required to complete the work of this bid package. Include the 

excavation and backfill of grade beams, foundation walls, spot footings, stair tower pil etc. Include haul-<>ff of any excess 
soil materials. Include filter fabric and drainage rock as indicated for backfill of walls. 

6.) Contractor shall be responsible for haul-off of any spoils resulting from work associated with this bid package. 
7.) Furnish and install temporary shoring required for concrete foundations as required. Include costs for engineering shoring 

system. 
8.) Furnish and install temporary i1rerior shoring as required for the basement wall backfill. lndude costs for engineering the system and 

the maintenance oflhe shoring. 
9.) Provide guard railing at pits for safety protection while excavations are open. 
10.) Furnish and install all reinforcing steel, fiber reinforcing, wire mesh, and all associated accessories associated with Cast-In-

Place Concrete Work for the building and site. Include any drilled and epoxy dowels as indicated on the Contract 
Documents. During construction all vertical reinforcing steel shall have a 6" 180 degree radius bend (shepherd's hook) for 
impalement protection. 

11.) Include installation of all chairs, standees, runners, bolsters, spacers, shaft spacers, hangers, dobies for slalHln-grade 
mesh, etc. as required. Include runners for all columns and walls reinforcing steel. At a minimum, 2 runners per side of 
columns and at 4' spacing on walls. Include all chairs/ slab runners as plastic tip. 

12.) Furnish and install all lie-wire and miscellaneous materials required to perform this scope of work. 
13.) Establish, protect and maintain all excavations and slopes to provide a safe work area and as otherwise required by S1ate, 

Local and Federal regulations. 
14.) Keep surrounding streets, drives, and parking areas free of dirt and debris including dust control caused or created by the 

work of this bid package. 
15.} Provide any necessary traffic control and barricades for work relative to this bid package. Coordinate lane closings with 

Construction Manager and Authorities having Jurisdiction prior to such closings. 
16.} Provide and maintain all barricades, flashers and tem~orary lane markings to re-route traffic for the work of this bid 

package. Lane closure permits are the responsibility of this contractor if required. 
17.) Furnish and install all concrete materials for the building and site in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
18.) Furnish and install all concrete, induding ADA ramp at Commission Room desk. 
19.) Furnish and install all concrete materials for the pit walls and slabs as shown on the Contract Documents. 
20.) Furnish and install perimeter foundation insulation as required by the contract documents. 
21.) Contractor shall ensure that the finished concrete surfaces to receive waterproofing systems are in accordance with the 

applicable specifications for these systems. 
22.) Place and finish concrete surfaces as required by the contract documents including all rubbing and patching. Work includes 

locker bases. 
23.) Patch any honeycombing and rub exposed concrete as required by the Contract Documents. 
24.) Provide a minimum of a Class B finish at all exposed concrete vertical walls unless specified by Architect/ Engineer 

otherwise. 
25.) Include all hoisting equipment and cranes necessary for this Contractor's scope of work. 
2~.) Furnish, erect and strip form materials, equipment, and accessories as required for a complete installation. 
27.) Furnish and install all elevated slab formwork and pans required for a complete installation. Include all temporary shoring as 

required. If temporary mud slabs are required to achieve acceptable bearing for shoring, it shall be the responsibility of this 
contractor to furnish, install, and remove as necessary to complete the scope of this package. 

28.) Furnish and install bracing required for elevated concrete beams and slabs as required. lndude maintenance of beam 
bracing until permanent supports are in place. 

29 .) Furnish and install all expansion joints, control joints, and keyways associated wtth the scope of Work of this bid package. 
Exclude reworked expansion joints in parking garage. 

30.) Furnish and install all shear keys, reinforcing dowels, dove tail anchor, reglets, and water-stop material as required and in 
accordance with the contract documents. Subcontractor to include any pour-stop forming, stay-form, etc. 

31.) Furnish and install all mechanical and electrical housekeeping pads as shown on the Contract Documents. 
32.) Furnish and install crushed drainage stone to required elevalions(s). 
33.) Furnish and install all vapor barrier materials for the slab on grade and foundations in accordance with the Contract 

Documents (this includes horizontal and vertical surfaces). 
34.) Contractor shall provide and install aggregate base and filter fabric beneath the slab on grade as shown on the Contract 

Documents. Coordinate with waterproofing contractor responsible for basement wall waterproofing. 
35.) Furnish and install all required rigid foam insulation beneath elevated slab decks as shown on the Contract Documents. 
36.) Furnish and install all concrete curing compounds and finishing products in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Coordinate compatibility with finish floor materials. 

TRADE NO.HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a di\llslon of Aintco, LLC. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR - SCOPE OF WORK 
Exhibit A 

Page 3 of 4 
37.) Provide layout of all block-outs, embeds, sleeves, anchors (bolts), supports, etc. as required by the Contract Documents 

and in coordination with shop drawings provided by others. 
38.) Provide block-outs and sleeves as dimensioned on the Contract Documents. 
39.) Furnish and install expansion joint material at column bases as required by the contract documents. 
40.) Furnish and install all asphaltic mastic at column base plates as required by the contract documents. 
41.) Form slab edges, recesses, and block-outs as required by the construction documents or for work of other trades, including 

but not limited to, column block-outs. Include all grout/concrete, as required by the contract documents, to in-fill all column 
block-outs. 

42.) Provide layout and install embeds, sleeves, anchor bolts, and miscellaneous steel items provided by others for t1se in 
concrete construction. 

43.) Provide anchor bolt templates and anchor bolt installation (anchor bolts furnished by others). Locale one nut per set of 
anchor bolts at specified elevation and mark in position. 

44.) This Contractor shall be responsible for receiving, unloading, inventorying, storing and inspecting for shipping damage all 
embed materials related to the concrete work. All shortages MUST be documented in writing within 24 hours of delivery. 
Deliver inventory list to Construction Manager. 

45.) Furnish and install all masonry reinforcing steel materials which is embedded into footings, grade beams, thickened slabs, 
etc. Exclude masonry reinforcing inside of CMU cavities above slab. 

46.) Furnish and install all concrete for the slab on metal stairs including wire mesh and pour stops required as shown on the 
Contract Documents. Include all temporary shoring beneath slabs as required. 

47.) Furnish and install all topping slabs as indicated per the contract documents. 
48.) Furnish and install all concrete curbs, walls, and pedestals as indicated per the contract documents. 
49.) Furnish concrete pumping and placing as required by this Contractor's scope of work. 
50.) Provide all grouting of structural steel column bases, form/reinforce/pour all structural steel concrete encasements as 

required by the construction documents. 
51.) Include scrape off of existing slabs to remove all splatter and debris and remediation due to negleciing to protecVclean 

adjacent slabs. 
52.) Furnish and install all handrail protection al floor openings, floor edges, and block outs per OSHA requirements. Include 

handrails at column block-outs and openings as required. 
53,) Furnish and install handrail protection and toe boards per OSHA standards at slab openings where required including, but 

not limited to, MEP openings, stairs, column block-outs and elevators. 
54.) Place, finish and cure all concrete for all stair steps, stairs on grade, stair foundation walls, stair landings, elevated tiers, and 

housekeeping pads attached to the building or site concrete. Include furnish and install of all required reinforcing steel/wire 
mesh and grout. 

55.) Contractor is responsible for stripping forms and removing same from the project site. 
56.) Furnish and install provisions for cold and hot weather work as required including hot or chilled water, temporary heat, 

enclosures, blankets, etc. 
57 .) Provide fine grading of sub-grade prior to placement of drainage rock. 
58.) Contractor will provide a smooth, flat-float finish for all grade beams, footings, etc. where masonry bond beam will be 

installed on top of concrete. 
59 .) Coordinate locations of existing utilities with Authorities having jurisdiction prior to beginning any work. 
60.) Provide temporary power for the scope of this bid package if building power outlets are not sufficient. 
61.} Subcontractor shall accept the coordination of the structural, civil, MEP and architectural drawings. Contractor shall form, 

place and finish the concrete shown on the architectural, civil, and MEP drawings even if it is not incorporated into the 
structural drawings. 

62.) This bid package is intended to be all inclusive of labor, material, and equipment required for the site concrete and grouting 
work required by the contract documents outside the building confines including all sidewalks, curbs and gutters, concrete 
paving, fence gate post footings, pipe bollard concrete and miscellaneous site work concrete. 

63.} Furnish and install all concrete materials and related materials for the sidewalks, concrete paving, handicap entries, entry 
drives, curb and gutter, transformer pads, trash dumpster pads, and footings, etc. as shown on the Contract Documents. 

64.) Furnish and install all reinforcing steel and all associated accessories for a complete installation of the concrete paving and 
sidewalk work as described in this bid package. 

65.) Furnish and install all sand bedding, geotex~le fabric, and aggregate base for concrete paving. 
66.) Furnish and install all scored exterior sidewalk and site concrete as shown on the Contract Documents. 
67.) Furnish and install all truncated domes, tactile warning surface and thermo plastic crosswalk in the sidewalks and paving as 

shown on the contract Documents. 
68.) Furnish and install waterproofing for base plates and anchor bolts as shown on the Contract Documents. 

TRADE NO.HQ-03300D 
Oakridge Builders a division of Flintco, LLC. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR - SCOPE OF WORK 
Exhibit A 

Page 4of 4 
69.) Include all right-of-way bonds and perm~s as required by the City, County, and state or other agencies having jurisdiction. 
70.) Coordinate material deliveries and concrete pours with Construction Manager. 
71.) Coordinate with Construction Manager a location for concrete washout, then haul-off all concrete washout and debris upon 

completion of this bid package and restore area to the condition it was in prior to this work. Contractor will be responsible for 
washout containers and associated services as required. 

72.) Subcontractor shall take all measures to actively prevent concrete leakage, seepage, splatter, etc. to areas adjacent to 
concrete activities. Include supervision below and adjacent to concrete pours to watch for concrete seepage and leaks. All 
remediation including sweeping, scraping, shoveling and clean-up as necessary is the responsibility of this Contractor. 

73.) Contractor shall be responsible for any and all costs incurred as a result of remedial work required due to failure of concrete 
to achieve strengths required by the Contract Documents, or failure to meet any other requirements in the Contract 
Documents. 

74.) All reinforcing steel shall be free from defects, mill scales, n.ist, or other deteriorations and Contractor will rotate the 
reinfoo:ing steel stock showing signs of rust or deteriorations as determined by the Construction Manager. 

75.) Contractor shalt examine substrates upon which work is to be installed. Notification must be given to the Construction 
Manager in writing of conditions de1rimental to timely and proper installation of work. Do not start lhe work until 
unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected. If work is started without notification of unsatisfactory conditions, it shall be 
construed as an acceptance of substrate by this Contractor, who shall repair unsatisfactory work caused by unsatisfactory 
substrate at no expense to the Owner. 

76.) Contractor to provide professional liability insurance, as required per the specifications for all delegated design 
and professional engineering. 

77.) Contractor to provide engineered shoring and all work and materials associated with shoring garage floor over basement 
where access hole will be cut. Shoring will need to be rated for all equipment and material needed for this contractor as well 
as the relocation of the Owner provided Printing Press (weight of press is 18,000 pounds). Shoring will be required from 
Denver entrance. Contractor will provide and allow use of equipment {gantry crane or other) for the press to be lowered to 
the basement floor. NOTE: precast infill AND printing press may be present in garage at the same time due to lime 
constraints on schedule so shoring area may ex1end beyond the access hole so the printing press can be moved from 
Denver entrance to basement. 

Work excluded from this bid package: 
1.) Reinforcing materials associated with Masonry Work except those that embed in footings, etc as denoted above. 

NOTE: Each week, the Construction Manager will specify one day for general cleanup. During the extent of your 
contract, you will provide the Construction Manager with TWO laborers for this cleanup. This will not supersede daily 
cleanup of the work area. as stipulated In Bid Package General Requirements {Document 004600). 

The Liquidated Damages for this Package are $0 per day 

TRADE NO. HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Fllntco, LLC. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The contractor (and any Sub-contractors) shall carry and keep in force during this Contract, policies of insurance in minimum 
amounts as set forth below, or as required by the laws of the State of Oklahoma: 

Exhibit B 
Page 1 of 2 

1. General Liability Insurance providing for a combined amount of not less than $200,000 for all damages arising out of 
bodily injury, death and property damage for each occurrence with an aggregate limit of $300,000, and an excess 
umbrella liability coverage of $2,000,000; 

2. Workers Compensation Insurance and Employee Liability Insurance as required by Workers Compensation laws of 
the State of Oklahoma; 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Insurance; and 
4. Errors and Omissions Coverage (only applicable to Architect or Engineering Services). 

Note: Builders Risk lnsuranc:e will be the responsibility of the Construction Manager and therefore should not be included. 

IMPORTANT: 
The Contractor shall name the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County, Oklahoma as an additional insured; 

The Contractor shall furnish Certificates of Insurance which shall provide that said insurance will not be cancelled by the 
Insurer without Insurer providing thirty (30) days written notice to the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County; 

The Insurance specified shall be acquired from an Insurance Company properly licensed by the State of Oklahoma to 
provides uch coverage in the State of Oklahoma. 

TRADE NO.HQ-033000 
Oakridge !luilders • division of Flintto, LLC. 



ACORD8 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 05/15/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THtS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BElWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER($). AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on thi,; certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement{s). 

PRODUCER 1-314-746-4700 CONTACT Karen AbroD10vich NAME: 
Huntleigh McGehee 

r.H~NJ_ ~-" · 314-746-4775 I FAX /A/C Nol : 314-889-3735 
8235 Forsyth Boulevard E-MAIL kAbromovich@llmrisk.com ADDRESS: 
Suite 1200 
Clayton, MO 63105 IN8URERl8) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A : ARCH INS CO 11150 
INSURED INSURER B: XL J:NS AMER J:NC 24554 
Oakridge Builders, a Division of Flintco, LLC 

INSURER C: ARCH IND INS CO 30830 
1624 West 21st Street INSURER D: 

Tulsa, OIC 74107 INSURERE: 
INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 534759075 REVISION NUMBER· 
THIS 1$ TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. N01WITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY Tl-IE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AN• CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL SUBR POLICYEFF POLICY EXP 
LTR '""D l wvn POLICY NUMBER IMM/OD/YYYY\ IMMIDD/YYYYI LIMITS 
A GENERAL LIABILITY 41PltG8922405 01/01/15 Ol/01/20 EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000 -X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ~~~~~~J~E~•~;!nce\ $500,000 

1 Cl.AIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000 - PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $2,000,000 

~ 
GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS·COMPIOPAGG $4,000,000 n POLICY rx7 P,~ n LOC $ 

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 41PltG8922405 01/01/lS 01/01/20 fE~~~~~~llNGLE LIMIT s 1,000,000 -X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ ,.-
ALL OWNED ~ SCHEDULED 
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per eocidanl) $ - - NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE HIREDALJTOS AUTOS I Per •ee.tentl $ - - $ 

B UMBRELLA LIAB 
H OCCUR 

US00029051LI19A 01/01/1! 01/01/20 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000 
~ 

X EXCESS LIAB CLJ,IMS·MADE AGGREGATE $10,000,000 

OED I X I RETENTION s NIL $ 

C WORKERS COMPENSATION 44WCI8945205 01/01/1' 01/01/20 x I Tvti~JTfJ#s I IOTH-
AND EMP LOVERS' LIABILITY FR 

A YIN 41WCI8922305 01/01/1 01/01/20 $ 1,000,000 ANY PROPRIETOR/PARfflER/EXECUTIVE ~ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 
DFFICER/MEMl!ER EXCI.UDED? N NIA 
(Mandatc<y In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000 
If yes, do,oribe under $1,000,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E .L. DISEASE • POLICY LI MIT 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERA110NS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (Atlach ACORD 1D1, Additional Ramarkg Schadule, If mon space,. required) 
RB; Tulsa County HQ Adirlinistration Building Re11.0Vations, 218 w. 6th St, Tulsa, OK 74119 
Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, GH2 Architect and its consultants are included as additional 
ins~red(except Workers Compensation) as required by written contract for all work perforJ11ed by or on behalf of the 
Named rnsured. 
Waiver of subrogation is included as required by written contract and where allowable by law. 
Per policy conditions, 30 days• notice of cancellation will be mailed to the certificate holder. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
Tulsa County THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

500 South Denver ALJTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

Tulsa, 011: 74103 --nwJ~t--
I USA 

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. AH rights reserved. 
ACORD 25 (2010/05) 
cwaldvogel 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

534759075 



FLINTCO POLICIES/PROCEDURES 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF OBTAINING FORM 

ExhibitC 
Page 1 of 1 

The following Policies and Procedures are part of the Agreement by referl!nce. (Obtain documents at www.fUntco.com. Select Subcontractors 
tab and then click on Forms. I 

• Substance Free Wortcplace: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Ffintco, LLC policy statement regarding Substance free Workplace 
and have read and 11 ndersta nd mv obi igatio ns under this pol i i:v. 

• Firearm, Weapons-Free Workplace Poffcy: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy the Flintco, LLC policy statement regarding Firearm, 
Weapons-Free Workplace and have read and understand my obligations under this policy. 

• Smoke-Free Workphu;e: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Fllntco, LlC policy statement regarding a Smt1ke-Free Workplace and 
have read and understand my obligations under this polity. 

• Safety Manual: I acknowledge that 1 have obtained a copy of the Flintco, llCSarety Manual and have read and understand my obltgations 
regard Ing Job Site safety. 

• Cer1ffitiitlon of Nonsegregated Fadlltles: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Fli11tco, LlC policy statement regarding a 
Nonsesregated Facility and have read and understa!'ld my obligations urider this policy. 

Trade Contractor acknowledges obtaining a copy Df and agrees to comply with CM policies and procedures related to Trade Contractor 
performance on the /obslte. 

Oakridge Builders a division of Flintco, LLC. 
Trade Contractor Name 

l'-rPloi. 
Signature of Trade Comractor Representative Date 

Return this slcned fcirm with your executed Trade. 

TRADE NO.H<l-033000 
D~krldge Builder,; a dlllislanofAlntm, u.c. 



Specifications: 

Addenda: 

Drawings: 

EKhibit D 
Page 1 of 1 

DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS & ADDENDA 

Tulsa County Administration Building 
20180005 
Project Manual 
Volume 1 &2 
03/25/2019 

Addendum #lA Dated 04/08/2019 
Addendum #2A Dated 04/29/2019 

CM Clarification #1 Dated 04/08/2019 
CM Clarification #2 Dated 04/29/2019 

As listed in Sheet Index on Sheet CS1 Cover Sheet 
Tulsa County Administration Building 
GH2 Architects 
Project 1#20180005 
03/25/2019 Conformed Set 

TRADE NO.HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Filoteo, llC. 



SCHEDULE OF WORK 

Exhibit E 
Page 1of1 

THE CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE WILL BE MAINTAINED AT THE PROJECT SITE AND WILL BE UPDATED AS WORK PROGRESSES. 
TRADE CONTRACTOR WILL GIVE INPUT REGARDING THE SCHEDULE AT REGULARLY SCHEDULED PROGRESS 
MEETINGS. TRADE CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW THE MOST CURRENT VERSION OF THE SCHEDULE MAINTAINED BY CM AND 
PERFORM THE SUBCONTRACT WORK ACCORDING TO THAT SCHEDULE. 

TRADE NO.HQ-033000 
Oakridge Builders a division of Flintco, LLC. 



CERTIFICATION OF 
NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES 

ExhibitF 
Page 1 of 1 

By the submission of this bid, the bidder, offeror, applicant, or subcontractor certlHed that he does not maintain or provide for his 
employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he does not pennlt his employees lo pert'orm their services at 
any locaUon under his control, where segregated faclHtles are maintained. He cer1.ilies further that he will not maintain or provide for his 
employees any segregated facilities at any of his eslablishmenls, and that he will not permit his employees to perform their services al 
any location, under his control where segregated facilities are maintained. The bidder, offerer, applicant or subcontractor agrees that a 
breach of !his certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity clause in this Contract. As used in this certification, the term 
•segregated facilities' means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time 
clocks, lacker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, 
transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by expllclt directive or are in fact segregated on the 
basis of race, creed, color or national origin. because of habit, local custom or otheiwise. He further agrees that (except where he has 
obtained Identical certifications from proposed subcontractors or specific time peliod) he will obtain Identical certifications from 
proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding $10,00D which are not exempt from the provision of Equal 
Opporwnity clause: that he will retain such certifications in his files; and that he will forward the following notice to such subcontractors 
(except where the proposed subcontractors have submitted Identical certifications for specific time periods): 

Notice to Prospective Subcontractors of Raqulrements for Certifications of Nonsegregated Facilities. 

Notification of Nonsegregated Facilities, as required by the May 9, 1967, order on Elimination of Segregated Facilities, by the Secretary 
of Labor (32 Fed. Reg. 7439. May 19, 1967), must be submilled prior lo Ille award of a subcontract exceeding $10,000 which is not 
exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause. The certification may be submitted either for each subcomractor or for all 
subconltacls during a period (I.e. quarterly. semlannually, or annually). 

Nole: The penalty for making false &tatsment In offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001. 

Finn Company Name 

Signature of Aulhariz 

Return this signed fonn with your executed subcontract. ,------------------, Polygon MKnowlton 



Exhibit G 
?age 1 of 13 

Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations 

• Bond No. 107099752 
Tulsa County Purchasing 

Payment Bond 

Any singular reference to Conlractor, SUrety, O'M'ler or Olher party shall be 0011Sidered plural v.tiere applicable. This dOC1Jment may not be altered or modified. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): 

Oakridge Builders, a division of Flintco, LLC 
1624 W. 21st St. 
Tulsa, OK 74107 

OWNER: Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 
Tulsa County Administration Building 
500 South Denver Avenue 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Date: May 13, 2019 

SURETY (Name and Prlnclpal Place of Business): 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America 
One Tower Square 
Hartford, CT 06183 

Amount $ 492,800.00 (Four hundred ninety two thousand, eight hundred dollars) 

Description (Name and Location}: 

Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations, 218 W 6th St., Tulsa, OK 74103 
BOND: 

Date (Not eartier than Construction Contract Date): May 13, 2019 

Amount: $ 492,800.00 (Four hundred ninety two thousand, eight hundred dollars) 

Oakridge Builders, 
CONTRACTOR (Rep 

Signature: 

..,~-, 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company:of'America 
SURETY (Representative): .1 

Signature: 

Name and Title: Trevor Ladner, Authorized RepresentativeName and nue: Cheryl L. McAleenan, Attorney-in.Fact 

(FOR INFDRMA TION ONLY-Name, Address and Telephone) 

AGENT or BROKER: 
Hillsdale Insurance Agency 
8800 Page Avenue 
St. Louis, M063114 
314-733·2454 

OCAM/CAP • FORM A:J128 (0812012) 

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE (Architect, Engineer or olher party): 

PAYMENT BOND PAGE 1 OF 3 



1 The concractor and the Suraty, jointly and severaDy, bind 
themselves, their heirs, ~rs. administrators, suaiesso111 
and aasigns to the Owner to pay for labor, material& and 
equipment furnished ror use In the perfannance of the 
Construction Contract, which Is Incorporated herein by 
reflnnce. 

2 'Mth respect to the Owner, this obligation shall be null and 
wJd If the Contrador. 

2.1 Promptly makes payment, directly or Indirectly, for all 
sums due CleimanlS, and 

2.2 Defends, Indemnifies end holds harmless the Owner 
from clalms, demands, liens or sulls by any person or 
entity whose claim, demand, Hen or suit Is for the payment 
(or labor, materials or equipment fumished for use in the 
perfonnance of the Construction Contrad, provided the 
OWner has promptly nollfied the Contractor and the Sull!lty 
(at the acldress described In Paragraph 12) of miy claims, 
demands, liens or suits to the Contractor and the Surety, 
and provided there is no Owner Default 

3 Vllilh respect to Claimant&, this obfrgation ahal be null and 
void ff the Contractor promptly makes payment, directly or 
lndin!lclly, for all auma due. 

4 The SUrety shall have no obligation to Claimants under 
lhls Bond until: 

4.1. Claimants YAlo are employed by or have a direct 
contract with the Contractor hawi given notice to the 
Surety (at the address described In Paragraph 12) and 
sent a copy, or notice thereof, to 1he Owner, stating that a 
dalm ia being made under lhia Bond and, with substantial 
accuracy, the amount of the claim. 

4.2. Claimants who do not have a direct contract with the 
Contractor: 

4.2. 1, Have furnished written notioe to the 
Conttactor and sent a copy, or notice theraof, to the 
Owner, wilhin 90 days after having last pelformed 
labor or last furnished materials or eq~pment 
Included In the claim stating, with substantial 
accuracy, the amount of the claim and 1he name of 
the party to whom the materials were fUmished or 
supplied or for whom the labor was done or 
perfomled;and 

4.2.2, Have ellher received a rejection In 1M10le or 
In part from the Contrador, or not n,ceived within 30 
days of fumlshlng the above notice any 
communication fr0m the Conlnlctor by which the 
Contractor has Indicated the dalm will be paid directly 
or lndireclly, and 

4.2.3. Not having been paid within lhe above 30 
days, have sent a wrillen notice to the Surety (at the 
address listed on Page 1) and sent a copy, or notice 
thereof, to the Owner, stating that a daim is being 
made under this Bond and enclosing a copy of the 
previous wrfllen notice furnished to the Contractor. 

DCAMfCAP. FORII A312B (0812012) 

Ellhibit G 
!'age 2 of 13 

5 If a notice required by Paragraph. 4 is given by the Owner 
to the Contractor or to the Surety, that Is sufficient compliance. 

6 When the Claimant has satisfied the conditions of 
Paragraph 4, the Surety shall promptly and at the Swety's 
expense take the following actions: 

6. 1 Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the 
Owner, within 45 days after reoeipt of the dalm, stating the 
amounts that are undisputed and the basis for chaDenglng 
any amounts that are disputed. 

6.2 Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed 
amounts. 

7 The Surety's tatal obligation shall not exceed the amount 
of this Bond, and the amount of this Bond shall be cre<llled for 
any payments made In good faith by the Surety. 

8 Amountl OW9d by the owner to the Contractor under the 
Construction Contract shall be used for the perfonnance cf the 
Construction Contract and to aatlsfy claims, if any, under any 
ConstfUCtion Perfonnance Bond. By the contractor furnishing 
and the Owner acc:eptlng this Bond, they agree that ell funds 
earned by the Contractor In the performance of the 
Construdlon Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of 
the Contractor and the Surety under this Bond, subject to the 
Owner's priority to use the funds for Iha completion of 1he 
wor1c. 

B The Surety hereby waiws notice of any change, indudlng 
changes of time, to the Conswctlon Contract or to A3lated 
subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations. 

10 No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under 
this Bond other 1han In a court of competent jurisdiction or after 
the expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the 
Claimant gave the notice requllad by Subparagraph 4.1 or 
Clause 4.2.3, or (2) on which the last labor or service was 
performed by anyone or the last materials or equipment were 
furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, 
IM'lichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the proviaions of this 
Paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of 
limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of 
the suit shall be applieable. 

11 Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the Contractor shall be 
maAed or de0vel1td to the address shown on the signature 
page. Actual receipt of notice by Surety, the ONner er the 
Contractor, however aocompllshed, shall be aufftdent 
compliance as of lhe date received at the address shown on 
the signature riage. 

12 When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a 
ststutoty or other legal requlremenl In the location where !he 
construction was to be peiformed, any prollislon in 1his Bond 
confliding with said statutory or legal requirement shall be 
deemed deleled herefrom and pro\lislona confonning to such 
ststuto,y or other legal ,aquirement shall be deem lnccrporaled 
heniin. The int.rt is that this Bond shall be construed as a 
statuto,y bond and not aa a common law bond. 

13 Upon request by any person or entity appearing to be a 
potential benefielary of this Bond, the Contractor shall promptly 
furnish a copy of this Band or ahaD pannit a copy to be made. 

PAYMENT BOND PAGE 2 OF 3 



14 DEFINITIONS 

14.1, Claimant An Individual or entity having a direct 
contract with the Contractor or with a subcontractor of the 
Contractor to fumish labor, materials or equipment for use 
In the perfonnance of the Contract. The Intent of this 
Bond shall be to Include without limitation In the tenns 
"labor, malerfal& or equlpmenr that part of water, gas, 
power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental 
equlpment used In the Construcllon Contract, archltectural 
and englneerina services required for performance of the 
wonc of the Contractor and the Contractor's 
subcontractors, and all other Items for which a medlanlc's 
lien may be aasertect In the jurildiclion where the labor, 
materials or equipment were furnished. 

14.2. Construc:llcn Contract: The agreement between 
the Owner and the Contractor identified on the signature 
pege, lncludlng an Contract Documents and changes 
thereto. 

14.3. owner Default FailUra of Iha Owner, which has 
neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the Contractor 
aa required by the Construction Conlract. 

DCAMICAP • FORM A312B (D8/2012) 

Exhibit ti 
Page l of 13 

PAYMENT BOND PAOE a OF 3 



..... 
TRAVELERSJ 

Travelers Casualty and surety Company of America 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company 
St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS; Thal Traveleni Casualty and Surety Company of Arnelica, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and S1. 
Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company are corporations duly organized under the laws of the Slate of Connecticut (herein collectively celled the 
"Companies1. and lhal the Companies do hereby make, constitute and appoint Cheryl L McAleenan of Maryland Heights , 
Missouri , their true and lawful Allomey-in-Fect to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, recognkances. 
condlllonal undertakings and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof on behalf of the Compariies in their business (,)f guaranteeing the 
fidelity of pen;ons, gu1.1ran1eeing Ille performance of contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or pennined in any 
a clions or proceedings allowed by law. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companies have caused lhis instrumenl to be signed, and their corporate seals to be hereto c1ffixed, this 3rd day of February, 
2017. 

State of Connectlcul 

City of Hartford ss. 
By: d~ 0

Robert L. RaieiserVicePresident 

On this the 3rd day of February, 2017, before me personally appeared Robart L. Raney, vhlo acknowledged hirnaerr to be tile Senior Vice President of 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and St. Paul Fire ano Marine Insurance Company, and that 
he, as such, being aulflorized so to do, executed the foregoing Instrument for the purposes therein conlained by signing on behalf of the corporations by 
himself as a duly authorized officer. 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

My Commission expires the 30th day ol June, 2021 e Marie C. Tetreault, Notary Public 

This Power of Allomey is granted under arul by the authority of the fallowing resoluUons adopted by the Boards of Directors of Travelers Casualty and 
Surety Company of Amesica, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and St. Paul Fire and Maline Insurance Company, which resolutions are now in full 
force and effect, reading as follows: 

RESOLVED, that the Chainnan, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vlce President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice President. any 
Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, lhe Corporate Secretary or any Assistant Secretary may appoint Attorneys-in-Fact and 
Agents to act for snd on behalf of the Company and may give such appointee such authority as his or her certificate of authorily may prescribe 10 sign with 
Iha Company's name and seal with the Companys seal bands, reC<>gnizances, contracts of Indemnity, and other w,mngs obligetoJy ln ll'le nature ol a bom!, 
recognizance, or condilionel undertaking, aml any of said officers or Ille Board of Directors at any time may remove any such appointee and revoke lhe 
pOWl!r given him or her: and It is 

FURTHER RESOLVED. that the Chairman, the President. any Vice Chainnan, any ElCecutive Vice Presidenl, any Senior Vice Presidenl or any Vice 
President may delegate all or any part or the foregoing authority lo one or more officers or employees of this Company, provided that each such delegation 
is in writing and a copy thereof is filed In the office ol the Seaetary; and ii is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any bond, recognizance, conlract ol indemnity, or writing obligatory in the nature of a bond, recogn!zance, or conditional 
undertaking shall be valid and binding upon the Company INhen (a) signed by the President, any Vice Chairman, ariy Execulive Vice President, 11ny Senior 
Vice President or any Vice President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, arty Assistanl Treasurer, the Corporale Secretary or any Assistanl 
Secretary and duly attested and sealed with the Company's seal by a Secretary or Assistant Secretary; or (bl duly executed (u11der seal, if required) by one 
or more Atlomeys-in-Facl and Agents pursuant to the power prescribed in his or her certificale or their certmcates of authority or by one or more 
Company officers pursuant lo a wrillen d elegafion ol authority; and it is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of each of the following officers: Presldenl, any Executive Vice President any Senior Vice President any Vice 
President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any Assistant Secreta,y, and the seal or the Compc1ny may be affixed by facsimile to any Power of 
Attorney or lo any certificate relating thereto appointing Resident Vice Presidents, Resident Assistanl Secre!aries or Allomeys-in-Fact for purpose& only of 
e,cecuting and attesting bonds and underta~gs and o1her writings obligato,y in the nature thereof, and any such Power of Attorney or certificate bearing 
such facslmlle signature or facslmile seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company and any sucn power so executed and certified by SUCh facsimile 
signature and facsimile seal shall be valid and binding on the Company In lhe fulure with respect to any bond or underslanding to which ii is attached. 

l. Kavin E. Hughes. the undersigned, Assistanl Secreta,y of Travelers Casualty and Surety Company or America, Travelers Casualty and Surely 
Company, and St. Paul Fire and Maline Insurance Company, do hereby certify thal lhe above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of lhe Power of 
Attorney executed by said companies, which remains in fuH force and effect. 
Dated this 13th day of MAY • 2019 

:9,..., .. 0, 
o; 11 
~~ ~ , . ~ 
To verify the a,Jlhentic/ty of this Power of Attorney; please calf us at 1 ·BOD-42i-3880. 

Please refer R> the above-named Attomey•ln·Faa and the detifils of the bond to which the power is 111:tached. 



STATE OF MISSOURI 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS 

On this j:3_ day of fYJa.L{ , o?Oa . before me personally appeared 
Cheryl L. McAleenan • with whom I am personally acquainted, who, 

being by me duly sworn, said: That he/she is Attorney-in-Fact of Travelers Casualty and Surety 
Company of America, the corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instmment; that 
he/she knows the corporate seal of said Company; that said seal affixed to said instrument is such 
corporate seal; that it was so afiixed by authority of the Board of Directors thereof and of his/her office 
under the Standing Reso]utions of said Company; an at he/she signed his/her name thereto as 
Attorney- in-Fact by like authority. 

NOTARY STAMP 

( 

My commission expires: August 15, 2020 
Commission #12618776 



• 
Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations 

Bond No. 107099752 

Ey.h;bit ~ 
!'age 6<>f 13 

Tulsa County Purchasing 
Performance Bond 

Arry singular reference to Contractcr, Surely, Owner or olher party shell be considered ,ilural where applicable. This doaiment may nol ba altered or modified. 

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): 
Oakridge Builders, a division of Flintco, LLC 
1624 W. 21st SL 
Tulsa, OK 74107 

OWNER: Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 
Tulsa County Administration Building 
500 South Denver Avenue 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Date: May 13, 2019 

SURETY (Name and Principal Place of Business); 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America 
One Tower Square 
Hartford, CT 06183 

Amount: S 492,800.00 (Four hundred ninety two thousand, eight hundred dollars) 
Desaiptlon (Name arul Location): 

Tulsa County nHQ" Administration Building R~npyations, 218 W 6th SI., Tulsa, OK 74103 

BOND: 

Date (Not eerUer than Cons!IUdlon CDntract Date): May 13, 2019 

Amount s 49:2:,800.00 (Four hundred ninety two thousand, eight hundred dollars) 

n of Flintco, LLC Travelers Casualty and surety Company of ~rn~ljca 
SU~~TV (Represenlallva): . 

Signature: Signature: 

Name and litte: Trevor Ladner, Authorized Representative Name and iille: Cheryl L. McAleenan, Attd~~y-in-Fact 

(FOR INFORMA TJON ONL Y-JoJsme, Address and Telephone) 

AGENT or BROKER: 

Hillsdale Insurance Agency 
8800 Page Avenue 
St. Louis, MO 63114 314-733•2454 

DCAMfCAP • FORM A312A (0812012) 

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE (Architect, Engineer or other party): 

PERFORMANCE BOND PAGE 1 OF 3 



1. The Con~ and the Surety, Jointly and severally, bind 
themserws, therr heirs, executors, administrato,s, successors 
and ass I g n s to the Owner for the performance of the 
Conall\lction Contract. which Is Incorporated herein by ralerence. 

2. If the Contract er perfonns the Cons1rudion Contract, the 
Suraty and the Contractor shall haw no obligation under this 
Bond, except to par11dpate In conferences as provided in 
SUbparagraph 3.1. 

3. The Suratya obligalion under this Bond shall arise after. 

3.1 The Owner has notified Iha Contractor and the Su111ty 
at Its acttress on Page 1 that the Owner Is considering 
declaring a Contractor Default as described in Paragraph 
10 and has requealed and attempted to arrange 1 
oonferance with the Conttactor and the Surety to be held 
not later than ten (10) days after receipt of such notice to 
discuss methods of performing the Construction Contract. 
tf the Owner, the Contract« and the Surety agree, the 
Conlractor shal be allO'Mld a reasonable time to 
perform the eon.truction Contract, but IUCll an 
agreement shaO not waiw the Owner's right if an 
y, subaequantly to declare a Conlractor'a Default; 
and 

3.2 The Owner haa declared a Conlractor Default and 
fonnafly terminated the Contrac:tor's right to complete the 
confl8c:t. Such Contractor Default Shel not be declared 
earlier lhan 1ewn (7) days ener the Contractor and 1he 
Surety haw rece"'8d notice u provided In Subparagraph 
3.1; and 

U The OWMr ha agreed to pay 1he Balance of the 
Contract Price to the Surety In accordance with the terms 
of lhe Construction Conlract or to a contractor selected to 
perlorm the ConSlrUctlon Contract In accordance wllh the 
tenns of the contract with the Owner. 

4.. Whan the OWner has satisfied the conditiOns of P~ph 
3. the Surety shall promptly and et Ille Surety's expense take 
one of the tollowlng acllons. 

4.1 Arrange for a Contractor, with ooneent of the OWner, 
to perform and complete the Cons!l'Uction Contract; or 

4.2 Undertake to perfonn and complete the Construdiol'I 
Conlraet Itself, through i1s aa•nts or 1hro ugh lndependem 
COntrac:lol"I; or 

.C.3 Oi>Caln propoeals or negotiated proposals tom 
qualified contra<:tort acceptable to the OWner for a 
contract for pe,formance and completion of the 
Cons1ruction Contract, arrange for a contract to be 
prepared for exec.ution by hi Owner and the conlrac:kr 
Hlected with the Owner's concurrence, to be secured with 
perfonnance and payment bonds executed by a qualllled 
surety equivalent to the bands Issued on lhe Construction 
Contract. and pay to the Owner the amount of damage a 
as described in Paragraph 6 In exoeas of the Balance of 
the Contract P rice Incurred by the Owner resulting wm 
the Contractor's delaull; or 

4.4 Waive Its right to perfonn and complete, arrange for 
completlon, or obtain a new contractor and with 

DCM/CAP• FORM A311A (08r2012) 

Exhibit G 
Page 'f of 13 

reasonable promptnees under the drcuml1ances: 

4.1,1, After Investigation, detennfne the amount for 
v.tll~ It may be liable to the <Amer, and as SQon as 
practtcable after the amoi.m ia determined, tender 
payment therefor to the Owner; or 

4.1,2. Deny llablllly In whole or In part and notify 1he 
Ov.fler citing ntasons therefor. 

S. 11 the Surety does not proceed as provided In Paragraph 4 
with reasonable promptness, the Surety ShaU be deemed to be 
in default on this Bond faurtaen (14) days after reoeipt of an 
additional written notice from the Owner to the Surety 
demanding that the Surety perfoim its obligations under !his 
Bo'!(', and the Owner shall be entitled to enforoa any remedy 
available to the Owner. If the surety proceeds as provided In 
Subparagraph 4.4, and the OWrler iefUses 1he payment 
tendered or the Surety has denied llablllty, In whole or In part, 
Without further notice the Owner 9hal be entitled to enrorca 
any remedy avaOable to lhe Owner. 

8. After the Owner has tennlnated the Contractor's right to 
complete the construction COnnct, and if the Surety eleela to 
act under Subparagraph 4.1, 4.2, or4.3 above, then the 
responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not be greater 
lhan lhol8 of the Contractor under the Conslrudion Contract. 
and the responslbiHlles of the Owner to the Surety shalt not be 
greater lhan 1hose of the Ovmer under the Construction 
Contract. To the llmlt of the amOU11t of this Bond, but subject to 
commitment by the Owner of the Batanoe of the Contract Pnce 
to mitigation of costa and damages on the Construction 
Contract, the Surety Is obligated without duplication for: 

6.1 The responalbllities of the Contractor for oooection of 
defecthla work and completion of the Construction 
Contract; 

6.2 Additional legal, design pro'8ssional and delay costs 
resulting from the Contractor's Default, and A1Sulting from 
the actions or failure to act of 1he Surety under Paragraph •;and 

8.3 Llquiclated damages. or If no liquidated damagea are 
apec:ified In the Construction Con1ract, actual damages 
caused by delayed perfannanoe or no n-perfonnance of 
the Contractor. 

7, The Surety hereby waives notice of any change. lnclUding 
changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to r elated 
11ubcontrac11, purchase ordtn and other obligations . 

8. Notice to the Surety, the Owner or the contractor shaU be 
malled er delivered 10 the address shown on the signature 
page. 

a. When this Bond has been fumilhed to comply ~ a 
lfatulory or other legal requirement In the location llltlere 1he 
constructi0t1 was to be performed, any provilionl In this Bond 
conftiding With said statutory or legal requirement shell be 
deemed deleted here from and pmvisions confonnlng to such 
statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed 
incorporated herein. The lnlient 18 that 1h18 Bond shall be 
construed as a statutory bond and not u • common law bond. 

PEAFORMANCI! BOND PAGE 2 OF S 



10. DEFINITIONS 

10.1 Balance of th e Contract Price: T he total amount 
payable by the OWnet to lhe Conlractor under Iha 
Construction Conlract aftel' all proper adjustments have 
been made, tncludlng anowance to the Contraclor of any 
amounw received or to be received by the Owner In 
settlement of insurance or other claims for damag es to 
which the Conlractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and 
proper payments made to o r on behalf of the Conlracto r 
under the Construction Contract. 

10.2Construction Contract The agreement between lhe 
Owner and the Contractor ldentlfled on the sig nature 
page, including all Co ntract Documents and ch anges 
thereto. 

10,3Contrac:tor Default F allui. of the Contractor, which 
has neither been remedied nor waived, to peffonn or 
oth81Wise to c omply with the tenns of th e Construction 
Contract. 

10.40wner Default Failure of the O wner, which has 
neither been RHT1edied nor waived, to pay the Contractor 
as required by the Construction contract. 

DCAIIICAP • FORM A312A (U81201Z) 

Exhibit G 
Page I of 13 

PERFORMANCE BOND PAGE 3 OF 3 



~ TRAVELERSJ 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company 
St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: ihal Travelers Casually and Surely Comp;;my of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and S1. 
Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company are corporallons dui,r organized under the laws of the State of CoMeCl.icut (herein col!ecllvely calle,;:l the 
"Co111panies1, and that the Companies do hereby make, conslilule and appoin\ Cheryl L McA.leonan or Maryland Helght5 _ 
Missouri , \heir true and lawful Al1orney-in-Fact to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, recognizances, 
condi!ional undertakings and other writings obligatory in the nalure lhE:reof on behalf of lhe Companies in their business of guaranteeing the 
fidelity of persons. guaranteeing the performance of contracts .ind executing or guaranteeing bonds and underta1dngs required or permllted in any 
2ctions or proceedings allowed by law. _ 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companies have caused this ins1rume,1t to be signed. and their corporate seals to be hereto affixed, lh1s 3rd day of Februaiy, 
2017. 

State of Connectic\J\ 

City of Hartford ss. 
By: 

Robert L. Raney, Se\irorvice Presldenl 

On this the 3rd day of February, 2017. before me personally appeared Robert L Raney, who acknowledged himself to be tile Senior Vlce President of 
Travelers Casualty and Surely Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and 51. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance company, ancl Iha\ 
he, as such, being authorized so to do. executed !he foregoing instrument for the purposes lherein contained by signing on behalf or the corporaUons by 
hlmself as a duly authorized officer. 

In Witn85S Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

My Commission expires the 30th day of June, 2D21 e Marie C. Tetreau!t, Notary Public 

This Power of Attorney is grc1nted·under and by the ault-rortty of the following resolutions adopted by the Boards of Directors of Travelers Casualty and 
Surety Company of America. Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and SL Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company. wlllch resolutions are now In full 
force and effecl, reading as follows: 

RESOLVED, that the Chaim1an. the President, any Vice Chainnan, any Exewlive Vice President. any Senior Vice President, any Vice Presiden1, any 
Second Vice President, lhe Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any Assistant Secretary may appoint Att<1meys-in-Fact and 
Agents to ael for and on behalf of the Company and may give such appointee sueh ,authority as his or her cenifleate of aulhOrity may presCfibe to sign with 
the Company's name and seal wilh the Company's seal bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and other vll'itings obligatory in the nature of a bond, 
recognizance, or conditional undertaking, and any of said officers or the Board of Directors at any time may remove any such appointee and revoke the 
power given him or her. and 11 is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that lhe Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Viee President or any Vice 
President may delegate all or any pan of Ille foregoing authority to one or more officer5 or employees of this C0mpaoy, provided Iha! each such delegation 
is In writing and a copy thereof is filed In the office or the Secreta 1y; and ii is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any bond, recognizance, contract of indemnity, or writing obligatory in the nature of a bond, recognizance, or conditional 
undertaking shall be vatid and binding upon Ille Company when (a) signed by the President, any Vice Chairman. any Executive Vice President, any Senior 
Vice President or any Vice President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secre!.liy 0t any Assistant 
Secretary and duly attested and sealed with lhe Company's seal by a Secretary or Assistant Secretary; or (b) duly executed {under seal, if required) hy one 
or more Atlomeys-in-F aci. and Agents pur..uant lo the pow,er prescribed In his or her certificate or their certificates of autho..'lty or by one or more 
Company offir.ers pursuan\ to a wrilten delegalian of at11holit_v; and It ls 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that lhe signature of each of the following officers: Presidenl, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice 
President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretaiy, any Assistant Secre1ary, and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any Power of 
Attorney or lo any certificate relating thereto appointing Resident Vice Presidents, Resident Assistant Secretaries or Altomeys-in-Fact for purposes only of 
executing and attesllng bonds and undertakings and other wrilings obligatory in lhe nature thereof, and any such Power of Attorney or ceftificate bearing 
such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company and any such power so executed and certified by such facsimll!! 
signature and racsimlle seal shall be vaftd and binding on the Company in the future with respect lo any bond or understanding lo which II is attached. 

I, Kevin E. Hughes, the undersigned. Assistant Secreta,y of Travelers Casualty and Surely Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety 
Company, and St. Paul Fire and Manne Insurance Company, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing Is a true and correct copy of the Power of 
Allomey executed by said Companies, whir::h remains In Ml force and effec1. 

Dated this 13th day of MAY , 2019 

To verify the authenticity of thfs Power of Attorney, please call us at i ../100-421·3880. 
Please refer to the ilbove-named Attorney-in-Fact and the details of the bond to which the power Is attached. 



STATE OF MISSOURI 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS 

On this J.Q___ day of lnt:Uf . ~O I 9 , before me personally appeared 
Cheryl L. McAJeenan ~ with whom I am personally acquainted, who, 

being by me duly sworn, said: That he/she is Attorney-in-Fact of Travelers Casualty and Surety 
Company of America, the corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that 
he/she knows the corporate seal of said Company; that said seal affixed to said instrument is such 
corporate seal; that it was so affixed by authority of the Board of Directors thereof and ofhis&er office 
under the Standing Resolutions of said Company; and that he/she signed his/her name thereto as 
Attorney- in-Fact by like authority. r 

NOTARY STAMP My commission expires: August 15, 2020 
Commission #12618776 



•• Bond No. 107099752_ 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, 

3-xhib: l G 
Page f1,f 13 

Tulsa County Purchasing 
Statutory Defect Bond 

61 o.s. 1991, Section 113 (8)(3) 

That Oakridge Builders, a division of Flintco, LLC as Principal and Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America 
e corporation organized under the raws of the State of Connecticut and authorized to transact business 
in the State of Oklahoma, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, 
in the penal sum of 

Four hundred ninety two thousand, eight hundred dollars - Dollars($ 492.800.00-- ) 
in lawful money of the United States of America, said sum being equal to One Hundred percent (100%) of the Contract price, for the 
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and eacl1 of us, our heirs, executors, administrators, tnJstees, 
successors, and assigns, jointly and severa1Jy, firmly by these presents: 

The condition of this obligation is such that: 

lNHEREAS, said Principal entered Into a written c.ontract with the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County. 
dated May 13, 2019 for Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations, 218 W6th St., Tulsa. OK 74103 
_____________________ all In compliance with the plans and specifications therefore, made 
a part of said contract and on file in the Tulsa County Clerk's Office, 500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103. 

NOW, THEREFORE, if said Principal shall pay or cause to be paid to the Board of County Commissioners of Tulsa County 
all damage, loss, and expense which may result by reason of defective materials and/or workmanship in connection with said work, 
occurring within a period of one {1) year from and after the acceptance or said project by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Tulsa County; then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise ta be and remain in full force and effect. 

It is expressly agreed and understood by the parties hereto that no changes or alterations In said Contract and no deviations 
from the plan or mode of procedure herein fixed shall have the effect of releasing the sureties, or any of them, from the obligations of 
this Bond. 

IN \IVITNESS VVHEREOF, the said Principal has caused these presents to be executed in its name and its corporate seal to 
ba hereunto affixed by its duly authorized officera, and the said Surety has caused these presents to be executed in its name and its 
c01porate seal to be hereunto affixed by its attorney-in-fact, duly authorized so to do, the day and year set forth below. 

DATED this 13th 
Oakridge Builders, a division of Ftintco, LLC 

day of May ,20 19 PRINCIPAL: ------- -; ~ i., 

(Princtpal co,parJte Seal} 

ATTEST: c~ c· l<o-c,~ 
(Notarial Seal & Signature) 

{Su,111y Corp,;,a/o() Sea11 

OCAM/CAP - FORM A312C {08/2015) 

-'~- hori__;~:::.d-L~-s,c:__:_~ =rln:...t8d-=~===} ===--..:o:._ _______ _ 
(Aulhoriza~ Rt1pteS011/1Jlive SiglllltUfll) 

Authorized Representative 
(Autheri.ted RepfflSenta/ive Printed Tille) 

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America 
SURETY: 

Clzev J/< X 01!/Uee 141.., 

(Surely Mdrt=) 

Hartford, CT 06183 
(Cily, $late, Zip) 

314-579-8302 
(TelephDne) 

cmcaleen@travelers.com 
(Email) 

STATUTORY DEFECT BOND PAGE 1 OF 1 



... 
TRAVELERSJ 

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company 
St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Travelers Casually and Surety Company of America, Travelers Casually and Surety Company, and St. 
Paul Fi re and Marine Insurance Company a re corporations duly organized under the laws or the Stale of Connec!icul (herein coneclively called lhe 
"Companies"), and that the Companies do hereby make, constitute and appoint Cheryl L McA.leenan of Maiyland Heights , 
Missouri , their true and lawful Attorney-in-Fad to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, recognlu111ces, 
condttio nal undertakings and other wmings oblig aloiy in the nature thereof on behalf of the Companies in \heir business or g uaranteeln g the 
fidelity of persons, guaranteeing the performance of contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any 
actions or proceedings allowed by law. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companies have caused this instrument to be signed, and their corporate .seals to be hereto affixed, lhis 3rd day of February, 
2017. 

state or Connecticut 

City or H ar1ford ss. 
By: 

'Robert L. Raney, SefiforvicePresldenl 

On this 1he 3rd day of February, 2017, before me personally appeared Robert L. Raney, who acknowledged himself to be the Senior Vice President of 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surely Company, and St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, and that 
he, as such, belng authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for !he purposes !herein contained by signing on behalf of lhe corporations by 
himself as a duly authorized officer. 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal . 

My Commission expires the 30th day of June, 2021 • Marie C. Tetreault, Notary Public 

This Power of Altomey is granted under and by \he authority or the following resolutions adopled by the Boards of Directors of Travelers Casually and 
Surely Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and St. PBul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, which resolutions are now in full 
force and effect, reading as follows: 

RESOLVED, lhal the Chairman, the President. any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice President. ally 
Second Vice President. tile Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer. the Corporate Secretary or any Assis.Ian! Secretaiy may appoint Attorneys-in-Fact and 
Agen!s to act for and on behalf of the Company and may give such appointee such authority as his or her certificate of authority may prescribe lo sign with 
the Company's name and seal wilh lhe Company's seal bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and olher vnilings obligaloiy in the nature of a bond, 
recognizance, or conditional undertaking, and any of said officers or the Board of Directors i,t any lime may remove any such appointee and revoke the 
pov,oer given him or her; and it is 
FURTHER RESOLVED, Ulal the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President. an)I Senior Vice President or any Vice 
President may delegate all or any pan of the foregoing authority to one or more officers or employees of this Campany, provided that eacn sueh delegation 
is In writing and a copy thereof is filed in the office of the Secretary: and it is 
FURTHER RESOLVED, Iha\ any bond. recognizance. conlract of Indemnity, or writing obligatory in the nature of a bond, recognizance, or condlllonal 
undertaking shall be valid and binding upon the Company when (a) signed by the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior 
Vice Presldenl or any Vice President, any Second Vice President, lhe Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretaiy or any Assistant 
Secretary and duly attested and sealed wilh the Company's seal by a Secretary or Assistant Secretary; or (b) duly executed (uooer seal, if required) by one 
or more Allomeys-in-Facl and Agents pursuanl to the power prescribed in his or her certificate or their cer1ificates or authority or by one or more 
Company officers pursuant to a wrillen delegation of aulhority; and ii is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of each of the following officers: President, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President. any Vice 
President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any AsSistant secretaiy, and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile lo any Power of 
Attorney or lo any certificate relaling thereto appointing Resident Vice Presidents, Resident Asslstant Secretaries or Attorneys-in-Fact for purposes only of 
execuUng 11nd attesling bonds and undertakings and other writings obliyatory in the nature lhE!t'eof, and any such Power of Attorney or certificate bearing 
such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shal be valid and binding upon the Company and any such power so executed encl certified by such facsimile 
signature and facsimffe seal shall be valid and binding on the Company in the ruture wilh respect to any bond or understanding to which ii is attached. 

I, Kevin E. Hughes, tile undersigned, Assistanl secretary or Travelers Casualty and surety Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surely 
Company, and SI. Paut Fire and Marine Insurance Company, do hereby certify lhat the above and foregoing is a 1rue and correct copy of the Power of 
Attorney execuled by said Companisi;, which remains in full for<:e and effect. 

Dated lhis 13th , 2019 

l Kevin E. Hughes~cretary 

To verity the authentidly of this Power of Attorney, please 011/ us at :I-800·421 ·3880, 
Please refer m the above-named AttDrney.in•Fact and the details aF the bond to which the power h attached. 



STATE OF MISSOURI 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS 

On this _11.__ day of fYJ0:'1 , ,;2 o I~ before me personally appeared 
Che1yl L. McAleenan , with whom I am personaJly acquainted, who, 

being by me duly sworn, said: That he/she is Attorney-in-Fact of Travelers Casualty and Surety 
Company of America, the corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that 
he/she knows the corporate seal of said Company; that said seal afnxed to said instrument is such 
corporate seal; that it was so affixed by authority of the Board of Directors thereof and of his/her office 
under the Standing Resolutions of said Company; and that he/she signed his/her name thereto as 
Attorney- in-Fact by like authority. 

NOTARY STAMP My commission expires: August l 5, 2020 
Commission #12618776 



January 2, 2019 

Dear Vendor: 

Tulsa County Admlniemrtlon Bldg. 
500 South Denver 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103-3832 
918,596.5000 

STAN SALLEE 
DISTRICT 1 
918.!j96,5020 

Exhibit H 
Page 1 of 2 

KAREN KEITH 
OlSTRICT2 
918.596.5015 

RON PETERS 
OISTRICT3 
918 .596.5010 

The Oklahoma Sales Tax Code, 68 O.S. 1991 Section 1356, exempts from the payment of sales taxes all 
political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma. 

Because each County in this State is a political subdivision of the State (Article 17, Section 1 of the 
Constitution of Oklahoma: Herndon v. Anderson, 1656 Okla. 104, 25P2d 326), Tulsa County is exempt 
from all sales tax. 

Sincerely, 

c:::/ft"-- ~ )rt-____,; 
Karen KeiH1, Chainnan 
Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 

KK:sl 

Approved: 

~ A .d?--
Chief of the Civil Division 

Note: Tulsa County's Federal Identification Tax Number 73-6006419 



Exhibit H 
Page 2 of 2 

Oklahoma Tax Commission 
www.tax.ok.gov 

11 Ill 11111I111111I111,11, 1ml 1111111 •II •1 I• 111111 i .. 11111 •• h' '1 
TULSA COUNTY 
500 S DENVER A VE STE 120 
TULSA OK 74103-3832 

AMY 

Date Issued: March 21, 2014 
LetterID:L0891154944 

Taxpayer ID: *"'-"'**6419 

Oklahoma Sales Tai Exemption Permit 
Oklahoma State Government 

Non-Transferable 

68 Oklahoma Sla!UteS 2002 Supp., Section 1356(1): Sales of iangible personal property or services to the United States Go~emment or to 
Permit Number 

the Slate of Ok la ho ma. any political subdivision of this stale or any agency of a political subdivision of this state are hereby exempted EXM-10028212-06 from the lax levied by this article. 

Business Location Industry CC>de 
TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 921190 
COM MISSIONERS 
5051 S 129TH EAST AVE 
TULSA OK 74134-7004 

City Code 

7281 
Permit Effective Perm it Expires 

February 10, 2006 NON-EXPIRfNG 

Thomas Kemp Jr., Chairman 
Jerry Johnson, Vice-Chairman 

Dawn Cash, Secretary-Member 



TULSA COUNTY 

PURCHASING 
DEPARTMENT 

DATE: 

FROM: 

June 12, 2019 

Matney M. Ellis ~% 
Purchasing Director / F('~. 

TO: Board of County Commissioners 

SUBJECT: Agreement - Oklahoma Waterproofing Company 

MEMO 

Bids for the Tulsa County "HQ" Administration Building Renovations were opened on 
May 6, 2019 and the recommendation to award Bid Package 07B (Waterproofing) to 
Oklahoma Waterproofing Company was approved by the Board of County 
Commissioners on May 13, 2019, CMF# 247793. 

The Tulsa County Purchasing Department respectfully requests the Board of County 
Commissioners approve and execute the attached Trade Contractor Agreement between 
the Board of County Commissioners and Oklahoma Waterproofing Company for the 
scope of work as defined in the agreement and referenced bid documents. 

Respectfully submitted for your approval and execution. 

MME/ mlb 

ORIGINAL: Michael Willis, County Clerk, for the June 17, 2019 agenda. 



TRADE CONTRACT NO. HQ-079005 

TRADE CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

l. Effective Date, Parties. and Notice 

This Agreementisentered Into this 13 day ol May In lhe year 2019 by and between 
~ Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners. _____ ~ referred to in this Agreement as the owner, and the 

TMDE CONTRACTOR Oklahoma Waterproofing Company 
1632 Linwood Blvd 
Oklahoma C"ity, Ok 73106 

Tak I0/EIN/SSN: 75-2700925 

ATTENTION: Eric Florance 

referred to in thiS Agreement a, the Trade Contractor for services In connection with this 

PROJECT NAME 

PROJECT NUMBER 

LOCATION 

whose 

CON5TRUCTlON 
MANAGER ls 

and whose 

ARCHITECT is 

Tulsa County Administration Building Reno11alions 

HEA0Q 

218 W6"St 
Tulsa, OK 74119 

fUNTCO, LlC 
1624 W 21ns1 
Tulsa, OK 74107 

G H2 Architects 
3 2a s Boston Ave 
Su~e 100 
Tulsa, Ok 74103 

NOTIC£ TO THE PARTIES .SHALL BE GIVEN AT THESE ADDRESSES 



Z. Safety 

Z,1 The Trade Contractor agrees that the prevention of accidents to workmen and propertv engaged upon or in the wicinity of the Trade 
Work is ~s responsibility. The Trade Contractor agrees to comply with all Federal, State, Munlclpal and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
codes, standards, orders, notices and requirements conceming safety as shall be applicable to the Trade Work, including, among others, the 
Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, as amended, and all standards, rule,, regulations and orders which have been or shall be 

adopted or issued thereunder, and w·~h the safety standards estabnshed duMg the progress of the Trade Work by the Construction Manager 
[referred to herein as "CM"). 

z.z When 50 ordered, the Trade contractor shall stop any part of the Trade Work which the CM deem5 unsafe untll corrective measures 
satisfactory to th• CM haw. been taken. The Trade Contractor agrees that It shall not have nor make any claim fo1 damages arising from such 

stoppages. Should the Trade Contractor fall to take appropriate corrective measures In a timely manner, the CM may do so at the co51 and 
expense cfthe Trade Contractor and maydeductthe cast ~nd expense thereof from any payments due or to become due to the Trade Contractor. 
Failure on the part of the CM to stop unsafe practices shall in no way relie,,e the Trade Contractor of its responsibility th,refor. 

l.3 The Trade Contractor will follow the provisions of all applicable statute> and ordinances which reQuire persons or firms doing 
excavation to do so only alter g1v·1ng notice to utility companies and obtainin11 informacionon the location of utiliti~s (such as "one-call" systems). 

3. Trade Contractor Representations 

3.t The Trade Contractor acknowledges receipt of all policies listed in Exhibit C. Subject to applicable law the Trade Contractor further 
agrees to be bound bv these policies as part of this Agroement. The Trade Contractor represents and agrees that " has careful Iv examined and 

understands this Agreement and the other Tr.de Contract Documents, has Investigated the natvre, locality and site ol the Trade Work and the 
conditions and difficulties under whlch it is to be performed, and that it enten Into this Agreement on the basis of ~s own examination, 
invesffgation and evaluation of all .such matters and not In reliance upon any opinion, or representations of the CM, the Owner or any of their 

respective officers, agents or employe'5. 

3.2 The commencement of the Trade Work by the Trade Contractor on the site of the P•oJect shall constitute the legal and bind1n2 
acceptance by the Trade Contractor of this Jlireem,;,nt. For purposes of this paragraph the mobilization of equipment, delivery of materials or 
the performance of actual labor on the Project site, whichever occurs first shall constitute a •commenc~ment' af Trade Work by the Trade 
Contractor. The Owner reserves lhe righl, however, to Insist on a signed Agreement prior 10 the mak\ng of any payment to the Trade Contractor. 

S. Trade Contractor Dutle5 

S.1 Trade Work. The owner retains the Trade Contractor as an independent contractor, to provide all labor, materials, equipment and 
services necessary or incidental to complete that portion of the work on the Project as set lotth in EKhibit A to this Agteement, consistent with 
the Project Schedule and in strict accordance with and reasonably Inferable from the Trade Contract D-Ocoments. The Trade Contractor agree, 
to perform such part of ttie work /hereafter called 'Trade Work'] for the Project under the general direction of the CM and subject to !he final 
approval of the CM, Archllect/Englnoer or other specified representativi, of the Owni,r. 

5.2 T,ade ContraCI Oowments. The Trade Contract Oocuments include this Agreement, Agreement between t~e Owner and the CM 
("CM ABreement"), including all addenda. modifications, revisions, plans. drawings, spec~lcations, details, tosether with all general, technical, 
supplem entarv and special terms and conditions, any invitations for bids onnformatlon For bidders, if any, to the extent • pplicable, and ;;H other 
do,umenu IISted In or referred to by the CM Agreement. The Owner and the Trade Contractor a1e mutually bound by the terms of this 
Agreement To the extent the terms of the CM Ag,eement apply to the wor~ of the Tr;,de Cont,actor, then the CM on behalf of the Owner 

assumes toward the Trade Contractor all the obligations, rtghts, dulles and redress that the Owner under the CM Agreement assumes towa,d 
the CM. In the identical way, the Trade Contractor assumes toward the CM all the same obligations, rights, duties and redre5s that the CM 
assumes toward the Owner and Architect/Engineer under the CM Agreement. This Agreement and the ,est of the Tr~de Contract Documents 

are i nle nd ed to supplement and complement e~ch oth~r and shall, wi,ere possible, be so lnte rpreted. However, if any provision of this Agreement 

Rev 02/;. 2/2019 
Pagel <>I 13 

'fRAOE NO. HQ-079005 
Oklahoma Wi1rrproofif'll: Compciiny 



irreconc!lably conflict5 with a prollislOI\ of the Trade Contract Documents, the provision granting greater rights or remedies to the Owner or 
imposing the greater duty, standard or responsibility or obllga!ion on th• Trade Contractor shall govern. 

5.3 Design Delegation. If the Trade Contract Documents (1) specifically require the Tr.de Contractor to provide design services and (2) 

specify all design and performance c(tteria, the Trade Contractor shall provide the design services necessary to satisfactor11vc0mplete the Trade 
Work. 0eslgn services provided by the Trade Contractor shall be procured from licensed, design professionals (The •~sii:ner"] retained by the 
Trade Contractor as permitted by the law of the plate wherethe Project is located. The Designer's sign;;ture and seal shall appear on all drawings, 
calculations, specific.tlons, certlt1cations, Shop Drawings and other submlttals prepared by the Designer. Shop Drawings and other submittals 
related to the Trade Work designed or certified by the Designer, If prep:i red by others, shall bear the Trade C011tracto r's and the De signer's wrltte n 

apprmr.1ls when submitted to 1he CM. The Owner and the CM shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, ac:;;;_: and completeness of the 
services, certifications or approvals pe<formed by the Designer. µ/A /"7 

S.3.1 If the Dulgner is an independent professional, the design services shall be procured pursuant to a separate 
agreement between the Trade Contractor and the Designer. The Trade Contractor-Designer agreement shall not provide for 
any limitation of liability or exclusion from particlpUlon In the multipartv proceedings requirement of Paragraph 21.6. If 
applicable, the Oesigner(sl Is (are) 

The Trade Contractor shall notify the CM In writing if ii intends 10 change the Oes,gner. The Trade Ccntractor war,ants lhe 
design furnished by the Designer will be In conformance with the Information given and the design concepl expressed In the 
Tr.de Contract Doc.vment<;. The Trilde Contractor ihaU not be responsible for lhe adequacy of the performance or design 
criteria required by the Trade Contract DO(uments furnished by the Owner, Architect/Engineer or CM 

S.3.Z The Trade Contractor shall not be required to provide design services lo vlolatlon of anv applicable law. 

5,4 Clean Up. The Trade comractor Is ,espomlble for Its own "clean-up" and keeping the Trade Work areas "broom dean". If the CM 
determines the Trade Work area 10 be unsatisfactorily cleaned, the CM will so 3dvise the Trade Contractor. If the Trade Contractor falls to 
commence deaning procedures within twenty four (241 hours and oonttnue to clean said area to the CM's satisfaction, the CM may without 
further notice execute .nd complete wch clean up activities as the CM deems necessary and charge the cost to the Trade Contractor or deduct 
such cost from pavments due to the Trade Contractor. 1 he Trade Contractor is responsible to clean the mud and gravel off iti; vehicles (Including 
vehldes operated bv it:;" lower tier conttactors and suppliers) prior to leaving the site. Any mud or gravel that Is tracked onto the surrounding 
roads shall be removed lmmedlately. The CM has the r1Bhtto clean up surrounding roads Immediately upon the Trade Contractor's failure tc do 
so, the cost of which shall be deducted from the Trade Contractor's next payment. 

5.S Protection of Trade Work. The Trade Contractor Is respon.<!ble for protection of its material, equipment and Installation cntil the 
fl nal a tceptance by the owner and the Architect. 

5,6 · Protection of the Project. The Trade CDfltractor shall confine operations at the Project slle to areas permitted by the CM and shall 
not unrearnnably encumber the Project s\te with materials or equipment. The Trade Contractor Is responsible for ,ny dam age ca used to adj a cent 
property or access roads by the Trade Contractor, its lower tier contractors or supplief5 during the course of the Trade Werk, 

5,7 Supervision. All of the Trade Work is the sole 3no absolut,. responsibility of the Trade Contractor; shall be initialed, managed, 

performed and completed by qualified, competent, skllled and reput.able supervisors, administrators, mechanics and laborers, all of which are 
satlJfa ctory to the CM; sha II be in full compliance with the Trade Contract Documents including th Is A&reement; and shall meet the approval ~md 
acceprance of the CM and the Owner or Its authorl,ed represelltative, 

6. Schedule 

Time is of the essence. The Trade Co ntractorshall commence the Trade Work under this Agreement when not;fied by ti.. CM and shall mm plete 
the Trade Work in a dili1ent manner in accordance with the Trade Contract Documents and the Schedule of Work as set forth in Ellhlblt E so that 
progress or completion of the Project will not be delaved and In such a manner that the CM, any other Trade Contracrors, ;md any separate 
contractors of the owner shall not be del.yed or Impeded In their work. The Trade Contractor shall panicipate and cooperate In lhe developm1mt 
of schedules and other effo,i s to a chi eve timely completion of the Trade Work by p r011id ing information on the ti ming and sequence of operations 
so~ 10 meet the CM's overall schedule requlrements. The Trade Contractor ,hall continuously monitor the Project Schedule Including any 
revisions thereto, and other work on t~e Project so asto execute the Trade Work In accordance with the requirtments of the Project Schedule. 

RevU2/22/Wl9 
Pago 3 c,I 13 

TRADE NO, ~Q-079005 
Okl.aho,n11 Wttt:"rpn:.0t.ng Cornpcar-iv 



The Trade Contractor agrees to be r11sponsible for, carry out, ,ind perform all time !JUarantees upon work or materials referred to in the Trade 
Contr,d Documents relafong to any labor performed or material fumlshed under this Ajireement. 

7. Payment 

7.1 In consideration of faithful and \lmely performance by the Trade Contractor of all the covenant., and the ronditlons aforesaid, the 
Owner agrees to pay the Trade Contractor, subject to other provisions hereof, including authorized additions and deletions, the sum of 

Seventeen Thousand, Two Hundred and Twenty-four Dollan; and D0/100 DOLLARS [$17,224.001 
(the "A&reement Amount") (which amount is Tax bempt in accordance with attached Exhibit HJ. Paymeot shall only be due for the portion of 

the Trade Work actually completed to the satisfaction of the CM, the Architect and the Owne,. Trade Contractor 5hall subm·n a progress payment 
application to the Owner, with a copy to the CM and the Architect, for Tr;,de Contractor Work properly performed during that month. With\n 
thirly(3D) days after Trade Contractor'i complete, proper and timely payment application has been received by the Owner. the Owner shall make 
p;,vment tc Trade Contractor, less anv applicable retainage or other set o(f, The Owner rnay withhold payment of part or all of Trade Contractor's 
payment applic.tion upon notice to Trade Contractor as allowed by law. Progress payment applications must be submitted by the Trade 
Contractor each month in an amount equal to nlnetv percent (90%) of the estlmated value of lhe labor, materials and equipment incorporated 
in the construction ,md materials and equipment suitably stored al the Project site, less the aggregate ol previous payments. The Trade 
Contractor's Affidavit and Waiver of lien for prior pavments must be properly executed by an ,ulhorized repre&entatlve of the Trade Cont,~ctor 
al'\d returned to the Owner and the CM prior to issuance of subsequent payments. 

7.2 Progress pavment applkatlons are 10 be submitted on A.IA G702 wlth Schedule of Values AIA G703. With each progress payment 
application, the Trade Contractor sh.II furoi~h a tabulated breakdown of tt,e ponicn of the Trade Work Included In the p~yment request, listing 
items ol the work in sufficient detail a1 deterrnjned by the Owner and the CM to easily facilitate payment requ~ts to be checked by the CM as 
the wort progresses. 

7.3 Each payment reque$t or invoice must be received by the owner by the las! day of the month to be proressed with other prouess 
payment applications for that month. Invoices and pavment requests received that are in~ccu,ate or wlthout subst,mtia1ion, or a~er ~Id day of 
the month will be ~eld unlit corre<:ted ,md substantiated, and then processed with the followln& month's payment application. 

7.4 The Trade Contractor shall submit its request for partial payment conforming to the standard CM blll\11s form, with schedule of values 
.tt;ched thereto, repre5entlng a true and accurate estimate of the Trade Work completed, and materials rtored during the immediately 
preceding month or such other Immediately preceding pe~od as directed by the CM. In addition, If allowed by the Trade Contract Documents. 
all invoices and Insurance ccrtlflcates shall be Included for all stored materials in an off-site storage area applicable to the payment request. 

7.5 The Trade Contractor shall, additionally with each payment request, submit copies of payrolls to document the value of work in place 
and .1 Partial Release of lien from all lower tier contractors and major material suppliers for which payment has previously been made to the 
Trade Contractor. 

7.6 If the Owner or the CM on behalf of the Owner. in their sole discretion, deem ii necessary, the Trade Contractor asrees to receive 
each of its pr<igress payments and final payment In the form of mult;ple checks issued Jointly between the Trade Contractor's lcwer tier 
contractors and major material suppliers and the Trade contractor. Lower tier contractors that are to receive part or all or th•ir progress payments 
as Joint checks shall addltlonal!y submit with their Payment Requests all Invoices from each lowertler conlractor and major supplier and the net 
payments to be ;ssued to each. 

7.7 Ne partial payment, or certificate therefore, shall constitute acceptance or approval by the Owner, the CM or the Architeci of the 
Trade Work or material for which the partial payment Is made. No Pilrtial paymentshaU constitute a wanter by the Owner of any right to require 
fu!Hllment of all the terms of this Agl'l!ement. Nelther the fine I payment nor any panlal payment, nor any certificate for either, shall con~titute 
acceptance by the owner of defective work or lmp,oper mate1ia!s or of any element of the Trade Contractor's performance determined to be at 
variance with this Agreement. 

7.8 The Owner shall have the right to set off any amounts the Trade Contractor owes to the Owner under this Agreement or by law against 
the remaining balance underthls Agreement, or against any amounts due the Trade Contractor under any other agreements with the Owner. 

7.9 Flnal Payment. Fina! payment by the Owner to the Trade Cont1ador shall not become due and payable to the Trade Contractor until 
tile following expresscondlllons precedent have been met: (1) The completion of the Trade Work reQulred by this Agreementand B(ceptance of 

the Trade work bv the CM, the Owner and the Architect; (2 I execution and d eliverv by the Trade Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the CM, of 
a £eneral release running to and in fa•or of the CM and the Owner; and !31 complete and full ~tisfaction of all claims, demands, disputes and 
obliaatlons of the Tnide Contractor arising out of or related to this Agreement, including those between the Owner and the Trade Contractor and 
between the Trade Ce>ntractor and any third pany. Should there be any such cia,m, lien or unsatisfied obligation, whether before or after final 
payment is made, the Trad11 Contractor shall deliver payment to the Owner an amount equal lo whatever cost the OwnN mu,t pay to discharge 
or defend against anv such claim, obQgation, lien or action brought, or any judgment thereon and ,II costs, including legalfees and eKpenses and 
a 1516 Administrative fee, in(urred in connection therewith. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page4 of l3 

TRADi NO. HQ,,D7900S 
Oklahoma Wateri,toofing Comparry 



8. Hazardous M aterlals 

The Trade Contractor shall at all times comply with all rules and regulations ofanymunicipalily, state or federal environmental protection, and 
toxic WM le and haia rdo us substances laws, ord Inane es and regulations, and how they relate to the Trade Work, and shall be equally responsible 
for action5 and inactions of Trade Contractor5, lower tier contractors, and any other llgents or independent contractors of the Trade Contractor. 
The Trade Contractor sha II be deemed to, and shall. hilve Included In the Agreement Amount the containment, removal, dlspos;, I or neutralization 
of all toxlc wastes and hazardous .1ub.lt3ncu created, generated or transported to or from the ProJect site In conjunction with the Trade Work. 
The Trade Contractor will be responsible for identifying to~ic wastes and hazardous substances generated, released, caused '<Y'f or resulting from 
the Trade Work and notifying the CM of its presence ln writing as soon as it is identified. The terms "toxic wastes• and "hazardous substances• 
shall have the sarne meanins a5 defined under federal environmental laws and re&ulatlons. At all times the Trade Contractor shall defend, 

indemn\fy and hold harm less the owner and the CM from any and all expenses, costs, damages, su Its, fines, assessments, penalties a nd/ar ca uses 
ofac\ion, Including attorne\"s fees through .,111n11estigatlons, negotialloos, hearlogs or appeals, relatlng to or arising out of the Trade Contractor's 
failure to strictly complv with the tenns of this par.graph. 

9. Compliance wl?h LaW!i 

9.1 The Trade Conuactor agrees to be bound by, and at its own costs comply with, all federal, state and l~al laws, ordinances and 
regulations lthe "i.,,ws") applicable to the Trade Work, Including but not limited to safety, equal employment opportunity, minority business 
enterprise, women'• busines• enterprise, disad.,,,ntaged business enterprise, sexool 3nd r3cial harassment, and all other Laws with which the 
owner or CM must comply. 

9.2 Where prescribed by Larw pursuant to direel Federal contractl or Federalfv-linanced or aided contracts, or otherwise required by Law, 
the Trade Contractor agrees the followins clall5es found in the Trade Contract Documents or in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) are 
Incorporated In this Agreement and binding on Trade Contractor as lf written herein word for word: the cl.iuses entitled NE:qual Opportunity 
Clause" {41 C~ R Sect lo ns 60-1.4 & 6[}.4.3); • Affirm alive Action Obligations cf Contractors and Subcontra elors for Dis a bled Veterans oft he Vietnam 

£ ra" 141 C~R Section 60-250.4 ); "Affi rmalive Action Oblisatio ns of Contrar;tors and Subcontractors for Handicapped Workers" (41 CFR Section 60-

741.1); scontract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act·Overtime Compensation"; "Apprenti,es and Trainees"; "Pa~rolls and Basic Records"; 
"Compf1once with Copeland Act Requirements"; "Wilhholding"; usubcontracts'; "Contract Termination-Department"; "Disputes Concerning 
Labor Standards"; "Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements"; and "Certification of EligibTlity' and such other clause, as the 
Federal Government has required bv taw or contract. Trllde Contractorasreu to include !II such clauses in any non~empt, lower-tier contracts. 

9.3 Immigration Compliane,e. The Trade Contractor rellresents and warrants that the Trade Contractor is in compliance wllh, and shall 
remain In ce>mpllance wllh, the provisions of the Immigration Relmm and Control Act of 19B6 IThe •Act"J and all other Fe<leral, State, and/or 
local immigration statutes/ordinances, as applicable, including, but not lim'oted to the provisions of the Act prohibiting hiring and continued 
employment of unauthori:ed aliens, requiring verllicat\on and record keeping with respect to identity and eliglbilitv for employment and 
prohibiting discrimination on the basis of national origin, United Statesdtl2enshlp, or Intending citizen status. The Tnde C<Jntrador agrees to 
indemnify the owner and the CM and to hold the Owner and the CM harmless from an liability, induding liability for intere5t and penalties, the 
owner and/or the CM incurs with results from or Is attributable to the Trade Contractor's failure to rompJvwith anv provisions of the Act, and or 
applicable Feder.1!. Slate, and/or local immigration statute/ordinance, induding reimbursing the Owner and the CM anv monies e•pended by 

either of them in participating in or responding to any Investigation/suit/civil or crlmlnal immigration matter involvl~ the Trade Contractor. As 
it rel.tes to immisralion complian~, the Trade Contractor shall be responsible for ,omplelif\8 any and all required dOC1Jmentat1on in accordance 
with requirements put forth by the Owner, CM or applicable law. 

9.4 The Trade Contractor shall be liable lo lhe CM and the Owner for all loss, cost and expense attributable to any acts of commission or 
omission by the Trade Contractor, Its contractors at any tier, and Its and their respective employees ilnd agents resulting from the failure to 
comply with Laws, lncludlng, but not llm Iced to, any fines, penalties 

10. Insurance 

10.1 The Trade Contractor agrees to procure. pay for and maintain In full force and effect during the course of the performance of the 
Agreement all insurance required by the laws of the state in which the Trade Work covered by this Agreement is being performed, and in such 
fonn and amounts as described In Exhibit B which Is attam~d hereto and inCQrpor~t<1d Into this Agreement. The Trade Contractor Shall not 
commence the Trade Work nor receJ~e any !)ayment hereunder untll Cet1lflcate of such insurance ·,s fl!rnished to the CM. 

10.2 The CM shall have no duty to the Trade Contractor ar to any of ,ts Insure rs c,r their 1nsura nee agents to revjew any certlfkates or copi e5 

of Insurance furnished to the CM or to d eterrnine wh ~ther th~ terrns of ea ch certillcat .. or policy <1f insurance comply with the insurance-related 
pro,/oslons of the Agreement- A t.Uure of thP. CM to detect that thP Trade Contr)ctor h~s not submitted c.rtlficates, or proper certifi~es, or is 

Rev 00/22/2.(119 
Page S of 13 

lRADE NO. ~Q,07!!005 
Oklabtama wat~'l)rooril'l8 Company 



otherwise not in compliance w'<th the insurance-related provisions of the Agreement ~hall not be construed as a waiver 01 other Impairment of 

any of \he Owner's o, CM's rights under such insurance-related provisions. 

10.3 If the Trade Conlracto, falls to pro.:ure and ma;ntain such insurance, ln addition to the option of declaring the Trade Contr.ctor in 

def au It for b<e-ach of a mate rial p rc>Vlslon of this Agreement, the Owner or the CM shalt have the right, but n DI the duty, to procure and maintain 
the same insurance, or other ,nsurance that provides the Owner and the CM with equivalent protection, and !he T,ade Contractor shall furnish 
all necessary Information to malce effective and mail1'tain such insurance.At the option of the Owner, the cost of said insurance purchased by the 

Owner or the CM shall be charged against and deducted from any monies then due or to become due to the Trade Contfactor or the CM shall 

notify the Trade Contractor of the cost thereof and the Trade Contratto, shall promptly pay such cost. 

10.4 The Trad<.> Contractor shall identify by certificate any Residential, Mold, EIFS, Silica or other major e~t!us!ons that Impact the Trade 
Contractor's ability to insure its risk. If the Project includes any Residential components or the proposed design includes El~S systems, then the 
Ttade Contractor shall obtain appropriate endorsements acceptable to the CM as a condition of this Agreement. 

10.5 The Trade Contractor shall at its own expense provide insurance coverage /or materials Jtored off the site after written approvil of 
the CM at the \lalue established in the approval, and also for portions of the Trade Work In transit until such materials are permanently 
lncorpc,ated into the Project. The risk oflo.ss for material ,nd equipment provided by this Agreement, whether In a deliverable state or otheiwise, 
shall remain with the Trade Contractor. Any damaaes to the material and eQuipment or loss of anv kind occasioned in transit shall be borne by 
the Trade Contractor, notwithstanding the ma11ner in which the goods are shipped or who pays the frelsht or other transport"~tion costs. 

11. Indemnity 

11.l General Indemnity. To the fullest •~tent allowed by law, the Trade Contractor shall defend, indemnify and h~d harmless the CM,.lila 

Otrces' s @$ • T 11!1 ti• 'iie At!111111 •r1, the Architect/Engineer> the Owner and the ·,r age11ts, consultants, members and employees (the 111 ndemn·rtees"} 
from and against aH claims, damage1, loses and expenses, including, but not limited to, attomeys'"fees, cost> and expenses for bodilV injury and 
proitertv damage lhat may arise from the performance of the Trade Work to the e!Clent of the negligi,nt acts or emissions by, or the fault of, the 
T tad e Contractor, the Trade Contractor'$ lower ti rr contractors or anyone employed di reclly or indirectly by any of them or by a nyonl! for whose 
acts or omissions any of them may be liable. The Trade Contfactor agrees to purcha~ and maintain contractual liability ln.turance coveting its 
obllgatlons in this article. These obllgatioll.S 1hall not be interpreted to reduce or negate any other rights or obligations uf indemnity otherwise 
existing with regard as to any party or person described In this Artl cle. 

11.Z Patents. The Trade Contractor hereby agrees to defend, Indemnify and hold harmless tne CM and the Owner from an<1 against any 
and all liability, loss or damage and to reimburse the CM and the Owner for any com, including leg2f fees and expenses, which the CM and the 

Owner may incur because of claims°' litlg.ation on account or infringement or alleged infringement of any letters patent or patent rights by 
reason of the Trade Work, or mat•rials, equipment or other items used by the Trade Contractor in its performance. 

11.3 ND llmlllltions. In furtherance to, but not in limitation of the indemnity provisions In tbis Agreement, the Trade Contractor hereby 
expressly and $pecllically agrees that ,1s ob ligation to indemnify, defend and hold ha rm less a, provld ed in this Aj!re ement shall not in any wav be 
affected or dimlni,hed by any statutory or constitvtion~I immunity It enjoys from suit> by its own employees or from llmitatlons of liability or 

recovery under worker's compensation laws. 

12. Termination for Conuenlence 

11.1 It ·,. understood that the basic ~ss~rnption underlying the mutual oblij:ations and responslblflllf~ entered Into by the parties ta this 
Agreemint is the continued performance with respect to the CM Agreement that exist, between the CM and the Owner. II, fo, any reason, !he 
CM Aye em ent Is breached, rescinded or terminated. the Owner shall have the right to immed!atelv term·,nate th is Agreement. In no e~ent shall 
the CM or the Owner be obligated to the Trade Contractor far any antlclpatorv profits or any damases Incurred by the Trade Contractor as a 
result of the termination of this Agreement, unless allJ)roved ar,d paid by the OWfle<. The Trade Contractor agrees that It shall have no claim or 
cause of action against the CM arising from or relating to Owner's terminatioo of this Agreement or Owner's determination of any amount lt 
agrees to pa'( Trade Contractor upon termination of this Agreement. 

12.2 The Owner shall have the right at any time by written notice to the Trade Contractor, to terminate this Agreement without e-ause and 
requl re the Trade Contractor to cease work. In the event of such a termlnat;on for convenience, the Trade Contractor shall be entitled to payment 
pun;uanl to the term.s of the Agreement for the portion of the Trade Work actually completed as of th~ date of termination, provided thatsuch 

amount m-ay be reduced by all amounts for which the Trade Contractor Is liable or responsible. However, the Trade Contractor shall only be 
entitled to profit on that partlon of the work actually completed and approved for payment to the date of termination together with retainage~ 
wrthheld from pnor payments. The Tr3d~ Contractor waives anv claim for loss of anUcopated profits or otlu,r damage~ against the Owner or the 

CM in the event the Owner exercises this clause. 

~-· 02/22/201~ 
l'2Jt• 60! 13 

TAAJlE NO. HQ-D7:'!Dll5 
Okl•horna W11crp,00f1r.g Company 



13. Failure of Performa nee 

13.1. Non-CQnfonning Trade Woril. The Trade Contractor shall provide svfficient, safe and proper facilities at all times for inspection by 

the Architect, the Owner or the CM of the Trade Worl: In the field. at 5hops or at any other p!i!ce where materials required hereunder are In 
course of prepatation, manufacture, treatment or storage. The Trade Contractor shall, within twenty four {24 J hours after receiving written notice 
from the CM to that effect, proceed to remove from the site anv material5 condemned by the Architect, the Owner, "'the CM, whether worked 
or unworked, and to take down all portions of the Trade Work which the Architect, the Owner or the CM has condemned In writing, as unsound 

or improper, or as in any way failing to conform to the drawings, specificiltions and addenda and shall take full financial responslblllty fpr all 
damage caused bv such removal. \n the event that all or any portion of the Trade Work as condemned should be of such a nature, or the time 

available should be so limited, that ln the judgment of the Architect, the Owner or the CM it would not be expedient to order the same replaced 
or corrected, lhe Owner, ;at its option, may deduct from the payments due or to become due to the Trade Contracwrsuch amount or amounts 
as In the opinion of the Architect, the CM or the Owner shall represent the difference between the fair and reasonable value of the Trade Work 
so condemned and its v,lue had It been executed In conformity with the Trade Contract Documents. 

13,Z Nollce to Cure If the Trade Contractor Is unable, refuses or falls to supply enough properly-skilled worl<eJS, proper materials, correct 
non-cotlforming Trade Work, or maintain the Schedule of Work, or fails to make prompt payment to Its workers, Trade Contractors or suppliers, 
or disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction, or otherwise is guilty of a material breach 
of a pro11lslon of this Agreement, the Trade Contractor shall be deemed in default of this Agreement. If the Trade Contractor fails within three 
{3) b~lner.s days after written notification lo commence and cootin\Je ntisfactorv correction of 1he default with diligence and promptness, then 
the Ownerwithcut prejudice to anv other rights or remedies, shall h.wethe right to any or all of the following remedies: 

13.2.1 to supply wcrliets, materials, equlpm enta nd facill~es as the owner deems necessary for the completion of the Trade Worli 
or any part which the Trade Contractor has failed to complete pr perform after written notlflcation, and charge the cost, inciudin.!l 
rea,onable overhead, prollt, attorneys' fe,s, CO$l! and expenses to the Trade Contractor; 

13.2.Z to contract with one or more additional contractors to perform such part of the T,ade Work as the CM determiJles will 
provide the most e~pedltlous completion of the Trade work, and charge the cost to the Trade Contractor; 

13.2.3 withhold any payments due or to become due the Trade Contractor pending corrective action In amounts sufflcient ta 
cover!osses and compel performance to the extent requited by and to the satisfaction of the Owner and lhe CM. 

13.2.4 terminate the Trede Contractor for default by delivering writun notice of such termination to the Trade Contractor. 

13,2,S to charge to the Trade Contractor an Administrative Fee of 15% of all costs Incurred by the owner or the CM in e,cercislng 
any of the above remedies. 

In the event of an emergency affecting the saletv of persons ar property, the CM on behalf of the Owner may proceed ;as above without notice, 
but the Owner shall Rive the Trade Contractor notice promptly after the fact as a precondition of cost recovery. 

13.3 Termination for Default. If the Trade Contractor has been terminated for default, the Owner mav take prusession of the plant and 
Trade Work, materials, toolS, appliances ijnd equipment of the Trade Contractor at the Project site, and through itself or others provide labor, 
equipment and materials to prosecute Trade Work on sochterms and conditions as shall be deemed by the Owner as necessary, and shall deduct 
the a,st, including without restriction all claims, charges, expemes, losses, costs, damages, and attorneys' fP.es, Incurred as;, result of the Trade 
Contractor's fi! ilure to perform, from any money then due or thereaftet- to become due to the Trade Contractor under this Ag1eernent. 

13.l.l If the Owne, so terminates the employment of the Trade Contractor, the Trade Contractor shall not be entitled to anv 
further payments under this Agreement and no sum shall be dee med due or to boco me due to the Trade Contractor until Trade Work 
has been completed and accepted by the owner, all Agreement r..:iuirements have been fulfilled, and payment has b~n re(;elved by 
the CM from the Owner. In the event the unpaid Agreement Amount ea med by Trade Contractor exceeds the co,t of completion and 
any and all incidental costs, iricluding administrative, legal .;nd other professional fees, the difference shall be paid to the Trade 

Contractor, but II such expenses exceed the llnpaid earned ABreement Amount, the Trade Cootractor agrees to pay the difference to 
the Owner within thirty j30) days following receipt of written notice. 

13.3.2 If it i, determined or agreed that the Owner wrongfully exercised any option under this Arti,le, the Own or shall be liable 
to the Triode Contractor solely for the reasonable value of Trade Work performed by the Tnde Contractor prior to such action, 
lncludirig reasonable ovemead and profit on the Trade Work performed, less prior payments made. Under no circumstances sh;ill the 
Trade Con1ractor be entitled to recovery of claimed lost future profits. 

R•• 02/,!2/2019 
P•s~7ol l:i 

11'.AOE NO. HQ-079005 
Oklahom<1 Wc1tl!!rproofin1 Comp~hy 



14, Delays 

14.1 Should the progress of the Trade Work be delayed, obstructed or lnterlered With through any lault, action or failure to act by the 
Trade Contractor or any of its officen, agents, employees, Trade Contractors or suppliers so ;is lo cause any additional cost. expense, liability or 

damage to the CM or the Owner, including legal fees or expenses Incurred In defending claims arising from such delay or seeking reimbursement 
and indemnity from the Trade Contractor and Its surety hereunder, the Trade Contractor and its surety agree to compensate and indemnify the 

CM and the owner-against all such costs, experues, damages and liabiliUes. 

14.2 In addition, the Trade Contr;,ctor, al the CM's direction and at the Trade Contrattor'so1<m cost and expense, shall work such overtime 
as may be necessal)I to make up for all time lost ln the completion cl the Trade Work and in the completion of the Project due to such del;1y. tf 
the Trade Contractor fails to make up for the time lost by reason of such delay, the CM has the right to use othl!l' Trade Contractors or suppliers 
and to take whatever other action the CM deems necessary to avoid delav in the completion of the Trade Work and the Project, the cost of which 
shall be borne by the Trade Contractor. In the event Trade Contractor delays timelv performance of the Trade Work or to the completion of the 
Project, either by its acts or orniss,ons, and such delays result In the CM being charged by the Owner with actual or liquidated damages, then the 
Trade Contractor shall reimburse the CM the full amount of all such damages and charges resulting from the delays caused by the Trade 
Contractor. The CM may offset any such damages against the remaining balance due to the Trade Contractor on the Agreement Amount, if any. 

14.3 If the commencement and/or progress of the Trade Work i, delayed without the fault or respon1ibllity of the Trade Contractor, the 
time tor the Trade Work shall be extended by Change Order to the e•tent obtained by the CM from the Owner pursuant to the CM Agreement. 
and the Schedule of Work shall be revised accordingly. 

15. Charqes 

15.1 Trade Wgrk Cha>nge:s. The Owner and the Trade Contractor agree the Owner may make changes to the Trade Work, inc:luding but not 
lim,ted to; additions, deletions or revisions. Any changes made to the Trade Work involved, or any other parts of this Agreement. shall be bv a 
Wl'itlen Change Order. To the extent that any s11eh change lmpacts Trade Contractor's cost of or time for performal\Ce, the AjJreement Amoun1 
and Agreement Schedule shall be ~quitably adjusted to compensate for such Impact. Chances shall be initiated by one of the three methods 
outlined below, or as provided in the CM Agreement and shall be incorporated into the Agreement by• Change Order. 

1s.1.1. Req'"'' for Chanae Prol)llnl. A Request for Change Proposal ("RFCP"I is .i w,ltten request that ieforms Trade Contractor about a 
potential change in the Trade Work and requests a proposal for the potential change. Trade Contractor shall promptly reply with such request. 
Tn,de Contractor shall not Implement the change orlncur anv costs until a Change Order is fully executed. 

1S.1.2. Construction Cha111e Dlredl\le, A Const1uction Change Dlrcctlve ("CCD') Is a written directive that ir,structs Trade Contractor to take 
some Immediate action in connection with the Trade Work. CCDs are issued when there is not tlme to issue a RFCP or Change Order. Trade 
Contractor shall immediately proceed so as not to delay the progress of the Work ,nd In accordance with the terms of the CCO. Any impact of a 
CCD on the Contract Price or Schedule shall be adjusted by a Change Order. 

1§.1.3. Change Order Requesrs. Withln seven l7l calendar days after the o«urrence of any event or observance of any condition that Trade 
Contr.ctor believes entitles Trade Conmictor to an adjustment in Agreemenl Amount and/or Agreement Schedule, Tr;ide Contractor shall 
prepare and submit a Change Order Request (sCOR~) to CM. The COR shall Include a detailed factual narrati,re, a detailed analysis showing 
entitlement and a detailed analysis of tne proposed change to the Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Schedule. 

15,2 Clla1111e Orders, A Chanse Order ("CO"j ls a written l115trument prepared by the CM or Owner and siened by the lrade Contractor 
stating their agreement w·rth the change In lhe Trade Work and any adjustment to the Agreement Amount and/or Agreement Work Schedule. 
All changes and/or additions in the Trade Work ordered In wrltlng by the Owner or CM .shall be deemed a part of the Trade Work and shall be 
performed and furnished In strict actordance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Trade Contract Documents, including the 
current Schedule of Work. 

Reu 02/22/2019 
Poge B uf 13 

TM!lE NO. HQ-079005 
Okl,ho""' W••erpronf•ns Company 



Change Orders will be used to Implement approved Requemfor Change Proposals, Con5truction Chanse Directives and Chan:e Order Reque,ts. 

Upon receipt of a properly documented COR or CCD, the parties shall negotiate In good faith to determine If the Ttade C<intractor Is e!ltltled to a 
Change Order and, lf so, the appropriate eq ultable adjustment. Any adjustment to the Agreement Amount shall be established by one of 1he 
following methods: 

a. mutua I acceptance of an item \2ed I ump sum, or 

b. unit prices as indicated in the Trade Con11act Documents or as subsequently ag,eed to by the parties; or 

c. costs determined ·,n a manner acceptable to the panles and a mutually acce~tablefixed or percentage fee; or 

d, another method provided in the Trade Contract Documents. 

If the Parties are unable to agree on the disposition., of a COR or CCD, CM or Owner will either iii issue a Notice deny;ng Trade Co11trnctor5 
request or (ii) issue " unilateral Cha nee Order setting forth the final determination resardi ng the adjustments. Any cost and schedule adJu<lments 
shall bea lull accord and satisfaction for all cumulative lmpac:ts of the underlying change. 

15.3 The Trade Contractor shall not be entltled to receive ad dltlo nal co mpensatl on for extra woi k or mate rialsor chan11es ofany kind e~cept 
to the e>tent the same was ordered by the CM. The Trade Contractor shall be ,esponsible for any costs Incurred by the Owner or the CM for 
changes of ;my kind mi'de by the Trade Contractor that Increase the cost of the Work for either the Owner, the CM or other Trade Contractors 

when the Trade Contractor proceeds with such changes without a aiance Order or Construction Change Directive. 

1S.4 Determination by owner, CM or An:hitect/Enslneer. Notwithstanding any other provision, if the Trade Work for which the Trade 
Contractor claims addltlonal compensation is determined by the Owner, the CM or Architect/Enslneer not to entttle the Trade c,,mtractor to a 
Change Order, additional compensation 01 a time extension, the Owner and the CM .shall not be liable to the Trade Contractor for any additional 
compensation or time extension for such Tnde Work, unless the Owner agrees in writing to pay sudl additional compensation or to grant such 
extension. 

16. Claims 

16.1 A Clalon is a written demand by Trade Contractor seeking an adjustment ln the Agreement Amount and/or Aveement Schedule or 
some other relief underthe terms of the Agreement for events other than a RFCP th.al has been denied in writing. Trade Contractor shall provlde 
Notlce to the Owner and the CM of any potential Claim within seven !7) c.ilendar days after the event sMng rise to the Claim. Withln fifteen (15) 

calendar days thereafter, Trade Conttactor shall submit a detailed factual narrative, a detailed analysis showing entitlement and a detailed 
an;oly,;i,of the alleged change to the Agreement Amount.ind/or A8reemen1 Sciledule. Claims not timely made, lnwrit,nG, by the Trade Coniractor 
sir.Ill be deemed to have been abandoned and waived. The acceptance and consideration 1>f any <lalm out of time by the owner sha II not create 
any precedent nor "course of dealing' between the Owner and the Trode Contractor, nor shall it waive the owner's rlghl to insist on ~trkt 
adherence by the Trade Contractor to the contract d;,ims procedures. If owner denies Trade Contractor's Oaim, Trade Contractor mav pursue 
the matter under Article 21 Dispute Resolution. 

16.l Thi! Trade Contractor shall not delay or susp,md the Trade Work because of the pendency<if or the denial by the Owner of any such 

dalm o, because of the continuance of the condition out of which lhe claim arose, but shall proceed diligently in perform'rng the Trade Work 
while the claim is being resol~ed by asreement or being fully adjudicated. 

16.3 In the event !he Trade Contractor asserts that it should receive additional compensation because of an act or omission on the Owner's 

part, or someone for whom the Owner Is responsible, the Tr:ade Contractor shall promptly submit the claim to the Owner and the CM In writing 
within the time required in Section 16.1. Failure of the Tr.de Contracwr to submit such claims in a timely and proper manner shall result in a 
waiver of such daim. 

16.4 The Tr,,di, Contractor shall fully cooperate with the CM in tfle submisslon of such claims described in Section 16.3, shall pr,pare all 
supportirig data and do everything else necesu,y to properly present the claims, includins payment of legal fees incurred by lhe CM to prepare, 

submit and negotiate or otherwise resolve such claim. Should the Ownrr allow and pay additional compensation to the CM on account of such 
daim asserted by the Trade Contractor, the CM will pay the same to the Trade Contractor. 

16.S It shall be an express condition precedent to any oblisalion on the part of the CM to make payment of any cost, relrnbursement, 
compensation or damages to the Trade Co nlfactor hereunder that the CM sh all firs I be c! elermlned to be entitled to such comptnsation on behalf 
of the Trade Contractor atod then receive 5Uch payment from Owner, and Trade Contractor e~prer.sly acknowledge~ that the CM is not obligated 
or required to pursue the Trade contractor'Hlaim against the Owner if the CM, in ~sole discretion, after review of the Trade Contractor's claim, 
has deemed the daim to lack merit in whole or in part. 

ff•v 02/22/2019 
Page 9 of 13 

TRADE NC. HCl·07!iOOS 
Oklahe1ma Wat~rproofine: Conipant; 



16.6 If at any time a controversy should arise between the CM and the Trade Contractor with respect to any matter in this Agreement 

which the CM determines is not a claim, dispute or controversy which should involve or be asserted against the Owner, the decision of the CM 

relating to the subject of the controversy shall be followed by the Trade Contractor. 

17. Taxes 

The Agreement Amount includes all sales, excise, transportation, unemployment compensation, social security, and any other taxes presently 

existing or subsequently imposed and levied and the Trade Contractor agrees to pay a II of the above and to conform to a II applicable municipal, 

state and federal laws in connection with such taxes. The Trade Contractor further agrees to withhold taxes from the wages and salaries of all 

employees of the Trade Contractor and pay the same in accordance with the federal and state laws and regulations pertaining thereto. The 

Agreement Amount includes federal, state and municipal taxes now levied or in force or hereafter imposed on any and all tangible per5onal 

property sold or transferred to the Owner under this Agreement and the Trade Contractor agrees to pay such tax or taxes on such property, the 

cost of which is included in the Agreement Amount. 

18. Liens 

18.1 The Trade Contractor shall promptly pay when due all its project creditors, together with the project creditors of all those below it in 

the contractual chain. 

18.2 If the Project involves private work, the Trade Contractor shall keep the property and improvements free and clear of all mechanic, 

material men and similar lien claims or statements. In the event any such lien is filed, asserted or claimed, the Trade Contractor shall immediately 

secure its release either by paying the lien claimant, by fl ling a lien release bond, or by any other means permitted by law. If not so released, the 

Owner may retain an amount equal to 150% of the lien or claim and may pay the claimant and offset that amount, plus any legal fees from the 

amount so retained. If the Project involves public work, the Trade Contractor shal I promptly pay and secure releases from all of its project 

creditors, including all those below it in the contractual chain, who are entitled to assert claims a8ainst the owner, the CM or its surety. 

18.3 If any claim or lien is made or filed with or against the CM, the Owner, the Project, 218 W 6th St, Tulsa, Ok 74119 or the Project funds 

by any person claiming that the Trade Contractor or any Trade Contractor or other person under contract to the Trade Contractor, or any person 

or entity employed or engaged by the Trade Contractor at any tier, has failed to make payment for any labor, services, materials, equipment, 

taxes or other obligations furnished or incurred in connection with the Trade Work, or if the Trade contractor or any Trade Contractor or other 

person under contract to the Trade Contractor, or any person or entity employed or engaged by the Trade Contractor at any tier causes damage 

to the Trade Work or any other work on the project, or if the Trade Contractor fails to perform or is otherwise In default of any term or provision 

of this Agreement, the Owner shall have the right to retain from any payment then due or thereafter due an amount which the Owner deems 

sufficient to (1) satisfy, discharge and/or defend against any such claim or lien, (2) make good any such nonpayment, failure, damage or default, 

and (3) defend, indemnify and hold harmless the CM and the Owner against any and all losses, damages and costs, including legal fees and 

e~penses, Incurred by either or both of them. The Owner shall require proof that any such nonpayment, claim or lien is fully satisfied, dismissed 

and discharged before any remaining retained funds will be released. The Owner shall, in addition, have the right to apply and charge against the 

Trade Contractor so much of the amount retained as mav be required for the foregoing purposes and the Trade Contractor shall pay and 

reimburse the CM and the Owner all such losses, damages, and costs incurred by them which exceed the retained funds. 

19. Assignment 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Trade Contractor agrees that It shall not assign, sell, transfer, delegate or encumber any rights, duties 

or obligations arising under this Agreement including, but not limited to, any right to receive payments hereunder, without the prior written 

consent of the Owner in its sole discretion and the giving of any such consent to a particular assignment shall not dispense with the necessity of 

such consent to any further or other assignments. In the event the Trade Contractor assigns, sel Is, encumbers or otherwise transfers its right to 

any funds due or to become due under this Agreement as security for any loan, financing or other Indebtedness ("Assignment"), notification to 

the Owner and the CM of such Assignment must be sent bv certified mall, return receipt requested, to the Owner and the CM and the Assignment 

shall not be effective as against the Owner until the Owner provides its written consent to such Assignment. The Trade Contractor agrees that 
any such Assignment shall not relieve the Trade Contractor of any of Its asreements, duties, responsibilities or obligations under this Agreement 

and the Trade Contract Documents and shall not create a contractual relationship or a third party beneficiary relationship of any kind between 

the Owner or the CM and such assignee or transferee. 

Rev 02/22/2019 
Page 10 of 13 

TRADE NO. HQ-079005 
Oklahoma Waterproofing Campany 



ZD. Guarantee/Warranty 

For a period or ,me year From the date of the Owner's final acceptance of the Trade Work, the Trade Contractor guarantees and warrants tllat 
the Trade Work complies with the Trade Contract Documents requirements and is free from deferu in material and workmanship. This 
guarantee/warranty sh,11 include, but is not limited to, the cost cf all labor, material anti related ito,ms nete$$ary to co1rect any such defect, plus 
the cost of repairillJl any damage to other items which mav have been caused by the defective material orworkmanshlp. tr the Trade Contractor 
fai15 to begin wa,rantywcrk within forty-eight (48) hours of being rMJtified that such work is necessary, the Owner may, at Its option, perform the 
necessary remedial wa,k or secure its performance by others and charse the Trade Contractor with the cost thereof, plus a 1S'JI.Administrative 
Fee. No1h·ing in this p.aragraph shall shorten the statute of limitations on any action by the Owner for breach of contract, negligence er ether 
cause of action against the Trade Contractor. 

21. Dispute Resolution 

21.1 Scope of Dbput~ Provisions. All Claltns, disputes or other matters in question between the parties to this Agreement which ariSe 
out of or relate lo this Agreement for the breach thereof), whether in contract or tort, (hereinafter "Dispute") shall ~ subject to the dispute 
resolutions set forth below. 

21.2 Initial Dispute Re1otution/Mediation. A Dispute which either party duires to pursueshall be set forth in a detailed written statement 
of dal m submitted to the other party providing the specific basis upon which monetary or other relief is claimed to bed ue, the specific contractual 
provlsion(s) supporting the daim and an itemiza1,oo·o1 the amount claimed to be due. following submission of the detailed statement of dalrn, 
owner and Trade Contractor shall endeavor to settle the Dispute first through lace to face direct diSCusslons between corpQrate officers of the 
owner and Trade Contractor which discussions shall be held al the OWfler's office location involved with the Project within thirty 1301 c.1lendar 
days of a request by either party. If the Dispute Cllr1not be resolved through direct discussions, the parties sha!I porticipate In mediation under 
the Construction Industry Mediatlnn Rules of the American Arbitration Association as a condition precedent and before recourse to any other 
form of bindlng dispute resolution. The locatlon of th• med iatlon shall be the same city as the locatlon of the Project, unless the parties agree 
or, •.mother" location. Upon written natl ce requesting med ia;tion pr"ovided to the other party and the Ameri.can Arbitr.,ti on Ass oci;dio11, the parties 

agree to proceed with the mediation auchecluled by the mediator. Either party m;,y terminate the mediation at any time after the first session, 
but the decision to terminate must be personally delivered to the other party and the mediator. 

21,3 Binding D1£pute Resolution. In the event Owner and Trade Contractor cannot resolve the Dispute through direct d~u~lons or 
mediation as contemplated above, then the Dispute shall, at the sole discretion of Owner, be decided either by submission to (a] arbitration 
administered by the American Arbltration Association or other arbitration tr!bunal mutually agreed upon by the parties; or lb) litigation subject 
to the exclusive Jurisdiction and venue of the I ccation of the Project. 

21.-1 Arbltrallon Ele ell on 

21A.1 In the event owner e.erclses its e.dusive ;lghl to resolve the Dlspute in arbitration, such arbitration shall be conducted in 
accordance with the Cons11oction Industry Arbltra1i011 Rules of the American ArbUratlon Association or the appli'-!ble roles of such 
other arllitratlon tribunal as the partie~ may mutu.i llv determine in ~ect at the time the arbitn,ti on is commenced as modified by the 
terms hereof. Any arbitration hereunder shall be held at lhe location of the Project. 

21.4.2 Should owner exercise Its exclusive right to resolve the Dispute bv arbitration, then within fourteen (14) days after Owner 
gives Trade Contractor notice of Owner's election cf arbitratlon,"the parties shall use good faith effons to select a single arbitrator 
mutually acceptable to both parties. If the parties are unable to select an arbltrator,then the parties wlll select the arbitratorfs) from 
a panel of experienced construcl!on :arbitrators on the Amerlcan Arbitration Association's large complex case panel er a comparable 
panel of experienced construction arbitrators maintained bV such other arbitration tribunal mutually selected by the parties then in 
effect. In the event the amount In Dispute exceeds $1,000,000.00, Owner and Trade Comractor agree the arbitration shall be heard 
by a panel of three (3) arbitrators; otherwise, the Dispute shall be heard by a single arbltralQr, 

21.4.3 The parties will enter imo an Electronically Stored lnformaUon Agreement outlining the scope and volume for ESI discovery, 
which shall take into a~ountthe amount ;ind comple•lty of the Dispute. 

ll.4.4 The arbitration award shall be final and bl nd ing upon the parties, shall include attn rneys' fees and costs to the prfl/a lling 
party or p;,rties, and may be entered as a Judgment In any court halllng proper jurisdiction. In any arbltrallon t!re Arbitratorli) shall 
have no power to render an •ward which has the effect of altering or amending or changing In any wav any proviJions of this 
Agreement. 

21.4.5 The parties stlpulate and agree that the performance of this AJ!reement is a transaction Involving Interstate commerce. 
Notwithslllnding other provisions rn the Agreement, or choice of law prOYision.! tu the contra I'/, this agreement to "bltrale 5hall be 
enforced pu~uant to, and governed by, the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U. S. C. §1 et seq., whlch shilll not be superseded or 
supplemented by any other arbitration act, statute or regulation. 

/ml Ol/2l/:iDl!< 
Pagellofla 

TRADE N0.11Q-079DOS 
Oklshotno Wo~rproor,111 Company 



21,4.6 At the sole discreUon of owner, any arbitration with Trade Contractor shall be consolidat"d with any other art>itralion 
p,oceeding relating lo the work under the CM Agreement. 

21.S L111gatlon tledlon. In the e\lent Owner elects not to exercise its exclusive right to resolve the Oispute by arbitration, or in the event 
the Dispute between Owner and Trade Conm1cto,, or an~ portlon thereof, is found to be non·arbitrable, then the parties hereby agre.i that the 
Dispute or a portlon thereof (as the case may be) shall be subject to exdusive jurisdiction and venue ,t the loc<l'tion of the Project. In any such 
Dispute or portion thereof which is resolved by litigation, Trade Contractor expressly waives any nght to trial by JUI'/-

21.6 Multlputv Proceeding, To the extent permitted by Tm de Contract Documents, a II pa rtles necessary to resolve a cl,im shall be parties 
to the same dispute resolutlon proceeding. Tu tfte extenl Disputes between the Owner and lhe Trade Contractor involoe in whole or ln part 
di.,pules between the CM and the Owner, Disputes between the Trade Contractor and the owner shall be decided by the same tribunal and in 

the same forum as disputes between the CM and the Own er. 

21. 7 Stay of Proceed ln115. la l In the -nt the provisioi,s forre solution of dispute< bf'twee n the CM • nd the Own er contained In the Trade 
Cont fact Documents ~ o not permit consolidation or join der with disputes of lhl rd parties, such as the Trade Contractor, resolution of any Dispute 
between Owner and Tr.de Contractor lnvulVin_g In whole or In part d'isputes between CM and Owner shall be stayed pending conclus;on of any 
dispute resolution proceeding between CM and Owner. (bl In the event that any action Is filed prior to e•haustlon of remedies undtr the 
Ag,rcement; such action shall be stayed pending condusloo of ~ny dispute •~solution proceedings. 

21.8 Work Continuation and Pavment. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Trade Contractor shall continue the Trade Work and maintain 
the 5ch..dule of Work durlng any dispute resolution proceedings As Trade Contractor continues to perform, Owne, shall continue to make 
payments in accordance wltn this Agreement. 

21.9 Cost of Dispute Resolution; Attorneys' Feei. The cost cf any mediation proceedl ng shall be sh are d eq uallv by the part I es partlcipa~ ng. 

21.9.1 The presailing party in any Disput• arising out of or relating to this Agreement or its breach that Is resolved by a dispute 
resolution procedure designated In the Trade contract Documents shall be entitled to rMOVer from the other party any r•medles 
available under Oklahoma law after dire ct discussi om and m edlallo n. 

21.9.Z In the esent the Trade Conlractor Is awarded an amount equal to or lessthan the last written offer of settlement from Owner, 
prior to the commencement of binding dispute resolution, Owner shall be deemed prevailing party and be entitled to recover those 
rea1onable attorneys' fees, costs and e,,penses (includ'ing expert fees and expenses) Incurred bv the Owner. 

22. Miscellaneous 

22.l No one, otherthan the parties hereto, their successors, trustees and assigns. shall be entltled to bring action on th is ABreement or the 
Performance Bond provided by the Trade Contractor, it being the express intent of the parties that th is Agreement shall not be for the benefit of 
aov third pa;1';. 

22.2 Anv term or provision of this Agreement which Is held to be lnvahd or unenforceable In any Jurisdiction shall. as to such jurisdiction. 
be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without rendering Invalid or unenforceable the remaining tP.rms and pr011lsions 
of this Agreeme11t or affecting the validity or enfmceability of any of the terms or provi5ioll5 of this Agreement In any other jurlsdlCllon. 

22.3 This Agreement, together with the documents referred to or incorporated herein by reference, constitute the ccmplete agreement 
between the p3rtie<. No agent or employee of either party possesses the authority to make, and the partles shall not be bound by nor liable for, 
any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein. Any article, section, paragraph or other headings contatned in this 
Agrl!<lment a re for reference purposes and shall not affect In any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

22,4 The terms and provisions shall e•tend to and be binding upon the successors, trustees and assigns of the parties hereto. and shall be 

governed and controlled, except as expressly provided herein or as required by the Trade Contract Documents, by the laws of the State of the 
Oklahoma. 

22.S The Trade Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions and any applicable local, state or federal ordinance, regulation, status, or 
other mandate regarding affimiative action and/er minority/women's business enterprise participation. 

22..6 This Agreement has not been ~ltere~ in anv manner from in. original fonn as sent to the Trade Cantr.actor except for required 
signatures and dates, or as dea11v marked and initialed bv thil Trade Contractor. Any change! 10 this Agreement not inl1!aled by the owner will 
not~ binding. 

R"" O.l/2 2/2-019 
P•~12of 13 

TAAOE N 0. HQ-079005 
Oklahor,11 w~t•rproohng Company 



23. Schedule of Exhlblti to the Agreement 

The folrowlng E•hlbits .re ;,ttached to and are a part cf this Agrl!l!ment. 

Exhibit A: 
ExhibitB: 

The Trade Contr.ietor's Scope of Work, lndudlngallernatlve or unit prlces 
lns~rance Requirements 

Exhibit C: 
Exhibit D: 

ffmtco Policies/P roceclures Acknowledgement of Obtaining Form 
list of Drawings, Specifications and Add end a 

Exhibit E: 

Exhibit F: 
ExhfbltG: 
£Jt111bltH: 

Schedule of Work 
Cerilfication of Non-Segregaled Facilities 
Payment and Pe rfonnance 9ond Forms 
T.x E~emptlon Cenllioite 

Wrth its p rinclpal pl~e of bus I ness at 

ATTEST: 

ATTEST: 

ATTEST: lr l 1-\q 

PRINT TITLE: 

) Sole Proprietorship ) LLC ( 1 Other 

Tul5a County 

BY: 

PRINT NAME: 

PR I NT TITLE: 

Cou ntv Clerk 

BY: 

PRINT NAME: Michael WIiiis 

Approved as to form: 

SV: ~h-4~ 
PRINT NAME= Nd.on :RelA$ 
PRINT TITLE: AsslS1ant DI strict Attomey 

R"" 02/22/201 S TRADE flD. llQ•07goo5 
Pai:• t3 ol 13 Oklahoma Weterprcor.ng Company 



TRADE CONTRACTOR - SCOPE OF WORK 

BID PACKAGE 07B: WATERPROOFING & JOINT SEALANTS 

Specification 
Section 
DIVISION0 

DIVISION 1 

Description 
Procurement and Contracting Requirements 
General Requirements 

Exhibit A 

Page 1 of 2 

071200 
Built-up Bituminous waterproofing, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid 
package 

071400 

071713 

076200 
079005 
079100 

Fluid Applied Waterproofing, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid 
package 
Bentonite Panel Waterproofing, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid 
package 
Sheet Metal and Flashing, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Joint Sealers, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 
Preformed Joint Seals, pertinent portions thereof applicable to the work of this bid package 

{In addition to the Specification Sections listed, Bidders will include work. from referenced specifications and other work normally 
associated with this trade whether referenced or not.) 

Definition of Terms 

Contractor= Bidder 
Construction Manager= Flintco, LLC 
Owner =Tulsa County 
Architect= GH2 Architects 

The scope of work of this bid package shall also include the following items, but without limiting the scope of work as provided 
above: 

1) Furnish and install all caulking and sealants in joints as scheduled by the contract documents, including but not limited to: 
a) Exterior expansion and control joints in exterior building surfaces. 
b) Exterior and interior joints in bridge and Parking Structure (Parking structure will be an Alternate Bid so all associated 

work. will only be part of this package if accepted). 
c) Exterior caulking at all building envelope surfaces where dissimilar materials adjoin (i.e. masonry to EIFS joints). 

Include the sealant and backer rod as required. 
d) Interior caulking at masonry walls. 
e) Caulking at masonry through-wall flashings. 
ij Exterior joints in horizontal wearing surfaces (asphalt paving, concrete paving and sidewalks). 
g) Interior expansion and control joints in exposed concrete floor surfaces. 
h) Louvers and Screens. 
i) Exterior Hollow Metal. 
j) Caulking of all structural penetrations lhru walls. 

2) Furnish and install waterproofing at all concrete and masonry walls as shown on the Contract Documents including, but not 
limited to basement walls and foundations walls. 

3) Furnish and install all water repellent on masonry if shown on the Contract Documents. Anti-graffiti and finishes by others. 
4) Furnish and install au work necessary for expansion joints in existing parking structure, including but not limited to: specified 

system, epoxy adhesive, leveling material and cover plates. 
5) Perform all cleaning and preparation work. to make surfaces and joints ready to receive materials installed by the work of 

this Bid Package. 
6) Coordinate compatibility of caulking materials with material substrate and joint sizes. 
7) Coordinate tie-in work by this contractor with work by other trades to insure a complete and continuous exterior building 

envelope with the integrity as required by the contract documents. 

TRADE NO.HQ.-079005 

Oklahoma Waterproofing Company. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR - SCOPE OF WORK 

Work specifically excluded from this scope of work: 

1} Waterproofing of column base plates, anchor bolts, and columns. 
2) Under slab vapor barrier. 
3) Caulking of interior and exterior aluminum storefront and window joints. 
4) Roofing related waterproofing, caulking and sealants. 
5) Acoustical caulking for drywall partitions. 
6) Caulking at Interior Door Frames. 
7) Air and vapor barrier membranes behind masonry and metal panels. 

The Liquidated Damages for this Package are $0 per day 

Exhibit A 
Page 2 of2 

lRADE NO.HQ-079005 
Oklahoma Waterproofing Company. 



TRADE CONTRACTOR 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The contractor (and any Sub-contractors) shall carry and keep in force during this Contract, policies of insurance in minimum 

amoun15 as set forth below, or as required by the laws of the State of Oklahoma: 

Exhibit B 
Page loft 

1. General Liability Insurance providing for a combined amount of not less than $200,000 for all damages arising out of 

bodily injury, death and property damage for each occurrence with an aggregate limit of $300,000, and an eicess 
umbrella llabllity coverage of $2,000,000; 

2. Workers Compensation Insurance and Employee Liability Insurance as required by Workers Compensatlon laws of 

the State of Oklahoma; 

3, Comprehensive Automobile Insurance; and 

4. Errors and Omissions Coverage (only applicable to Architect or Engineering Services). 

Note: Builders Risk Insurance will be the responsibility of lhe Construction Manager and therefore should not be lnch,ded. 

IMPORTANT: 
The Contractor shall name the Board of County Commissioners of T1Jlsa County, Oklahoma as an additional insured; 

The Contrattor shall furnish Certificates of Insurance which shall provide that said Insurance will not be cancelled by the 

Insurer without Insurer providing thirty (:10) days written notice to the Board of Co1Jntv Commissioners of T1Jlsa County; 

The Insurance specified 5hall be acquired from an Insurance company properly licensed by the State of Oklahoma to 

pro vi de su cl1 cover age in the State of Oklahoma. 

TRA!IE NO. HQ-479005 ~ °' .... _.,..,, ... ~-/?( 



ACORD9 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATI: {MMIDD/VYYY) 

~ 6/3/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIG HTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BElWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDmONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endoned. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the pollcy, certain pollcies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~um~~ Leah Wood NAME: 
Mallis Newby Burst PHONE (972)201-0100 I FAX /Air ftJ A S: .. 1l• (A/C No): !9721201-0123 

5057 Keller Springs Rd Ste 400 ~ifr:hs: lwood@mnhins.com 

INSURER.IS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

Addison TX 75001 INSURERA:Amerisi.re Insurance Comnany 19488 
INSURED INSURER B: Amerisure Mutual Insurance Company 23396 
Oklahoma Waterproofing Company INSURER C: Admiral Insurance Company 24856 
1632 ~i~wood Blvd INSURERD: 

INSURER E: 

Oklahoma. City OX 73106 INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19 /2 0 Std ox Waterproof REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TVPE OF l"ISURANCE .... _ ... ,_ POLICY NUMBER IMMIDDIYYYYl LIMITS 

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILJTY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000.000 
I--D CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR 

DAMAGE To RENTED 
A PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 100,000 

CPP 2029175 
I--

S/lB/2019 5/18/2020 MED EXP (Any ore per.,on) $ 10,000 

I-- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000.000 

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 Fl POLICY 0 ~rrr • LOC PROOUCTS -COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ 1,000,000 1Ea accldentl 
~ 

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per peraon) $ B t- ALL OWNED ~ SCHEDULED 
ALJTOS AUTOS C1' 202917¾ 5/lB/2019 5/18/2020 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

I- ,__ 
NON--OWNEO PROPERTY DAMAGE X 111REDAUTOS X AUTOS ,.,,., aoolclen\l $ 

t- - $ 

B X UMBRELLA UAB 
~ OCCUR CtT 2029177 S/18/2019 5/18/2020 EI\CH OCCURRENCE $ l 000, 000 ,__ 

C X EXCESS LIAB CLAIM8-MI\DE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000 

DED I I RETENTION $ •IIXD'6031U0l 5/1B/2019 5/18/2020 
............-,; Llabrnty 

$ 5,000,000 
WORKERS COMPi,NSATION x I ~ffnm I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

YIN 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

~ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ l 000, 000 OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA 
A (Mandatory In NH) WC 2029179 S/18/2019 5/18/2020 E,L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ l 000,000 

tf yes, t:lascr1bei under 
E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIM IT llESCRIPTK)N OF OPERATIONS below $ 1,000.000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS I VEHICLES {ACORD 101 r AddittOnal Remarks Sa:hedule, may bll!I attached ff more space 1$ requlred) 

Rei Tulsa County Administration Building Renovations, 218 w. 6tb street, Tulsa, Ok 74103 

Certificate holders include: Flin.tc:o, LLC, Arc:hitact, Architect's Consultants, Owner and Board of County 
Commissioners of ru.lsa county, Oklahoma 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

oth0mps0n@flintco . com 
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

Flintco LLC 
l.624 w. 21st Street 
:rulsa, OK 

I 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 
INS025 (201401) 

74107 

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AIITHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

Sam Mullis/LEAH ~ 
© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All nghts reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



COMMENTS/REMARKS 

The General Liability, Automobile and Umbrella policies include a blanket additional 
insured endorsement that provides additional insured status to the certificate holder only 
when there is a written contract between the named insured and the certificate holder that 
requires such status. 

The General Liability policy includes a blanket additional insured endorsement that 
provides additional insured status to the certificate holder for ongoing and completed 
operations only when there is written contract between the named insured and the 
certificate holder that requires such status. 

The General Liability, Automobile and Umbrella policies contain an endorsement with 
primary and noncontributory wording that may apply only when there is a written contract 
between the named insured and the certificate holder that may require such status. 

The General Liability, Automobile, Workers Compensation and Umbrella policies include a 
blanket waiver of subrogation endorsement that provides this feature only when there is a 
written contract between the named insured and the certificate holder that requires this. 

OFREMARK COPYRIGHT 2000, AMS SERVICES INC . 



FLINTCO POLICIES/PROCEDURES 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF OBTAINING FORM 

ExhibltC 
Page 1 of 1 

The following Policies and Procedures are part of the Agreement by reference. (Obtain documents at www.Qintco.com. Select Subcontractors 
tab and then dick on Forms.) 

• Substance Free Workplace: I ~,knowledge that I have obtained a copy of the flintco, LLC policy statement regarding Substance Free Workplace 
;md have read and underst,md my obligations under this policy. 

• firearm, Weapons-Free Worl<place Pgllcy: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy the Flintco, LLC policy s1atement regardin8 Firearm. 

Weapons-Free Workplilce and have read and understand my obligations under this policy. 

• Smoke.free Workplace: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Flintco, LLC policy statement regarding a Smoke-Free Workplace and 
have read and underst.ind my obUeations 11nder this policy, 

• Safety Manual: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the Flintco, llC Safely Manual and have read and understand my obligations 

regarding Job Site ~afety. 

• Certification of Nonsegregated facilltles: I acknowledge that I have obtained a copy of the flintco, LLC policy statement regarding a 

Nonsegregated Facility and have read and 11nderstand my obligations under this policy. 

Trade Contractor acknowledges obtaining a copy of and agrees to comply with CM policies and psotedures rela1ed to Trade Contractor 
perform.Ince on the jobsite. 

Retum thls signed form with your exe"lted Trade. 

TRADE NO.HQ-079005 
Oklahomll Wat4!-,proofirag Company. 



Specifications: 

Addenda; 

Drawings: 

DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS & ADDENDA 

Tulsa County Administration Building 
20180005 
Project Manual 
Volume 1 & 2 
03/25/2019 

Addendum #lA Dated 04/08/2019 
Addendum #2A Dated 04/29/2019 

CM Clarification #1 Dated 04/08/2019 
CM Clarification #2 Dated 04/29/2019 

As listed in Sheet Index on Sheet CSl Cover Sheet 
Tulsa County Administration Building 
GH2 Architects 

Project #20180005 
03/25/2019 Conformed Set 

Exhibit D 
Page 1 of 1 

TI!ADE NO.HQ-079005 
Okllhcitna Waterpfooting Compc111y. 



SCHEDULE OF WORK 

ExhibltE 
Page l of 1 

THE CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE Will BE MAINTAINED AT THE PROJECT SITE AND WILL BE UPDATED AS WORK PROGRESSES. 
TRADE CONTRACTOR Will GIVE INPUT REGARDING THE SCHEDULE AT REGULARLY SCHEDULED PROGRESS 
MEHi NGS. TRADE CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW THE MOST CURRENT VERSION OF THE SCH EDU LE MAINTAINED BY CM AND 
PERFORM THE SUP.CONTRACT WORK ACCORDING TO THAT SCHEDULE. 

TRAD£ NO.HQ-079005 
Okla ham a W.terprooli11g Campany. 



CERTIFICATION OF 
NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES 

Exhlbit F 

PaQe 1 of 1 

By tile submission of this bid, the bidder, offeror, applicant, or subcontractor certified that he does not maintain or provide for his 
employees ally segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and thal he does not pemlil his employees to perform their servicas al 
any location under his control, where segregated facilities are maintained. He certifies further that he will not maintain or provide for his 
employees any segmgated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he wm not permit his employees to perform their services at 
any location, under his control where segregated lacillHes are mainlained, The bidder, offeror, appllcant or subcontractor agrees that a 
breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunil)I dause in this Contrad. As used in lhls certification, the tenn 
"segregated facili~s" means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest ro001s and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, lime 
clocks. locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains. recreation or entertainment areas. 
transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or ere In fact segregated on the 
basis of race, creed, color or nalional origin, because of habil, local custom or otheiwise. He further agrees that (except where he has 
obtained identical certifications from proposed subcontractors or specific time period) he will obtain identical certifications from 
proposed subcon1ractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding $10.000 which are not exempt from the provision of Equal 
Opportunity dau se; that he will retain such ce rtmcalions in his flies; and that he will forward the followine notice to such subcontractors 
(e~cep1 where the proposed subcontractora have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods): 

Notlee to Prospective Subcontractors of Requirements for Certifications of Nonsegregated Facilities. 

Notificslion or Nonsegregati;:d Facilnies, as required by the May 9. 1967, order on Elimination or Segregated Facill1les. by the Secretary 
of Labor (32 Fed. Rei:i. 7439, May 19. 1967), must be submitted prior 10 the award of a subcontract exceeding $10,000 which is not 
exempt from the pru.risions of the Equal Opportunity dause. The certification may be submitted either for each subconlract01 or for all 
subcontracts du~ng a pel"iod {I.e. quarterly, semiannually, or annually). 

Note: The penalty for making false stalement In offers Is prescribed In 18 U.S. C. 1001. 

Firm 

Sign 

J( 
Return this signed form with your executed subcontract. 



ExhibitG 

Tho e,hlblt • "°' applkab~ as the co"tract '"m • below $50,000.00. 4 



January 2, 2019 

Dear Vendor: 

Tulsa Coumy A,d,n,nmtrnt,oo 8109 
500 South Denver 
r .. 1sa. Oklahoma 7 4, 03-3!!32 
918.596.5000 

STANSAUEE 
DISTRICT 1 
918. 596.5020 

Exhibit H 
Page 1 of 2 

KAREN KEITH 
DISTnlCT 2 
Slfl.5!16.5015 

RON PETERS 
DISTRICTS 
91 8.591l.!i010 

The Oklahoma Sales Tax Code, 68 O.S. 1991 Section 1356, exempts from the payment of sales taxes all 

political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma. 

Because each County in this State is a political subdivision of the State (Article 17, Section 1 of the 
Constitution of Oklahoma: Herndon v. Anderson, 1656 Okla. 104, 25P2d 326), Tulsa County is exempt 
from all sales tax. 

Sincerely, 

~\. ~-i,i1..___,· 

Karen Keith, Chairman 
Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners 

KK:sl 

Approved: 

~ A 
Chief of the Civil Division 

Note'. Tulsa County's Federal Identification Tax Number 73-6006419 



Exhibit H 
Page 2 of 2 

Oklahoma Tax Commission 
www.tax.ok.gov 

llllh I 11111•l11lh I 11 II, 111111l•1I11111• llol l111llu1il'11lhl•1 
TULSA COUNTY 
500 S DENVER A VE STE 120 
11.JLSA OK 7-4103-3832 

AMY 

Date Issued: March 2 J, 2014 
Lener TD: L089 l 154944 

Taxpayer ID: uA***6419 

Oklahoma Sales Tax Exemption Permil 
Oklahoma State Governmenl 

NooA Transferable 

68 Oklahoma S1aM1:s 2002 Supp, Seetion 13S6[1): Salu or111ngiblt pcisonal propelt)I or~1'1ices 10 l1u: Uni~Slat0$ Ciov~ni or 10 
Permit Number 

tho s 1a1e of Ol<laho mo, any poliLiul ,ubdiv,sion or lhiHUIIC or •"Y 118~111'Y of & polhic:el subdMsioo of 1his sme an: hereby exempted 
EXM-10028212..06 from the L:lx le vied by I his an \el~ 

Business ~ation Industry Code 

TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 921190 
COMMISSIONERS 
.5051 S 129TH EAST AVE 
TULSA OK 7oll34-7004 

Clcy Code 

7281 

Permit Eff«tive Permit Expires 

February 10, 2006 NON-EXPIRING 

Thomas Kemp Jr., Chalnnan 
Jeny Johnson, Vice-Chainnan 

Dawn Cash, Secretary-Member 



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Annual License and Support Agreement with Wycom Systems, Inc. 

for Technical Support and Software Updates 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  Vendor has 

signed this document and it is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  Please let 

me know if you have any questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

Vicki Goodson, Chief Deputy Court Clerk 



Wycom Systems, Inc.
PO Box 310
Yakutat, AK 99689
orders@wycomsystems.com
Phone: 800-869-0236

ANNUAL LICENSE
AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT

Date Invoice

Bill To: Your Agreement includes:

• Express shipping on replacement units
• Unlimited technical support
• Priority call back
• Software updates

Serial Product Amount

- Payment constitutes acceptance of the Wycom License and Support Agreement (Rev. 03/14/2017)
- Please verify your contact email address is correct
- Add orders@wycomsystems.com to your email address book to ensure delivery

SUB-TOTAL

TOTAL

Wycom Systems, Inc.
PO Box 310
Yakutat, AK 99689
orders@wycomsystems.com
Phone: 800-869-0236

Customer

Invoice

Period

Amount Due

Rep - ABM AUTOMATION - OK - 147

Tulsa County Court Clerk
500 South Denver, Ste. 200
TULSA, OK 74103

07227

WYSIGN

Tulsa County Court Clerk
Randy  Proffitt
500 South Denver, Ste. 200
TULSA, OK 74103
randy.proffitt@oscn.net

$160.00

$160.00

05/14/2019 to 05/14/2020

$160.00

$160.00

WY1537

04/05/2019 39204

Please submit payment to:
Wycom Systems, Inc.
PO BOX 310
Yakutat, AK 99689

Renewal Invoice for period 05/14/2019 to 05/14/2020

39204



WYCOM LICENSE AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT 

WySign plays a vital role in your check security, signing, and 
disbursement process. We strive to minimize any lapse in 
your ability to secure, sign, and disburse checks, and our goal 
is to provide you with the best service and support in the 
industry. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL WYCOM BE 
LIABLE IN ANY WAY FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, 
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO ANY LOSS OF BUSINESS OR PROFITS. THIS 
AGREEMENT COVERS THE DESCRIBED PRODUCT(S) 
ONLY. NO OTHER COMPUTER AND/OR PRINTER 
EQUIPMENT IS COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT. 

If your email information is missing or incorrect on the invoice, 
please notify orders@wycomsystems.com 

See attached Invoice for product(s) covered and total 
amount due under this Agreement. 

PLEASE NOTE: Wycom Systems, Inc. is the only authorized 
provider of licensing and support coverage for its WySign 
check signing security systems. 

Payment constitutes acceptance of the terms of this 
Agreement and ensures coverage of your WySign USB 
key. Wycom Systems and the customer enter into this 
Agreement to render support and licensing service to the 
product(s) listed on the invoice. 

TERMS: This Agreement includes software coverage, 
comprehensive hardware coverage for all parts and labor to 
repair or replace the unit in the event of mechanical failure, 
and direct access to our Technical Support staff 
(support@wycomsystems.com, 800-869-0236 x3) to ensure 
quick and efficient response to any technical issues that may 
occur with your product in the future. 

Your Agreement can provide you with significant savings 

compared to customers without an Agreement. 

During the dates of the Agreement, if the product(s) listed on 
the invoice is/are in need of repair, upon notification, Wycom 
will send a replacement. 

This Agreement does not provide for replacement made 
necessary through loss, damage by fire, water, accident or 
abuse (see Replacement Coverage). Changes to any 
programmed software (signatures, prefixes, etc.) are not 
covered within this Agreement. It is understood that the 
product(s) covered by this Agreement is/are operational and 
is/are not in need of repair at the time this Agreement 
becomes effective. 

REPLACEMENT COVERAGE: If the WySign USB key is lost, 
damaged by fire, water, accident or abuse and the Agreement 
is curre.nt, Wycom will provide a replacement WySign USB 
key for $75. If the warranty/Agreement is expired for less than 
one year, customer pays Agreement for original dates and the 
$75 replacement fee, plus shipping. If the 
warranty/Agreement has been expired for more than one 
year, a replacement WySign will be offered at $395, plus 
shipping. 

INTERNATIONAL CUSTOMERS: The recipient is the 
importer of record and must comply with all laws and 
regulations of the destination country. Shipping charges 
associated with orders shipped outside of the United States 
will be the responsibility of the customer. In addition, these 
shipments may be subject to import taxes, customs duties 
and fees levied by the destination country. Additional charges 
for customs clearance must be fulfilled by the recipient; 
Wycom Systems, Inc. has no control over these charges, nor 
can we predict what they may be. When customs clearance 
procedures are required, it can cause delays beyond our 
original delivery estimates. 

Rev. 03/13/2017 

To be filled out by Wycom: 
~~~. . 
- ~-

Iettice Manager 1 

16/11/2019 

mblackford_1
Typewritten Text
Authorized By: Title: Chairman, Tulsa County Board of County Commissioners Date:     Approved as to FormAssistant District Attorney

mblackford_2
Line

mblackford_3
Line

mblackford_4
Line

mblackford_5
Line



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Utility Relocation Agreement with Washington County Rural Water 

District # 3 for Improvements to N 137th E Ave Over Horsepen Creek 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  Vendor has 

signed this document and it is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  Please let 

me know if you have any questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

Tom Rains, County Engineer 



WATER PAQ ENGINEERING, INC. 

June 10, 2019 

Reference: Washington County Rural Water District #3 
Water Line Relocation Work 
North 137th East Avenue over Horsepen Creek 

Utility Relocation Agreement 

Tulsa County Engineer 
Tulsa County Administration Building 
500 South Denver 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103-3832 

Attention: Mr. Tom Rains, County Engineer 

Dear Mr. Rains, 

On behalf of Rural Water District #3 Washington County (District), we've also enclosed 
three (3) originals of the Utility Relocation Agreement for the above referenced project. 
The URA includes our current Estimate of Probable Project Cost. Please review and let us 
know if you have any questions. We look forward to receiving from you the Notice to 
Proceed on the project. 

We appreciate your attention in this matter, and we look forward to any questions you may 
have. 

David A. Dollar, P.E. 
Water PAQ Engineering, Inc. 

Cc: Mr. Jerry Gammill, District Manager 

16853 NEEL DRIVE 

CLAREMORE, OKLAHOMA 74017 



TULSA COUNTY 

UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT 

PROJECT NO. 33566(04) 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between the Board of County Commissioners of 

Tulsa County, Oklahoma acting for and on behalf of Tulsa, County hereinafter called the "County" and 

Washington County Rural Water District #3 

ADDRESS 17227 N. 129th E. Ave. PO Box 70, Collinsville. OK 74021-4427 

Hereinafter called the "Utility Company". 

WITNESSETH THAT 

WHEREAS, the County proposes to improve North 137th East Avenue over Horsepen Creek 

and such improvements will necessitate rearrangement of facilities of said Utility Company, and 

WHEREAS, it is understood that if said project is to be financed partly from funds appropriated by the 
United States and expended under its regulations, that acceptance of work and procedure in general are 
subject to Federal Laws, Rules, Regulations, Orders, and Approvals applying to it as a Federal Project, 
and that costs for items entering into the improvements are reimbursable to the State in such amounts 
and forms as are proper and eligible for payment from Federal Funds. Reference is made to the U.S. 
Department of Transportation, Federal Aid Highway Program Manual 6-6-3-1 and 6-6-3-2, September 6, 
1985 included in the Department of Transportation Utilities Manual and 

WHEREAS, it is understood that Title 69, O.S. 1985, as amended, Section 1403, defines the extent to 
which the State and County may be obligated in the costs of Utility rearrangements, and that Utility 
locations on all highways are governed by Regulations and Policies adopted by the State Transportation 
Commission for the protection and maintenance of the highways, and for the safety of the highway users, 
and 

WHEREAS, the County agrees to pay the Utility Company for the proportionate share of the actual cost of 
preliminary engineering in preparing plans and estimates at the State's request, if for any reason the 
State cancels this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Utility Company 
agrees 

1. To prepare a detailed estimate of the cost of work to be performed in accordance with the
Department of Transportation Utilities Manual and Accommodation Policy, and such estimate of
cost must be attached and be a part of this Agreement. The estimate will include: (1) The
accounting system to be used in computing the relocation costs; (2) Credit for Expired Service
Life setting forth therein the conditions on which such credit was determined or complete
justification if the credit is not applicable; and (3) Whether equipment costs are developed from
experience records.

2. Costs for backfill and compaction of any trenches or holes within the right-of-way limits will be
included in the estimate of costs. The backfill will be placed and compacted to a density not less
than that of the adjacent soil, as directed by the Resident Engineer.

3. To prepare drawings showing the present, temporary and proposed location of its facilities with
reference to the new highway centerline in both plan and profile, and delineating details, including
date of installation, class, and type of present facility. Such drawings will be attached to and
become a part of this Agreement.

4. To begin the adjustment or relocation of the facilities as shown on the plans and covered by this
Agreement within a reasonable time, depending on the availability of material and work forces,
but the actual time must not exceed sixty (60) days after receipt of notice for the State to do so,
and in no event proceed with any adjustment or relocation work until such notice is received. To
inform the State's Resident Engineer of: (1) The proposed starting date, before beginning the
work, and to maintain continual liaison with his office for the duration of the physical relocation;
(2) Materials to be disposed of by scrapping, or sale, and inform him of a time and place for his
inspection thereof; (3) Date of completion of the work.

5. a. That no contract with any individual will be entered into without meeting the requirements 
of the Department of Transportation's Utility Manual. 



b. That Contract work for technical services, professional services or other labor
classifications involved in the rearrangement of the plant proposed under this Agreement will be
supported by a statement to the effect that, "The Utility Company is not adequately staffed or
equipped to perform such with its own forces." Proper approval will be obtained in accordance
with the Department of Transportation's Utilities Manual prior to executing a contract with any
outside firm.

6. To submit to the County within six (6) months after satisfactory completion of rearrangement of its
facilities under this Agreement, a certified statement of costs in accordance with the provisions of
the aforementioned memorandums.

7. It is understood this Agreement does not change the rights of the Utility Company as they exist in
accordance with present State law.

8. The Utility Company shall select and contract with an Engineering Consultant to provide the

design and construction administration for the project, and shall select and contract with a

Construction Company to construct the project.

9. The County shall pay the invoices, upon approval by Utility Company, for the services provided

by the Engineering Consultant and the Construction Company.

10 . In consideration of the faithful performance by the Utility Company of the foregoing, the County
agrees to these terms.

To reimburse the Utility Company for actual costs of the completed work, or for the lump sum as 
proposed, prorated on the basis of the following percentages. All reimbursement subject to approval and 
audit by Department of Transportation. 

(1) Company Share of Cost

(2) County Share of Cost

0.00 % 

100.00% 

(3) Lump Sum Proposal, County Cost

Estimated Company Cost 

Estimated County Cost 

$ ---=-0=. 0-=-0 

$ 337,350 .00

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Utility Relocation Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized officers of the day and year last below written. 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED: 

Tulsa County Engineer 

Date 

Washington County RWD #3 

<71Jcz� 
By: 

�hd//'Hl(!Wl 
(Title) 

�/4� (Date) 

APPROVED: 

Board of County Commissioners of 

Tulsa County, Oklahoma: 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

County Clerk Date 



Item 

2 
3 
4 

5 

6 

7 
8 

9 
IO 

11 
!2

13 

1-� 

15 
16 

17 
18 
19 

WASHINGTON CO. RWD NO. 3 

WATER LINE RELOCATION AT HORSEPEN CREEK 

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE 

NOVEMBER 2018 

TOTAL PROJECT RWD#3 

Dcscrjption Unit Unit Price Ouanti� Extension Quantit)'. Extension 

'12" PVC Pipe (SDR-21) I .I.- $ 47 l, 150 $ 54,050 () $ 12" I IDPli Pipe (DR-11) l,J• $ 70 220 $ 15,400 () $ (>'' PVC Pipe (SDR-21) 1,1: $ 20 l,200 $ 2-1-,000 0 $ 
(1" I IDJ >I•: Pipe (Dil-'I I) LI; $ 25 300 $ 7,500 () $ 2" I !DPI·'. Pipe (DR-11) ] ,J; $ 20 200 $ 4,000 0 $ 12" Creek Crossing (2-i" 11 DPE casing) 1.F $ 300 120 $ 16,000 () $ 6" Creek Crossing (14" I IDPF casin{� 1.F $ 140 '120 s 16,800 () $ 6" Ro:id Crossing (12" SLecl casing) ],I< $ ' 100 80 $ 8,000 () $ 2" Road Crossing (6" S1ed c;1sing) ],I< $ 50 120 $ 6,000 0 $ 12" Cate Valve & Box 1•::1. $ 2,500 4 $ 10,000 () $ 6" Cate Valve & Box l•:a. $ l,200 9 $ 10,800 0 $ 2" Cat-c Valve & Box E;i. $ � 700 2 $ 1,400 0 s 3-Way I lydranl 1\sscmbly l•:a. $ 4,000 2 $ 8,000 () $ ' Connect to I •:xist ing Pipeline J-::,1, $ 1,500 (, $- 9,000 () $ 12" Fit lings l•:a. $ 1,800 10 $ 18,000 0 $ 6" l·inings l·'.a. $ GOO 12 $ 7,200 () $ 2" h11ings l•:a. $ 100 2 $ 200 () $ Contrnclor Mobilization/ De-Mob l ,.S. $ 12.( )()() I $ 12,000 () $ Con I ingcncit's (15%) I •. S. $ 37,000 I $ 37,000 0 $ 

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $ 285,350 $ -

Engineering Design & ConsL t\dmi11 $ 24,000 $ Const ruction Obscrv:ition $ 20,000 $ Dis1ric1· t\dminislrntive $ s,oon $ I .egal $ 3,000 $ 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $ 337,350 I $ -

0, ()'j;, 

COUNTY 

Ouantit:y Extension 

1,150 $ 54,050 
220 $ 15,400 
1,200 $ 24.()(l() 
:mo $ 7,500 
200 $ 4,000 
120 $ 36,000 
120 $ 16,800 
80 $ 8,00ll 
120 $ 6,000 
-I $' 10,000 
9 $ ' I 0,800 
2 $ 1,-100 

2 s 8,000 
6 9, - 9.000 

10 $ 18,000 
12 $ 7,200 
2 $ 200 
I $ 12,00() 
1 $ 37,000 

$ 285,350 

$ 24,000 
$ ::m,ooo 

$ 5,00() 
$ 3.000 

$ 337,350 

f(}(J,U°;�, 

Prepared By: David ,\. Dolhir NoYcmLH.:r 19, 2018 



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Renewal Agreement with Vision Services Plan, Inc. Oklahoma of the 

Group Vision Care Policy for FY 19-20 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  This document 

is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  Please let me know if you have any 

questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

Kathy Burrows, HR Director 

 



Please mark the box for the option you elect for 2019:

PLAN TYPE
CURRENT

VSP Signature Plan

RENEWAL

VSP Signature Plan
Exam Copay (comprehensive eye exam with dilation) $50 $50

Material Copay  (included Lens and Frame) $20 $20

Diabetic EyeCare Plus Program $20 $20

BENEFIT FREQUENCY
Exam, Lenses, Frame (or Contacts instead of glasses) 12/12/24 12/12/24

IN NETWORK ALLOWANCE
Retail Frame Allowance $120 $120

COVERED LENS OPTIONS
Polycarbonate for Children Covered Covered

Standard Progressives Covered 7/1/2018 Covered

CONTACT LENS ALLOWANCE
Contact Lens Fitting & Evaluation (Standard & Premium) Up to $60 Up to $60

Elective Contact Lens Materials & Exam $120 $120

ADDITIONAL BENEFITS & DISCOUNTS

Diabetic EyeCare Plus Program

Free Diabetic Awareness Program

Additional pairs of Prescriptive Glasses or Non‐Prescriptive

Laser Vision Correction

OPEN ACCESS 
Examination up to: $50 $50

Single Vision Lenses up to: $50 $50

Bifocal Lenses up to: $75 $75

Trifocal Lenses up to: $100 $100

Lenticular up to: $125 $125

Frame up to: $70 $70

Contact Lenses up to: $105 $105

FULLY INSURED RATES*
Employee Only $3.23 $3.60

Employee + Family  $10.66 $11.86

RATE INFORMATION
Guarantee Period 7/1/2015 ‐ 6/30/2019 48 Months

*The Affordable Care Act requires fully‐insured vision, dental and medical insurance policies to pay Health Insurance Provider Fees (HIPF) to the IRS beginning in 2014.  In compliance,

the renewal rates include the required ACA tax.

VSP Proprietary & Confidential

RENEWAL EXHIBIT
TULSA COUNTY GOVERNMENT

GROUP #01108607

EFFECTIVE ‐ July 1, 2019

30% off additional glasses and sunglasses, including lens options, from the same 

VSP doctor on the same day as your WellVision Exam. Or get 20% off from any VSP 

doctor within 12 months of your last WellVision Exam.

Provides additional services for Type 1 and Type 2 diabetes, glaucoma, or age‐

related macular degeneration (AMD)

Outreach program and exam reminders

15% discount or 5% off promotional pricing

To renew your contract and ensure continuous service, please have the appropriate representative review this information, sign and email this renewal to 
Emilymorris@vsp.com or fax to 972-334-0399. 

By:     ________________________________________

Title:   _______________________________________

Date:  ________________________________________



 

6693689.3 

Warrant Credit and Reimbursement Agreement 

 
This Warrant Credit and Reimbursement Agreement (this "Agreement") is dated as of June 30, 2019, by and between BOKF, NA 

dba Bank of Oklahoma (together with its successors and assigns, the "Bank"), whose address is One Williams Center, 8NW, 

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172, and the Board of County Commissioners for Tulsa County on behalf of Tulsa County, a political 

subdivision of the State of Oklahoma (the "Borrower"), whose address is 500 S. Denver Avenue, 3rd Floor, Tulsa, Oklahoma 

74103-3840.  

1. Definitions and Interpretations. 

1.1 Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the following respective meanings: 

A. "Account" means account number #700196825 established at the Bank by the Borrower through which 

Warrants shall be payable together with any successor account(s) at the Bank on which Warrants are drawn by 

the Borrower. 

B. "Anti-Corruption Laws" means all Laws, rules, and regulations of any jurisdiction applicable to the 

Borrower from time to time concerning or relating to bribery or corruption. 

C. "Authorizing Documents" means certificates of authority to transact business, certificates of good 

standing, borrowing resolutions, appointments, officer's certificates, certificates of incumbency, and other 

documents which empower and authorize or evidence the power and authority of all Persons (other than the 

Bank) executing any Related Document or their representatives to execute and deliver the Related Documents 

and perform the Person's obligations thereunder. 

D. "Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks generally are open in 

Oklahoma for the conduct of substantially all of their commercial lending activities. 

E. "Change in Law" means the adoption or taking effect of, or any change in, any Law, or any change in the 

interpretation, administration or application of any Law by any Governmental Authority, central bank or 

comparable agency charged with the interpretation, administration or application thereof, or compliance by the 

Bank with any request, guideline or directive (whether or not having the force of law) of any such authority, 

central bank or comparable agency occurring after the effective date of this Agreement; provided, however, that 

notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection 

Act and all requests, rules, guidelines or directives thereunder or issued in connection therewith and all requests, 

rules, guidelines or directives promulgated by the Bank for International Settlements, the Basel Committee on 

Banking Supervision (or any successor or similar authority) or the United States regulatory authorities, in each 

case pursuant to Basel III, shall in each case be deemed to be a "Change in Law" regardless of the date enacted, 

adopted or issued. 

F. "Code and Regulations" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the regulations thereunder, as such 

code and regulations may be amended from time to time. 

G. "Commitment" means TEN MILLION and 00/100 UNITED STATES DOLLARS ($10,000,000.00). 

H. "Event of Default" is defined in Section 7.1. 

I. "Governmental Authority" means the government of the United States or any other nation, or of any 

political subdivision thereof, whether state or local, and any agency, authority, instrumentality, regulatory body, 

court, central bank or other entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, taxing, regulatory or administrative 

powers or functions of or pertaining to government. 

J. "Laws" means, collectively, all international, foreign, federal, state and local statutes, treaties, rules, 

guidelines, regulations, ordinances, codes and administrative or judicial precedents or authorities, including the 

interpretation or administration thereof by any Governmental Authority charged with the enforcement, 

interpretation or administration thereof, and all applicable administrative orders, directed duties, requests, 



 

2 

licenses, authorizations and permits of, and agreements with, any Governmental Authority, in each case whether 

or not having the force of law. 

K. "Legal Requirement" means any Law, ordinance, decree, requirement, order, judgment, rule, regulation 

(or interpretation of any of the foregoing) of any foreign Governmental Authority, the United States of America, 

any state thereof, any political subdivision of any of the foregoing or any agency, department, commission, 

board, bureau, court or other tribunal having jurisdiction over the Bank, the Borrower or their respective 

Properties or any agreement by which any of them is bound. 

L. "Liabilities" means all indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of every kind and character of the Borrower, 

to the Bank or any of its affiliates, whether the obligations, indebtedness and liabilities are individual, joint and 

several, contingent or otherwise, now or hereafter existing, including all liabilities, interest, costs and fees, 

arising under or from any Warrant, note, open account, overdraft, credit card, lease, treasury management 

agreement, letter of credit application, endorsement, surety agreement, guaranty, acceptance, foreign exchange 

contract or depository service contract, whether payable to the Bank (or any Affiliate of the Bank) or to a third 

party and subsequently acquired by the Bank (or any Affiliate of the Bank), any monetary obligations (including 

interest) incurred or accrued during the pendency of any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or other similar 

proceedings, regardless of whether allowed or allowable in such proceeding, and all renewals, extensions, 

modifications, consolidations, rearrangements, restatements, replacements or substitutions of any of the 
foregoing. 

M. "LIBOR Rate" means a rate (expressed to the fifth decimal place) equal to (i) the rate of interest which is 

identified and normally published by ICE Benchmark Administration (or any other Person that takes over the 

administration of such rate for United States dollars) as the offered rate for loans in United States dollars as of 

11:00 a.m. (London time), two London Business Days prior to the first Business Day of each calendar month; 

plus (ii) the maximum reserve requirement, if any, then imposed under Regulation D of the Board of Governors 

of the Federal Reserve System for "Eurocurrency Liabilities" (as defined therein); provided, however, that if 

LIBOR determined as provided above shall be less than zero, LIBOR shall be deemed to be zero for the 

purposes of this Agreement; provided further, however, that if the Borrower and the Bank (or any of its 

affiliates) have entered into a Swap Agreement in relation to the interest rate in respect of any Advance made 

under this Agreement, then LIBOR (with respect to both the Swap Agreement and the determination of such 

interest rate) shall be as determined for such Advance, irrespective if such determination is less than zero. If (i) 

ICE Benchmark Administration no longer reports LIBOR, (ii) LIBOR is no longer a widely recognized 

benchmark rate for newly originated loans in the U.S. commercial or syndicated loan market, (iii) the applicable 

supervisor or administrator (if any) of any applicable interest rate specified herein or any Governmental 

Authority having or purporting to have jurisdiction over the Bank has made a public statement identifying a 

specific date after which LIBOR shall no longer be used for determining interest rates for loans in the U.S. 

commercial or syndicated loan market, or (iv) the Bank determines in good faith that the rate so reported no 

longer accurately reflects the rate available to the Bank in the London Interbank Market or if such index no 

longer exists or accurately reflects the rate available to the Bank in the London Interbank Market, the Bank may 

select a replacement index. 

N. "Lien" means any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, charge, encumbrance, security interest, collateral 

assignment or other lien or restriction of any kind. 

O. "London Business Day" means a Business Day on which commercial banks are open for general business 

(including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in London, England. 

P. "Maximum Lawful Rate" means the maximum per annum interest rate permitted by Oklahoma Law. 

Q. "Organizational Documents" means, with respect to any Person, certificates of existence or formation, 

documents establishing or governing the Person or evidencing or certifying that the Person is duly organized 

and validly existing in accordance with all applicable Legal Requirements, including all amendments, 

restatements, supplements or modifications to such certificates and documents as of the date of the Related 

Document referring to the Organizational Document and any and all future modifications thereto approved by 

the Bank. 

R. "Person" means any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, joint 

stock association, association, bank, business trust, trust, unincorporated organization, any foreign 



 

3 

Governmental Authority, the United States of America, any state of the United States and any political 

subdivision of any of the foregoing or any other form of entity. 

S. "Prime Rate" means the rate of interest per annum announced from time to time by the Bank as its prime 

rate. The Prime Rate is a variable rate and each change in the Prime Rate is effective from and including the 

date the change is announced as being effective. THE PRIME RATE IS A REFERENCE RATE AND MAY 

NOT BE THE BANK'S LOWEST RATE. 

T. "Property" means any interest in any kind of property or asset, whether real, personal or mixed, tangible or 

intangible. 

U. "Regulation D" means Regulation D of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System as from 

time to time in effect and any successor thereto or other regulation or official interpretation of said Board of 

Governors relating to reserve requirements applicable to member banks of the Federal Reserve System. 

V. "Related Documents" means this Agreement, the Warrants, applications for letters of credit, all loan 

agreements, credit agreements, reimbursement agreements, security agreements, mortgages, deeds of trust, 

pledge agreements, assignments, guaranties, and any other instrument or document executed in connection with 

this Agreement or with any of the Liabilities. 

W. "Reserve Requirement" means the maximum aggregate reserve requirement (including all basic, 

supplemental, marginal and other reserves) which is imposed under Regulation D. 

X. "Sanctions" means economic or financial sanctions or trade embargoes imposed, administered or enforced 

from time to time by (a) the U.S. government, including those administered by the Office of Foreign Assets 

Control (OFAC) of the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the U.S. Department of State, and (b) if the 

Borrower has operations outside of the United States, the United Nations Security Council, the European Union, 

any European Union member state, Her Majesty's Treasury of the United Kingdom or other relevant sanctions 

authority. 

Y. "Sanctioned Country" means, at any time, a country or territory which is the subject or target of any 

Sanctions (as of the date of this Agreement, Crimea, Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Sudan, Syria and Venezuela). 

Z. "Sanctioned Person" means, at any time, (a) any Person listed in any Sanctions-related list of designated 

Persons maintained by (i) the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, the U.S. 

Department of State, and (ii) if the Borrower has operations outside of the United States, the United Nations 

Security Council, the European Union, any European Union member state, Her Majesty's Treasury of the United 

Kingdom or other relevant sanctions authority, (b) any Person operating, organized or resident in a Sanctioned 

Country, or (c) any Person controlled by any such Person. 

AA. "Swap Agreement" means any agreement, contract or transaction that constitutes a "swap" within the 

meaning of section 1a(47) of the Commodity Exchange Act (7 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq.), including any agreement 

with respect to any swap, forward, future or derivative transaction or option or similar agreement involving, or 

settled by reference to, one or more rates, currencies, commodities, equity or debt instruments or securities, or 

economic, financial or pricing indices or measures of economic, financial or pricing risk or value or any similar 

transaction or any combination of these transactions; provided that no phantom stock or similar plan providing 

for payments only on account of services provided by current or former directors, officers, employees or 

consultants of any Borrower shall be a "Swap Agreement". 

BB. "Termination Date" means the earlier of (i) February 29, 2020, or (ii) the date specified by the Bank 

pursuant to Section 8.2. 

CC. "Warrant" means any warrant drawn on the Account by the Borrower. 

1.2 Interpretations. Whenever possible, each provision of the Related Documents shall be interpreted in such 

manner as to be effective and valid under applicable Legal Requirements. If any provision of this Agreement 

cannot be enforced, the remaining portions of this Agreement shall continue in effect. In the event of any 

conflict or inconsistency between this Agreement and the provisions of any other Related Documents, the 

provisions of this Agreement shall control. Use of the term "including" means "including without limitation." 



 

4 

Any reference to a particular document includes all modifications, supplements, replacements, renewals or 

extensions of that document, but this rule of construction does not authorize amendment of any document 

without the Bank's consent. Section headings are for convenience of reference only and do not affect the 

interpretation of this Agreement. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms of an accounting or 

financial nature shall be construed in accordance with GAAP. Whenever the Bank's determination, consent, 

approval or satisfaction is required under this Agreement or the other Related Documents or whenever the Bank 

may at its option take or refrain from taking any action under this Agreement or the other Related Documents, 

the decision as to whether or not the Bank makes the determination, consents, approves, is satisfied or takes or 

refrains from taking any action, shall be in the sole and exclusive discretion of the Bank, and the Bank's decision 

shall be final and conclusive. 

2. Warrant Credit Facility. 

2.1 Warrant Line of Credit. The Bank has approved a credit facility for the Borrower in the principal sum not to 

exceed the Commitment in total aggregate Advances outstanding at any one time (the "Credit Facility"). The 

Credit Facility is subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

Availability. From time to time, the Borrower may issue Warrants to pay vendors for services and to evidence 

obligations to other Persons at times when the Borrower has not yet collected revenues to pay its obligations. 

The Borrower has requested that the Bank pay the Warrants when presented to the Bank. The Warrants are 

payable through any Tulsa County bank and will be drawn on the Account. Subject to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement and provided that no Event of Default has occurred, the Bank agrees to make advances in the 

face amount of each Warrant (each, an "Advance") on or before the Termination Date to pay the face amount of 

each Warrant as and when presented for payment through the Bank provided that the total amount of Advances 

outstanding at any one time does not exceed the Commitment. The obligation of the Borrower to repay the 

Advances shall be evidenced by the Warrants paid by the Bank and upon payment the Bank shall become the 

owner of the Warrant and entitled to have the Borrower register the transfer of said Warrant to the Bank upon 

the Borrower's books and records. 

The Borrower shall make all payments under this Agreement and the other Related Documents, without setoff, 

deduction, or counterclaim, to the Bank at the Bank's address above or at such other place as the Bank may 

designate in writing unless applicable Law provides otherwise. Payments shall be allocated among principal, 

interest and fees at the discretion of the Bank unless otherwise required by applicable Legal Requirements. 

Acceptance by the Bank of any payment that is less than the payment due at that time shall not constitute a 

waiver of the Bank's right to receive payment in hill at that time or any other time. 

On each day that a Warrant is presented, the Bank will advance funds automatically to the Account to make 

payment. For purposes of collecting and paying of the Warrants, the Bank's standard treasury management 

agreement governing deposit accounts as may be amended from time to time will apply except when inconsistent 

with this Agreement. Each issuance of a Warrant by the Borrower is deemed to be a request for an Advance to 

be made upon presentment of the Warrant to the Bank and a representation and warranty by the Borrower to the 

Bank that the representations and warranties in Section 6 are true and correct on the date the Warrant is issued 

and on the date presented to the Bank. 

The Bank is authorized to accept and pay each Warrant presented for payment to the Bank and the Bank is not 

obligated to inspect any Warrant for the presence or authentication of any signature, alteration or endorsement or 

whether or not the signature is authorized; provided, however, the Bank may refuse or delay payment in its sole 

discretion if the Bank has concerns that any Warrant may be invalid, altered or forged or other concerns 

regarding the validity of any Warrant. The Borrower agrees that payment or non-payment of any Warrant by the 

Bank shall be fully enforceable against the Borrower and the Borrower shall have no claim against the Bank for 

same and shall be barred from bringing any action against the Bank that is in any way related to the payment or 

non-payment of any Warrant. Each Advance/Warrant shall become due on the Termination Date, as it may be 

accelerated pursuant to this Agreement. The Bank's records of payment of Warrants and amount of interest 

calculated from date of payment of the Warrant shall be conclusive absent manifest error. The parties agree to 

cooperate with each other in the event of any dispute with respect to the calculation of interest and the amount 

owed by the Borrower. 

Promise to Pay. The Borrower promises to pay to the order of the Bank, in lawful money of the United States of 

America, the sum of the amount all Warrants paid by the Bank, plus interest on the unpaid principal balance of 



 

5 

all Advances/Warrants paid computed on the basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve (12) thirty (30) day 

months unless that calculation would result in a usurious interest rate, in which case interest will be calculated on 

the basis of a 365 or 366 day year, as the case may be at the rate (the interest rate of any Advance/Warrant on 

any day is referred to herein as the, "Warrant Rate") equal to the LIBOR Rate plus one and one half percent 

(1.50%) per annum (the "Applicable Margin"), and at the rate of 3.00% per annum above the Warrant Rate, at 

the Bank's option, upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, whether or not the Bank elects to exercise any 

remedies under this Agreement, from the date such increased rate is imposed by the Bank; provided, however, in 

no event shall interest hereon ever be charged, paid, collected or received at a rate in excess of the Maximum 

Lawful Rate. If the Warrant Rate at any time exceeds the Maximum Lawful Rate, the actual rate of interest to 

accrue on the unpaid principal balance will be limited to the Maximum Lawful Rate, but any subsequent 

reductions in the Warrant Rate due to reductions in the LIBOR Rate will not reduce the interest rate payable 

upon the unpaid principal amount below the Maximum Lawful Rate until the total amount of interest accrued 

equals the amount of interest which would have accrued if the Warrant Rate had at all times been in effect. 

Further, in determining whether the interest contracted for, charged, or received by the Bank exceeds the 

Maximum Lawful Rate, such Person may, to the extent permitted by applicable Law, (a) characterize any 

payment that is not principal as an expense, fee or premium rather than interest, (b) exclude voluntary 

prepayments and the effects thereof, and (c) amortize, prorate, allocate and spread in equal or unequal parts the 

total amount of interest throughout the contemplated term of the Liabilities hereunder. 

Each Advance shall bear interest from the date of the Advance until the earlier of: (a) the Warrant associated 

with the Advance is paid in full to the Bank by the Borrower together with interest applicable to such Advance 

and (b) the date which is thirty (30) days after notice is given by the Borrower to the Bank pursuant to Section 

4.9 that the Borrower has funds to pay the Warrants and calls for payment thereof, the Bank will present the 

Warrants to the County Treasurer for payment and provide an invoice with respect to estimated interest owed to 

the scheduled date of payment per the Call Notice described in Section 4.9 of this Agreement. In the event any 

Warrant is not paid after a Call Notice it shall continue to accrue interest at three percent (3%), plus the Warrant 

Rate not to exceed the Maximum Lawful Rate. 

Inability to Determine Interest Rate. If the Bank determines on any day that quotations of interest rates for the 

relevant deposits referred to in the definition of the LIBOR Rate are not being provided for purposes of 

determining the interest rate on any Advance on any day, then each Advance shall bear interest at the Prime Rate 

plus the Applicable Margin until the Bank determines that quotations of interest rates for the relevant deposits 

referred to in the definition of LIBOR Rate are being provided. 

Increased Costs. If, after the effective date of this Agreement, any Change in Law: (1) shall impose, modify or 

deem applicable any reserve (including any reserve imposed by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 

System, or any successor thereto, but excluding any reserve included in the determination of the LIBOR Rate 

pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement), special deposit, compulsory loan, insurance charge or similar 

requirement against assets of, deposits with or for the account of, or credit extended or participated in by the 

Bank; or (2) shall impose on the Bank any other condition affecting its LIBOR Rate loans, any promissory note 

or its obligation to make LIBOR Rate loans; and the result of anything described in clauses (1) above and (2) is 

to increase the cost to (or to impose a cost on) the Bank of making or maintaining any LIBOR Rate loan, or to 

reduce the amount of any sum received or receivable by the Bank under this Agreement or any promissory note 

with respect thereto, then upon demand by the Bank (which demand shall be accompanied by a statement setting 

forth the basis for such demand and a calculation of the amount thereof in reasonable detail, a copy of which 

shall be furnished to the Bank), the Borrower shall promptly pay to the Bank such additional amount as will 

compensate the Bank for such increased cost or such reduction, so long as such amounts have accrued on or after 

the day which is 270 days prior to the date on which the Bank first made demand therefor. 

3. Conditions Precedent to Advances. 

3.1 Conditions Precedent to Initial Extension of Credit under the Credit Facility. Before the first Advance 

governed by this Agreement, the Borrower shall deliver to the Bank, in form and substance satisfactory to the 

Bank: 

A. Loan and Account Documents. This Agreement, any security agreement, pledge agreement, 

financing statement, mortgage or deed of trust, guaranty, subordination agreement and any other 

agreements or documents which the Bank may reasonably require to give effect to the transactions 

described in this Agreement or the other Related Documents and documentation reasonably required by 



 

6 

the Bank with respect to the Account including service terms and conditions applicable to the Account 

including the Positive Pay and Payee Verification Services (or equivalent). 

B. Organizational and Authorizing Documents. The Organizational Documents and Authorizing 

Documents of the Borrower and any other Persons (other than the Bank) executing the Related 

Documents in form and substance satisfactory to the Bank that at a minimum: (i) document the due 

organization, valid existence and good standing of the Borrower and every other Person (other than the 

Bank) that is a party to this Agreement or any other Related Document; (ii) evidence that each Person 

(other than the Bank) which is a party to this Agreement or any other Related Document has the power 

and authority to enter into the transactions described therein; and (iii) evidence that the Person signing 

on behalf of each Person that is a party to the Related Documents (other than the Bank) is duly 

authorized to do so. 

C. Legal Opinions. An opinion of counsel for the Borrower as to those matters incident to the 

transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the other Related Documents as the Bank may 

reasonably require, including that: (i) the Borrower (a) is duly organized and validly existing under the 

laws of the state where it is organized and has full power and authority to execute, deliver and perform 

this Agreement and the other Related Documents executed by such party; and (ii) this Agreement and 

the other Related Documents have been duly authorized, executed and delivered, and are the legal, valid 

and binding obligations of the Borrower or other party to the Related Documents, enforceable in 

accordance with their terms. 

3.2 Conditions Precedent to Each Advance. Before any advance, the following conditions must be satisfied: 

A. Representations. The representations of the Borrower in the Related Documents are true on 

and as of the date of the request for and funding of the extension of credit by payment of any Warrant; 

B. No Event of Default. No Event of Default, or event that would constitute a default or Event of 

Default but for the giving of notice, the lapse of time or both, has occurred in any provision of this 

Agreement or any other Related Document and is continuing or would result from die payment of any 

Warrant; 

C. Additional Approvals, Opinions, and Documents. The Bank has received any other 

approvals, opinions and documents as it may reasonably request; and 

D. Other Conditions. The Advance would not cause the total amount advanced and outstanding 

to exceed the Commitment. 

4. Affirmative Covenants. The Borrower agrees to do each of the following: 

4.1 Existence. Continue to be a validly existing political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma. 

4.2 Insurance. Maintain insurance with financially sound and reputable insurers, with such insurance and insurers 

to be satisfactory to the Bank, covering its Property and business against those casualties and contingencies and 

in the types and amounts as are in accordance with sound business and industry practices, and furnish to the 

Bank, upon request of the Bank, reports on each existing insurance policy showing such information as the Bank 

may reasonably request. 

4.3 Inspection. Permit the Bank, its agents and designees to: (a) inspect and photograph its Property, to examine 

and copy files, books and records, and to discuss its business, operations, prospects, assets, affairs and financial 

condition with the Borrower's officers and accountants, at times and intervals as the Bank reasonably 

determines, and (b) confirm with any Person any obligations and liabilities of the Person to the Borrower, as 

allowed by applicable Law. 

4.4 Books and Records. Maintain a system of accounting for and appropriate books and records showing its (a) 

receipt and use of (i) non-restricted operating revenues, and (ii) other funds available for expenditure for the 

general operations of the Borrower, and (b) the issuance and registration of Warrants showing the number, the 

date, the name of the payee, the fund upon which it is drawn and the amount, and other information required by 

Title 62 of the Oklahoma Statutes and the rate of interest to be fixed by the governing board. Upon payment of 



 

7 

any Warrant by the Bank, the Borrower shall promptly effect the transfer of ownership of the Warrants so paid 

to the Bank on its books and records. 

4.5 Information and Statements. Furnish to Bank: (i) as soon as available and in any event within one hundred 

and eighty (180) days after the end of each fiscal year of the Borrower, copies of annual financial reports, (ii) 

documents given to any securities rating agency or other Person in connection with the indebtedness of the 

Borrower and (iii) such additional information and statements as the Bank may request from time to time. 

4.6 Compliance with Legal Requirements. Comply in all material respects with all agreements, documents, and 

instruments to which the Borrower is a party or by which the Borrower or any of the assets or property of the 

Borrower is bound or affected and comply with all other Legal Requirements. The Borrower shall perform its 

obligations under Title 62 of the Oklahoma Statutes. 

4.7 Further Assurances. Promptly execute, acknowledge, and deliver and, as appropriate, cause to be duly filed 

and recorded such additional agreements, documents, and instruments and do or cause to be done such other acts 

as Bank may reasonably request from time to time to better assure, perfect, preserve, and protect the rights and 

remedies of Bank under the Related Documents. 

4.8 Registration of Warrants and Notification. Issue and register each Warrant in compliance with applicable 

Legal Requirements and each Warrant shall contain such information, data and encoding as is acceptable to the 

Bank in its sole discretion for processing and clearing the Warrants through the Account. Each Warrant shall be 

issued upon the order of the governing board thereof, drawn by its clerk, signed by the chairman or lawfully 

designated presiding officer thereof, and the clerk. Each Warrant shall be coded in such manner as may be 

necessary to designate the fund and appropriation upon which it is drawn. The signatures of the presiding officer 

and clerk, including facsimile thereof, shall be deemed as notification to the Bank that the Warrant is for the 

purpose and within the amount of the appropriation charged. 

4.9 Notice of Call of Warrants. Provide written notice to the Bank when there is cash on hand to pay the Warrants 

and that interest will cease to be paid on the Warrant on the day which is thirty (30) days from the date of written 

notice to the Bank with respect to the Warrants covered by the notice (the "Call Notice"). The Call Notice shall 

be sent in writing to BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma at the addresses as set forth in Section 8.1 of this 

Agreement. In the event payment is not made following notice with respect to any Warrant, then interest will 

continue to accrue at the Warrant Rate plus three percent (3%) not to exceed the Maximum Lawful Rate until 

payment in full is made. 

4.10 Notices of Claims, Litigation, Defaults, Etc. Promptly inform the Bank in writing of: (1) all existing and all 

threatened litigation, claims, investigations, administrative proceedings and similar actions or changes in Legal 

Requirements affecting it which could materially affect its business, assets, affairs, prospects or financial 

condition; (2) the occurrence of any Event of Default, or any event or circumstance which would be reasonably 

expected to result in an Event of Default; (3) the institution of steps by it to withdraw from, or the institution of 

any steps to terminate, any employee benefit plan as to which it may have liability; (4) any reportable event or 

any prohibited transaction in connection with any employee benefit plan; (5) any additions to or changes in the 

locations of its businesses; and (6) any alleged breach by the Bank of any provision of this Agreement or of any 

other Related Document. 

4.11 Title to Assets and Property. Maintain good and marketable title to all of its Properties, and defend them 

against all claims and demands of all Persons at any time claiming any interest in them. 

4.12 Additional Assurances. Promptly make, execute and deliver any and all agreements, documents, instruments 

and other records that the Bank may request to evidence the Credit Facility, cure any defect in the execution and 

delivery of any of the Related Documents, perfect any Lien (if applicable), comply with any Legal Requirement 

applicable to the Bank or the Credit Facility or describe more fully particular aspects of the agreements set forth 

or intended to be set forth in any of the Related Documents. 

4.13 Compliance with Anti-Corruption Laws and Sanctions. Maintain in effect and enforce policies and 

procedures designed to ensure compliance by the Borrower, its Subsidiaries and their respective directors, 

officers, employees and agents with Anti-Corruption Laws and applicable Sanctions. 

5. Negative Covenants. 



 

8 

5.1 The Borrower will not: 

A. Conflicting Agreements. Enter into any agreement containing any provision which would be violated 

or breached by the performance of its obligations under this Agreement or any of the other Related Documents. 

B. Government Regulation. (1) Be or become subject at any time to any Legal Requirement or list of any 

Government Authority (including the U.S. Office of Foreign Asset Control list) that prohibits or limits the Bank 

from making any advance or extension of credit to it or from otherwise conducting business with it, or (2) fail to 

provide documentary and other evidence of its identity as may be requested by the Bank at any time to enable 

the Bank to verify its identity or to comply with any applicable Legal Requirement, including Section 326 of the 

USA Patriot Act of 2001, 31 U.S.C. Section 5318. 

C. Warrants. Issue Warrants in excess of the amount of the estimated expenses made and approved for 

the current fiscal year. 

D. Taxation of Interest. Take nor fail to take any action which action or failure to act is within the power 

and authority of the Borrower and would result in interest payable by the Borrower (i) being included in gross 

income of the Bank for federal income tax purposes, or (ii) otherwise being subject to the federal income tax. 

Such actions may include: making certifications and representations; giving assurances; paying to the United 

States of America any required amounts representing rebates of arbitrage profits relating to proceeds of 

Advances; filing forms, statements, and supporting documents as may be required under the Code and 

Regulations; limiting the term of and yield on investments made with proceeds of Advances; and limiting the 

use of the proceeds of Advances. In addition to other actions under this Section, the Borrower shall file with the 

Internal Revenue Service properly completed Forms 8038-G as and when required by the Code and Regulations 

and shall, if requested by the Bank, promptly deliver to the Bank, a copy of each filed Form 8038-G. Also, the 

Borrower shall declare and certify in writing in form and substance as specified by the Bank whether or not all 

Advances/Warrants are "Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations", as such term is defined in Section 265 or any 

successor or replacement provision of the Code and Regulations, and deliver to Bank a copy of such declaration 

promptly after the date of this Agreement. 

E. Use of Proceeds. Use, or permit any proceeds of the Credit Facility to be used, directly or indirectly, 

for: (1) any personal, family or household purpose; or (2) the purpose of "purchasing or carrying any margin 

stock" within the meaning of Federal Reserve Board Regulation U. Nevertheless, at the Bank's request, it will 

furnish a completed Federal Reserve Board Form U-l. Furthermore, the Borrower will not and no Subsidiary of 

the Borrower will request any Credit Facility or use, or permit any proceeds of the Credit Facility to be used, 

directly or indirectly, by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or its or their respective directors, officers, 

employees and agents: (1) in furtherance of an offer, payment, promise to pay, or authorization of the payment 

or giving of money, or anything else of value, to any Person in violation of any Anti-Corruption Laws; (2) for 

the purpose of funding, financing or facilitating any activities, business or transaction of or with any Sanctioned 

Person, or in any Sanctioned Country, to the extent such activities, business or transaction would be prohibited 

by Sanctions if conducted by a corporation incorporated in the United States; or (3) in any manner that would 

result in the violation of any Sanctions applicable to any party hereto. 

6. Representations. 

6.1 Representations and Warranties by the Borrower. To induce the Bank to enter into this Agreement and to 

extend financial accommodations to the Borrower, the Borrower represents and warrants as of the date of this 

Agreement and as of the date of presentation of each Warrant to the Bank that each of the following statements 

is and shall remain true and correct throughout the term of this Agreement and until the Credit Facility, the 

Warrants and all Liabilities under the other Related Documents are indefeasibly paid in full and no further 

commitment exists: 

A. The Borrower is a validly existing political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma and its executive 

office is at the address first shown above. 

B. Its name as it appears in this Agreement is its exact name as it appears in its Organizational Documents. 

C. The execution, delivery and performance by the Borrower of this Agreement and the other Related 

Documents to which it is a party, and the performance of the obligations they impose, are within its powers, will 



 

9 

not conflict with, or result in a violation of or a default under any Legal Requirement, do not violate any Legal 

Requirement. This Agreement and the other Related Documents have been duly authorized, and are valid and 

binding agreements of the Borrower, enforceable according to their terms, except as may be limited by 

bankruptcy, insolvency or other Laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and by general 

principles of equity. 

D. All balance sheets, profit and loss statements, and other financial statements and other information 

furnished to the Bank in connection with this Agreement and any of the Liabilities are accurate and fairly reflect 

the financial condition of the Persons to which they apply on their effective dates, including contingent liabilities 

of every type, which financial condition has not changed materially and adversely since those dates. The 

Borrower's fiscal year ends on each June 30th. 

E. No litigation, claim, investigation, administrative proceeding or similar action is pending or threatened 

against it, and no other event has occurred which may in any one case or in the aggregate materially adversely 

affect its financial condition, properties, business, affairs or operations, other than litigation, claims, or other 

events, if any, that have been disclosed to and acknowledged by the Bank in writing, 

F. All of its tax returns and reports that are or were required to be filed, have been filed, and all taxes, 

assessments and other governmental charges have been paid in full, except those presently being contested by it 

in good faith and for which adequate reserves have been provided. 

G. There are no defenses or counterclaims, offsets or adverse claims, demands or actions of any kind, 

personal or otherwise that it could assert with respect to this Agreement or any Warrant unless in the case of any 

Warrant the Borrower has notified the Bank and the Bank has received such notice prior to payment of any such 

Warrant in accordance with the Bank's standard procedures with respect to items drawn on accounts at the Bank. 

H. It owns, or is licensed to use, all trademarks, trade names, copyrights, technology, know-how and 

processes necessary for the conduct of its business as currently conducted. 

I. No approval, authorization, bond, consent, certificate, franchise, license, permit, registration, 

qualification, or other action or grant by or filing with any Person is required in connection with the execution, 

delivery, or performance by the Borrower of this Agreement or the other Related Documents that has not been 

obtained. 

J. The Commitment does not exceed the estimate made and approved for payment of Warrants to be 

drawn on the Account for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The interest rate provided in this Agreement has 

been approved by the governing body of the Borrower. The issuance of any Warrant is a representation and 

warranty by the Borrower that the Warrant has been issued in compliance with all Legal Requirements including 

Title 62 of the Oklahoma Statutes and that such Warrant represents a lawful obligation of the Borrower and 

upon payment of any Warrant by the Bank pursuant to this Agreement, the principal amount thereof is an 

obligation of the Borrower to the Bank together with interest accrued on the face amount thereof calculated as 

set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

6.2 Representations and Warranties Regarding Anti-Corruption Laws and Sanctions. The Borrower has 

implemented and maintains in effect policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance by the Borrower, its 

Subsidiaries and their respective directors, commissioners, officers, employees and agents with Anti-Corruption 

Laws and applicable Sanctions, and the Borrower, its Subsidiaries and their respective officers and employees 

and to the knowledge of the Borrower its directors and agents, are in compliance with Anti-Corruption Laws and 

applicable Sanctions in all material respects. None of (a) the Borrower, any Subsidiary or to the knowledge of 

the Borrower or such Subsidiary any of their respective directors, officers or employees, or (b) to the knowledge 

of the Borrower, any agent of the Borrower or any Subsidiary that will act in any capacity in connection with or 

benefit from the credit facility established hereby, is a Sanctioned Person. No Advance, use of proceeds or other 

transaction contemplated by the Credit Facility will violate Anti-Corruption Laws or applicable Sanctions. 

7. Default/Remedies. 

7.1 Events of Default/Acceleration. An "Event of Default" means any of the following: 



 

10 

A. The Borrower fails to pay when due any of the Liabilities or any other debt to any Person, or any 

amount payable with respect to any of the Liabilities, or under any other Related Document, or any agreement or 

instrument evidencing other debt to any Person. 

B. The Borrower: (i) fails to observe or perform or otherwise violates any other term, covenant, condition 

or agreement of any of the Related Documents; (ii) makes any materially incorrect or misleading representation, 

warranty or certificate to the Bank; (iii) makes any materially incorrect or misleading representation in any 

financial statement or other information delivered to the Bank; or (iv) defaults under the terms of any agreement 

or instrument relating to any debt for borrowed money (other than the debt evidenced by the Related 

Documents) and the effect of such default will allow the creditor to declare the debt due before its stated 

maturity. 

C. In the event (i) there is a default under the terms of any Related Document, (ii) the Borrower claims that 

any Related Document is not legally binding or enforceable against the Borrower, or (iii) the Borrower fails to 

comply with, or perform under any agreement, now or hereafter in effect, between the Borrower and the Bank, 

or any affiliate of the Bank or their respective successors and assigns. 

D. Any event occurs that would permit the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation to terminate any 

employee benefit plan of the Borrower. 

E. The Borrower: (i) becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they become due; (ii) makes an 

assignment for the benefit of creditors; (iii) consents to the appointment of a custodian, receiver, or trustee for 

itself or for a substantial part of its Property; (iv) commences any proceeding under any bankruptcy, 

reorganization, liquidation, insolvency or similar Laws; (v) conceals or removes any of its Property, with intent 

to hinder, delay or defraud any of its creditors; (vi) makes or permits a transfer of any of its Property, which may 

be fraudulent under any bankruptcy, fraudulent conveyance or similar Law; or (vii) makes a transfer of any of its 

Property to or for the benefit of a creditor at a time when other creditors similarly situated have not been paid. 

F. A custodian, receiver, or trustee is appointed for the Borrower or for a substantial part of its respective 

Property. 

G. The Borrower, without the Bank's written consent: (i) liquidates or is dissolved; (ii) merges or 

consolidates with any other Person; (iii) leases, sells or otherwise conveys a material part of its assets or business 

outside the ordinary course of its business; (iv) leases, purchases, or otherwise acquires a material part of the 

assets of any other Person, except in the ordinary course of its business; or (v) agrees to do any of the foregoing. 

H. Proceedings are commenced under any bankruptcy, reorganization, liquidation, or similar Laws against 

the Borrower and remain undismissed for thirty (30) days after commencement; or the Borrower consents to the 

commencement of those proceedings. 

I. Any material adverse change occurs in: (i) the reputation, Property, financial condition, business, 

assets, affairs, prospects, liabilities, or operations of the Borrower; or (ii) the Borrower's ability to perform its 

obligations under the Related Documents. 

7.2 Remedies. At any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Bank may do one or more of the 

following: (a) cease permitting the Borrower to incur any Liabilities; (b) cease making Advances and accelerate 

the Termination Date; (c) refuse to make any Advances and/or pay any Warrants presented without notice of any 

kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived; (d) exercise all rights of setoff that the Bank may have 

contractually, by law, in equity or otherwise for Liabilities, and to make a charge against such money even 

though such charge is made or entered into the books of the Bank subsequently thereto; and (e) exercise any and 

all other rights pursuant to any of the Related Documents, at law, in equity or otherwise. 

A. Generally. The rights of the Bank under this Agreement and the other Related Documents are in 

addition to other rights (including other rights of setoff) the Bank may have contractually, by law, in equity or 

otherwise, all of which are cumulative and hereby retained by the Bank. 

B. Expenses. To the extent not prohibited by applicable Legal Requirements and whether or not the 

transactions contemplated by this Agreement are consummated, the Borrower is liable to the Bank and agrees to 

pay on demand all reasonable costs and expenses of every kind incurred (or charged by internal allocation) in 



 

11 

connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, filing, recording, modification, supplementing and 

waiver of the Related Documents, the making, servicing and collection of the Advances, any amounts owing 

under this Agreement including the Warrants and the realization on any other amounts owed under the other 

Related Documents. 

8. Miscellaneous. 

8.1 Notices and Demands. All demands or notices under this Agreement and the other Related Documents shall be 

in writing and mailed, emailed, or delivered to the respective party hereto at the address specified at the end of this 

Section or such other address as shall have been specified in a written notice. Any demand or notice mailed shall be 

mailed first-class mail, postage-prepaid, return-receipt-requested and shall be effective upon the earlier of (i) actual 

receipt by the addressee, and (ii) the date shown on the return-receipt. Any demand or notice not mailed will be effective 

upon the earlier of (i) actual receipt by the addressee, and (ii) the time the receipt of the email is confirmed by a response 

or return receipt. 

Addresses for Notices to Borrower: 

Attn: Rachael Johnson, Investment Officer  

Tulsa County Treasurer 

500 S. Denver Ave., 3rd Floor 

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103-3840 

Email: rjohnson@tulsacounty.org 

Addresses for Notices to Bank: 

Attn: Elizabeth Chase  

BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma  

One Williams Center, 8NW 

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172 

Email: EChase@bokf.com 

8.2 No Waiver. No delay on the part of the Bank in the exercise of any right or remedy waives that right or remedy. 

No single or partial exercise by the Bank of any right or remedy precludes any other future exercise of it or the 

exercise of any other right or remedy. The making of an Advance during the existence of any Event of Default 

or subsequent to an Event of Default or when all conditions precedent have not been met shall not constitute a 

waiver of the condition precedent or Event of Default. No waiver or indulgence by the Bank of any Event of 

Default is effective unless it is in writing and signed by the Bank, nor shall a waiver on one occasion bar or 

waive that right on any future occasion. 

8.3 Integration. This Agreement and the other Related Documents embody the entire agreement and understanding 

between the Borrower and the Bank and supersede all prior agreements and understandings relating to their 

subject matter. If any one or more of the obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement is invalid, illegal or 

unenforceable in any jurisdiction, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining obligations of the 

Borrower shall not in any way be affected or impaired, and the invalidity, illegality or unenforceability in one 

jurisdiction shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of the obligations of the Borrower under this 

Agreement and the other Related Documents in any other jurisdiction. 

8.4 Force Majeure. In the event either party is unable to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement or to 

enjoy any of its benefits because of natural disaster or decrees of governmental bodies not the fault of the 

affected party (hereinafter referred to as a "Force Majeure Event"), the party who has been so affected shall 

promptly give notice to the other party and shall do everything possible to resume performance. Upon receipt of 

such notice, all obligations under this Agreement shall be immediately suspended If the period of 

nonperformance exceeds thirty (30) days from the receipt of notice of the Force Majeure Event, the party whose 

ability to perform has not been so affected may, by giving written notice, terminate this Agreement. 

8.5 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Laws 

of the State of Oklahoma (without giving effect to its Laws of conflicts). The Borrower agrees that any legal 

action or proceeding with respect to any of its obligations under this Agreement may be brought by the Bank in 

mailto:rjohnson@tulsacounty.org
mailto:EChase@bokf.com


 

12 

any state or federal court located in the State of Oklahoma, as the Bank in its sole discretion may elect unless the 

Laws of the State of Oklahoma provide otherwise with respect to collecting payment on any Warrants.  

8.6 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THE BORROWER AND THE BANK HEREBY EACH IRREVOCABLY 

WAIVE ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL ACTION OR PROCEEDING 

ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS 

CONTEMPLATED HEREBY AND THEREBY AND EACH AGREES THAT ANY SUCH ACTION OR 

PROCEEDING SHALL BE TRIED BEFORE A COURT AND NOT BEFORE A JURY. THE 

BORROWER AND THE BANK EACH ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS WAIVER IS A MATERIAL 

INDUCEMENT TO ENTER INTO A BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP, THAT EACH HAS RELIED ON 

THE WAIVER IN ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS, 

AND THAT EACH WILL CONTINUE TO RELY ON THIS WAIVER IN THEIR RELATED FUTURE 

DEALINGS. THE BORROWER AND THE BANK EACH WARRANT AND REPRESENT THAT IT 

HAS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY OF REVIEWING THIS JURY WAIVER WITH ITS LEGAL 

COUNSEL, AND THAT EACH KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ITS JURY TRIAL 

RIGHTS. 

8.7 Survival of Representations and Warranties. The Borrower understands and agrees that the Bank is relying 

on all representations, warranties and covenants made by the Borrower in this Agreement or in any certificate or 

other instrument delivered by the Borrower to the Bank under this Agreement or in any of the other Related 

Documents. The Borrower further agrees that regardless of any investigation made by the Bank, all such 

representations, warranties and covenants will survive the making of the Credit Facility and delivery to the Bank 

of this Agreement, shall be continuing in nature, and shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the 

Warrants and all other Liabilities shall be paid in full. 

8.8 Non-Liability of the Bank. The relationship between the Borrower on one hand and the Bank on the other hand 

shall be solely that of borrower and lender. The Bank shall have no fiduciary responsibilities to the Borrower. 

The Bank undertakes no responsibility to the Borrower to review or inform the Borrower of any matter in 

connection with any phase of the Borrower's business or operations. 

8.9 No Third Party Beneficiaries. The obligations of the Bank under this Agreement are for the benefit of the 

Borrower only and no other Person shall have any rights hereunder or be a third party beneficiary. 

8.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which, when so executed, 

shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts, taken together, shall constitute one and the same 

agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page of this Agreement or any other Related 

Document by telecopy or electronic communication shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed 

counterpart hereof or thereof. 

8.11 Advice of Counsel. The Borrower acknowledges that it has been advised by counsel, or had the opportunity to 

be advised by counsel, in the negotiation, execution and delivery of this Agreement and any other Related 

Documents. 

8.12 Reinstatement. The Borrower agrees that to the extent any payment or transfer is received by the Bank in 

connection with the Liabilities, and all or any part of the payment or transfer is subsequently invalidated, 

declared to be fraudulent or preferential, set aside or required to be repaid or transferred by the Bank or paid or 

transferred over to a trustee, receiver or any other entity, whether under any proceeding or otherwise (any of 

those payments or transfers is hereinafter referred to as a "Preferential Payment"), then this Agreement shall 

continue to be effective or shall be reinstated, as the case may be, even if all those Liabilities have been paid in 

full and whether or not the Bank is in possession of any Warrant and whether any Warrant has been marked, 

paid, released or cancelled, or returned to the Borrower and, to the extent of the payment, repayment or other 

transfer by the Bank, the Liabilities or part intended to be satisfied by the Preferential Payment shall be revived 

and continued in full force and effect as if the Preferential Payment had not been made. The obligations of the 

Borrower under this section shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

8.13 Assignments. The Borrower agrees that the Bank may provide any information or knowledge the Bank may 

have about the Borrower or about any matter relating to this Agreement or the other Related Documents to 

BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma, or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates or their successors, or to any one or 

more purchasers or potential purchasers of Warrants or the other Liabilities. The Borrower agrees that the Bank 



 

13 

may at any time sell, assign or transfer with or without discount one or more interests or participations in all or 

any part of its Warrants to one or more purchasers whether or not related to the Bank other than to Persons 

prohibited by Title 62 of the Oklahoma Statutes for purchasing such Warrants. 

8.14 Waivers. The Bank may waive or delay enforcing any of its rights without losing them. Any waiver affects only 

the specific terms and time period stated in the waiver. No modification or waiver of any provision of this 

Agreement is effective unless it is in writing and signed by the Person against whom it is being enforced. 

9. USA PATRIOT ACT NOTIFICATION. The following notification is provided to the Borrower pursuant to Section 

326 of the USA Patriot Act of 2001, 31 U.S.C. Section 5318: 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR OPENING A NEW ACCOUNT. To help the 

government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities. Federal Law requires all financial institutions 

to obtain, verify, and record information that identifies each Person that opens an account, including any deposit account, 

treasury management account, loan, other extension of credit, or other financial services product. What this means for the 

Borrower: When the Borrower opens an account, if it is an individual the Bank will ask for its name, taxpayer 

identification number, residential address, date of birth, and other information that will allow the Bank to identify it, and, 

if it is not an individual the Bank will ask for its name, taxpayer identification number, business address, and other 

information that will allow the Bank to identify it. The Bank may also ask, if the Borrower is an individual, to see its 

driver's license or other identifying documents, and if it is not an individual, to see its Organizational Documents or other 

identifying documents. 

 

 Borrower:  TULSA COUNTY 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

By:         

 

      

County Clerk                               

Name: Karen Keith 

Title: Chairman 

 Date Signed:        

(Seal)  

  

 

 Bank:  BOKF, NA dba BANK OF OKLAHOMA 

 

 

By:         

Name: Elizabeth Chase 

Title: Vice President 

  

 Date Signed:        

 

 



 

 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE  
 

Board of County Commissioners for Tulsa County on behalf of Tulsa County, 

a political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma 

Dated: June 30, 2019 

This Secretary's Certificate (this "Certificate") is delivered and executed by the undersigned in 

connection with that certain Warrant Credit and Reimbursement Agreement dated as of June 30, 

2019 (the "Warrant Credit Agreement"), by and between BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma (the 

"Bank") and the Board of County Commissioners for Tulsa County on behalf of Tulsa County, a 

political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma (the "Borrower"), which governs a credit facility in 

the principal sum not to exceed $10,000,000 in total aggregate advances outstanding at any one time. 

In rendering this Certificate, the undersigned hereby certifies that: 

1. The undersigned has reviewed the full and complete copies of the governing instruments of the 

Borrower and such other instruments, documents and certificates deemed necessary or 

appropriate to rendering this Certificate. 

2. Each of the named persons listed below in this Certificate is duly appointed as an acting officer 

of the Borrower, and has occupied the office set forth opposite his/her respective name and that 

the signature appearing opposite his/her respective name on this Certificate is the true and 

correct signature of that person. 

3. Each of the named persons listed below in this Certificate is authorized to execute any 

amendments or modifications in connection to the Warrant Credit Agreement. 

4. Each of the named persons listed below in this Certificate is authorized to execute any other 

closing documents, which may include the Borrower Administrative Questionnaire and a Loan 

Closing Disbursement Agreement, other agreements and instruments executed in connection 

therewith, as of the date hereof, and any other instructions related to the Warrant Credit 

Agreement. 

 

Printed Name Office Signature 

Karen Keith  Tulsa County BOCC Chairman 
 

 

Ron Peters Tulsa County Commissioner 
 

 

Stan Sallee Tulsa County Commissioner 
 

 

J. Dennis Semler Tulsa County Treasurer 
 

 

Michael Willis Tulsa County Clerk 
 

 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am the duly elected and qualified Secretary of the Borrower 

authorized to provide this certification. 

 

By:        

Name: Michael Willis 

Title: Secretary 



June 12, 2019 

Elizabeth Chase 

STEPHEN A.· KUNZWEILER 
TULSA COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

TULSA COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

500 S. DENVER AVE., SUITE 900 

TULSA, OKLAHOMA 74103-3832 

(918) 596-4805 

FAX: (918) 596-4830 

Vice President, Corporate Banking 
BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma 
One Williams Center, 8NW 
Tulsa, OK 74172 

Re: Warrant Credit and Reimbursement Agreement with Tulsa County 

Dear Ms. Chase, 

This letter is being delivered to you pursuant to Section 3.2(C) of that certain Warrant Credit and 
Reimbursement Agreement dated as of June 30, 2019 (the "Agreement"), by and between BOKF, 
NA dba Bank of Oklahoma and the Board of County Commissioners for Tulsa County on behalf 
of Tulsa County, a political subdivision of the State of Oklahoma ("Tulsa County"). 

We are of the opinion that: 

1. Tulsa County is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of 
Oklahoma, and has full power and authority to execute, deliver and perform the Agreement 
and the other Related Documents referenced therein. 

2. The Agreement and the other Related Documents have been duly authorized, executed and 
delivered, and are the legal, valid and binding obligations of Tulsa County, enforceable in 
accordance with their terms, and no further corporate action is required in connection 
therewith. 

3. The execution and delivery of th_e Agreement and the other Related Documents along with 
the performance. of the provisions therein do not and will not violate, contravene or 
constitute a default under any statutes relating to the formation and operations of Tulsa 
County, or any agreement, indenture or other q.ocument or instrument to which Tulsa 
County is a party or by the terms by which Tulsa County or any of its property is bound or 
affected. 

This letter may not be relied upon for any other purpose or by any other party without our written 
consent. 



If you have any questions or comments in regard to this matter or any other matters please do not 
hesitate to call me at (918) 596-4900. 

Yours very truly, 

n etOX1 l\\ -4ltl~ :$-
Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney 
Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 
500 S. Denver Ave., Ste. 800 
Tulsa, OK 74103 
(918) 596-4900 I nfields@tulsacounty.org 

2 



 

Nolan M. Fields IV 
Assistant District Attorney | Civil Division 

Tulsa County District Attorney's Office 

500 South Denver Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 

(918) 596 - 4900 | nfields@tulsacounty.org 

 

 

 

 

TO:     Board of County Commissioners 

Karen Keith, Chairman 

Stan Sallee 

Ron Peters 

 

DATE:    June 13, 2019  

 

REFERENCE:   Agreement Renewal with Financial Equipment Co. for FY 19-20 

 

Please place this item on the agenda for the next meeting of the Board of County 

Commissioners.  It will not be necessary to review this matter in executive session.  Vendor has 

signed this document and it is presented for this Board’s review and potential action.  Please let 

me know if you have any questions. 

 

 

Respectfully,     

 

Nolan M. Fields IV    

 Assistant District Attorney 

 

CC: 

Summer McKerrell, Deputy Treasurer 

 



F 
=C fINANClAL

EQYIPMENT 
CONi,ANY 

BIii To: 
Tulsa County Treasurer 
SOOS Denver 
Tulsa, OK 74103 
United States 

Terms I Due Date IPO Number I Reference 

Financial Equipment Company 
PO Box2002 
Jenks, OK 74037 
(800) 669-9880

Date IInvotce 
07/01/2019 IM288333 
Account 
00TUC12 

ShloTo 
Tulsa County Treasurer 
500 S. Denver Suite 323 
Tulsa, OK 74103 
United States 

I 
Due Upon Receipt I 0110112019 I !Annual Billfna for 2019-2020 I 
AGREEMENT RENEWAL 7 /1 /2019-6/30/2020 

SERVICES TO BE RENDERED (TYPE 1 ): Service contract covering parts and labor for maintenance service rendered (see 
list of terms and conditions on reverse side of this contract/Invoice) during normal business hours. 

Manaaed Services Details I ouantltvl Prlcel Amount 
Agreement Tulsa County Treasurer MSA 

DESTROYIT 3102 SHREDDER 1.00 $473.00 $473.00 
Serial Number(s): 2679160 

MA DESTROYIT 2604CC SHREDDER 1.00 $330.00 $330.00 
Serial Number(s): 4042429 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION· 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 900864 

MAX-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION - 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901170 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION - 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901171 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION - 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901172 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION- 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901173 

MA X -1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION· 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901174 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION- 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901175 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION - 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901176 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION - 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 



Serial Number(s): 901177 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION - 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901178 

MA X-1000 CURRENCY DISCRIMINATOR W/CF DETECTION. 2 P 1.00 $379.00 $379.00 
Serial Number(s): 901179 

MA RAPIDPRINT AR-E TIME STAMP 1.00 $172.00 $172.00 
Serial Number(s): 392S92 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 $120.00 $120.00 
Serial Number(s): 01421 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 $120.00 $120.00 
Serial Number(s): 01425 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 
Serial Number(s): 01426 

$120.00 $120.00 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 $120.00 $120.00 
Serial Number(s): 01427 

Tellercounts Software 1,00 $120.00 $120.00 
Serial Number(s): 01428 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 $120.00 $120.00 
Serial Number(s): 01429 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 
Serial Number(s): 01430 

$120.00 $120.00 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 $120.00 $120.00 
Serial Number(s): 01431 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 $120.00 $120.00 
Serial Number(s): 01432 

Tellercounts Software 
Serial Number(s): 01433 

1.00 $120.00 $120.00 

Tellercounts Software 1.00 $120.00 $120.00 
Serial Number(s): 01434 

MA MAVERICK MX-3 ENCODER 1.00 $195.00 $195.00 
Serial Number(s): MX306830 

Total Managed Services 
Details: 

$6,659.00 

Invoice Subtotal: $6 659.00 

Make checks payable to Financial Equipment Company Sales Tax: $0.00 

Invoice Total: $6,659.00 



Pavments: $0.00 

Credits: $0.00 

Balance Due: $6 659.00 



2019-2020 

TERMS & CONDITIONS 

TYPE 1 (PARTS & LABOR) 

1. Th!s Aareement Is p.iyable in advance, and servlces mav be withheld If payment Is not received by the renewal date.
2. This Aareement Includes au parts and labor charges (except specified eKcluslons) for service. This does not Include In-shop overh;iuls and/or

reconditioning of equipment.
3. In the event an equipment overhaul Is Imperative, .i cost estimate will be submitted for customer approval.
4. This Agreement does not Include consumable parts, i.e. ribbons, Ink cartrld9es, drum and die, batteries, belts, rubber rollers, disks, pads. dlsplav

overlay, plastic Inspection travs, etc , or parts which have become obsolete.
5. Warranty Disclaimer: Other than the obllgatlons set forth herein, FINANCIAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY, hereinafter referred to as "FEC", dlsdalms

all warranties, express or Implied, Including any Implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for use, or fitness for a particular purpose. FEC
shall not be responsible for anv direct, Indirect, consequentlal, Of incidental damages, Including. but not limited to damages ilflslna out of the use
of performance or the loss of use of the equipment Nor shall FEC be liable In any event for more than the FEC's invoice price of maintenance
agreement. service, or supplies.

6. This aareement covers the repair of tassettes, If a cassette is damaged beyond repair the customer will be charsed for a new cassette.
7. This Aareement Includes periodic service to clean, lnspec:1, replace parts deemed necessarv by FEC, adjust, lubricate, and test machines. The

timing and frequency of these preventative maintenance ("PM") calls wlll be at the discretion of FEC.
8. This Aareement does not cover damages or defects caused by customer negligence, misuse, accidents, alterations, viruses, or other causes

bevond the control of FEC.
9. Purchaser agrees that, upon payment, this dotument becomes a blndln1 contract subject only to the approval and acceptance of FEC. The terms

and conditions printed In this form are Incorporated and thereby milde a part hereof. Such terms and conditions, written Of oral, and the rlahts
of the parties shall be governed exclusively bv such terms .and conditions.

10. Olsclalmer: FEC expressly disclaims any duty as an Insurer of the Equipment herein and Customer shall pay for all costs of repillr and parts or 
replacement of the equipment made necessary by an casualty, theft, or the negHgent .act of Customer or Customer's asents, speclflcatty Including
abuse or misuse of the equipment, and service conducted by personnel other than those of FEC.

11. Assignment: This Acreement Is not asslgnab:e or transferable by the customer and requests for refunds will not be honored, unless consented to
In wrltln1 by FEC. However, If the equipment covered herein Is traded In on new equ pment purchased from FEC, any unused portion of the
yearly contract may be prorated and applied toward th• maintenance of the new equipment.

12. This Acreement does not Include: DeUvery or Installation charges of equipment, freight or shlppln11 charges, up1rades for new currency,
supplies, optional acceuories, In-shop reconditioning per FEC speclncallons, major modifications to the equipment, program changes, or charges
for equipment moved from one location to another.

13. CUSTOMER'S RESPONSIBILITIES:
A. Promptly notify FEC or any problem or malfunction with the equipment and cease usage until correction of same.
8. Allow FEC access within thirty minutes to clean, Inspect, or repair the equipment at any time during reasonable working hours, and provide

necessarv coin and/or currency to operate the machine. If customer places service call and, upon arrival, the FEC technician is not allowed
to access the equipment, the customer may be charged for the return trip.

C. To provide security for any coin, currenc;y or other valuable property, which will be e•posed during the service tall.
0. To correct operational problems that normally would not n:quire a skilled technician. This Includes, but ls not limited to such routine

problems as chetklng to see that machine Is plu1&ed In, or that a switch Is In the proper position, or that all covers are closed properly.
Repeated ca 11s for such nuisance problems will result In a charge for the servite call. Repairs for damage caused by falling to operate the
machine properly are chargeable.

E. Provide suitable elec:1rlcal service and maintain proper environmental requirements as per FEC specifications.
14. Complete Acreement: Customer speciflCillly agrees that NO OTHER representations, constitutions or warranties other than those set spKlfically

In writing herein have been made or have been relied on In the make of this agreement.

X 
Board of Countv Commissioners at Tulsa C ... 
on Behalf of the Tulsa County Treasurer 

Updated: 1/27/2014 

JRW. lnc./Financial EQuipment Company 



2019-2020 

TERMS & CONDITIONS 

TYPE 2 (LABOR ONL V) 

1. This Agreement Is payable In advance, and services may be withheld If payment ls not received by the renewal date.

2. This Agreement Includes all labor charges (except specified exclusions) for service. This does not Include in-shop overhauls

and/or reconditioning of equipment.

3. Warranty Disclaimer: Other than the obligations set forth herein, FINANCIAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY, hereinafter referred to as

"FEC", disclaims all warranties, express or implied, Including any Implied warranties of merchantablllty, fitness for use, or fitness

for a particular purpose. FEC shall not be responsible for any direct, Indirect, consequential, or Incidental damages, including,

but not limited to damages arising out of the use of performance or the loss of use of the equipment. Nor shall FEC be liable In

any event for more than the FEC's invoice price of maintenance agreement, service, or supplies.

4. This Agreement Includes periodic service to clean, Inspect, adjust lubricate, and test machines. The timing and frequency of

these preventative maintenance ("PM") calls will be at the discretion of FEC.

5. This Agreement does not cover damages or defects caused by customer negligence, misuse, accidents, alterations, viruses, or

other causes beyond the control of FEC.

6. Purchaser agrees that, upon payment, this document becomes a binding contract subject only to the approval and acceptance of

FEC. The terms and conditions printed In this form are Incorporated and thereby made a part hereof. Such terms and 

conditions, written or oral, and the rJahts of the parties shall be governed exclusively by such terms and conditions.

7. Dlsclalmer: FEC expressly disclaims any duty as an Insurer of the Equipment herein and Customer shall pay for all costs of repair

and parts or replacement of the equipment made necessary by an casualty, theft, or the negligent act of Customer or Customer's

asents, speclfically lncludlns abuse or misuse of the equipment, and service conducted by personnel other than those of FEC.

8. Assignment: This Agreement Is not assignable or transferable by the customer and requests for refunds will not be honored,

unless consented to in writing by FEC. However, if the equipment covered herein Is traded In on new equipment purchased from

FEC, any unused portion of the yearly contract may be proratei;t and applied toward the maintenance of the new equipment.

9. This Agreement does not intlude: Delivery or Installation charges of equipment, freight or shipping charges, upgrades for new

currency, parts, supplies, optional accessories, In-shop reconditioning per FEC specifications, major modifications to the

equipment, program changes, or charges for equipment moved from one location to another.

10. CUSTOMER'S RESPONSIBILITIES:

A. Promptly notify FEC of any problem or malfunction with the equipment and cease usage until correction of same.

B. Allow FEC access within thirty minutes to clean, Inspect, or repair the equipment at any time during reasonable working

hours, and provide necessary coin and/or currency to operate the machine. If customer places service call and, upon

arrival, the FEC technician Is not allowed to access the equipment, the customer may be charged for the return trip.

C. To provide security for any coin, currency or other valuable property, which wlll be exposed during the service call.

D. To correct operational problems that normally would not require a skilled technician. This Includes, but Is not limited to

such routine problems as checking to see that machine is plugged in, or that a switch Is In the proper position, or that all

covers are closed properly. Repeated calls for such nuisance problems wlll result In a charge for the service call. Repairs for

damage caused by falllng to operate the machine properly are chargeable.

E. Provide suitable electrical service and maintain proper environmental requirements as per FEC specifications.

11. Complete Agreement: Customer speclflcally agrees that NO OTHER representations, constitutions or warranties other than
those set speciflcally In writing herein have been made or have been relied on in the make of this agreement.

Signatures below denote your agreement with the above stated terms. 

X 
Board of Countv Commissioners at Tulsa C ... 

on Behalf of the Tulsa Countv Treasurer 

Updated: 1/27/2014' 

nc./Financial Eauioment Comoanv 



CONTRACT / AGREEMENT RENEWAL

Department: ___________________________________

Vendor: _______________________________________

Describe Product / Service provided by this contract: ____________________________

 ______________________________________________________________________

Original CMF # _________________________ Dated: ________________

Current CMF # __________________________  Dated: ________________

The Board of County Commissioners, on behalf of the department above, by this renewal 
adopts and ratifies all the provisions and terms in the original or the most recent renewal of 
the contract/agreement, without amendments or addendums, as if the terms and provisions 
were set out in full herein.

The terms of this contract/agreement shall be in full force and effect for the fiscal year 

* ______ - ______ and shall be effective upon full execution of this contract/agreement

renewal. *Note: Fiscal Year is July 1-June 30

 Vendor: ______________________

 Printed Name: _________________  Date: ___________________

Approved by the Board of County Commissioners this _________ day of ______ , 20 _____ .

ATTEST:
  
___________________________________ ________________________________________
Michael Willis Chairman, Board of County Commissioners
Tulsa County Clerk Tulsa County

NOTE: Original to County Clerk for placement on Board of County Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda
Form 2962 (4-19)







CONTRACT I AGREEMENT RENEWAL 

EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TUSLA COUNTY Department: _______________ _ 

Vendor: MILLIMAN 

. . . . ACTUARIAL CONSUL TING SERVICES 
Describe Product I Service provided by this contract: ____________ _ 

Original CMF # _2_3_5_2_0_6 _____ _ Dated: 

Current CMF # 244973 Dated: ------------

06/29/2015 

06/11/2018 
-------

The Board of County Commissioners, on behalf of the department above, by this renewal 

adopts and ratifies all the provisions and terms in the original or the most recent renewal of 

the contract/agreement, without amendments or addendums, as ifthe terms and provisions 

were set out in full herein. 

The terms of this contract/agreement shall be in full force and effect for the fiscal year 

* 2019 - 2020 and shall be effective upon full execution of this contract/agreement 

renewal. *Note: Fiscal Year is July 1-June 30 

Vendor: ~ !J f ;.,., 
I 

Printed Name: /fl/ t'c.hhU, Z?-i.v/ L~~.r 

Approved by the Board of County Commissioners this day of ' 20 --

ATTEST: 

Michael Willis Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 
Tulsa County Clerk Tulsa County 

NOTE: Original to County Clerk for placement on Board of County Commissioners ' Meeting Agenda 
Form 2962 (4-19) 



.-. 
\\fl/ 

ruu~ rnunrv 
IJil\ 

CONTRACT I AGREEMENT RENEWAL 

'• ' 

Department: Tulsa County Hwy District 3 

vendor: lmageNet Consulting 

Describe Product I Service provided by this contract: Copier Lease FFAA2 & M2HOP 

Konica Minolta C258 & 3320 on lease through 7/2021 

Original CMF # 241267 - - --- - - - -
Current CMF # 244269 ----------

Dated: 5/10/17 

Dated: 4/04/18 

The Board of County Commissioners, on behalf of the department above, by this renewal 

adopts and ratifies all the provisions and tenns in the original or the most recent renewal of 

the contract/agreement, without amendments or addendums, as if the terms and provisions 

were set out in full herein. 

The terms of this contract/agreement shall be in full force and effect for the fiscal year 

* 2019 - 2020 . and shall be effective upon full execution of this contract/agreement 

renewal. *Note: Fiscal Year is July 1-June 30 

Vendor: ~""'~1~\.Jd eov\Su\-1; v; 
Printed Name: '°f>e~ ~~~ -i""-o. l l 

Approved by the Board of County Commissioners this 

ATTEST: 

- -

Date: C - l / - /q 

day of .20 __ . 

Michael Willis Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 
Tulsa County Clerk Tulsa County 

NOTE: Original to County Clerk for placement on Board of County Commissioners• Meeting Agenda 













TULSA COUNTY 
INVENTORY RESOLUTION 

ENCLOSURE 3b 
TCP 002 Capital Inventory 

(Capital Asset Policies & Procedures) 
This enclosure consists of 1 page. 

Original to the County Clerk's Office for placement on the Board of County Commissioners · agenda for 

June 17~~~i: .. i;,goate . ~_·_a_~_!qp,1/1 .. ,rr' 
WHEREAS, the following inventory has been (please mark one): l 1/rlf, f 

-------- Ii . 
0 
0 
0 

LOST 

SOLD 

STOLEN 

0 
0 
~ 

LEASE-PURCHASE 

RENTAL 

JUNKED 

0 
0 
0 

TRANSFERRED 

CONFISCATED 

From : (DEPARTMENT/ LOCATION) Tulsa County Fiscal Office -~~~------------'--''--'----------"'-..;._-----------------
To : (DEPARTMENT/ LOCATION) 

Apache Warehouse 
------------------------------

,. Item Name/Description: Heimann System Security X-Ray Scanners 

A t N 5358; 5359; 5360. 
sse o.: ------------------------------------

Tag No.: 5358; 5359; 5360. SerialNo.: 22417; 23677; 23687. 

Comments: These scanners are currently located at the 

BE IT RESOLVED this change shall be made in the records filed with the Tulsa County Clerk, 

and in the computerized inventory program for capital assets . 

Date on Director 

Date Receiving Elected Official or Division Director 

Date Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

Form 1169-Computer Simulation (Re,6-09) Front 

' -•~--

TCP 002 Capital Inventory (Capital Asset Policy & Procedures) Page 31 of 55 



ASSET DESCRIPTION 

0005358 HEIMANN SYSTEM SECURITY X-RAY SCANNER 

0005359 HEIMANN SYSTEM SECURITY X-RAY SCANNER 

0005360 HEIMANN SYSTEM SECURITY X-RAY SCANNER 

SERIAL/PARCEL 

22417 

23677 

23687 

DATE ACQ ACQ COST 

03/19/02 

05/14/02 

05/14/02 

31,765.00 

31,765.00 

31,765.00 







TULSA COUNTY 
INVENTORY RESOLUTION 

Original to the County Clerk's Office for placement on the Board of County Commissioners meeting agenda for 

BOCC Meeting Date 

WHEREAS, the following inventory has been (please mark one): 

D LOST 

0 SOLD 

0 STOLEN 

0 LEASE-PURCHASE 

0 RENTAL 

[!I JUNKED 

0 TRANSFERRED 

0 CONFISCATED 

0 RETIRED 

From: (DEPARTMENT/LOCATION) TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF - DLMCJ 

To: (DEPARTMENT / LOCATION) --------------------------
Item Name/Description: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Asset No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 
-

Tag No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT Serial No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Comments: 

BE IT RESOLVED this change shall be made in the records filed- with the Tulsa County Clerk, · 

and in the computerized inventory program for capital assets . 

Date Receiving Elected Official or Division Director 

Date Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

Form 1169 - Computer Simulation (Rev.6-09) Front 



ASSET RESOLVED AS: 
JUNKED

ASSET DESCRIPTION SERIAL/PARCEL DATE ACQ ACQ COST

0006972 CHAIR RECLINER,ROCKER 1020577 11/03/05 737.73

0006981 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020586 10/03/07 739.00

0006982 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020587 10/03/07 739.00

0006983 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020588 10/03/07 739.00

0006984 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020589 10/03/07 739.00

0006985 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020590 10/03/07 739.00

0006986 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020591 10/03/07 739.00

0006987 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020592 10/03/07 739.00

0006988 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020593 10/03/07 739.00

0006989 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020594 10/03/07 739.00

0006990 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020595 10/03/07 739.00

0006991 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020596 10/03/07 739.00

0006992 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020597 10/03/07 739.00

0006993 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020598 10/03/07 739.00

0006994 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020599 10/03/07 739.00

0006995 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020600 10/03/07 739.00

0006996 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020601 10/03/07 739.00

0006997 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020602 10/03/07 739.00

0006998 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020603 10/03/07 739.00

0006999 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020604 10/03/07 739.00

0007000 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020605 10/03/07 739.00

0007001 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020606 10/03/07 739.00

0007002 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020607 10/03/07 739.00

0007003 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020608 10/03/07 739.00

0007004 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020609 10/03/07 739.00

0007005 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020610 10/03/07 739.00

0007006 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020611 10/03/07 739.00

0007007 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020612 10/03/07 739.00

0007008 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020613 10/03/07 739.00

0007009 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020614 10/03/07 739.00

0007010 STOOL NO ARMS DOMORE NAVY 1020615 10/03/07 739.00



0007016 HON LATERAL FILE 1040252 06/17/08 726.90

0007055 HON DBL PEDESTAL DESK 72X36 1050208 06/16/08 643.20

0007056 DESK 66X30 AND LEFT HAND RETURN 1050209 07/16/08 869.73

0007061 DESK 66X30 WITH RIGHT RETURN 1050214 09/29/08 869.73

0007076 VISUAL LAMINATE CABINET-GRAY BULLETIN BO 50001120001 06/27/90 569.50

0007254 VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM VPOMINPRO 09/28/07 45,655.00

0007605 BLACK NO-TOUCH 17"" MONITOR W/ADJ. STAND DSFAP17BLK 08/20/07 917.00

0007762 SEGWAY 2 WHEEL HUMAN TRANSPORT 042281010525 03/02/06 3,989.00

0007849 POWER WASHER SPRAYER 10207308 07/28/05 2,372.09

0007965 SONY KDL-26L5000-26""LCD TELEVISION 52006000005 03/19/09 599.00

0011404 STORAGE WORKS ENCLOSURE MODEL 4354R RACK 02/07/01 2,882.00

0011492 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5262538K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011494 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5322648K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011496 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5262400K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011497 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5262440K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011498 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5388646K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011499 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5322649K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011500 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5262435K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011502 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5322647K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011503 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5388650K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011504 19 INCH LCD ACCUTOUCH MONITOR 925LTR5422773K 10/28/05 1,025.96

0011710 DURAMARK BED W/SIDEBARS 58855010001 01/11/02 625.00

0011711 DURAMARK BED W/SIDEBARS 58855010002 01/11/02 625.00

0011712 6 POINT LEATHER LOCKABLE RESTRAINT 58855140001 01/11/02 585.00

0011713 6 POINT LEATHER LOCKABLE RESTRAINT 58855140002 01/11/02 585.00

0011625 ELO 19 INCH TOUCHSCREEN LCD 925LTR6453776K 07/24/07 863.96

0011631 ELO 19 INCH TOUCHSCREEN LCD 925LTR6454023K 07/24/07 863.96

10971 SONY KDL-37L5000, 37"" LCD, TV BB109 N/A 12/08/09 699.99

10831 10' X 20' FREE STANDING SHELTER 08/06/09 1,558.20

11765 VISTAPLEX DIGITAL RECORDING SERVER, V3R9A.21074 02/28/11 4,278.00

12291 CO #2 STAINLESS STEEL CHASERS 03/15/11 8,321.98

12377 GEMINI 06/30/11 5,840.93

12695 HILTI 3483121 DD150-U HAND CORING T DD150-U 05/03/12 1,810.01

12999 MY PRO AMBULANCE COT 120440738 05/08/12 4,351.51



13107 VACUUM PUMP VP-U 120V 20918656 04/23/12 546.71

13120 ELO TOUCHSYSTEMS 1928 L 19 IN G11C028399 12/22/11 697.49

13131 ERGOCRAFT HD STOOL 10/13/11 549.00

13132 ERGOCRAFT HD STOOL 10/13/11 549.00

13133 ERGOCRAFT HD STOOL 10/13/11 549.00

13445 OSP BIG MAN CHAIR, BLACK MESH N/A 07/13/12 533.00

13446 OSP BIG MAN CHAIR, BLACK MESH N/A 07/13/12 533.00

13448 OSP BIG MAN CHAIR, BLACK MESH N/A 08/10/12 533.00

13521 HEAVY WHEELCHAIR, #4FE7 N/A 08/22/12 599.85

13522 HEAVY WHEELCHAIR, #4FE7 N/A 08/22/12 599.85

13523 DS5 AUTOMATIC DOOR OPENER, LEFT HAN N/A 10/12/12 1,200.00

13698 ELKAY WCL19230SDC WHEELCHAIRPACKAGE N/A 10/01/12 1,124.13

13699 ELKAY WCL19230SDC WHEELCHAIRPACKAGE N/A 10/01/12 1,124.13

13700 ELKAY WCL19230SDC WHEELCHAIRPACKAGE N/A 10/01/12 1,124.13

13701 ELKAY WCL19230SDC WHEELCHAIRPACKAGE N/A 10/01/12 1,124.13

13702 ELKAY WCL19230SDC WHEELCHAIRPACKAGE N/A 10/01/12 1,124.13

13703 ELKAY WCL19230SDC WHEELCHAIRPACKAGE N/A 10/01/12 1,124.13

14025 ECO SENSOR, A-21ZX HAND HELD DIGITA 57353 10/22/12 799.00

14028 INSINGER, 1518-90, FOOD WASTE COLLE NONE ON PART 04/11/13 1,145.92

14029 INSINGER, 1518-90, FOOD WASTE COLLE NONE ON PART 04/11/13 1,145.92

14315 400 ADVANTAGE STAND 07/09/12 600.00

14321 INSINGER, 1518-90, FOOD WASTE COLLE NONE ON PART 09/13/12 888.50

14479 SAFETY FENCING FOR JAIL KITCHEN NONE ON ASSET 12/17/12 3,378.00

14529 MOBILE BIN CART #CT122S18-PB 09/04/12 664.65

14938 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 12/13/12 533.91

14944 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 01/16/13 533.91

14946 PYTHON DX 111A BODY ARMOR 11/09/12 519.08

14955 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 12/13/12 533.91

14956 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 12/13/12 533.91

14972 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 12/18/12 533.91

15039 SPEED QUEEN WASHER AWN412 1302029409 04/08/13 629.00

15553 DSS-QC64XEON-QGWS, 2X QUADCORE XEON 12/13/12 2,495.00

15596 ALE CHAIR, EXECUTIVE, SWIVEL OXB 12/13/12 529.99

15607 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 12/13/12 533.91



15608 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 12/13/12 533.91

15609 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 12/13/12 533.91

15610 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 12/13/12 533.91

15611 BIG MAN BLACK MESH CHAIR 01/16/13 533.91

15695 RELIABLE AIR COMPRESSOR MODEL 3LBA- 02/04/13 900.00

16659 INSINGER, 1518-90, FOOD WASTE COLLE 05/09/14 667.11

16660 INSINGER, 1518-90, FOOD WASTE COLLE 05/09/14 667.11

16289 OSP BIG MAN CHAIR, BLACK MESH 10/31/13 564.99

16290 OSP BIG MAN CHAIR, BLACK MESH 10/31/13 564.99

RETIRED
0007238 CANON IMAGERUNNER 50201 JCM01423A 10/20/07 4,700.00

0007540 DELL LAPTOP 110L 7KR4J91 02/23/06 1,421.42

0007541 DELL LAPTOP 110L DKR4J91 02/23/06 1,421.42

0007560 DELL LAPTOP COMPUTER D520 G6HN5B1 06/22/06 1,261.44

0007561 DELL LAPTOP COMPUTER D520 47HN5B1 06/22/06 1,261.44

0007562 DELL LAPTOP COMPUTER D520 77HN5B1 06/22/06 1,261.44

0007564 DELL LAPTOP COMPUTER D520 38HN5B1 06/22/06 1,261.44

0007566 DELL LAPTOP COMPUTER D520 C8HN5B1 06/22/06 1,261.44

0007604 WORKSTATION W/WINDOWS XP DDN9155 08/20/07 4,050.00

0007628 DELL LAPTOP LATUTUDE D830 3TLSJH1 10/10/08 1,250.34

0007629 DELL LAPTOP LATUTUDE D830 9TLSJH1 10/10/08 1,250.34

0007630 DELL LAPTOP LATUTUDE D830 6TLSJH1 10/10/08 1,250.34

0011378 LEXMARK LASER PRINTER 792XYDC 02/26/09 1,307.99

0011389 DELL OPTIPLEX J8QDLG1 03/11/09 1,061.69

0011391 DELL OPTIPLEX J8R6JG1 03/11/09 1,061.69

0011402 PROLIANT PLDL580RPIII700X-2M D105DYV1K042 02/07/01 10,691.00

0011403 COMSDRAMPC100MHZ512MB(4X128MB) 02/07/01 942.00

0011440 MINOLTA MAGICOLOR LASER PRINTER 531050448 02/14/03 799.00

0011441 MINOLTA MAGICOLOR LASER PRINTER 5310050383 02/14/03 799.00

0011442 Z320 VIDEO CAPTURE BOARD 03122212 08/25/03 1,005.00

0011452 DELL OPTIPLEX GX270T COMPUTER SYSTEM 95NLQ31 11/07/03 1,372.00

0011456 DELL OPTIPLEX GX270T COMPUTER SYSTEM ITNLQ31 11/07/03 1,372.00

0011461 DELL OPTIPLEX GX270T COMPUTER SYSTEM 8TNLQ31 11/07/03 1,372.00



0011462 DELL OPTIPLEX GX270T COMPUTER SYSTEM PTNLQ31 11/07/03 1,372.00

0011468 DELL OPTIPLEX GX270T COMPUTER SYSTEM 7VNLQ31 11/07/03 1,372.00

0011469 DELL OPTIPLEX GX270T COMPUTER SYSTEM 8VNLQ31 11/07/03 1,372.00

0011479 LEXMARK T634N LASER PRINTER 991PKF3 06/29/04 1,710.00

0011480 LEXMARK T634N LASER PRINTER 991PK9W 06/29/04 1,710.00

0011481 LEXMARK T634N LASER PRINTER 991PK9Y 06/29/04 1,710.00

0011482 LEXMARK T634N LASER PRINTER 991PK9K 06/29/04 1,710.00

0011483 LEXMARK T634N LASER PRINTER 991PK9M 06/29/04 1,710.00

0011487 DELL OPTIPLEX COMPUTER 14CF251 06/15/04 1,566.96

0011523 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR 4K2ZQ91 04/05/06 922.89

0011533 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR 2T2ZQ91 04/05/06 922.89

0011536 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR 9W2ZQ91 04/05/06 922.89

0011550 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR 7V2ZQ91 04/05/06 922.89

0011555 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR LJQ3R91 04/05/06 922.89

0011560 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR BGQ3R91 04/05/06 922.89

0011578 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR GLQ3R91 04/05/06 922.89

0011579 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR FNQ3R91 04/05/06 922.89

0011580 DELL PENTIUM 4 COMPUTER WITH MONITOR HFQ3R91 04/05/06 922.89

0011586 LEXMARK C524N PRINTER 9413HV5 09/18/06 681.24

0011591 HP PROCURCE SWITH 2650 CN716SDO6F 06/22/07 691.00

0011592 HP PROCURCE SWITH 2650 CN716SDOQV 06/22/07 691.00

0011593 HP PROCURCE SWITH 2650 CN716SDONO 06/22/07 691.00

0011594 APC SMART UPS JSO710014293 06/21/07 774.74

0011607 DELL OPTIPLEX 745SFF PC 2OCV5D1 07/06/07 716.10

0011608 DELL OPTIPLEX 745SFF PC 55CV5D1 07/06/07 716.10

0011617 DELL OPTIPLEX 745SFF PC CYBV5D1 07/06/07 716.10

0011623 DELL OPTIPLEX 745MT PENTIUM PC C89H5D1 07/06/07 1,160.83

0011624 DELL OPTIPLEX 745MT PENTIUM PC G89H5D1 07/06/07 1,160.83

0011650 DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SFF DUO CORE PROCESSOR 6CXV4G1 04/28/08 860.69

0011652 DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SFF DUO CORE PROCESSOR 7GXV4G1 04/28/08 860.69

0011655 DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SFF DUO CORE PROCESSOR 43YV4G1 04/28/08 860.69

0011665 DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SFF DUO CORE PROCESSOR 5Z3S4G1 04/28/08 860.69

0011666 DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SFF DUO CORE PROCESSOR 3Z3S4G1 04/28/08 860.69

0011670 DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SFF DUO CORE PROCESSOR GY3S4G1 04/28/08 860.69



0011673 DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SFF DUO CORE PROCESSOR 7Z3S4G1 04/28/08 860.69

0011675 DELL OPTIPLEX 755 SFF DUO CORE PROCESSOR JY3S4G1 04/28/08 860.69

0011677 LEXMARK T644TN MONOCHROME LASER PRINTER S79253P4 05/01/08 1,454.79

0011678 LEXMARK T644TN MONOCHROME LASER PRINTER S7925DMP 05/01/08 1,454.79

0011679 LEXMARK T644TN MONOCHROME LASER PRINTER S792CGZC 05/01/08 1,454.79

0011680 LEXMARK T644TN MONOCHROME LASER PRINTER S792CGY6 05/01/08 1,454.79

0011687 LEXMARK T644TN LASER PRINTER FOR INMATE S792LDWY 09/25/08 1,295.04

0011690 DELL OPTIPLEX COMPUTER 2TB1SH1 12/15/08 1,043.35

0011696 OPTIPLEX 760 PSU BX7S3J1 02/02/09 1,077.30

0011698 OPTIPLEX 760 PSU 6X7S3J1 02/02/09 1,077.30

0011699 OPTIPLEX 760 PSU 3X7S3J1 02/02/09 1,077.30

0011701 OPTIPLEX 760 PSU 7X7S3J1 02/02/09 1,077.30

0011703 LEXMARK COLOR LASER PRINTER 942FVX2 02/09/09 672.05

10489 BROTHER MFC 9840 CDW FAX MACHINE UNKNOWN 05/08/09 814.99

10966 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK 30 9KKYA97036 12/23/09 4,258.63

10967 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK 30 9KKYA98099 12/23/09 4,258.63

11090 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 9C98GM1 04/22/10 1,193.64

11275 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, DUO CORE PRO BZNR3M1 03/03/10 1,171.80

11276 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, DUO CORE PRO FPMK3M1 02/26/10 1,098.72

11277 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, DUO CORE PRO DPMK3M1 02/26/10 1,098.72

11278 LEXMARK T650N LASER PRINTER- MFG P/ S793Z796 04/13/10 794.88

11640 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1IDONTK 12/03/10 1,301.16

11641 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, DUO CORE PRO 96DLMN1 10/27/10 1,348.75

11642 LEXMARK T650N LASER PRINTER - MFG P S79493DX 12/06/10 728.36

11716 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1X4GB 12/08/10 1,212.65

11770 LEXMARK C736N COLOR LASER PRINTER - S9443C745 03/22/11 633.42

12022 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z0WCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12031 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z3WCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12032 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z4TCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12033 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z4VCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12034 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z4WCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12037 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z5WCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12038 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z6TCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12042 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z7VCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67



12043 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z7WCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12048 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1Z9VCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12050 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YJSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12053 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YJWCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12054 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YKSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12055 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YKTCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12056 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YKVCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12058 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YLSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12060 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YLVCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12062 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YMSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12067 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YNTCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12070 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YPSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12078 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YRSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12079 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YRTCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12083 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YSVCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12085 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YTSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12086 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YTVCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12087 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YVSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12088 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YVTCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12090 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YWSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12096 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 1YYSCP1 03/02/11 1,023.67

12179 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF, QUAD CORE PR 9QCDMN1 10/26/10 1,309.74

12191 LEXMARK T650N LASER PRINTER - MFG P S794B05T 05/10/11 689.60

12717 BROTHER MFC 9970 CDW FAX MACHINE N/A 12/16/11 877.70

12719 BROTHER MFC9970 PRINTER/FAX N/A 01/30/12 877.70

12756 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I FT50XR1 12/01/11 1,217.30

12757 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I FT60XR1 12/01/11 1,217.30

12759 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I FT52XR1 12/01/11 1,217.30

12944 CANON DR-7550C HIGH SPEED COLOR SCA EY305705 06/04/12 4,742.50

13028 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I 60824V1 05/30/12 1,443.74

13030 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I 60924V1 05/30/12 1,443.74

13070 LEXMARK T650N LASER PRINTER - MFG P S7951P37 07/06/12 574.30

13071 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I FSJ1C0207660 11/30/11 1,212.20

13072 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I FSJ250303605 05/03/12 1,260.22



13073 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I FSJ250303606 05/03/12 1,260.22

13074 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I FSJ250303604 05/03/12 1,260.22

13108 LEXMARK C736N COLOR LASER PRINTER S9425C78 10/14/11 803.36

13110 POWEREDGE 216DS JH36DQ1 09/23/11 3,411.02

13112 LEXMARK T650N LASER PRINTER S794VBM8 09/26/11 694.96

13115 DELL OPTIPLEX 780 SFF 91THKQ1 07/01/11 1,113.75

13117 LEXMARK T650N LASER PRINTER S794L0W6 07/01/11 689.60

13126 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF J4L3LS1 03/14/12 1,277.98

13127 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF J4KZKS1 03/14/12 1,277.98

13128 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF J4L1LS1 03/14/12 1,277.98

13273 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL QUAD I FL64ZQ1 08/02/11 1,361.10

13454 LEXMAKR PRINTER X 364 13B0502 09/12/12 614.60

13455 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 MF, INTEL CORE I7 BF4D6V1 07/10/12 1,190.80

13457 DELL OPTIPLEX 990 SFF, INTEL CORE I 34YB6V1 07/10/12 1,443.74

15826 LIVESCAN FINGERPRINT MACHINE & RUGG ESLC-FLM41U-00 07/05/13 16,749.00

15827 TENPRINT 3-TRAY DUPLEX PRINTER 0305-00930 07/05/13 2,525.00

16028 LEXMARK C746DN CLR LASER (MFG. PART S502629943258R 10/14/13 786.86

16029 LEXMARK C746DN CLR LASER (MFG. PART S502629943254Z 10/14/13 786.86

16030 LEXMARK C746DN CLR LASER (MFG. PART S502629943258V 10/14/13 786.86

16223 DS5 AUTOMATIC DOOR OPENER, LEFT HAN 08/09/13 1,240.00

16524 DELL LATITUDE E6430, WINDOWS 8 PRO, 7R08YY1 12/26/13 1,543.93

16525 DELL LATITUDE E6430, WINDOWS 8 PRO, 6M08YY1 12/26/13 1,543.93

16551 DELL LATITUDE E6430 COMPUTER GZ4BPX1 09/05/13 1,360.45

16553 PERSONAL VIDEO/AUDIO RECORDER PVR-L LE2-900522 03/17/14 699.00

16554 PERSONAL VIDEO/AUDIO RECORDER PVR-L LE2-900523 03/17/14 699.00

16640 OPTIPLEX 9020 SMALL FORM FACTOR W/S BC1PBZ1 11/28/13 1,734.96

16859 RMX16CD 16 CHANNEL MULTIPLEXER 8503210372 10/31/13 972.90

16937 SCHILLER AT-2, ITEM# 1042998 EKG MA 028.02399 08/14/14 2,339.78

17401 SENNHEISER EW100 ENG G3 DUAL MICS 10/27/14 1,559.95

17404 SCHILLER AT-2, ITEM# 1042998 EKG MA 028. 02399 09/18/14 2,250.44

17409 POWERHEART AED G3 PLUS SEMI-AUTOMAT 6004619 10/07/14 1,125.00

18286 ZURN, SEDIMENT INTERCEPTOR, 15 GAL, none 09/16/15 2,350.00



TULSA COUNTY 
INVENTORY RESOLUTION 

Original to the County Clerk's Office for placement on the Board of County Commissioners meeting agenda for 

BOCC Meeting Date 

WHEREAS, the following inventory has been (please mark one): 

0 LOST 

0 SOLD 

0 STOLEN 

0 LEASE-PURCHASE 

0 RENTAL 

~ JUNKED 

0 TRANSFERRED 

0 CONFISCATED 

0 

From: (DEPARTMENT/LOCATION) TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF 

To: (DEPARTMENT/ LOCATION) ________________________ _ 

Item Name/Description: PORTABLE STEAM TABLE 

Asset No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Tag No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT Serial No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Comments: 
THIS SHOULD HAVE BEEN REMOVED FROM INVENTORY YEARS AGO. 

BE IT RESOLVED this change shall be made in the records filed with the Tulsa County Clerk, 

:; :•~o:;terized invento~ progr2£_ 
Date Initiating Elected OHicial or Division Director 

Date Receiving Elected Official or Division Director 

Date Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

Form 1169 - Computer Simulation (Rev.6-09) Front 



ASSET DESCRIPTION SERIAL/PARCEL DATE ACQ ACQ COST

0010235 PORTABLE STEAM TABLE - RES. TO DELETE 52006160046 01/17/83 576.00



TULSA COUNTY 
INVENTORY RESOLUTION 

Original to the County Clerk's Office for placement on the Board of County Commissioners meeting agenda for 

BOGG Meeting Date 

WHEREAS, the following inventory has been (please mark one): 

0 LOST 

0 SOLD 

0 STOLEN 

0 LEASE-PURCHASE 

0 RENTAL 

0 JUNKED 

0 TRANSFERRED 

0 CONFISCATED 

~ RECYCLE 

From: (DEPARTMENT/LOCATION) TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF 

To: (DEPARTMENT/ LOCATION) _________________________ _ 

Item Name/Description:_O_L_D_ RA_ D_A_R_S ____________________ _ 

Asset No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Tag No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT Serial No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Comments: 

BE IT RESOLVED this change shall be made in the records filed with the Tulsa County Clerk, 

and in the computerized inventory program for capital assets. 

0
-::, 1 re // ~;oa" 

Date Receiving Elected Official or Division Director 

Date Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

Form 1169 -Computer Simulation (Rev.6-09) Front 



ASSET DESCRIPTION SERIAL/PARCEL DATE ACQ ACQ COST

0010839 MPH RADAR UNIT SN K55267000070 K55267000070 06/24/92 995.00

0010840 MPH RADAR UNIT SN K55267000080 K55267000080 06/24/92 995.00

0010841 MPH RADAR UNIT SN K55267000092 K55267000092 06/24/92 995.00

0010842 MPH RADAR UNIT SN K55267000076 K55267000076 06/24/92 995.00

0010843 MPH RADAR UNIT SN K55267000075 K55267000075 06/24/92 995.00

0010844 MPH RADAR UNIT SN K55267000017 K55267000017 06/24/92 995.00

0010845 PYTHON RADAR UNIT SN 380000487 ANTENNA S380000487 04/17/97 1,400.00

0010846 DECATUR ELECT. GENESIS I RADAR UNIT SN: G13141 09/29/00 1,169.00

0010847 DECATUR, INC. GENESIS HANDHELD RADAR UNI05747 10/31/00 799.00

10850 DECATUR, INC. GENESIS HANDHELD RADAR UNI05754 10/31/00 799.00

10854 GENESIS I IN-CAR RADAR UNIT BY DECATUR EG15965 10/31/00 1,169.00

10857 DECATUR ELECT. GENESIS IN-CAR RADAR UNITG16071 11/21/00 1,169.00

10860 DECATUR GENESIS GHS HANDHELD RADAR W/CASGHS05801 01/30/01 799.00

0010869 DECATUR GENESIS I GDB RADAR SYSTEM W/K-BG16160 02/01/01 1,169.00

10876 DECATUR GENESIS I GDB RADAR SYSTEM W/K-BG16167 02/01/01 1,169.00

10877 DECATUR GENESIS I GDB RADAR SYSTEM W/K-BG16168 02/01/01 1,169.00

10878 DECATUR GENESIS I GDB RADAR SYSTEM W/K-BG16169 02/01/01 1,169.00

0010880 DECATUR GENESIS I GDB RADAR SYSTEM W/K-BG16171 02/01/01 1,169.00

0010882 DECATUR GENESIS I GDB RADAR SYSTEM W/K-BG16173 02/01/01 1,169.00

0010886 DECATUR GENESIS I GDB RADAR SYSTEM W/K-BG16177 02/01/01 1,169.00

0010889 GENESIS HANDHELD DIRECTIONAL RADAR GHD06911 08/02/06 495.00

0010890 GENESIS HANDHELD DIRECTIONAL RADAR GHD06912 08/02/06 495.00

10891 GENESIS HANDHELD DIRECTIONAL RADAR OHSOGHD06914 08/02/06 495.00

0010893 GENESIS HANDHELD DIRECTIONAL RADAR GHD06944 08/02/06 495.00

0010894 GENESIS HANDHELD DIRECTIONAL RADAR GHD06946 08/02/06 495.00

0010899 GENESIS HANDHELD DIRECTIONAL RADAR GHD06952 08/02/06 495.00

10901 GENESIS HANDHELD DIRECTIONAL RADAR GHD06954 08/02/06 495.00



TULSA COUNTY 
INVENTORY RESOLUTION 

Original to the County Clerk's Office for placement on the Board of County Commissioners meeting agenda for 

BOCC Meeting Date 

WHEREAS, the following inventory has been (please mark one): 

0 LOST 

0 SOLD 

0 STOLEN 

0 LEASE-PURCHASE 

0 RENTAL 

3} JUNKED 

0 TRANSFERRED 

0 CONFISCATED 

0 

From: (DEPARTMENT/LOCATION) TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF 

To: (DEPARTMENT/ LOCATION) _________________________ _ 

Item Name/0escription:_B_R_O_ K_E_N_RA_ D_IO_S __________________ _ 

Asset No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Tag No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT Serial No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Comments: 

BE IT RESOLVED this change shall be made in the records filed with the Tulsa County Clerk, 

and in the computerized inventory program for capital assets. 

OG-/t> / z 
Date 

Date Receiving Elected Official or Division Director 

Date Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

Form 1169 -Computer Simulat ion (Rev.6-09) Front 



ASSET DESCRIPTION SERIAL/PARCEL DATE ACQ ACQ COST

0008741 XTS5000 HAND HELD RADIO 721CGD1939 02/22/06 3,733.00

0008665 MOTOROLA XTS-5000 H/H RADIO 721CFT7771 09/28/05 4,133.00

8656 MOTOROLA XTS-5000 H/H RADIO 721CFT7762 09/28/05 4,133.00

0009030 MOTOROLA XTS5000 H/H RADIO 721CJT1172 09/15/08 4,112.00

**NOT FOUND IN MUNIS**

MOTOROLA XTS5000 H/H RADIO 721CNV0447

721CMX0164

721CNV0451

721CNV0472

721CMX0181



TULSA COUNTY 
INVENTORY RESOLUTION 

Original to the County Clerk's Office for placement on the Board of County Commissioners meeting agenda for 

BOCC Meeting Date 

WHEREAS, the following inventory has been (please mark one): 

0 LOST 

0 SOLD 

0 STOLEN 

0 LEASE-PURCHASE 

0 RENTAL 

0 JUNKED 

~ TRANSFERRED 

0 CONFISCATED 

0 

From: (DEPARTMENT/LOCATION) TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF 

To: (DEPARTMENT/ LOCATION) HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE 1 

Item Name/Description: MOTOROLA MAINTENANCE CHARGER 

Asset No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Tag No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT Serial No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Comments: 

BE IT RESOLVED this change shall be made in the records filed with the Tulsa County Clerk, 

and in the computerized inventory program for capital assets. 

Date 

Date Receiving Elected Official or Division Director 

Date Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

Form 1169 -Computer Simulation (Rev.6-09) Front 



ASSET DESCRIPTION SERIAL/PARCEL DATE ACQ ACQ COST

0008402 MOTOROLA MAINTENANCE CHARGER M107331 06/28/01 520.00

**NOT FOUND IN MUNIS**

MOTOROLA MAINTENANCE CHARGER D110563



TULSA COUNTY 
INVENTORY RESOLUTION 

Original to the County Clerk's Office for placement on the Board of County Commissioners meeting agenda for 

BOCC Meeting Date 

WHEREAS, the following inventory has been (please mark one): 

0 LOST 

0 SOLD 

0 STOLEN 

0 LEASE-PURCHASE 

0 RENTAL 

~ JUNKED 

0 TRANSFERRED 

0 CONFISCATED 

0 

From: (DEPARTMENT/LOCATION) TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF 

To: (DEPARTMENT/ LOCATION) __________________ _ _ _____ _ 

Item Name/Description: TOUCHMASTERS AND RADIOS 

Asset No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Tag No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT Serial No.: REFER TO ATTACHMENT 

Comments: 
UNABLE TO REPAIR 

BE IT RESOLVED this change shall be made in the records filed with the Tulsa County Clerk, 

and in the computerized inventory program for capital assets . 

,,,~ I ) 
• 

Date 

Date Receiving Elected Official or Division Director 

Date Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

Form 1169 - Computer Simulation (Rev.6-09) Front 



ASSET DESCRIPTION SERIAL/PARCEL DATE ACQ ACQ COST

0007777 FEDERAL UNITROL TOUCHMASTER C51411 11/28/01 534.60

0007778 FEDERAL UNITROL TOUCHMASTER C51387 11/28/01 534.60

0007779 FEDERAL UNITROL TOUCHMASTER C51389 11/28/01 534.60

0007780 UNITROL CONTROLLER E1094 03/08/04 540.60

0007781 UNITROL CONTROLLER E1088 03/08/04 540.60

0007782 UNITROL CONTROLLER E1084 03/08/04 540.60

0007783 UNITROL CONTROLLER E1082 03/08/04 540.60

0007784 UNITROL CONTROLLER E1086 03/08/04 540.60

0007822 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160096 12/19/06 593.20

0007823 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160097 12/19/06 593.20

0007824 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160098 12/19/06 593.20

0007825 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160099 12/19/06 593.20

0007826 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160100 12/19/06 593.20

0007827 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160101 12/19/06 593.20

0007828 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160102 12/19/06 593.20

0007829 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160103 12/19/06 593.20

0007830 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160104 12/19/06 593.20

0007831 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160105 12/19/06 593.20

0007832 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160106 12/19/06 593.20

0007833 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160107 12/19/06 593.20

0007834 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160108 12/19/06 593.20

0007835 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160109 12/19/06 593.20

0007836 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160110 12/19/06 593.20

0007837 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER 52003160111 12/19/06 593.20

0007846 FEDERAL UNITROL SIREN CONTROLLER A39572 12/19/06 593.20

18785 APX6500 7/800 MHZ MID POWER MOBILE 527CRZ6077 12/01/15 4,102.76

18861 APX6500 7/800 MHZ MID POWER MOBILE 527CRZ6154 12/01/15 4,102.76



TULSA COUNTY

PURCHASING
DEPARTMENT

VENDOR#:
cc#

CMF#
DATE:

5312
48000190000

DATE: JUNE 12, 2019

TO: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

FROM: MATNEY M. ELLIS
PURCHASING DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF SOLICITING BIDS OR QUOTES & SOLE SOURCE
DESIGNATION TO PORTIONPAC CHEMICAL CORPORATION

THE PURCHASING DEPARTMENT AND THE TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF DEPARTMENT
RESPECTFULLY REQUESTS THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APPROVE
THE ATTACHED "REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF SOLICITING BIDS OR QUOTES"
AND SOLE SOURCE DESIGNATION TO PORTIONPAC CHEMICAL CORPORATION

PORTIONPAC CHEMICAL CORPORATION
400 NORTH ASHLAND AVENUE
CHICAGO, IL 60622-6382
ATTEN: BUSTER ADAMS OR SKIP LATHAM

PORTIONPAC CHEMICAL CORPORATION IS THE SOLE SOURCE
DISTRIBUTOR FOR THE CORRECTPAC SYSTEM IN THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

THIS REQUEST IS RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED FOR YOUR APPROVAL.

MME/rjm

ATTACHMENT

ORIGINAL: MICHAEL WILLIS, COUNTY CLERK FOR THE JUNE 17, 2019 AGENDA.

Form 4363 (Rev. 4-98)



REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF SOLICITING BIDS OR QUOTES

DATE: JUNE 12 2019

TO THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

It is recommended that soliciting bids/quotes be waived on the following request of
TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF DEPARTMENT for the reason(s) stated below.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT

PU ASING DIRECTOR

MATNEY M. ELLIS
l Emergency

l Sole manufacturer (must be documented).

Sole supplier (must be documented).

^ Other products of similar nature are incompatible with existing products.

I Purchase of similar products will adversely affect warranty, guarantee or
sen/ice agreement on existing products.

'\

Description:

PORTIONPAC CHEMICAL CORPORATION IS THE SOLE SOURCE DISTRIBUTOR FOR
THE CORRECTPAC SYSTEM IN THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

PORTIONPAC CHEMICAL CORPORATION
400 NORTH ASHLAND AVENUE
CHICAGO, IL 60622-6382
ATTEN: BUSTER ADAMS OR SKIP LATHAM
312-226-0400
portionpaccorp. com

l Waiver of bidding or quoting process is approved.

1 Waiver of bidding or quoting is nof justified.
Standard bidding or quoting will be followed.

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

DATE

Form 1830 (Rev. 12-84)



CHEMICAL CORPORATION

May 30, 2019

Ms. Karen Fasano, Purchasing
Tulsa County Sheriff's Office
500 S Denver
Tulsa, OK 74103-3832

Dear Ms. Fasano,

As the manufacturer of CorrectPac® cleaning products and the corresponding
educational materials, PortionPac Chemical Corporation is the sole source dFstributor
for the CorrectPac® system in the State of Oklahoma.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to
contact me at 1-800-289-7725 ext. 5267 or by email: slathem@portionpaccorp. com.

Sincerely,

Skip Lathem
CorrectPac® Regional Manager

ec: Buster Adams

SLVbs

PortlonPac Chemical Corporation
400 North Ashland Avenue, Chicago, IL 60622-6382

312-226-0400 portionpaccorp. com



Date:

County Department:

Supplier Name:

Supplier Address:

Supplier Phone:

Tulsa County Purchasing
Sole Source or Sole Brand Acquisition Certification

06 04 2019

PortionPac

400 N. Ashland Avenue, Chicago, II 60622

12-226-0400

I hereby affirm that pursuant to  9 provisions of the attached requlsifaon or contract that

PortlonPac

(Name of Supplier)

p8̂ c'STun^uS9£3S.r'edtopnrids thean'ul8to. ^"'P-' '^. ^^o,

PortionPac Is the manufacturer of CorrectFac materials and the sole
distributor in the State of Oklahoma

^^^!sl6 S8^es^t!^?ef^ orproductstobe purchased
pursuant to the provisions of the attached requisitfen or conbact qualify as a sole sYu~rceo7sole"b^^

Spoke with other/like department using this product

^rstandthatthe signing ofthis certification knowing such infomation to be false may subject me to punishment for
<"

(Signa re of Certifying Officer)



TULSA COUNTY

PURCHASING
DEPARTMENT

VENDOR#:
cc#:

17607
8300 227 0000

DATE: JUNE 12, 2019

TO: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

FROM: MATNEY M. ELLIS
PURCHASING DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: SOLE SOURCE DESIGNATION-PUBLIC A CESS TO COURT ELECTRONIC RECORDS (PACER)

THE TULSA COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT AND THE TULSA COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE
RESPECTFULLY REQUESTS THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APPROVE THE ATTACHED
"REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF SOLICITING BIDS OR QUOTES" AND SOLE SOURCE DESIGNATION T0~
PUBLIC ACCESS TO COURT ELECTRONIC RECORDS (PACER).

PUBLIC ACCESS TO COURT ELECTRONIC RECORDSi
P.O, BOX 71364
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19176
ATTN: DAVID STONE

PUBLIC ACCESS TO COURT ELECTRONIC RECORDS (PACER) IS THE ONLY FEDERAL
AGENCY THAT IS A DIRECT LINK THAT OFFERS ONLINE ACCESS TO OFFICIAL FEDERAL
CASE RECORDS, FEDERAL APPELLATE, DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS AND THE
PACER CASE LOCATOR.

THIS REQUEST IS RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED FOR YOUR APPROVAL.

MME/jdf

ATTACHMENT

ORIGINAL: MICHAEL WILLIS, COUNTY CLERK FOR THE JUNE 17, 2019 AGENDA.

COPIES: ACTING COMMISSIONER MICHAEL CRADDOCK
COMMISSIONER KAREN KEITH
COMMISSIONER RON PETERS
DENNIS SEMLER, TREASURER
JOHN FOTHERGILL, CHIEF DEPUTY
VICKI ADAMS, CHIEF DEPUTY

Form 4363 (Rev. 4-98)



REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF SOLICITING BIDS OR QUOTES

DATE: JUNE 12 2019

TO THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

It is recommended that soliciting bids/quotes be waived on the following request of
TULSA COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE for the reason(s) stated below:

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT

-^
PU ASING DIRECTOR

, _ MATNEYM. ELLIS
I Emergency

T Sole manufacturer (must be documented).

Sole supplier (must be documented).

^ Other products of similar nature are incompatible with existing products.

t Purchase of similar products will adversely affect warranty, guarantee or
service agreement on existing products.

\

Description:

PUBLIC ACCESS TO COURT ELECTRONIC RECORDS (PACER) IS THE ONLY FEDERAL AGENCY
THAT1S A D1RECTL-1NK_THAT OFFERS ONLINE ACCESS TO OFFICIAL FEDERAL CASE RECORDS.
FEDERAL APPELLATE, DISTRICT AND BANKRUPTCY COURTS AND THE PACER CASE LOCATOR.'

PUBLIC ACCESS TO COURT ELECTRONIC RECORDSi
P.O. BOX 71364
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19176
ATTN: DAVID STONE

(800) 676-6856 PHONE
(201) 536-5402 PHONE
(210)301-6441 FAX
David_Stone@psc.uscourts.gov

l Waiver of bidding or quoting process is approved.

l Waiver of bidding or quoting is no/justified.
Standard bidding or quoting will be followed.

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

DATE

Tom 1830 (Rev. 12-84)



W PACER
PUBttCACCEMS TO COURT ELEC-niONIC RECOROS

To: Purchasing Coordinator
Tulsia County Purchasing Department

From: David Stone, Chief, PACER Support Branch

Subject: PACER Service Center- Source for Official Court Records

Date: June 10, 2019

Public Access to Court Electronic Records (PACER) is an electronic public access service
that allows users to obtain case and docket information online from federaFappeTlate,*
?!S% ?n?, -l??nkruf;>tcycourts/. and the PACERCase Locator. PACERis'provided'by'the
Federal Judiciary In keeping with its commitment to providing public access to'court"
information via a centralized sen/ice. The service is developed by the Administrative
Office of the United States Courts and is maintained by the'Court Services Office.
Programs Division, which manages the electronic public accesYprogram~forthe1rederal
^?ic-i?IX' TheJ1?is>sion °ftheProgram is to facilitate and improve erectronic public'
access to court information at a reasonable cost, in accordance with legislative'and
Ju_diciary P,olici?s' security requirements, and user demands. The ProgrSms'bivision
!??.?-??-th^d.Tvdop.m.^nt?!1?_Taintenarl^e of electronic public access systems in the
Judiciary and, through the PACER Service Center, provides centralized bNling,
registration; andjechnical support services for the Judiciar/ and the public. "PACER is
the source for official Federal Court records.

As mandated bY Congress, the program is funded entirely through user fees set by the
Judicial Conference. The fees are published in the Electronic Public Access Fee
Schedule^ Please see the included fee schedule. If you have any questions, please call
me at 210-536-5402. Thank you for your interest in PACER,

Thank you,

David Stone

Chief, PACER Support Branch
Systems Deployment and Support Office
Administrative Office of the U. S. Courts
210-536-5402
David_Stone@psc. uscourts. gov

. I C /~«»r. »*<. _ BA/-CB n r\ o~.. II f tA nt.2i. j_i_i. i_ BA <n4T/



^al. :t^

luisiTouniv
w Tulsa County Purchasing

Sole Source or Sole Brand Acquisition Certification

Date: 06/07/2019

County Department: Treasurer

Supplier Name: PACER Service Center

Supplier Address: PO Box 71 364 Philadelphia, PA 19176-1 364

Supplier Phone: 800-676-68586

I hereby affirm that oursuant to the provistons of the attached requisition or contract that

PACER Service Center
(Name of Supplier)

ls-theonl^per50n °r busj"ess entity singulariy qualifiBd to provhle the acquisition, and if a product is the onh^ brand or
pnsducl which is unique, for the following reasons:

Public Access to Court Electronic Records(PACER) is an electronic public access service that allows
us to obtain case and docket information online for federal appellate, district. bankmptcy courts and
the PACER case locator. Nellie Risewick stated the Northern District of Oklahoma Bankruptcy Courts
only uses PACER.

?!..f?S1?^!s-a_br!BLde5cfi.l?t"on.. of .a" ?fforts. VYhich were made to veri^that the servi«»s or products to be purchased
pursuant to the provisions of the attached requisition or contract qualify as a sole source or sote'brand'acquteition:"

Nellie also stated that PACER is a branch of the Administrative Offices of the United States Courts
and there are no other competing agencies.

L^?retandthatthesi9ningofthis certificatl°" kr10win9 such information to be false may subject me to punishment for
perjury.

<SU^/VL/^ -WC^^/L^/
(Signature tef Certifying

































To:
From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM
June 10, 2019

Karen Keith, Chair, BOCC '/ J yv\^-,
Kathy Burrows, Director Human Resourcesl><<^b^Q^^U

ACCO Summer Safety Conference on July 81 - August 1, 2019 in
Norman, Oklahoma

I respectfully request the Board's authorization for David Hayes to attend the
ACCO Summer Safety Conference oil July 31 & August 1 in Norman, Oklahoma.
Documentation is attached for your review.

Funds required mil be $188.00 for lodging, $137.50 for Per Diem, as well $35. 00
for the registration fee, with a total of $360. 50 that is available within our current

budget. Please cause this item to be placed on die next Board of County
Commissioners meeting for review and approval.

Thank you in advance for your assistance. If you have any questions please let me
know.

Attachments

KB/laf



^5SS^^
SKountyjr:::

iftsioners
IklahomaT

Gene Wallace
Executive Director

429 N.E 50th Street
Oklahoma City, OK 73105

Toll Free: 800.982.6212
Local: 405.524.3200
Fax: 405. 524. 3700
http://www. okacco. com

Executive Board

Doug Hubbaid, Cherokee County
President

Jimmy Westtrook, McCurtain County
Vvx-Presldent

Russell Earls, Ottawa Ccxjnty
Secretary/Treasurvr

Gay Slams, Pantotoc County
Past President

Board of Directors

Dan Delozler, Rogers County
0/sfrfct 1

Stephen Wright, Muskogee County
Districts

Lance Smith, LeFlore County
Districts

Gary Gray, Hughes County
District 4

Zach Cavett, Payne County
District 5

Jerry Alvord, Carter County
Oislrfcf 6

Ncky Boone, Ham-on County
District 7

Jack Strain, Texas County
Districts

Date: June 3, 2019

To: All County Commissioners, Elected Officials, and County Employees

RE: ACCO Summer Conference Registration Information
July 31st and August 1st

From: Felicity Johnson, Meeting Planner
Cassidy Garrison, Co-Meeting Planner

Dear Counties,

Please find the attached County Packet for the upcoming ACCO Summer Safety
Conference, which will be held July 31st and August 1st at the Embassy Suites Hotel
and Conference Center in Norman.

We have included a tentative agenda; however, be on the lookout for updates in the
coming weeks. It is sure to be packed with speakers, meetings, vendor connections,
fellowship, and so much more.

You can register online by visiting our webpage at www.okacco. com and clicking in
the purple button labeled "County Registration". From there you can fill out your
information and hit submit! Remember, this is just for the registration portion; you
will still need to fax your completed hotel form to the appropriate hotel.

Commissioners: $95.00
Elected Officials: $95. 00
County Employees: $35. 00
County Families: No Charge

Please Note: All registrations
after July 3rd, 2019 will be at
the door, where a $10 late fee
will be assessed.

Please make sure to register before the deadline. We hope to see you all there!

Questions? Call Felicity at [405) 516-5317 or Cassidyat [405} 563-7714 or you can
email info(a)okacco. com

Thank You!



Association
iftsaohersl

IklahomaT

Gene Wallace
Executive Director

429 N.E 50th Street
Oklahoma City, OK 73105

Toll Free: 800.98 2.6212
Local: 405. 524. 3200
Fax: 405.524.3700
http://www.okacco.com

Executive Board

Doug Hubbard, Cherokee County
Preskient

Jimmy WestbrooK McCurtaln County
Vice-President

Russell Earls, Ottawa County
SecTBtary/TreasLffw

Gary Starns, Pontotoc County
PastPresldent

Board of Directors

Dan Delozier, Rogers County
Disfrict 1

Stephen Wright, Muskogee County
District 2

Lance Smith, LeFtare County
District 3

Gary Gray, Hughes County
District 4

Zach Cavett, Payne County
District S

Jerry Alvord, Carter County
District 6

Nteky Boone, Harmon County
District 7

Jack Strain, Texas County
District B



ACCO Has Cone Paperless!
Please Register Online At

7. 0KACCO. COM

Click on the PURPLE Button on
the Home Page to register today!

EASE ALSO N07
All registration will be cut off on

Wednesday, July 3rd!
County employees not registered by

Wednesday, July 3rd will have to register at the conference
where a $10 late fee will be assessed.

RE E 8ER
11 guests of registered attendees can register at no charge for th

1 \CCO Summer Safety Conference!

ransferra]



,uam

.

:30am

'.30am

;00am

45am

K . set up

Registration Opens

Exhibit Hall Opens

ODOT CAB Meeting

.

r-1

East Lobby

OK "F-I"

Sooner A & B

County Engineers Meeting Boomer A & B

Oklahoma "E"lU:OOam -11 30am ACCO FORUM
+TBA'<
"TBA"
. . BA"

Gene} illace,
ACCO Executive Director

l-30am - l'30pm LUNCH WITH
YOUR VENDORS

30pm - 3:3Upro General Session
Welcome

ACCO President
DougHubbard

Invocation &
National Anthem

"Speakers'
'tTBA"
"TBA*
^TBA*

NE Parking Area

Oklahoma "E'

. Shannon Sheffert, OSU-LTAP

. Gene Wallace,
ACCO Executive Direclor

Prizes and Drawings

S.30pm-4:00pm District Meetings
District # 1 Oklahoma "E'
District #2 Oklahoma "A"
District University "A"
District #4 University "B"
District Oklahoma "C"
District #6 Northpark
District #7 Noble
District #8 Oklahoma "B"
(CED's may follow)

Registration Closes

5:00pm Exhibit Hall Closes

3:30pm Evening Buffet N. Conference
Hallway

7:30am

7:30am

Registranon i. )ens

Exhibit Hall Opens

7:30am-10-00am VISIT WITH
YOUR VENDORS

10:00am -Noon ACCO Safety Speaker

. Leslie Osborn,
Oklahoma State
Labor Commissioner

Uast Lobby

OK "F-J"

OK "F-J"

OK "E"

1130am

ll:30am

12:00pm

5-OOpm

egistration Closes

Exhibit Hall Closes
Teardown

jtdog/Hamburger
Luncheon
Sponsors
ACCO Vendor Member Sponsors
will be listed in the Final Agenda

NE Parking Area

Lodo Massage Booths

17th Annual Safety Picnic OK "E-f
& Cook Off

7'30pm 1130pm Clancy Davis and Band OK"A,B, C"



HOTEL INFORMATION & RESERVATION FORM

Please fax this form with PO to the correct hotel when making reservations.
Make sure to ask for the ACCO room block

SOLD OUT!

Main Conference Hotel Overflow Hotels Still Available

Embassy Suites
tfel & Conf. Cenj^r

250l^Conferene6 Dr.

NormaKQK" 73069
405-^^040

CouotV Room Rqte is

r$94. 00/night'
Breakfast Included

Holiday Inn

Express & Suits
2500 Conference Drive

Norman, OK 73069
405-928-5300

County Room Rate is
$94. 00/night

Breakfast Included

Hilton Garden Inn

700 Copperfield Drive

Norman, OK 73072

405-579-0100

County Room Rate is

$94.00/night
Breakfast NOT Included

Fax #405-253-3550 Fax # 405-928-5311 Fax # 405-579-1414

When making reservations, please fill out this form completely and fax to appropriate hotel.

Name of the Guest:

Arrival Date : Departure Date:
County/Company:
Billing Address:
City: State: Zip:
Reservations Requested By:
Email Address: Phone#

Please bill for: ( please circle all choices to be billed)
All Charges Meals Internet Room Only
'PO's Must Reflect Rooms and Incidentals on the PO Descriptions*

Hotel Policy:
. Fax Reservation Form and copy of County PO to the correct hotel listed above

. Reservations are NOT confirmed WITHOUT a copy of the COUNTY PO

. Call and confirm room reservation 24/48 hours after faxing, retain confirmation ti for your records

. NO-SHOWS and/or FAILURE to check in the first night will still be charged 1 night stay and lose their
entire reservation.

. Early check-outs will result in a $50. 00 charge

If you are tax exempt, fax this form along with your PO and a Tax Exempt Letter.

If you are paying by credit card, fax your reservation form and call local hotel phone number
listed above with credit card information.



CWt 17T
coo -V co rr?

^.

?/r.
VJ-^

There is prize $$$$ up for grabs.
As well as the very coveted

How do you get to sign up for such a fun
event? Fill out the below information and

return to ACCO by July 8th.
(<

County/Company:

Choice of Meat:
(reasonable cost)

Amount of Requested:.

Title of Entree:

Contact Name:
(if different from the cook)

Contact Phone #:

Fun Facts Reese Wedel won the

2018ACCOCookOff

When: ACCO 2019 Summer Conference, July 31st &
August 1 . The delicious entrees will be consumed by

conference attendees on the evening of the 1 during the
Safety Picnic and Award Ceremony. Our Very Important
Tasters (VITs) will sample your creation during a blind

taste testing prior to the picnic.

Where: Embassy Suites Hotel at 2501 Conference Drive in
Norman, Oklahoma.

Who: Any County/State/ACCO personnel 8? ACCO

Vendors who think they have the skills to produce
mouthwatering, out of this world BBQ.

Why: Because who doesn't like to have bragging rights for
a year as being the best! Plus, the money is always nice too.

With any good thing in life, there are a few guidelines:
. ACCO will provide or reimburse the cost of the meat of your choice. This excludes steak

Items that will be on hand for you to use include: foil, foil pans, Head Country Seasoning, ice & gloves
. Minimum is 25lbs of meat to be cooked

. For reimbursements, you MUST have a receipt
The Traveling Trophy will get to be in the winner's possession until the 2020 summer cook-off

If you have a special request, speak to Dale at 405-516-5307. This page can be emaUed, faxed, mailed, or
even brought by singing telegram to:

ACCO, 429 NE 50th Street, OKC, OK 73105 email: dalettookaccr. cun) fax: 405-524-3700



Interoffice Memo
Date: 6/11/19

To: Board of Cou nty Corn m issioners

Attention: Commissioner Karen Keith, Chairman

From: Dan Pease, CIO

RE: Travel Request - Workday Software Site Visit

I am requesting the Board's consideration and approval for Kathy Burrows, Deneice
Arterburn, Alan Vanderburg, Joe Lord, Jeff Droll, Megan Blackford, and John Fothergill to
attend the Workday Software Sister City/County site visit July 9-1 1, 2019, in Portland, OR.

Expenses are estimated at $1 ,200.00 per person. Funds are budgeted and available for this
request.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter

Cc: Commissioner Ron Peters

Commissioner Stan Sallee

John Fothergill, Chief Deputy

Vicki Adams, Chief Deputy

Michael Craddock, Chief Deputy

to



Interoffice Memo
Date: 6/12/19

To: Board of County Commissioners

Attention: Commissioner Karen Keith, Chairman

From: Dan Pease, CIO

RE: Training Request - NAGW 2019

I am requesting the Board's consideration and approval for Steve Mayhew to attend the
annual National Association of Government Web Professionals training conference. This
training will enhance ongoing support of the Tulsa County website, Intranet, and online
application development.

Training will be held the week of September 18-21, 2019, in Salt Lake City, Utah.

Total cost is estimated at $3500.00. Funds are budgeted and available for this request.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter

TC



APPIONTMENTS 

Regular 

Provisionary 

Part-Time 

Temporary 

NAMEand 

ORG. and ACCT. NO. 

Lamascus, Kayla A. 
10001900 505010 

~1 IE ~ IE ~ WI 

lru' JUN 1 1 2019 
J 

TULSA COUNTY 

ID 

NUMBER 

xxx-xx-8982 

IE~ 

HUMAN RESOURCE ; 

TULSA COUNTY 
REQUEST FOR PERSONNEL ACTION 

Please write in one of following actions under "nature of action 

SEPARATIONS 

Resignation Retirement 

*Discharge Death 

*Reduction in Force 

End of Temp. Employment 

PRESENT 

PRESENT TITLE SALARY 

PAY CHANGES 

Performance Increase 

Promotion - Demotion 

Re-classification 

Salary Adjustment 

NEW TITLE and 

NATURE OF ACTION JOB TITLE CODE NO. 

Regular Day Porter II 
H758 - Loe. 1043 

*Separation report required when this action applies to a Board of County Commissioner's employee. 

Building Operations 
Department 

OTHER 

Leave of Absence 

Rehire 

Transfer 

Lateral Transfer 

GRADE 

NEW 

SALARY 

B $2,001 .19 

u. 
,....., 
= -

--j >- '""° c...... Cri~ 
:JJ r: ,.._ c: 
m~ ·-~ :z: 
~- ) - r -
.Do c N 
.-~ c' _. 
i-~n -· ··"" 

" c· r 
1.. ]z}. ::?.: 

- -1 · -
·-< C w 

s 
).~ (.A') 

C "• 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

6/11/2019 

,P 
;!:= 
( '/;} .... 3=_ 

·:-<.:? 
• - ~ •. • L. :-; ... 
. II : -_,-
-~~ 
-""Jr-,· ·-.o:s 
r!-• 
~;"? 

Department Head Date 
¥{1~{. l?l ~Jtrad June11,2019 



APPOINTMENTS 
Regular 

Probationary 
Part-Time 

Temporary 
On-call 

NAME and 
ORG. and ACCT. NO. 

10002925/505030 

Megan R. Cruz 

/ ~ 

Emolovee 

NO. 

14368 

TULSA COUNTY 
REQUEST FOR PERSONNEL ACTION 

ELECTION BOARD 

SEPARATIONS 
Please write in one of following actions under "nature of action" 

PAY CHANGES 
Resignation Retirement 

*Discharge Death 
*Reduction in Force 

End of Temp. Employment 

PRESENT TITLE 

Temporary on Call 

PRESENT 
SALARY 

06/06/19 
Date 

Performance Increase 
Promotion - Demotion 

Re-classification 
Salary Adjustment 

NEW TITLE and 
NATURE OF ACTION JOB TITLE CODE NO. 

F642 TCEB BOARD 
MEMBER 

t ~ J I t.fl &\ 
v ( f 

Department 

OTHER 
Leave of Absence 

Rehire 
Transfer 

LateralTransfer 

NEW 
GRADE SALARY 

A 35.00/meetin£ 

((; 
-·I 

~>, 
Cri"' 

:J O r·- r· 
r. 1V) ,_ 
r' ) J:> ·1 

1( } ,-_ 
i:> C' -::, 

: :i ~ ::_ 
, J L •·· 

--l -· · . r 
- < ... ~ :, 

~ 
-~-.> . 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

6/1/2019 

r-:> = 
U:J 

<-c:: __,,.. --N 

-0 
--~ _... 

w 
(... ) 

c -. 

-c 
r 
~ -
~ 

-
: 

~ 
-~2 

;-~ ... 
.i-
~ .=,s;: 
·-:: e 
J-!
rri~ 
::a 
..-c::: 

~44.A tf.Lc6 
DATE"-1 0 



ACTION 2019 006 TULSA COUNTY 

REQUEST FOR PERSONNEL ACTION 

PLEASE TYPE IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING ACTIONS UNDER NATURE OF ACTION 

APPOINTMENTS *SEPARATIONS CHANGES 

REGULAR *RESIGNATION *RETIREMENT INCREASE 

PART-TIME *DISCHARGE *DEATH DEMOTION 

TEMPORARY *REDUCTION IN FORCE CLASSIFICATION 

PROBATIONARY *END OF TEMPORARY EMPLOYMENT ADJUSTMENT 

NAME EMPLOYEE ID PRESENT TITLE PRESENT NATURE OF ACTION NEW TITLE AND 

ORG AND ACCT. NO. NUMBER SALARY JOB TITLE CODE 

CLEMENT SHEILA 18192 HWY CREWMAN II $2,538.80 PROMOTION HWY. OPERATOR II 

30002325-505010 G175 20 % RAISE G029 

HICKMAN PAUL 18069 HWY CREWMAN II $2,538.80 RETURN FROM MEDICAL 

30002325-505010 G175 LEAVE 

I~ IE«:~ \YI IE ~ 
I I ! ~ ~ lfll! JUN - 5 2019 16 

-j I 
TULSA CO UNTY 

HUMAN RES ~URCES 

* SEPARATION AND COBRA REPORT REQUIRED WHEN THIS ACTION APPLIES TO A BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER'S EMPLOYEE 

~~~ --
o,kTEI DEPARTMENT HEAD 

t-5-77 
DATE 

rl:'J 12l l l1 

HIGHWAY-CONSTRUCTION 

DEPARTMENT 

OTHER 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

REHIRE 

TRANSFER 

GRADE DEPT. NEW 

SA SALARY 

D HWY $3,046.56 

CONST 

B HWY 

CONST 

......., 
( /) = --·i ..a 

--{~ <--
C fT'l c: 

-J r- ,_... ~· 

r ,u> --
~ • )> - 1• -. ) N 

1C' ' . .,, c-< \ 
-0 -:; :::'. ,: 

r j ~~- ::i: 
L e:. 
--1 - -. 
-< ~ 

w 
:::,. (~) ..... 

O"' _,. . 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

06/01/19 

06/03/19 

~ = 
:~~ , . 

.~ - ;.;:..::.. 
-:·- · r- r 1 
~_: r-
~J .. ~ 
----·~-= 
:::2i-
i··n c..r.:> 
:x:> 
~-,.,...-.... 

~AAAfii1iz:l 



Page 2 of 

AP 

rovisionary TULSA COUNTY 
. HUMAN RESOURCES 

Temporary 

NAMEand 

ORG. and ACCOUNT 

Beckham, Guymon 
10002575-505010 

Hesterlee, Danny 
10002575-505010 

Davis, Chester 
10002575-505010 

Baker, Steven 
10002575-505010 

Cain, Benjamin 
10002575-505040 

Employee 

NO. 

10043 

18090 

18358 

MICH1'H. WILLIS 
Tulsh i Tul$~·c~f'l{.ifiltk Department 

l)i v '-' , 1 ' • r 71 ii ' Department 

Please write in one of following actions under "nature of action". 

.TIONS 

End of Temp. Employment 

PRESENT TITLE 

and JOB 

TITLE CODE NO. 

Area Mtce. Suprv. 
La Fortune - 1224 

C153 

Construction Ill 
La Fortune - 1224 

G156 

Construction fff 
La Fortune - 1224 

G156 

6/12/2019 

PRESENT 

SALARY 

$5,481 .31 

$2,698.13 

$2,698.13 

P'\."tJ~~~~2 PM 3: 36 
Performance Increase 

Promotion-Demotion 

Re-<:lassification 
~TA.TL. •. 

Sal'WIM~n\~lit- l.Jo\c .. '-\ :Ufv!A 
rrii 1r, 

NATURE RFC[~~~TLE and 

OF JOB TITLE 

ACTION 

Regular 

Correction 

Resignation 

Resignation 

Seasonal 

CODE NO. 

Mtce. fl 
Haikey - 1223 

H159 

Int. FMLA/wp 

Lifeguard 
S. County - 1236 

E257 

OTHER 
leave of Absence 

Rehire 

Transfer 

lateral Transfer 

NEW EFFECTIVE 

GRADE SALARY DATE 

B $1 ,870.27 06/11/19 

B 06/08/19 

D 06/06/19 

D 06/01/19 

A $9.25 06/12/19 

~°i ~~ 



f5)lE~lE~WlEfm 

ln1 JUN 1 2 2019 l1!J 
age 1of2 

Regular 

Provisionary 

Part-Time 

Temporary 

NAME and 

ORG. and ACCOUNT 

Munds, Hailey 

10002575-505030 

Ladd, Christopher 
10002575-505010 

Smith, Cardell 
10002575-505030 

Santos, Andrew 
10002575-505040 

Mills, Randall 
10002575-505010 

Employee 

NO. 

18499 

17878 

18008 

SEPARATIONS 
Resignation Retirement 

*Discharge Death 

*Reduction in Force 

End of Temp. Employment 

PRESENT TITLE 

and JOB 

TITLE CODE NO. 

Cook/Cashier 

S. Lakes - 1237 
H146 

Lifeguard 
S. County - 1236 

E257 

~/2019 

MICYhfL WILLIS 
TULS;q ( (:\;i Tl r,1 ERK 

TuJ:?,C':l Co1-1r;ity J:>a1k Q~p,ar1.(rlent .. 
ZUT'fJUN TL IH J: Jb 

Please write in one of following actions under "nature of action". 

PRESENT 

SALARY 

$7.50 

$9.25 

PAY CHANGES 

Performance Increase ST.l\ l E (Jr- ur~:-\1 i\.)~,. 

TULSA COUi'ffr 
Re-classification RC: CE j\f CD 

Salary Adjustment 

NATURE 

OF 

ACTION 

Resignation 

Regular 

Rehire Part-Time 

Promotion 

Regular 

NEW TITLE and 

JOB TITLE 

CODE NO. 

Golf Course Lead 
La Fortune - 1224 

H509 

Cook/Cashier 
La Fortune - 1234 

H146 

Asst. Pool Mgr. 
S. County - 1236 

E475 

Area Mtce. Suprv. 
Chandler - 1222 

C153 

GRADE 

A 

L 

A 

A 

70 

OTHER 
Leave of Absence 

Rehire 

Transfer 

Lateral Transfer 

NEW 

SALARY 

$2,753.39 

$7.50 

$10.00 

$4,439.19 

Department 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

6/4/19 

06/06/19 

06/11/19 

06/05/19 

06/17/19 

~- 4MtFb~~~ 



TULSA COUNTY 
REQUEST FOR PERSONNEL ACTION 

M/Cf ·! ';f I WILLIS 
TULS!:. '· ! ···; 'V r·"'.1 rRi11 

f t \ - ~ .I I_ ' ' ; , -' ri 11\ 
Page 1 of 1 JUVENILE BUREAU 

LUl9JWJ I? DM '), ~ -
Please write in one of following actions under "nature of action". ~ 

APPOINTMENTS 
Regular 

Probationary 

Part-Time 

Temporary 

On-Call 

SEPARATIONS PAY CHANGES 

NAME and 

ORG. and ACCOUNT 

Gunn, Jermaine 

From: 26003900-505030 

To: 26003900-505010 

EMPLOYEE 

NO. 

14951 

Loe# 7005 

Resignation Retirement 

*Discharge Death 

*Reduction in Force 

End of Temp. Employment 

PRESENT TITLE 

and JOB 

TITLE CODE NO. 

Detention Counselor PT 

E288 

Jones, Justin 

10003725-505010 
15938 I Director 

Loe# 7001 A001 

Troth , Tom 

10003775-505010 
14059 !Intake Counselor 

Loe# 7003 

IoJ lE (C lE ~ w fE rm 
lnl JUN 1 2 019 lW 

TULSA CO lY 
HUMAN RESO RCES 

PRESENT 

SALARY 

12.94 

NATURE 

OF 

ACTION 

Regular Appt 

8326.54 IFMLA withdrawn 

3371 .91 I Resignation 

report required when this action applies to a Board of County Commissioner's employee. 

Performance Increase STA.TE. (Jj- ~ '\!... \!;,JM!\ 
Promotion-Demotion TULSA COUNT'r 

Re-classification REc::-1vc:o 
Salary Adjustment 

NEW TITLE and 

JOB TITLE 

CODE NO. 

Detention Counselor 

E181 

GRADE 

40 

Department 

OTHER 
Leave of Absence 

Rehire 

Transfer 

Lateral Transfer 

NEW I EFFECTIVE 

SALARY DATE 

2,242.89 I 06/10/2019 

05/24/2019 

06/25/2019 

~ 

June 11, 2019 
Date ~ ~~M;--C 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

ME MORAND 

Commissioner K® 

Rosemary Brow 
Juvenile Bureau 

Training Request 

June11,2019 

MtC~AFI~ }ILUS 
TUI c1 , , : . 11 '"'lrRK ~\) \ l..i~ ;· ... ,. u 1 l) t 

UM 
2D 19 UN 12 AH 10: o 

~~AT' · vi ' C (_ ; :-~Ir>-. " 1 , l/' 
T 

~ ,_ v 1._I • 1 

u:_s,t1, COUi\JTr' . . 
REC>: l'.JFf) . 

Please accept and file our request for Juvenile Bureau Drug Court Team staff to attend 
The Quality Improvement Center Conference in Newport Beach, CA on July 9th_ 121h, 2019. 
There are 4 Drug Court Team members requesting to go. 

Cost will not exceed $5665.00 and funds are available from the Drug Court grant. 

Original document submitted to the County Clerk for placement on the Board's June 24, 
2019. 

RB/cp 



Tulsa City-County Health Department 
Agreements  

For BOCC Approval on June 17, 2019 
 
  

Contract 

No. 

Contractor Description Contract Period Amount CMF # 

      

5-44.25 North Tulsa 

Community 

Coalition 

Sponsorship of Men’s 

Health Expo 

6/01/19-6/30/19 $2,500.00  

      

6-118.19 ImageNet 

Consulting 

Lease of 3 Canon Copiers; 

ImageRunner 8505, 

ImagePress C700 and 

ImageRunner Advance 

C333 

7/15/19-7/14/20 $2,035.50/mo.  

      

7-137 Coontz Roofing, Inc. New roof at 5051 S. 129th 

East Ave, JGHC as 

described in contract 

5/15/19-9/30/19 $853,000.00 

As stipulated in 

Article 5 of the 

Contract 

 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      
 

                 

 





Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

10001000

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS               10001000 1921204 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          SIMONSON, TERRY 050819-
051519

266.80

  Department Total 10001000 266.80

10001100

PURCHASING                         10001100 1900983 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091910
BMIT

52.44

PURCHASING                         10001100 1901099 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091909
BMIT

323.08

PURCHASING                         10001100 1910182 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               J D YOUNG 843022 46.95

  Department Total 10001100 422.47

10001175

INSURANCE & CLAIMS                 10001175 1922511 505892 LEGAL SERVICES                BAUM GLASS JAYNE 31362 23,907.70

INSURANCE & CLAIMS                 10001175 1922515 505892 LEGAL SERVICES                STEIDLEY & NEAL 2314-000 675.00

  Department Total 10001175 24,582.70

10001200

GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENSE         10001200 1900259 505890 PUBLICATION & ADVERTISING   
  

BH MEDIA GROUP HOLD 0000570778 576.00

GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENSE         10001200 1916164 506072 BANK SERVICE CHARGES         RPS HOLDINGS INC 103658 1,731.64

  Department Total 10001200 2,307.64

10001225

LEASES                             10001225 1921628 505909 RENTALS & LEASES              ART DECO LOFTS JULY-2019-
PYTHIAN

22,923.27

  Department Total 10001225 22,923.27

10001350

COUNTY AUDIT                  FO18A 10001350 1922060 505520 AUDIT FEES                    OKLAHOMA STATE AUDIT 114804 241.00

  Department Total 10001350 241.00

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 1 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

10001400

COUNTY EXTENSION CENTER            10001400 1901589 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BONICELLI, MICHELLE 050819-
052919

95.50

COUNTY EXTENSION CENTER            10001400 1901595 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GIES, CATHERINE 050319-
053119

144.00

COUNTY EXTENSION CENTER            10001400 1901662 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

NICHOLSON, LISA 050219-
051919

104.50

COUNTY EXTENSION CENTER            10001400 1901669 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

PEVERLEY, BRUCE L 050119-
052919

108.60

COUNTY EXTENSION CENTER            10001400 1912317 505538 OTHER BLDG MAINT SERVICES 
    

MCJ SERVICES LLC 06012019 780.00

COUNTY EXTENSION CENTER            10001400 1917517 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          BONICELLI, MICHELLE 050219-
053019

219.60

COUNTY EXTENSION CENTER            10001400 1919519 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          NICHOLSON, LISA 050719-
052919

190.30

COUNTY EXTENSION CENTER            10001400 1921957 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMAZON.COM LLC 44876385633
4

65.97

  Department Total 10001400 1,708.47

10001475

DISTRICT ATTORNEY-CNTY PORTION      10001475 1918881 506303 STATE PAYROLL                 DISTRICT ATTORNEYS JUNE-2019-
PAYROLL

60,000.00

  Department Total 10001475 60,000.00

10001575

SAFETY & EDUCATION                 10001575 1908880 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

NATIONAL SAFETY COUN INV-1682890 65.00

SAFETY & EDUCATION                 10001575 1922748 505940 TRAINING                      WALKER, BRIAN K SPRING-
2019

488.46

SAFETY & EDUCATION                 10001575 1922758 505940 TRAINING                      HUCK, ARIEL SPRING-
2019

732.69

  Department Total 10001575 1,286.15

10001670

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902102 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091866
BMIT

156.90

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902102 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091866
BMIT

13.59

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 2 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902137 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092033
BMIT-A

117.60

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902137 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092033
BMIT-A

28.50

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902162 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091863
BMIT

283.40

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902162 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091863
BMIT

254.61

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902184 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091968
BMIT

145.84

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902184 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091968
BMIT

12.49

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902206 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091957
BMIT

228.75

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902206 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091957
BMIT

14.40

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902219 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091859
BMIT

156.90

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902219 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091859
BMIT

7.31

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902230 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091861
BMIT

156.90

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902230 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091861
BMIT

14.79

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902241 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092119
BMIT

174.81

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902241 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092119
BMIT

43.37

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902252 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091967
BMIT

229.27

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902252 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091967
BMIT

301.64

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902264 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092120
BMIT

221.50

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902264 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092120
BMIT

32.72

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902276 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092122
BMIT

221.50

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902276 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092122
BMIT

32.16

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 3 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902287 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091867
BMIT

153.29

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902287 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091867
BMIT

13.31

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902298 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091860
BMIT

252.54

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902298 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091860
BMIT

0.00

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902309 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091956
BMIT

228.75

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902309 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091956
BMIT

0.00

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902320 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN09215B
MIT

254.10

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902320 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN09215B
MIT

0.00

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902331 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091856
BMIT

153.29

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902331 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091856
BMIT

46.21

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902354 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091862
BMIT

153.29

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902354 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091862
BMIT

9.65

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902410 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091966
BMIT

217.50

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902410 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091966
BMIT

0.00

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902420 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092121
BMIT

153.29

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1902420 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092121
BMIT

3.54

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1916837 505551 POSTAGE                       UNITED PARCEL SERVIC 00007E668E
229

66.21

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1922661 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092111
BMIT

4,106.85

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1922767 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

CROWLEY MICROGRAP PMC190519 20,700.00

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES            10001670 1923080 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092033
BMIT-B

149.67

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 4 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

  Department Total 10001670 29,510.44

10001725

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION CM-263557 -40.92

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION CM-263559 -4.52

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263697 61.00

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263903 102.16

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263783 164.00

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263601 281.08

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263543 283.00

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263734 305.58

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263564 320.58

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263475 324.75

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263761 355.11

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263503 360.90

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263578 399.65

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263671 480.32

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263414 613.95

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263691 735.18

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263486 738.00

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263801 790.68

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263463 857.94

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263458 881.97

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263821 1,387.24

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263949 1,461.94

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263242 1,571.62

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920090 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               W M CORPORATION 263719 1,704.79

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS CM-
C2027804-0

-211.50

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS CM-
C2030983-0

-39.12

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS CM-
C2026814-0

-32.97

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS CM-
C2030160-0

-24.96

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 5 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036545-0 10.55

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034103-1 12.72

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2035401-0 14.61

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033418-1 14.96

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2037003-0 15.90

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2032212-0 16.16

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031919-0 17.20

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033275-0 20.01

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033273-0 20.83

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2035109-1 25.44

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034869-0 26.80

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2030098-0 28.80

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029338-0 29.76

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033302-0 30.88

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033467-0 31.78

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031244-0 40.48

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2035394-0 40.56

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031580-0 42.40

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2026814-0 43.96

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034729-0 44.84

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036457-0 45.06

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2026839-0 55.72

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031196-0 59.28

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034203-0 68.72

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2032932-0 68.90

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033315-0 94.15

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031836-0 104.18

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031666-0 123.77

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2032142-0 137.06

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036001-0 143.06

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036953-0 146.91

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2030160-0 195.22

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2028233-0 198.71

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034873-1 203.13

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 6 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2035109-0 231.48

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2030983-0 254.85

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034873-0 266.55

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033469-0 276.71

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2032532-0 277.99

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036177-0 278.81

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031800-0 290.93

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034478-0 292.80

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2035507-0 303.11

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036613-0 335.31

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2035585-0 357.33

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031714-0 366.39

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036503-0 370.20

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034103-0 391.15

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033418-0 399.78

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033300-0 427.06

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036764-0 451.05

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034159-1 489.44

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2027804-0 553.05

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2032277-0 577.31

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031816-0 737.05

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2030020-0 939.84

CENTRAL OFFICE SUPPLY              10001725 1920457 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2034159-0 1,239.41

  Department Total 10001725 26,107.56

10001750

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1902127 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091955
BMIT

769.00

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1904765 707510 LOAN INTEREST PAYMENT        J D YOUNG LEASING LL 6190291 595.64

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1904765 707500 LOAN PRINCIPAL PAYMENT       J D YOUNG LEASING LL 6190291 3,539.36

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1915535 505650 LAUNDRY,LINEN & DRY 
CLEANING  

CINTAS CORPORATION 063265817 40.24

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1915536 505650 LAUNDRY,LINEN & DRY 
CLEANING  

CINTAS CORPORATION 063268953 40.24

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 7 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1915537 505650 LAUNDRY,LINEN & DRY 
CLEANING  

CINTAS CORPORATION 063272035 40.24

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920450 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             VERITIV OPERATING 012-
60247510

1,022.40

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920450 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             VERITIV OPERATING 012-
60244465

1,468.50

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920462 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01098458 93.00

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920462 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01093876 120.75

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920462 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01086263 317.40

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920462 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01087270 326.35

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920462 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01082654 377.00

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920462 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01084482 447.60

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920462 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01084271 490.80

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920668 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01102104 2,524.99

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920670 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01096509 288.35

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920670 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01097550 385.00

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920670 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             MIDLAND PAPER COMPAN IN01096456 1,041.95

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1920675 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             VERITIV OPERATING 012-
60249155

2,556.00

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1922062 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             JDS INDUSTRIES INC 8078954 163.50

PRINTING SERVICE                   10001750 1922062 505814 PRINTING SUPPLIES             JDS INDUSTRIES INC 8078953 444.15

  Department Total 10001750 17,092.46

10001775

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1914512 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

COMDATA INC 20314739 3,205.41

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1916525 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

SOUTHERN TIRE MART 3500015696 69.95

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1918170 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

ADVANCE ALARMS INC 1735696 25.00

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1918171 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

US FLEET TRACKING 294652 39.95

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1920471 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

MARC MILLER BUICK 704571-PNW 9.44

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1920471 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

MARC MILLER BUICK 709208-PNW 76.90

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 8 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1920471 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

MARC MILLER BUICK 703776-PNW 122.81

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1920471 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

MARC MILLER BUICK 702270-PNW 554.17

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1920659 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

AVP-METRO PETROLEUM 1305100 1,124.50

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1920659 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

AVP-METRO PETROLEUM 1305306 1,911.98

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1920659 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

AVP-METRO PETROLEUM 1306004 2,642.70

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1922105 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

CLASSIC TULSA BG LLC 167819 393.67

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1922105 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

CLASSIC TULSA BG LLC 168081 508.88

FLEET MAINTENANCE                  10001775 1922601 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

OZARK MOUNTAIN 67258 15,402.51

  Department Total 10001775 26,087.87

10001850

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1902505 505859 OTHER SERVICES                AMERICAN SERVICES IN 0039320-IN 125.00

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1914923 505859 OTHER SERVICES                AMERICAN SERVICES IN 0039318-IN 75.00

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921647 607076 DATA PROCESSING 
SOFTWARE      

SHI INTERNATIONAL CO B09986938 36,263.58

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063264132 20.10

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063267225 20.10

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063270358 20.10

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063264131 114.98

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063267224 114.98

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063270357 114.98

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063265590 252.01

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063268713 252.01

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921771 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063271804 290.45

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921776 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063266788 88.68

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1921776 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063269920 88.68

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1922768 505859 OTHER SERVICES                SCHINDLER ELEVATOR 8105067054 3,450.67

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 9 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

BLDG OPS ADMIN                     10001850 1922960 505859 OTHER SERVICES                FINAL TOUCH CLEANING 16134 750.00

  Department Total 10001850 42,041.32

10001875

CARPENTRY SHOP                     10001875 1920099 505741 BUILDING MATERIALS            SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO, 45646116140
519

165.88

CARPENTRY SHOP                     10001875 1920099 505741 BUILDING MATERIALS            SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO, 37247116140
419

231.39

  Department Total 10001875 397.27

10001925

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1914858 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

J D YOUNG 843025 234.75

BLDG MAINTENANCE              BO9P1 10001925 1918767 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

GREEN COUNTRY INTERI 23905 13,570.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1920522 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

DAVCO MECHANICAL 44970 4,775.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1920544 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

ANIXTER INC 105558385 826.47

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1920867 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 9830761111B 50.49

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1920914 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

C & C TILE & CARPET CG904577 116.85

BLDG MAINTENANCE              BS5P2 10001925 1921806 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

VOSS LIGHTING 30182253-00 7,218.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1921938 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 9830761111 2,241.93

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1921982 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

SHI INTERNATIONAL CO B10026342 3,656.70

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1921985 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 522817542-
00001

1.98

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1922656 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

W W GRAINGER INC 811134444-
2019

128.68

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1922794 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

AMAZON.COM LLC 43593686369
4

87.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1922794 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

AMAZON.COM LLC 54349396867
8

89.57

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 10 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

BLDG MAINTENANCE                   10001925 1922956 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

AMERICAN SERVICES IN 0039252-IN 2,500.00

  Department Total 10001925 35,497.42

10001930

BLDG MAINT TC HQ BUILDING          10001930 1911305 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

HAMILTON WATER SERVI 19157 375.00

BLDG MAINT TC HQ BUILDING          10001930 1920237 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 956-369-472-
0-2

3,008.31

BLDG MAINT TC HQ BUILDING          10001930 1921981 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

VOSS LIGHTING 30182361-00 94.14

BLDG MAINT TC HQ BUILDING          10001930 1922768 505859 OTHER SERVICES                SCHINDLER ELEVATOR 8105067054 2,000.00

  Department Total 10001930 5,477.45

10001975

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1911303 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              HAMILTON WATER SERVI 19100 205.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1912780 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VEOLIA ENERGY TULSA 20789429764
6

34,260.69

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306547 42.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306542 44.13

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306544 62.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306581 62.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306543 87.49

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306546 113.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306541 119.23

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306545 135.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306540 410.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1914885 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 956-369-472-
0-2

33,003.50

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1921050 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005307478-
A

255.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1921051 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005307478 255.00

RENTALS & UTILITIES                10001975 1922170 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1021-8214-4 480.33

  Department Total 10001975 69,534.37

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 11 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

10002000

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1916011 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              OKLAHOMA STATE REGEN 19060112490 1,850.00

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1916196 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              COXCOM INC 001-6311-
065692001

99.95

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1919655 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              COXCOM INC 001-6311-
069557001

455.40

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1919924 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

DOUBLEHORN COMM 000000277 689.24

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1920382 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE         GOVCONNECTION INC 56722854 123.76

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1920382 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE         GOVCONNECTION INC 56726403 194.27

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1920382 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE         GOVCONNECTION INC 56804254 270.00

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921611 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AT&T CORP 918-A64-
0002-804-8

615.50

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921618 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AT&T CORP 027-10337-14 1,064.46

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921636 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE          AMAZON.COM LLC 43784549978
7

7.49

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921636 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE          AMAZON.COM LLC 44387599589
5

19.95

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921636 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE          AMAZON.COM LLC 45739474534
7

22.64

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921636 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE          AMAZON.COM LLC 73865734738
4

23.99

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921636 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE          AMAZON.COM LLC 95749789563
3

24.95

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921636 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE          AMAZON.COM LLC 44363384356
8

29.95

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921636 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE          AMAZON.COM LLC 45789596868
6

784.51

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921637 505940 TRAINING                      AMAZON.COM LLC 55977387335 282.15

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921637 505940 TRAINING                      AMAZON.COM LLC 56378478667
9

361.43

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921637 505940 TRAINING                      AMAZON.COM LLC 79365886349
5

399.00

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921641 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            FASTENAL COMPANY OKTU349416 274.15

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921995 505562 DP-SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE  
     

SHI INTERNATIONAL CO b10046027 424.00

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1921996 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE          AMAZON.COM LLC 68687575733
7

119.95

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 12 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

IT GENERAL                         10002000 1922441 505562 DP-SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE  
     

SHI INTERNATIONAL CO B10051727 4,317.00

  Department Total 10002000 12,453.74

10002275

COUNTY INSPECTOR                   10002275 1921934 607071 DATA PROCESSING 
EQUIPMENT     

CDW LLC SKC4257 7,916.40

COUNTY INSPECTOR                   10002275 1922413 607071 DATA PROCESSING 
EQUIPMENT     

CDW LLC SKT1568 4,381.02

COUNTY INSPECTOR                   10002275 1922415 505566 NON-CAPITAL HARDWARE         CDW LLC SKV7635 528.50

  Department Total 10002275 12,825.92

10002525

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1913937 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              OKLAHOMA TURNPIKE 20190595531 77.65

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1923355 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VERDIGRIS VALLEY ELE 3211422500 30.60

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1923355 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VERDIGRIS VALLEY ELE 3211437600 30.60

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1923355 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VERDIGRIS VALLEY ELE 3211437500 30.70

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1923355 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VERDIGRIS VALLEY ELE 3221430100 32.26

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1923355 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VERDIGRIS VALLEY ELE 3211437000 64.16

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1923355 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VERDIGRIS VALLEY ELE 3211419201 332.10

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1923355 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VERDIGRIS VALLEY ELE 3211421500 334.64

COUNTY ENGINEERS-GEN               10002525 1923355 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              VERDIGRIS VALLEY ELE 3211419501 974.13

  Department Total 10002525 1,906.84

10002550

LEVEE MAINTENANCE                  10002550 1900926 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306517 26.00

LEVEE MAINTENANCE                  10002550 1922745 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA ELECTRIC LLC TE0809 166.00

LEVEE MAINTENANCE                  10002550 1922800 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0830-401586 45.48

  Department Total 10002550 237.48

10002575

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1916815 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1033-2443-0 1,835.54

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1916890 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              ONEOK INC 211101262-
1787587-27

115.39

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 13 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1916912 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 950-444-610-
0-2

61.53

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1916912 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 954-121-771-
0-7

80.47

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1916912 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-970-294-
0-2

93.65

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1918580 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 955-580-203-
0-1

147.96

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1918604 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 956-490-203-
0-2

170.36

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1918640 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1021-2170-4 23.06

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920844 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-653-743-
0-1

19.88

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920844 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 954-201-203-
0-5

20.56

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920844 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 954-022-768-
0-2

60.83

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920844 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-641-186-
0-0

61.06

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920845 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-301-203-
0-0

11.31

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920845 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 953-983-596-
1-2

139.11

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920845 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 958-990-203-
0-9

1,267.56

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920847 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 954-964-762-
0-1

365.05

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920848 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 958-580-139-
0-7

48.35

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920848 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 953-908-072-
0-4

162.30

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920848 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 950-983-221-
1-8

323.74

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920849 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 950-970-203-
0-9

36.95

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920849 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 950-275-103-
0-4

46.68

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920849 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-770-203-
0-6

229.40

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 14 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920849 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 951-570-203-
0-6

288.66

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920849 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 954-670-203-
0-1

1,370.79

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920858 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              ONEOK INC 211149562-
1832311-73

38.42

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920858 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              ONEOK INC 210144524-
1136465-09

347.55

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920861 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              ONEOK INC 210140724-
1132884-91

110.79

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920865 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1074-6593-2 478.63

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920865 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1056-7787-6 1,025.09

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920868 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1061-3022-2 28.58

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920874 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              SAPULPA RURAL WATER 24414 23.00

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920877 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              WATER IMPROVEMENT 779 28.00

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1920877 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              WATER IMPROVEMENT 1214 28.17

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1921699 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              ONEOK INC 211080035-
1768299-64

42.77

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1922922 506082 CONTRACTED SERVICES          ARENASERVE LLC SLG-0419 1,037.56

PARK OPERATIONS-GENERAL            10002575 1922922 506082 CONTRACTED SERVICES          ARENASERVE LLC LAFG-0419 2,224.27

  Department Total 10002575 12,393.02

10002750

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1906013 506150 LABORATORY & X-RAY FEES      
 

STERICYCLE INC 4008642374 37.85

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1911881 505775 MEDICAL,SURGICAL & 
CLINICAL   

PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION 89516740 4.50

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1912619 506040 CHARITY FOOD                  WAREHOUSE MARKET INC 01016371 17.96

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1912619 506040 CHARITY FOOD                  WAREHOUSE MARKET INC 00501748 20.00

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1912619 506040 CHARITY FOOD                  WAREHOUSE MARKET INC 00691334 33.17

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1912619 506040 CHARITY FOOD                  WAREHOUSE MARKET INC 6227 38.68

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1912619 506040 CHARITY FOOD                  WAREHOUSE MARKET INC 00536306 39.48

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1912619 506040 CHARITY FOOD                  WAREHOUSE MARKET INC 00688779 39.76

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1921313 506080 CONTRACTED MEDICAL 
SERVICES   

BROKEN ARROW FAMILY 052119-
052319-SOC

750.00

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1921313 506080 CONTRACTED MEDICAL 
SERVICES   

BROKEN ARROW FAMILY 051419-
051619-SOC

825.00

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 15 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

REMEDIAL AID                       10002750 1921498 505538 OTHER BLDG MAINT SERVICES 
    

C & C TILE & CARPET CG904625 1,796.00

  Department Total 10002750 3,602.40

10002775

SOCIAL SERV OPERATIONS        ES7P1 10002775 1921719 607079 OTHER M&E AND MATERIALS    
   

ULINE INC 108603739 715.35

SOCIAL SERV OPERATIONS             10002775 1921905 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               LOWES CM-75563 -200.84

SOCIAL SERV OPERATIONS             10002775 1921905 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               LOWES 75337 1,148.08

  Department Total 10002775 1,662.59

10002800

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1918445 505746 EMERGENCY GROCERIES          
 

TULSA BEEF & PROVISI 00184-2019 994.02

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1918446 505746 EMERGENCY GROCERIES          
 

TULSA BEEF & PROVISI 00185-2019 1,012.61

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1918447 505746 EMERGENCY GROCERIES          
 

FRONTIER PRODUCE INC 444262 366.88

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1918449 505746 EMERGENCY GROCERIES          
 

SYSCO OKLAHOMA LLC CM-
126839139

-0.98

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1918449 505746 EMERGENCY GROCERIES          
 

SYSCO OKLAHOMA LLC CM-
126847822

-0.98

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1918449 505746 EMERGENCY GROCERIES          
 

SYSCO OKLAHOMA LLC 126851269 1,200.80

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1921105 505525 EQUIP REPAIR & 
MAINTENANCE    

MCINTOSH CORPORATION 950005340 368.54

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1921441 506100 EMER SHELTER RESIDENT 
CARE    

ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2033299-0 258.70

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1921593 505525 EQUIP REPAIR & 
MAINTENANCE    

MCINTOSH CORPORATION 950005284 904.33

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1921688 506100 EMER SHELTER RESIDENT 
CARE    

AMAZON.COM LLC 43546553865
3

38.97

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1921689 506100 EMER SHELTER RESIDENT 
CARE    

HEALTHCARE WHOLE 1921689 322.50

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1921690 506100 EMER SHELTER RESIDENT 
CARE    

LOWES 01206 18.58

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1921790 505746 EMERGENCY GROCERIES          
 

SYSCO OKLAHOMA LLC 126851270 1,200.88

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 16 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

EMERGENCY SHELTER                  10002800 1923001 505525 EQUIP REPAIR & 
MAINTENANCE    

CROWL MECHANICAL 96854 527.00

  Department Total 10002800 7,211.85

10002875

PHARMACY                           10002875 1907517 506170 PHARMACY SUPPLIES             RECYCLE AMERICA HOLD M168868 55.40

PHARMACY                           10002875 1921116 506170 PHARMACY SUPPLIES             BIORX PHARMACEU 119863 1,611.72

PHARMACY                           10002875 1921563 505851 ARMORED CAR SERVICE           LOOMIS ARMORED US IN 12427032 682.90

  Department Total 10002875 2,350.02

10002925

ELECT STAFF                        10002925 1912568 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

OKLAHOMA TURNPIKE 20190596483 1.70

ELECT STAFF                        10002925 1921900 505734 ELECTION SUPPLIES             NORTH AMERICAN R in372109 165.21

ELECT STAFF                        10002925 1922148 505734 ELECTION SUPPLIES             W W GRAINGER INC 9186860665 34.43

ELECT STAFF                        10002925 1922489 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CDW LLC SLP6981 429.66

ELECT STAFF                        10002925 1922646 505940 TRAINING                      PRYOR LEARNING SOL 034276753-
19131

299.00

ELECT STAFF                        10002925 1922647 505940 TRAINING                      BH MEDIA GROUP HOLD 080319 304.00

  Department Total 10002925 1,234.00

10002950

COUNTY TREASURER                   10002950 1906323 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            J D YOUNG 843023 46.95

  Department Total 10002950 46.95

10003150

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1916540 505920 SUBSCRIPTIONS & 
MEMBERSHIPS   

LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA 6695033-
20190531-1

90.00

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1920820 505920 SUBSCRIPTIONS & 
MEMBERSHIPS   

LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA 6695033-
20190531-0

90.00

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1920922 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BISHOP, SHIRLENE    050419-
051419

31.90

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1920923 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ISABELLE, AUDREY 050819-
051819

41.18

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1920929 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ZAMORA, DUSTY       050119 23.20

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 17 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1921084 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MARTIN, SARA 050419-
050419

22.04

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1921392 607071 DATA PROCESSING 
EQUIPMENT     

CDW LLC SHH3291 9,030.00

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1921392 607071 DATA PROCESSING 
EQUIPMENT     

CDW LLC SKD2853 10,313.00

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1921392 505738 NON-CAPITAL OFFICE 
EQUIPMENT  

CDW LLC SHH3291 3,075.00

COUNTY ASSESSOR                    10003150 1922119 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HICKMAN, IRENE 051819-
053019

25.52

  Department Total 10003150 22,741.84

10003599

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1918155 505909 RENTALS & LEASES              IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091962
BMIT

451.65

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921369 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025548 45.58

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921370 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025549 113.95

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921371 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025550 91.16

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921372 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025551 136.74

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921373 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025552 68.37

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921374 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025560 45.58

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921375 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025553 45.58

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921376 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025554 91.16

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921377 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025555 22.79

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921378 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025556 22.79

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921379 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025557 22.79

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921380 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025558 68.37

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1921381 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025559 22.79

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1923151 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WALKER COMPANIES MAZZA-
NOTARY-
2019

92.50

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1923155 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WALKER COMPANIES PEEPLES-
NOTARY-
2019

92.50

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1923156 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WALKER COMPANIES BAKER-
NOTARY-
2019

92.50

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 18 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1923157 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WALKER COMPANIES WILSON-
NOTARY-
2019

92.50

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1923158 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WALKER COMPANIES HUCK-
NOTARY-
2019

92.50

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1923159 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WALKER COMPANIES GORDILLO-
NOTARY-
2019

92.50

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1923160 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WALKER COMPANIES BRACKETT A 92.50

SHERIFF WARRANT DIVISION           10003599 1923161 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WALKER COMPANIES HENSHAW-
M-2019

92.50

  Department Total 10003599 1,989.30

10003600

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1904751 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            STATE OF OKLAHOMA 31-1900734 300.00

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1904752 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            STATE OF OKLAHOMA 31-1900734-
A

300.00

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1914617 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA COFFEE SERVICE 012564 86.37

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1914617 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA COFFEE SERVICE 010049 121.54

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1917744 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            MERRIFIELD OFFICE SO 1065876-001 252.18

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1918126 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1087-0547-6 45.58

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1921674 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BEN E KEITH FOODS 64361075 82.95

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1921810 505719 MOTOR VEHICLES-
MAINTENANCE    

ADAMSON INDUSTRIES C 142963 338.55

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1921839 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BEN E KEITH FOODS 64361080 414.75

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1921844 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025563 499.95

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1921845 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025564 499.95

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1921846 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025565 499.95

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1921847 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BAYSINGER POLICE 1025566 499.95

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1921873 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BASS PRO OUTDOOR 02540-
000000304

223.72

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1922544 607050 FURNITURE & FIXTURES          MERRIFIELD OFFICE SO 0171462-001 429.99

SHERIFF'S DEPT-GENERAL FUND        10003600 1922544 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            MERRIFIELD OFFICE SO 0171462-001 0.00

  Department Total 10003600 4,595.43

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 19 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

10003725

JUVENILE ADMINISTRATION            10003725 1917792 505904 OFFI EQUIP & FURN-RENT & 
LEA  

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN092123
BMIT

233.79

  Department Total 10003725 233.79

10003750

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1915781 505859 OTHER SERVICES                TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF 312939 5,758.44

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1917600 505859 OTHER SERVICES                TULSA COUNTY SHERIFF 313936 5,758.44

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919341 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

LAFORTUNE, KATHRYN 05-02-19-05-
31-19

55.68

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919342 505854 SPECIAL SERVICES              RECYCLE AMERICA HOLD M068867 185.74

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919767 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BAKER, KELLI 050219-
053119

48.72

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919768 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BENJAMIN, SENECA 050319-
053019

52.20

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919771 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GORDON, BARRY 050119-
053119

64.38

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919772 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HASSELL, LAURA 050219-
053119

71.34

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919773 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HOWARD, GABRIELLE 050119-
052919

55.68

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919774 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MITCHELL, AIMEE 050219-
053119

62.64

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919775 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ROYCE, PAULA 050119-
053119

269.12

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1919776 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SIMPSON, WANDA 050119-
053119

65.54

JUVENILE PROBATION                 10003750 1921951 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ADVANCED INDUSTRIAL 251833 57.51

  Department Total 10003750 12,505.43

20101635

DENTAL SELF INSURANCE              20101635 1918907 505144 DENTAL CLAIMS                 DELTA DENTAL OF OKLA 0008994-
MAY-2019

58,552.89

DENTAL SELF INSURANCE              20101635 1918907 506085 EXPENSES FOR 
ADMINISTRATION   

DELTA DENTAL OF OKLA 0008994-
MAY-2019

5,855.29

  Department Total 20101635 64,408.18

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 20 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

20101640

HEALTH DEPT DENTAL SELF INSURA      20101640 1918907 505144 DENTAL CLAIMS                 DELTA DENTAL OF OKLA 0008994-
MAY-2019

19,412.77

HEALTH DEPT DENTAL SELF INSURA      20101640 1918907 506085 EXPENSES FOR 
ADMINISTRATION   

DELTA DENTAL OF OKLA 0008994-
MAY-2019

1,941.28

  Department Total 20101640 21,354.05

20202585

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1910012 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1033-3765-5 81.43

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1910012 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1036-8219-1 117.64

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1912561 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CENTERPOINT ENERG 3700173 61.30

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1912561 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CENTERPOINT ENERG 3700183 67.86

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1912561 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CENTERPOINT ENERG 3700193 192.65

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1918566 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              OG&E 131187274-9 24.94

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1918566 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              OG&E 126934-9 53.74

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1918566 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              OG&E 24901324 557.49

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1918566 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              OG&E 127644014-4 1,074.05

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1920833 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 950-082-695-
1-6

19.88

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1920833 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 955-142-571-
2-0

19.88

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1920833 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-739-202-
0-2

72.44

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1920854 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              ONEOK INC 212730452-
2505760-64

114.15

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1920866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1033-2441-4 967.38

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1920866 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1036-8206-8 980.14

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1920876 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              SPERRY UTILITY SERVI 985 24.00

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1921297 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

COXCOM INC 002-6311-
066865001

225.70

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1921299 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

COXCOM INC 001-6311-
026106701

123.05

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1921300 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

COXCOM INC 002-6311-
069557001

96.99

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1921478 505886 OTHER PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES   

MCCORKLE, MARY MELIS MAY-2019-
PAYROLL

6,993.12

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 21 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1921480 505886 OTHER PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES   

MCCORKLE, MARY MELIS MAY-
SALARY-
2019

2,000.00

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1921696 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1028-7422-9 13,178.79

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1921978 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 19-028 100.00

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1922771 707300 REVENUE BOND PRINCIPAL       
 

BANK OF OKLAHOMA NA BOK062019 42,422.00

  Department Total 20202585 69,568.62

20202600

GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE              20202600 1919803 505536 PLUMBING SERVICE              MARQUIS HARDWARE CM-160923 -22.95

GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE              20202600 1919803 505536 PLUMBING SERVICE              MARQUIS HARDWARE 160915 22.95

GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE              20202600 1919803 505536 PLUMBING SERVICE              MARQUIS HARDWARE 160481 198.36

GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE              20202600 1921578 505810 WELDING SUPPLIES              TULSA GAS & GEAR LLC 50122596 688.90

GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE              20202600 1921643 505763 SAFETY MATERIAL & SUPPLIES 
   

OKLAHOMA DEPARTM 2015-2019 40.00

GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE              20202600 1921645 505541 SOD/SEED                      OKLAHOMA DEPARTM 00300 0.00

GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE              20202600 1921645 505920 SUBSCRIPTIONS & 
MEMBERSHIPS   

OKLAHOMA DEPARTM 00300 100.00

GROUNDS & MAINTENANCE              20202600 1922197 505539 BLDGS & GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE   

OFFICE DEPOT INC 32264471400
1

296.45

  Department Total 20202600 1,323.71

20202650

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921351 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 64341926 150.71

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921351 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 64360924 431.40

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921351 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 64355605 623.69

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921354 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0162-364526 13.18

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921354 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 4601-254028 31.85

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921354 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0162-366488 43.66

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921354 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0162-363592 136.04

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 22 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921354 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0162-368506 141.09

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921765 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BOTTLING GROUP LLC 71438307-B 1,080.36

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1921767 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 646363349 267.30

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1922584 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 64364548 99.12

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1922584 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 64361486 1,006.36

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1922586 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 64362865 274.93

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1922586 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 64363926 290.51

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1922586 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BEN E KEITH FOODS 64356142 476.59

LAFORTUNE GOLF COURSE              20202650 1922589 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

BOTTLING GROUP LLC 71438307-A 1,243.11

  Department Total 20202650 6,309.90

20202675

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1903818 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

TULSA GAS & GEAR LLC 80008973 27.00

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1903818 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

TULSA GAS & GEAR LLC 80009178 27.00

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1903818 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

TULSA GAS & GEAR LLC 80009169 45.00

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063258171 62.39

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063261283 62.39

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063264436 62.39

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063267537 62.39

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063256175 78.10

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063259281 78.10

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 23 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063262406 78.10

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063265530 78.10

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1920445 506175 PURCHASES FOR RESALE-
PARKS    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063268653 78.10

SOUTHLAKES GOLF COURSE             20202675 1921794 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 2075-157581 198.70

  Department Total 20202675 937.76

20404026

COURT CLERK                        20404026 1921418 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

CDW LLC SKB8942 1,844.50

COURT CLERK                        20404026 1922682 505903 MACH & EQUIP-RENT & LEA      TULSA COFFEE SERVICE 012561-2019 45.98

  Department Total 20404026 1,890.48

21003050

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920887 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

AUTRY, CHARLES H 051319-
053119

100.92

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920889 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BENNEFIELD, JASON 051319-
051719

81.78

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920890 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BIDDLE, JENNIFER M 052819 22.04

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920891 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BOHLEN, PENNY 042919-
053119

387.44

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920892 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BROWN, DANIEL 042919-
052319

196.62

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920893 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BUSBY, BARON 42919-
053119

278.40

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920896 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

FARROW, A LEE 042919-
053119

315.52

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920897 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

FOX, NATHAN 042919-
052819

252.30

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920898 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

FLY, AMANDA 042919-
052319

118.32

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920899 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GRASS, TIM 050919-
052319

162.98

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920901 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HODGES, ALISON 042919-
052119

129.92

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 24 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920902 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

JORDAN, TIMOTHY 050619-
051619

55.68

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920904 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

LAAKSO, TAMMY 042919-
051019

44.66

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920905 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

LAWHEAD, RON 042919-
053119

350.90

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920906 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

LAY, ZACH 042919-
053019

129.92

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920907 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MARRACCINI, RACHEL 050819-
052319

114.84

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920908 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MCGINNIS, STEVEN 050719-
053119

107.88

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920909 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MILLER, MICHAEL 042919-
053119

503.44

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920910 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MOFFITT, DARLA 042919-
053119

353.80

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920912 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MOORE, JODY 043019-
052419

299.86

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920913 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

NEWBERRY, DANIEL 050319-
051019

31.32

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920915 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

PERKINS, CANDACE 042916-
052419

165.30

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920916 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

POUNDS, BRIAN K 042919-
051419

283.62

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920917 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ROTERT, JERON 052219-
052419

37.70

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920918 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

RUDY, ZACHARY 050619-
053119

99.76

ASSESSOR VISUAL INSP               21003050 1920919 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

UNGER, ERIN 042919-
053119

263.32

  Department Total 21003050 4,888.24

23003600

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND    SA13P 23003600 1910086 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

ECONOMY LUMBER CO IN 26459 983.98

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND    SA13P 23003600 1913931 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA DWMS00000
469046

5,507.82

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1914599 505868 PATROL ANIMAL CARE            COLLINSVILLE LIVESTO 90573 81.60

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1914617 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA COFFEE SERVICE 012567 100.29

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 25 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1915239 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            A & N TRAILER PARTS 00316762 196.55

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1915239 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            A & N TRAILER PARTS 00316312 234.96

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1916655 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            PRECISION DELTA CORP 13904 6,169.80

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1916655 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            PRECISION DELTA CORP 14119 8,280.00

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1917525 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO, 82480163730
519

599.43

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1917905 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

ECONOMY LUMBER CO IN 27996 2,390.32

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918414 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

ECONOMY LUMBER CO IN 27782 399.67

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918415 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

ECONOMY LUMBER CO IN 28130 379.92

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918416 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

ECONOMY LUMBER CO IN 24513 400.00

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918417 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

ECONOMY LUMBER CO IN 24330 399.10

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918573 505855 EQUIP SERVICE AGREEMENTS  
    

SCHINDLER ELEVATOR 8105076981 806.70

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918586 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ORDERED WAVE LLC 0035085 99.00

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918618 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 952-841-791-
3-2

139.28

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918801 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CINTAS CORPORATION 063266789 39.78

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1918801 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CINTAS CORPORATION 063269921 39.78

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1920094 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

DCI COMMUNICATIONS 615605 345.05

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1921764 505740 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
EXPENSE  

ECONOMY LUMBER CO IN 24570 497.62

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1922555 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TROPHY & PLAQUE PLUS 71081 45.95

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1922666 505868 PATROL ANIMAL CARE            COLLINSVILLE LIVESTO 90633 70.00

SHERIFF'S DEPT - CASH FUND         23003600 1922666 505868 PATROL ANIMAL CARE            COLLINSVILLE LIVESTO 90576 224.40

  Department Total 23003600 28,431.00

23003602

ARM OF LAW                         23003602 1912645 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BASS PRO OUTDOOR 02540-
000000305

938.97

  Department Total 23003602 938.97

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 26 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

23203644

USER REVENUES - JAIL               23203644 1916696 506082 CONTRACTED SERVICES           ELIOR INC INV20000484
53

32,740.64

  Department Total 23203644 32,740.64

24003325

COUNTY CLERK RECORDS MGMT          24003325 1919782 505565 SOFTWARE-LICENSING            SHI INTERNATIONAL CO B09838824-A 15,653.00

COUNTY CLERK RECORDS MGMT          24003325 1921837 505567 OFFICE EQUIPMENT-NON-
CAPITAL  

CDW LLC SLV0948 737.80

  Department Total 24003325 16,390.80

26003900

JUVENILE DETENTION                 26003900 1918271 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            HOME DEPOT PRO 485876809 6.64

JUVENILE DETENTION                 26003900 1918271 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            HOME DEPOT PRO 486829245 21.36

JUVENILE DETENTION                 26003900 1918271 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            HOME DEPOT PRO 485389779 511.48

JUVENILE DETENTION                 26003900 1919752 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMERICAN CASTING & 307862 285.85

JUVENILE DETENTION                 26003900 1920029 505909 RENTALS & LEASES              MOBILE MINI INC 9006388523 132.83

JUVENILE DETENTION                 26003900 1921913 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

BROKEN ARROW FAMILY 052119-
052319-JUV

750.00

JUVENILE DETENTION                 26003900 1921913 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

BROKEN ARROW FAMILY 051419-
051619

825.00

  Department Total 26003900 2,533.16

26003990

COMMUNITY INTERVENTION             26003990 1922110 505762 FOOD                          WAREHOUSE MARKET INC 00689875 88.57

  Department Total 26003990 88.57

27002251

MUNIS ERP FINANCIAL SYSTEM         27002251 1921629 505565 SOFTWARE-LICENSING            TYLER TECHNOLOGIES I 045-264268 99,773.09

  Department Total 27002251 99,773.09

27002820

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1918654 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 18 300.00

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 27 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1918654 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 16 442.50

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1918654 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 17 592.50

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1920934 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

FERGUSON, MATTHEW FERG-MAY-
2019

1,500.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923019 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 00024 105.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923019 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 00020 127.50

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923019 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 00021 225.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923019 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 00019 345.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923019 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 00023 864.64

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923019 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MILITARY LAW GROUP 00022 1,042.50

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923102 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

ROSSON, SARA 050119-
053119

2,000.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923106 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

COUGHLON, SARAH 051319-
053119

1,500.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923115 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

JAMESON, STEVEN W 041319-
051219

1,800.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923118 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

DEATON, HILLIARY ANN 051319-
053119

1,500.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923119 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

ROBINETTE, REESE 051319-
053119

600.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923122 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

KEATON, BRANDON 051319-
053119

1,500.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923124 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

METCALF, QUINCY ANN 051319-
053119

1,500.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923126 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

HEAVIN, ADAM 051319-
053119

1,500.00

PUBLIC DEFENDER CIVIL-OBF VET CA9M2 27002820 1923129 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

CLEMONS, ALEXANDRIA 051319-
053119

1,500.00

  Department Total 27002820 18,944.64

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 28 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

29002975

TREAS-MORTGAGE CERT FEE            29002975 1919832 607076 DATA PROCESSING 
SOFTWARE      

SHI INTERNATIONAL CO b09838824 15,653.00

TREAS-MORTGAGE CERT FEE            29002975 1923028 505920 SUBSCRIPTIONS & 
MEMBERSHIPS   

BIXBY METRO CHAMBER 201360 137.00

  Department Total 29002975 15,790.00

29103000

TREAS-RESALE PROPERTY              29103000 1905436 505859 OTHER SERVICES                LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA 1441910-
20190531

788.28

TREAS-RESALE PROPERTY              29103000 1917643 505909 RENTALS & LEASES              PITNEY BOWES CREDIT 3308881991 974.49

TREAS-RESALE PROPERTY              29103000 1919558 505890 PUBLICATION & ADVERTISING   
  

BH MEDIA GROUP HOLD 568855-
052319

4,393.85

  Department Total 29103000 6,156.62

30002325

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1912400 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA GAS & GEAR LLC 80009172 57.00

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1913863 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            J D YOUNG 843021 46.95

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1916153 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMERICAN SERVICES IN 0039308-IN 10.00

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1916153 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMERICAN SERVICES IN 0039306-IN 19.00

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1916153 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMERICAN SERVICES IN 0039307-IN 33.00

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1916236 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CINTAS CORPORATION 063264713 247.30

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1916236 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CINTAS CORPORATION 063267817 247.30

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1916236 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CINTAS CORPORATION 063258445 256.61

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1916236 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CINTAS CORPORATION 063261562 302.85

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1919055 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091789
BMIT-A

167.46

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1919070 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091789
BMIT

162.30

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1920032 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL CM-435378 -16.51

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1920032 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 434535 259.53

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1920049 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            FINAL TOUCH CLEANING 16112 1,500.00

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1920158 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 434534 307.38

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 29 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1920438 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

WARREN POWER & MACHI TE21555 19,140.33

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1920592 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

WARREN POWER & MACHI PS10071820
8

338.95

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1920601 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

OWASSO LAWN CARE LLC 1015 225.00

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1921237 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

FRN OF TULSA LLC 3307288-
F8W

332.55

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1921576 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

LEKTRON LIGHTING & S 75397 194.50

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1921638 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

AMERICAN SANITATION 26656 301.48

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1921962 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

SAFELITE AUTOGLASS 01815-
273298

298.86

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1922149 607079 OTHER M&E AND MATERIALS    
   

MAXWELL SUPPLY OF TU 490439 2,177.00

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1922431 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

DEWBERRY, CAROLYN 54247 218.68

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1922609 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

WARREN POWER & MACHI PSI00722162
1

410.26

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1922610 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

W W GRAINGER INC 9188078019 192.11

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1922652 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            PETROLEUM TRADERS 1408905 9,577.49

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1922653 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            B ETHRIDGE INC E-64138 9,311.84

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION DIV           30002325 1922655 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            LUBRICATION SPECIALI 003511 460.00

  Department Total 30002325 46,779.22

30002330

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 1                 30002330 1921107 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA GAS & GEAR LLC 80009166 45.00

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 1                 30002330 1921108 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306551 62.00

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 1                 30002330 1921109 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMERICAN SERVICES IN 0039183-IN 20.00

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 1                 30002330 1921389 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ECONOMY LUMBER CO IN 27937 45.93

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 1                 30002330 1922057 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            FRN OF TULSA LLC 3315684-
F8W

352.45

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 1                 30002330 1922783 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AYS LLC 169984 55.00

  Department Total 30002330 580.38

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 30 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

30002335

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 2                 30002335 1922123 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

AMAZON.COM LLC 113-6946070-
1276247

25.98

  Department Total 30002335 25.98

30002340

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1916258 807970 CONTINGENCY FUNDS             JOHN VANCE MOTORS IN 71252 34,274.00

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1916258 807970 CONTINGENCY FUNDS             JOHN VANCE MOTORS IN 71256 34,274.00

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1916735 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063256711 161.29

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1916735 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063259801 166.24

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1916735 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063262956 166.24

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1916735 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063269203 185.45

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1916735 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

CINTAS CORPORATION 063266069 222.65

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1921102 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

W W GRAINGER INC 9176239052 33.00

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1921305 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

TULSA GAS & GEAR LLC 80009163 30.00

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1922007 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

KIRBY-SMITH MACHINER P56018 939.92

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1922035 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

INDUSTRIAL SPLICING 190083 487.63

HIGHWAY DISTRICT 3                 30002340 1922660 505590 OPER SUPPLIES&MAINT-EQUIP 
    

WELDON PARTS INC 2294133-00 93.34

  Department Total 30002340 71,033.76

30002350

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1913887 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF TULSA 1020-4600-0 34.18

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1914703 707510 LOAN INTEREST PAYMENT         OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT IN-
0000042216

50.54

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1914703 707510 LOAN INTEREST PAYMENT         OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT IN-
0000042102

53.57

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 31 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1914703 707510 LOAN INTEREST PAYMENT         OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT IN-
0000042172

57.81

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1914703 707510 LOAN INTEREST PAYMENT         OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT IN-
0000042163

70.31

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1914703 707500 LOAN PRINCIPAL PAYMENT        OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT IN-
0000042216

1,684.67

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1914703 707500 LOAN PRINCIPAL PAYMENT        OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT IN-
0000042102

1,785.72

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1914703 707500 LOAN PRINCIPAL PAYMENT        OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT IN-
0000042172

1,927.09

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1914703 707500 LOAN PRINCIPAL PAYMENT        OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT IN-
0000042163

2,343.75

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1922757 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF OWASSO 09505-00 1,084.88

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1922759 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 951-474-907-
0-0

38.86

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1922759 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-509-416-
0-1

58.48

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1922759 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 950-147-251-
0-5

64.34

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1922759 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 953-064-699-
0-9

79.98

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1922759 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 953-801-744-
0-9

89.68

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1922759 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 955-321-413-
0-6

1,937.33

COUNTY ROAD IMPROVEMENT            30002350 1922760 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-746-501-
0-5

2,562.91

  Department Total 30002350 13,924.10

30002450

COUNTY BRIDGE IMPROVEMENT          30002450 1904624 505795 OTHER PIPE ROAD & BRIDGE 
REPAI

AYS LLC 176863 125.00

  Department Total 30002450 125.00

30002475

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1905901 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT 19052470047 748.11

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1920490 505789 OTHER PAVING MATERIAL         SHERWOOD CONST 80614 586.30

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1920490 505789 OTHER PAVING MATERIAL         SHERWOOD CONST 80615 22,617.65

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1920490 505789 OTHER PAVING MATERIAL         SHERWOOD CONST 80610 22,627.90

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 32 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1920559 505789 OTHER PAVING MATERIAL         SHERWOOD CONSTRUCTIO 146839 2,222.28

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1920559 505789 OTHER PAVING MATERIAL         SHERWOOD CONSTRUCTIO 147284 4,283.55

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1920559 505789 OTHER PAVING MATERIAL         SHERWOOD CONSTRUCTIO 147225 4,395.96

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1921242 505784 ASPHALT, CONCRETE & EMUL 
D1   

SHERWOOD CONST 80605 12,047.29

HIGHWAY SPECIAL PROJECTS           30002475 1921727 505784 ASPHALT, CONCRETE & EMUL 
D1   

ERGON ASPHALT & EMUL 9402041998 1,973.49

  Department Total 30002475 71,502.53

30007525

CAPITAL PROJECTS                   30007525 1921333 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

BKL INC 30 10,356.00

  Department Total 30007525 10,356.00

41008000

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1922117 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

RELX INC 3092035371 3,097.50

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1923003 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

TULSA COUNTY IT 160211-MAY-
2019

41.66

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1923004 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

TULSA COUNTY 313013 64.00

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1923005 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

J D YOUNG 840031 146.71

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1923006 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

MATTHEW BENDER & COM 10850074 243.10

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1923006 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

MATTHEW BENDER & COM 10704566 369.51

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1923033 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

CCH INCORPORATED 4804316190 286.54

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1923034 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

TULSA COUNTY 314023 67.00

LAW LIBRARY                        41008000 1923034 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

TULSA COUNTY 314206 67.00

  Department Total 41008000 4,383.02

41506650

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1900668 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

SCOTT ADKINS CONSULT 05-19 4,547.02

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029161-0 103.96

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 33 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1920707 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ORR, CHANTEAU 050219-
052819

80.04

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1920707 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          ORR, CHANTEAU 050219-
052819

0.00

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1920708 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GRANT, JENNA 052419-
053119

24.36

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1920710 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

IVEY, REGGIE 050119-
053119

299.28

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1920710 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          IVEY, REGGIE 050119-
053119

0.00

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1921200 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ADVERTISING PLUS INC 84934-1 327.67

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1921200 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ADVERTISING PLUS INC 84992-1 488.00

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1922663 505940 TRAINING                      BROWNING GROUP INTER 37100 2,450.70

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1922690 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

LAR CONSULTING LLC 319 4,100.00

OFFICE OF DIRECTOR                 41506650 1923002 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          BANK OF AMERICA NA 8383-042019-
051919

3,890.41

  Department Total 41506650 16,311.44

41506700

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 41506700 1913481 505639 INSURANCE AND BONDS           TULSA COUNTY HUMAN R 313918 17,346.14

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 41506700 1916355 505191 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT        
 

CARROLL, LESLIE D SPRING-
2019

1,900.84

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 41506700 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029164-0 165.26

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 41506700 1921262 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SANCHEZ, MICHEAL    040319-
053019

53.36

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 41506700 1922308 607050 FURNITURE & FIXTURES          NATIONWIDE INDUST NIS6556344 1,855.66

  Department Total 41506700 21,321.26

41506725

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1908908 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091889
BMIT

2,035.50

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1908919 505580 EQUIP LEASE-PURCHASE 
COST     

IMAGENET CONSULTING CNIN091800
BMIT

2,275.00

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1912753 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

LINGUALINX LANGUAGE O-66431-1 53.67

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029166-0 23.11

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029168-0 24.73

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 34 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1920271 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029957-2 33.84

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1920271 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029957-1 135.36

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1920271 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029957-0 157.44

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1920567 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            S & S WORLDWIDE INC IN100137248 54.90

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1920598 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            D E ZIEGLER ART CRAF 11926 357.00

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1921591 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CDW LLC SLP4026 156.62

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1921591 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CDW LLC SGX1060 1,103.94

CREATIVE SERVICES & MARKETING      41506725 1923002 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          BANK OF AMERICA NA 8383-042019-
051919

200.90

  Department Total 41506725 6,612.01

41506740

HEALTH DATA & EVALUATION           41506740 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029169-0 105.45

HEALTH DATA & EVALUATION           41506740 1921187 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

RICE, JESSICA 050119-
053019

82.36

HEALTH DATA & EVALUATION           41506740 1921187 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          RICE, JESSICA 050119-
053019

66.00

HEALTH DATA & EVALUATION           41506740 1921188 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

DUGGIRALA, KIRAN 050319 13.92

HEALTH DATA & EVALUATION           41506740 1921191 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SHAKYA, ABHISHEK 050819-
053019

51.04

HEALTH DATA & EVALUATION           41506740 1923002 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          BANK OF AMERICA NA 8383-042019-
051919

36.64

  Department Total 41506740 355.41

41506775

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1918517 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            INTERNATIONAL E-Z UP INV0152182 2,123.30

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1919595 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            COXCOM INC 001-6311-
066583101

100.44

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029170-0 228.94

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1920156 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

LINGUALINX LANGUAGE O-66431-2 199.92

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921088 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

AVEY, MICHAEL 050219-
053119

96.28

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921090 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HOOD, SAMANTHA 051019-
052819

31.32

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921093 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SUNS, CARRIE C 051619-
053119

196.89

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 35 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921093 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          SUNS, CARRIE C 051619-
053119

0.00

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921094 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

WENZELL, MEGAN      050319-
052819

34.80

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921743 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ESKIMO JOES PROMOTI 91798-1 214.00

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921885 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMAZON.COM LLC 94664885339
3

55.27

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921885 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMAZON.COM LLC 59545465998
8

148.35

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921885 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMAZON.COM LLC 85636969898
6

220.09

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921885 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMAZON.COM LLC 43395678877
6

530.40

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1921999 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            MORE PREPARED I-26857 520.00

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS & RESPO      41506775 1923002 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          BANK OF AMERICA NA 8383-042019-
051919

2,444.08

  Department Total 41506775 7,144.08

41506850

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVI      41506850 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029172-0 30.00

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVI      41506850 1921193 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BUSTER, ANDREW 050619-
052419

38.28

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVI      41506850 1921194 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

FRANCETIC, PAUL 050119-
052919

143.84

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVI      41506850 1921195 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GILMORE, JIM 050119-
052819

99.76

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVI      41506850 1921282 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            COXCOM INC 001-6311-
071828001

420.05

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVI      41506850 1922276 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            SOUTHWESTERN BELL 918-582-3882
-727-4

7,803.46

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVI      41506850 1922287 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            SOUTHWESTERN BELL 918-105-1093
-635-6

30.00

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY SERVI      41506850 1922304 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            WINDSTREAM CORPORATI 100319936 180.30

  Department Total 41506850 8,745.69

41506900

FACILITIES MGMT-SATELLITE CENT      41506900 1905395 505859 OTHER SERVICES                THOMAS & ASSOCIATES 14116 2,552.00

  Department Total 41506900 2,552.00

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 36 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

41506925

FACILITIES MGMT-CENTRAL(CRHC)      41506925 1907880 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306548 158.05

FACILITIES MGMT-CENTRAL(CRHC)      41506925 1907944 607041 REMODELING                    C & C TILE & CARPET CG806243 30,412.00

FACILITIES MGMT-CENTRAL(CRHC)      41506925 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063257764 67.77

FACILITIES MGMT-CENTRAL(CRHC)      41506925 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063260854 67.77

FACILITIES MGMT-CENTRAL(CRHC)      41506925 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063264022 67.77

FACILITIES MGMT-CENTRAL(CRHC)      41506925 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063267118 67.77

FACILITIES MGMT-CENTRAL(CRHC)      41506925 1920107 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029181-0 0.00

  Department Total 41506925 30,841.13

41506950

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1901054 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA LOCK & KEY INC 87393 4.50

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1901054 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA LOCK & KEY INC 87995 101.94

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1905497 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CALVERTS PLANTS LLC 36613 162.00

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1907880 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306549 172.05

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063258651 85.55

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063264913 92.90

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063268027 92.90

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063261775 127.00

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1913567 505859 OTHER SERVICES                ACE SIGN COMPANY INC 19084 165.00

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1920107 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029284-0 99.20

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1920791 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            TULSA COUNTY 314302 3,128.68

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1921017 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 955-930-452-
0-6

48.36

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1921025 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 954-496-903-
0-4

10,648.98

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1921026 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          OKLAHOMA TURNPIKE 20190595400 32.75

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1921075 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2032308-0 1,676.20

FACILITIES MGMT-GOODWIN(JGHC)      41506950 1921862 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306549-
A

120.00

  Department Total 41506950 16,758.01

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 37 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

41506975

SECURITY                           41506975 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029172-0 0.00

  Department Total 41506975 0.00

41507000

FACILITIES MGMT-N REGINAL(NRHC      41507000 1905497 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CALVERTS PLANTS LLC 36613 164.00

FACILITIES MGMT-N REGINAL(NRHC      41507000 1907880 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306846 158.05

FACILITIES MGMT-N REGINAL(NRHC      41507000 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063258400 50.75

FACILITIES MGMT-N REGINAL(NRHC      41507000 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063261513 50.75

FACILITIES MGMT-N REGINAL(NRHC      41507000 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063264668 50.75

FACILITIES MGMT-N REGINAL(NRHC      41507000 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063267766 50.75

FACILITIES MGMT-N REGINAL(NRHC      41507000 1920107 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029181-0 0.00

FACILITIES MGMT-N REGINAL(NRHC      41507000 1921015 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 954-442-052-
1-5

3,522.30

  Department Total 41507000 4,047.35

41507025

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1919583 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF BIXBY 04-3500-05 1.72

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920107 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029175-0 448.09

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920792 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

TSHA INC 74273-
042119-
052119

109.50

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920942 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ANYANWU, UZOMA 050119-
053119

380.48

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920942 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          ANYANWU, UZOMA 050119-
053119

0.00

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920945 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

DAVIS, ASHLEY 050119-
053119

246.50

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920947 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HARRIS, TANYA 052119-
052919

121.49

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920948 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HENIN, DARREN 050119-
053119

269.70

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920948 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          HENIN, DARREN 050119-
053119

0.00

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920949 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HENRICHS, AMANDA 050119-
053019

320.74

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 38 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920951 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HUTTON, KARLA D 050919-
053019

257.42

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920952 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

LUNSFORD, TAYLOR 050119-
053119

189.08

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920958 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SELLU, EDWARD 050119-
053119

439.06

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920959 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SMITH, STEVEN G 050119-
053119

191.98

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920962 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

VANORSDOL, ELIZABETH 050119-
053019

199.52

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1920963 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

VILLANUEVA, CODY 050119-
053019

447.48

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1921267 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF SAND SPRINGS 11453-8124 59.61

ENVIRONMNTL PUBLIC HLTH-FOOD P      41507025 1921277 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            COXCOM INC 001-6311-
068332501

180.72

  Department Total 41507025 3,863.09

41507050

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063258651 4.25

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063261775 4.25

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063264913 4.25

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1913063 505859 OTHER SERVICES                CINTAS CORPORATION 063268027 4.25

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1916987 505859 OTHER SERVICES                ARK WRECKING CO 19-3072 125.00

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1917872 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        EWT HOLDINGS III 904017796 222.77

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1918333 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            JOHN W HOCK COMPANY 19-0523 669.12

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920107 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029181-0 604.83

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920594 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES 117095779 492.90

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920594 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES 117172142 526.68

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920967 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

AUSTIN, ADAM 050119-
053019

454.40

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920968 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CUPPLES, ROSALINE 050219-
053119

259.26

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920970 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

DIXON, AMANDA       050119-
053119

233.74

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920973 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

NUTT, ELIZABETH A 051319-
053019

95.70

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920973 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          NUTT, ELIZABETH A 051319-
053019

0.00

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 39 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1920975 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ROTH, ROGER 050119-
052919

225.62

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES      41507050 1923136 505859 OTHER SERVICES                STERICYCLE INC 4008633178 54.00

  Department Total 41507050 3,981.02

41507075

COMMUNITY HEALTH ADMIN             41507075 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029997-0 0.00

COMMUNITY HEALTH ADMIN             41507075 1920713 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

JOHNSON, JAVAHNA 050219-
053119

73.08

COMMUNITY HEALTH ADMIN             41507075 1923002 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          BANK OF AMERICA NA 8383-042019-
051919

108.42

  Department Total 41507075 181.50

41507100

FAMILY PLANNING                    41507100 1908950 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        REASORS HOLDING 0008-2019 14.55

FAMILY PLANNING                    41507100 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031426-0 128.66

FAMILY PLANNING                    41507100 1920792 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

TSHA INC 74273-
042119-
052119

75.90

FAMILY PLANNING                    41507100 1921267 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF SAND SPRINGS 11453-8124 36.03

FAMILY PLANNING                    41507100 1921861 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        APOTHECUS PHARMACEUT IN0160667 2,735.62

FAMILY PLANNING                    41507100 1923136 505859 OTHER SERVICES                STERICYCLE INC 4008633178 526.50

  Department Total 41507100 3,517.26

41507125

VITAL RECORDS                      41507125 1920107 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029181-0 0.00

  Department Total 41507125 0.00

41507160

TEEN PREGNANCY PREVENT - PREP      41507160 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031427-0 105.87

TEEN PREGNANCY PREVENT - PREP      41507160 1920717 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BRICE, AMY 050119-
053119

26.10

TEEN PREGNANCY PREVENT - PREP      41507160 1920719 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CARTER, SIERRA      050119-
053119

0.00

TEEN PREGNANCY PREVENT - PREP      41507160 1920719 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CARTER, SIERRA      050119-
053119

117.60

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 40 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

TEEN PREGNANCY PREVENT - PREP      41507160 1920723 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

WILSON, IRENE 050119-
053119

103.82

  Department Total 41507160 353.39

41507161

PREGNANCY ASSISTANCE FUND          41507161 1914342 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BARNES & NOBLE CM-3834727 -27.95

PREGNANCY ASSISTANCE FUND          41507161 1914342 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BARNES & NOBLE CM-3849374 -11.99

PREGNANCY ASSISTANCE FUND          41507161 1914342 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            BARNES & NOBLE 3782641 1,265.25

PREGNANCY ASSISTANCE FUND          41507161 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031467-0 0.00

PREGNANCY ASSISTANCE FUND          41507161 1920717 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BRICE, AMY 050119-
053119

42.34

PREGNANCY ASSISTANCE FUND          41507161 1920724 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

WILSON, PAIGE 050319-
053119

103.82

  Department Total 41507161 1,371.47

41507175

COMMTY HLTH INTRVNTN & PREVENT      41507175 1905046 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

CLAFLIN, DALE GENE 0011-MAY-
2019

5,416.66

COMMTY HLTH INTRVNTN & PREVENT      41507175 1920107 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029181-0 0.00

COMMTY HLTH INTRVNTN & PREVENT      41507175 1922297 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

MED TECH SOLUTIONS 18103542 5,012.90

COMMTY HLTH INTRVNTN & PREVENT      41507175 1923136 505859 OTHER SERVICES                STERICYCLE INC 4008633178 27.00

  Department Total 41507175 10,456.56

41507200

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1917326 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CARTER, M ANGELA 030819-
051719

52.20

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031459-0 84.22

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920728 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

COONFIELD, MICHELLE 050119-
052919

48.14

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920728 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          COONFIELD, MICHELLE 050119-
052919

0.00

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920729 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ELIAS, KRISTY L 050119-
053119

302.76

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920729 505940 TRAINING                      ELIAS, KRISTY L 050119-
053119

60.00

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 41 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920733 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

KRAMER, DAVA 050119-
053019

140.94

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920742 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SEITZ, LINDY        050219-
053119

302.14

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920746 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

TAYLOR, DANA 050119-
052419

321.90

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920749 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

YOUNG, MARIA 050119-
053019

333.02

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1920792 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

TSHA INC 74273-
042119-
052119

166.35

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1922990 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MOORE, KAITLIN 050119-
053019

218.08

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1922990 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          MOORE, KAITLIN 050119-
053019

30.16

CHILDREN FIRST GRANT               41507200 1923002 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          BANK OF AMERICA NA 8383-042019-
051919

1,815.92

  Department Total 41507200 3,875.83

41507210

MIECHV C1                          41507210 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031467-0 0.00

MIECHV C1                          41507210 1920751 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

DUPRE, DREW DEVIN   050119-
053119

275.24

  Department Total 41507210 275.24

41507215

MIECH CONNECTOR                    41507215 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029997-0 32.22

  Department Total 41507215 32.22

41507220

BIRTH THROUGH EIGHT STRATEGY T      41507220 1919090 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

PFANNENSTIEL, KYLA  040219-
042919

174.34

BIRTH THROUGH EIGHT STRATEGY T      41507220 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031461-0 57.40

BIRTH THROUGH EIGHT STRATEGY T      41507220 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2030003-0 89.45

  Department Total 41507220 321.19

41507225

ADULT HEALTH                       41507225 1908950 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        REASORS HOLDING 0008-2019 14.55

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 42 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

ADULT HEALTH                       41507225 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031462-0 100.23

ADULT HEALTH                       41507225 1921267 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF SAND SPRINGS 11453-8124 36.03

ADULT HEALTH                       41507225 1922284 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036479-0 24.07

ADULT HEALTH                       41507225 1923136 505859 OTHER SERVICES                STERICYCLE INC 4008633178 108.00

  Department Total 41507225 282.88

41507255

AUDIOLOGY CLINIC                   41507255 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029183-0 135.69

AUDIOLOGY CLINIC                   41507255 1920792 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

TSHA INC 74273-
042119-
052119

0.00

  Department Total 41507255 135.69

41507275

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1903617 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        SMITHKLINE BEECHAM C 8252813974 2,144.30

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1919973 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        SMITHKLINE BEECHAM C 8252819331 1,411.79

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031464-0 10.40

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1921267 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF SAND SPRINGS 11453-8124 23.17

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1921488 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        HELMER INC 0000314313 267.33

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1921859 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        SMITHKLINE BEECHAM C 8252813976 834.96

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1921860 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        SMITHKLINE BEECHAM C 8252813975 834.96

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1922284 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2036479-0 24.07

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1922311 505776 CHEMICAL & LAB SUPPLIE        SANOFI PASTEUR INC 912340839 2,103.71

IMMUNIZATIONS                      41507275 1923136 505859 OTHER SERVICES                STERICYCLE INC 4008633178 121.50

  Department Total 41507275 7,776.19

41507300

HEALTH PROMOTION&OUTREACH ADMN      41507300 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031465-0 57.67

HEALTH PROMOTION&OUTREACH ADMN      41507300 1920980 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

RASK, PAMELA SUE 050119-
052219

146.16

HEALTH PROMOTION&OUTREACH ADMN      41507300 1920980 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          RASK, PAMELA SUE 050119-
052219

0.00

HEALTH PROMOTION&OUTREACH ADMN      41507300 1921744 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA LITHO 102874 245.00

HEALTH PROMOTION&OUTREACH ADMN      41507300 1922077 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA LITHO 102875 96.68

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 43 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

HEALTH PROMOTION&OUTREACH ADMN      41507300 1922077 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA LITHO 102821 241.00

  Department Total 41507300 786.51

41507325

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1918870 505920 SUBSCRIPTIONS & 
MEMBERSHIPS   

CHALLENGER GROUP 181937 1,600.00

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1919673 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            WHAT TO EXPECT 4693 2,273.69

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029991-0 501.70

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920983 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CLEMONS, RENITA 050619-
053119

161.82

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920983 505940 TRAINING                      CLEMONS, RENITA 050619-
053119

0.00

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920985 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GEORGE, FALINE A 050619-
053119

35.38

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920986 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GILTON, DENISE 050219-
053119

271.44

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920986 505940 TRAINING                      GILTON, DENISE 050219-
053119

0.00

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920987 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

HENDERSON, KASSANDRA 050319-
053119

213.44

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920988 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SPRINGS, LESLIE     050119-
053019

118.90

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1920988 505940 TRAINING                      SPRINGS, LESLIE     050119-
053019

40.00

HEALTHY START INITIATIVE           41507325 1922306 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            METROPOLITAN TULSA T IVC032318 2,768.00

  Department Total 41507325 7,984.37

41507340

RESOURCE PREVENT COORD (RPC)       41507340 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029996-0 0.00

RESOURCE PREVENT COORD (RPC)       41507340 1921121 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CONDLEY, MATTHEW 050119-
053019

36.50

RESOURCE PREVENT COORD (RPC)       41507340 1921121 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          CONDLEY, MATTHEW 050119-
053019

280.50

RESOURCE PREVENT COORD (RPC)       41507340 1921122 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

TSELEE JR, CLAYTON 050219-
053119

45.50

RESOURCE PREVENT COORD (RPC)       41507340 1921122 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          TSELEE JR, CLAYTON 050219-
053119

244.50

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 44 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

RESOURCE PREVENT COORD (RPC)       41507340 1921123 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

WENSMAN, HANNA 050119-
052419

85.00

RESOURCE PREVENT COORD (RPC)       41507340 1921123 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          WENSMAN, HANNA 050119-
052419

239.75

  Department Total 41507340 931.75

41507342

SPF STATE INCNTIVE GRNT(SPFSIG      41507342 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029996-0 0.00

SPF STATE INCNTIVE GRNT(SPFSIG      41507342 1921121 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CONDLEY, MATTHEW 050119-
053019

38.00

SPF STATE INCNTIVE GRNT(SPFSIG      41507342 1921124 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

TILLMAN, STEPHANIE 050119-
053019

55.00

SPF STATE INCNTIVE GRNT(SPFSIG      41507342 1921124 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          TILLMAN, STEPHANIE 050119-
053019

359.00

SPF STATE INCNTIVE GRNT(SPFSIG      41507342 1921660 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            TULSA COUNTY INDEPE 6.3.2019 1,000.00

  Department Total 41507342 1,452.00

41507350

CX OF TULSA COUNTY                 41507350 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029187-0 82.89

CX OF TULSA COUNTY                 41507350 1920989 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

LOVE, COREY 050319-
052219

67.00

CX OF TULSA COUNTY                 41507350 1920989 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          LOVE, COREY 050319-
052219

0.00

CX OF TULSA COUNTY                 41507350 1920990 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

WAGNER, VICKI 050219-
052219

72.50

CX OF TULSA COUNTY                 41507350 1920990 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          WAGNER, VICKI 050219-
052219

118.00

CX OF TULSA COUNTY                 41507350 1921489 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

FAMILY HOPE HOUSE 392 1,275.00

  Department Total 41507350 1,615.39

41507375

CHILD GUIDANCE CENTER              41507375 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029190-0 81.07

CHILD GUIDANCE CENTER              41507375 1920792 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

TSHA INC 74273-
042119-
052119

0.00

CHILD GUIDANCE CENTER              41507375 1920999 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

DEHART, LETITIA R 050119-
052919

74.24

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 45 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

CHILD GUIDANCE CENTER              41507375 1920999 505940 TRAINING                      DEHART, LETITIA R 050119-
052919

550.00

CHILD GUIDANCE CENTER              41507375 1920999 505204 TRAVEL-OUT OF COUNTY          DEHART, LETITIA R 050119-
052919

668.00

  Department Total 41507375 1,373.31

41507400

WIC                                41507400 1900174 505909 RENTALS & LEASES              MARINA SHOPPING JULY-2019-
RENT

2,145.00

WIC                                41507400 1907880 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              AMERICAN WASTE CONTR 0005306858 26.00

WIC                                41507400 1919219 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              ONEOK INC 210054768-
1062875-73

23.36

WIC                                41507400 1919389 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

DAVILA, IMELDA 040119-
041219

30.16

WIC                                41507400 1919583 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF BIXBY 04-3500-05 32.64

WIC                                41507400 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031467-0 381.62

WIC                                41507400 1920359 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2032195-0 1,416.80

WIC                                41507400 1920792 505889 PROFESSIONAL & TECH 
SERVICES  

TSHA INC 74273-
042119-
052119

335.50

WIC                                41507400 1921005 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              ONEOK INC 210054768-
1711708-91

22.09

WIC                                41507400 1921016 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 959-995-633-
4-9

92.19

WIC                                41507400 1921018 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 957-654-112-
3-6

143.09

WIC                                41507400 1921019 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 954-554-112-
3-1

172.17

WIC                                41507400 1921126 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

AVILA, ALEJANDRA 050319 18.56

WIC                                41507400 1921130 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CEJA-MARTINEZ, Y 050319-
052419

38.28

WIC                                41507400 1921132 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

EZELL, KITTY 050319-
052419

7.54

WIC                                41507400 1921134 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GOMEZ, DORA 050119-
053019

214.60

WIC                                41507400 1921138 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

KASIKA, RACHEL 050119-
053119

64.96

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 46 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

WIC                                41507400 1921141 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

LONG, JENY 1921141 24.36

WIC                                41507400 1921144 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

MIRELES, MARIA 050319-
053019

22.04

WIC                                41507400 1921146 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ORONA, ISABEL       050319-
052919

13.34

WIC                                41507400 1921147 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

QUACH, SARAH 050319-
052419

38.28

WIC                                41507400 1921149 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

RING, KRISTI 050319 11.02

WIC                                41507400 1921151 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SALGADO-GARAY, D 050319-
050819

35.38

WIC                                41507400 1921153 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SMITHWICK, DONNA 050219-
053119

174.00

WIC                                41507400 1921155 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

SWEEZEY, GLENDA 05032019 18.56

WIC                                41507400 1921160 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

WHITTAKER, GLORIA 050319-
052819

59.74

WIC                                41507400 1921172 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

PELTON, LESLIE 050119-
053119

70.76

WIC                                41507400 1921206 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

LOPEZ-GONZALEZ, V 050319-
051719

22.04

WIC                                41507400 1921207 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

PRUETT, ANA 050219 12.76

WIC                                41507400 1921267 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF SAND SPRINGS 11453-8124 59.61

WIC                                41507400 1921280 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            COXCOM INC 001-6311-
071797802

106.16

WIC                                41507400 1921487 505909 RENTALS & LEASES              R & M MUSIC COMPANY JULY-2019 1,200.00

WIC                                41507400 1922277 505559 COMMUNICATION SRVS            SOUTHWESTERN BELL 918-669-8200
-485-9

972.02

WIC                                41507400 1922421 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            AMAZON.COM LLC 95643569576
5

219.95

WIC                                41507400 1923136 505859 OTHER SERVICES                STERICYCLE INC 4008633178 27.00

  Department Total 41507400 8,251.58

41507404

WIC PEER                           41507404 1900174 505909 RENTALS & LEASES              MARINA SHOPPING JULY-2019-
RENT

660.00

WIC PEER                           41507404 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031467-0 0.00

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 47 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

WIC PEER                           41507404 1921165 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

EASTON, PATRICIA 050119-
053119

85.26

WIC PEER                           41507404 1921166 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

GONZALEZ, MIRIAM 051319-
052019

16.24

  Department Total 41507404 761.50

41507405

WIC LBL                            41507405 1900174 505909 RENTALS & LEASES              MARINA SHOPPING JULY-2019-
RENT

495.00

WIC LBL                            41507405 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031471-0 58.33

WIC LBL                            41507405 1921172 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

PELTON, LESLIE 050119-
053119

75.40

WIC LBL                            41507405 1921864 607071 DATA PROCESSING 
EQUIPMENT     

CDW LLC SMC5201 2,400.00

WIC LBL                            41507405 1921864 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CDW LLC SJK2273 119.04

WIC LBL                            41507405 1921864 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CDW LLC SMN6539 400.00

WIC LBL                            41507405 1921864 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            CDW LLC SKS7168 773.12

  Department Total 41507405 4,320.89

41507450

SCHOOL HEALTH(ITS ALL ABOUT KI      41507450 1920109 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2031467-0 0.00

SCHOOL HEALTH(ITS ALL ABOUT KI      41507450 1921173 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CUTRIGHT, ASHLEY    050119-
052119

267.96

SCHOOL HEALTH(ITS ALL ABOUT KI      41507450 1921178 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

IBARRA, OMAR 050119-
052419

202.42

  Department Total 41507450 470.38

41507475

WORKING FOR BALANCE                41507475 1920107 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029181-0 0.00

WORKING FOR BALANCE                41507475 1921185 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

BERSON, CONNIE 051519-
052819

70.76

WORKING FOR BALANCE                41507475 1923136 505859 OTHER SERVICES                STERICYCLE INC 4008633178 27.00

  Department Total 41507475 97.76

41507500

FETAL INFANT MORTALITY REVIEW      41507500 1902876 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            REASORS HOLDING 2018-2019 14.17

FETAL INFANT MORTALITY REVIEW      41507500 1920106 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029172-0 0.00

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 48 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

FETAL INFANT MORTALITY REVIEW      41507500 1921198 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

JOHNSON, MICHELLE 050319-
053019

82.36

FETAL INFANT MORTALITY REVIEW      41507500 1921199 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ROBISON, KAYLA 050619-
053119

38.28

  Department Total 41507500 134.81

41507505

ACCOUNTABLE HEALTH COMMUNITIES      41507505 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2030035-0 67.14

  Department Total 41507505 67.14

41507510

TULSA MCH INITIATIVE               41507510 1919522 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

CABRERA, ASHLEE 040119-
042619

116.00

TULSA MCH INITIATIVE               41507510 1919525 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

JACKSON, MARNIE 040219-
043019

263.32

TULSA MCH INITIATIVE               41507510 1919526 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

IKPE, KATRENA 040219-
053019

323.06

TULSA MCH INITIATIVE               41507510 1920108 505739 OFFICE SUPPLIES               ADMIRAL EXPRESS 2029996-0 52.26

TULSA MCH INITIATIVE               41507510 1921601 505203 MILEAGE REIMB-IN COUNTY      
 

ANDERSON, DASHONDRA 051019-
053019

48.14

  Department Total 41507510 802.78

42507975

TULSA AREA EMER MGMT AGENCY        42507975 1917579 505558 CENTREX CHARGES               CITY OF TULSA 420079 22.50

TULSA AREA EMER MGMT AGENCY        42507975 1917886 505873 PRINTING & BINDING            J D YOUNG 842794 69.32

TULSA AREA EMER MGMT AGENCY        42507975 1920062 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

MANSFIELD OIL CO SQLCD-
518138

170.44

TULSA AREA EMER MGMT AGENCY        42507975 1920064 505670 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE       
  

OKLAHOMA TURNPIKE 20190595885 7.30

TULSA AREA EMER MGMT AGENCY        42507975 1922573 505961 ELECTRIC                      PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA 959-008-704-
0-3

388.95

  Department Total 42507975 658.51

43007950

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1921901 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            STEVES WHOLESALE 123520 3.29

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1921901 505849 OPERATING SUPPLIES            STEVES WHOLESALE 123521 16.69

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1922668 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

BOWERS OIL CO INC 38233 806.98

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 49 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1922711 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

BOWERS OIL CO INC 38240 652.60

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1922953 505709 MOTOR VEHICLES-OPER 
SUPPLIES  

BOWERS OIL CO INC 38261 328.81

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1922975 506161 EMER LEVEE ELECTRICAL 
REPAIRS 

CVS PHARMACY INC 1442 18.73

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923045 506161 EMER LEVEE ELECTRICAL 
REPAIRS 

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0353-349740 3.49

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923045 506161 EMER LEVEE ELECTRICAL 
REPAIRS 

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0353-349723 55.98

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923045 506161 EMER LEVEE ELECTRICAL 
REPAIRS 

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0172-462671 81.36

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923045 506161 EMER LEVEE ELECTRICAL 
REPAIRS 

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0172-462234 90.96

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923045 505720 MOTOR VEHICLES-OUTSIDE 
SRV    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0353-344873 12.13

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923045 505720 MOTOR VEHICLES-OUTSIDE 
SRV    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0353-349492 12.98

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923045 505720 MOTOR VEHICLES-OUTSIDE 
SRV    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0353-350394 39.98

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923045 505720 MOTOR VEHICLES-OUTSIDE 
SRV    

OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE 0353-347190 145.70

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923093 505969 UTILITY SERVICES              CITY OF SAND SPRINGS 24171-5980 128.57

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12               43007950 1923094 506161 EMER LEVEE ELECTRICAL 
REPAIRS 

CITIBANK NA 466288 91.92

  Department Total 43007950 2,490.17

    Grand Total 1,257,964.44

.................................................................

Board of County Commissioners

.................................................................

These claims are approved for payment for the individual amounts indicated above (19 O.S. 1981, Section 326 and 19 O.S. supplement 1983, Section 215.37G).   
The district attorney is approving officer for expenditures for his/her office (19 O.S. 1981, Section 328).

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 50 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Member

*****************End of Report*****************

Date

.................................................................
County Clerk

Attest: .................................................................
Member

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:07:01 PM

Page 51 of 51

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019



Department Project Org PO # Object Acct Desc Vendor Name Inv Nbr Amount

20202585

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1922770 505930 TAXES-STATE SALES TAX         OKLAHOMA TAX COMMISS JUNE-2019-
FINAL

3,000.00

PARK OPERATIONS                    20202585 1922770 505930 TAXES-STATE SALES TAX         OKLAHOMA TAX COMMISS MAY-2019-
PRE

16,742.99

  Department Total 20202585 19,742.99

    Grand Total 19,742.99

.................................................................
Member

Board of County Commissioners

*****************End of Report*****************

Date

.................................................................
County Clerk

Attest:

.................................................................

These claims are approved for payment for the individual amounts indicated above (19 O.S. 1981, Section 326 and 19 O.S. supplement 1983, Section 215.37G).   
The district attorney is approving officer for expenditures for his/her office (19 O.S. 1981, Section 328).

.................................................................
Member

TCAP001 BOCC Meeting Date Tulsa County Clerk Run Date Printed : 
6/13/2019 
2:17:55 PM

Page 1 of 1

Purchase Orders

6/17/2019


	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. MINUTES
	A. Board of County Commissioner's Meeting of June 10,
	061019BOCC Minutes


	III. REPORTS
	A. Elected Officials:
	1. Assessor
	Report-Assessor Revolving Fund-May 2019

	2. Court Clerk 
	Report-Court Clerk-Monthly-May 2019

	3. Treasurer 
	20190612_J. Dennis Semler Tulsa County Treasurer


	B. County Department - Election Board
	Report-Election Board-Monthly

	C. Annual Inventory Certifications:
	1. Administrative Services
	Admin Svs - Annual Inventory Certification BOCC Agenda

	2. County Clerk
	County Clerk - Certification - June 2019

	3. Treasurer
	Tulsa County Treasurer Annual Inventory - All Funds - FY 18-19


	D. Social Services - Annual Cemetery Report
	Annual Cemetery Report - Social Services


	IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	A. Bid/Proposal Awards:
	1. Sheriff - Video Visitation for David L. Moss (DLM)
	2. TC Departments - Agricultural Supplies - Deferred

	B. Amendment #1 - (TC Central Garage) - to Renew the
	Amendment 1- Central Garage- Ford Automotive Repair

	C. Amendment #3 - (Board of County Commissioners) - R
	Agreement - BOCC - CH2M, HILL Inc

	D. Amended Agreement - (Engineers) - ONEOK Gas Transp
	Agreement - Engineers - ONEOK


	V. ACTION ITEMS
	A. Gasoline &amp; Diesel Fuel Quotes
	B. Resolution on Disposition of Funds/Cash Fund Estim
	bocc certificate for approval may 16, 2019 to june 12, 2019

	C. Request for Approval - (Board of County Commission
	Request for Approval - BOCC - Timmons Oil Company Credit Application

	D. Requests for Approval - Human Resources:
	1. Proposal from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management
	AJG Risk Management

	2. for Authorization of Plan Sponsor Web Portal User
	Request - HR - BOK Plan Sponsor Web Access


	E. Requests for Approval - (Social Services) - to Acc
	Requests - Social Services - Donations

	F. Resolution - (Employees' Retirement System of Tuls
	Resolution - TCERS

	G. Tort Claim - (District Attorney) - TC-2019-19, Cla
	2019-06-11 Memo to BOCC Approve

	H. Agreements:
	1. Assessor - LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL, Inc. - fo
	Agreement - Assessor LexisNexis

	2. Board of County Commissioners:
	a. Department of the Army - for Design for the Arkans
	Agreement - BOCC - Dept of Army

	b. L2M, LLC - for Administration of Claims Related to
	Agreement - BOCC - L2M, LLC

	c. Metro Roofing Company, LLC - for Trade Contractor
	Agreement - BOCC - Metro Roofing Co LLC

	d. Oakridge Builders, a Division of Flintco, LLC - fo
	Agreement - BOCC - Oakridge Builders

	e. Oklahoma Waterproofing Company - for Trade Contrac
	Agreement - BOCC - Oklahoma Waterproofing Company


	3. Court Clerk - Wycom Systems, Inc. - for Annual Lic
	Agreement - Court Clerk - Wycom

	4. Engineers - Washington County Rural Water District
	Agreement - Engineers - Washington County RWD 3

	5. Human Resources - Vision Services Plan, Inc., Okla
	Agreement - HR - VSP

	6. Treasurer:
	a. BOKF, NA dba Bank of Oklahoma - for Warrant and Cr
	Treasurer - BOKF - Warrant Credit and Reimbursement Agreement

	b. Financial Equipment Company - Equipment Service an
	Agreement - Treasurer - Financial Equipment Co.



	I. Agreement Renewals:
	1. Administrative Services - JD Young
	Renewal - Admin Serv - JD Young

	2. Board of County Commissioners - Tulsa City-Co
	Resolution renewal - BOCC - Health Dept

	3. Employees' Retirement System of Tulsa County:
	a. &amp;CO
	Agreement Renewal

	b. Milliman, Inc.
	Renewal - TCERS - Milliman


	4. Highways - ImageNet Consulting, LLC
	Agreement Renewal - Highways - ImageNet Consulting, LLC

	5. Human Resources - Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.
	RESOLUTION - HR - A J GALLAGHER BENEFITS CONSULTING

	6. IT - ConvergeOne, Inc. 
	Renewal - IT - ConvergeOne

	7. Juvenile Bureau - ImageNet Consulting, LLC
	ImageNet

	8. Parks - Tulsa Little League 
	Agreement Renewal - Parks - Tulsa Little League


	J. Inventory Resolutions:
	1. Fiscal Office
	Inventory Resolution - Fiscal

	2. IT
	Inventory Resolution - IT

	3. Sheriff - (6)
	Inventory Resolutions - Sheriff - 6


	K. Sole Sources:
	1. Sheriff - PortionPac Chemical Corporation
	Sole Source- Sheriff- PortionPac Chemical Corp.

	2. Treasurer - Public Access to Court Electronic
	Sole Source - Treasurer- Public Access to Court Electronic Records(PACER)


	L. Utility Permits - Engineers:
	1. AT&amp;T
	Utility Permit-ATT-Engineering

	2. Keystone Rural Gas District #1 
	Utility Permit-Keystone RGD1-Engineering

	3. Oklahoma Natural Gas Company, a Division of ONEOK,
	Utility Permit-ONG-Engineering


	M. Travel/Training:
	1. Human Resources
	Travel Traininng -Human Resources - David Hayes - ACCO Summer Safety Conference, Norman -7-31 and 8-1-2019

	2. IT - (2)
	Travel Training - IT - 2


	N. Personnel Actions:
	Personnel Actions 6-17-19
	1. Building Operations
	2. Election Board 
	3. Highways
	4. Parks

	O. Juvenile Bureau Documents to Accept & File:
	1. Personnel Actions
	JB Personnel Actions 6-17-19

	2. Travel/Training
	JB Travel Training


	P. CC Health Department Documents to Accept &amp; Fil
	1. Agreements:
	Contracts 061719
	a. North Tulsa Community Coalition
	b. ImageNet Consulting, LLC
	c. Coontz Roofing, Inc.

	2. Personnel Actions
	THD - Action 6-14-19


	Q. Claims to be Disallowed (payments cancelled as of
	R. Claims (payments for bills to be paid by 6/3-7/19)
	Claims

	S. Blanket Purchase Orders and Emergency Purchase Ord

	VI. NEW BUSINESS
	VII. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	VIII. ADJOURN

	Department: Administrative Services
	Vendor: J D Young
	Describe Product  Service provided by this contract: 
	Original CMF: 245782
	Dated: 08/27/2018
	Current CMF: 245782
	Dated_2: 08/27/2018
	Vendor_2: JD Young
	Printed Name: 
	Approved by the Board of County Commissioners this: 
	day of: 
	20: 
	Describe Product 2: rental and service maintenance for the bottleless water purification system
	Fiscal Year: 2019
	Fiscal Year2: 2020
	Contract Date: 6/10/2019
		2019-06-10T10:30:38-0500
	Roger Turner




